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REF_DISCOV,WM

U.S. Distr ict Cour t
 Southern Distr ict of Flor ida (West Palm Beach)

 CIVIL DOCKET FOR CASE #: 9:15-cv-81298-KAM

Bivins v. Rogers et al
 Assigned to: Judge Kenneth A. Marra

 Referred to: Magistrate Judge William Matthewman
 Demand: $75,000

 Cause: 28:1332 Diversity-Breach of Fiduciary Duty

Date Filed: 09/17/2015
 Jury Demand: Defendant

 Nature of Suit: 190 Contract: Other
 Jurisdiction: Diversity

Plaintiff
Julian Bivins  

 as personal Repr esentative of the ancillary
Estate of Oliver Bivins

represented by Charles Dennis Bavol 
The Bleakley Bavol Law Firm 
15170 North Florida Avenue 
Tampa, FL 33613 
813-221-3759 
Fax: 813-221-3198 
Email: cbavol@bleakleybavol.com 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
M. Kristen Allman 
The Bleakley Bavol Law Firm 
15170 N Florida Ave 
Tampa, FL 33613 
813-221-3759 
Fax: 813-221-3198 
Email: kallman@bleakleybavol.com 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Joseph Ronald Denman 
The Bleakley Bavol Law Firm 
15170 N. Florida Avenue 
Tampa, FL 33613 
813-221-3759 
Fax: 813-221-3198 
Email: rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

V.
 

Defendant
Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr . 

 as former guar dian 
 TERMINATED: 02/13/2017

represented by Charles Ler oy Pickett , Jr . 
Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell 
515 N Flagler Drive 
20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
561-832-5900 
Fax: 833-4209 
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Email: Cpickett@ciklinlubitz.com 
 LEAD ATTORNEY 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Wendy J Stein 
Bonner Kiernan Trebach & Crociata LLP 
1233 20th Street 
8th Floor 
Washington, DC 20036 
202-712-7000 
Fax: 212-712-7100 
Email: wstein@bonnerkiernan.com 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant
Stephen M Kelly  

 as successor guar dian
represented by Charles Ler oy Pickett , Jr . 

(See above for address) 
 TERMINATED: 09/14/2016 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Rachel Studley 
Wicker Smith O'Hara McCoy & Ford, LLC 
515 N. Flagler Drive 
Suite 1600 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
561-689-3800 
Fax: 689-9206 
Email: rstudley@wickersmith.com 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Brandon Jay Hechtman 
Wicker, Smith, O'Hara, McCoy & Ford,
P.A. 
Regions Bank Building 
2800 Ponce de Leon Boulevard 
Suite 800 
Coral Gables, FL 33134 
(305) 448-3939 
Fax: (305) 441-1745 
Email: bhechtman@wickersmith.com 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Jeffr ey Alan Blaker 
Conroy Simberg & Ganon 
1801 Centrepark Drive East 
Suite 200 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
561-697-8088 
Fax: 697-8664 
Email: jblaker@conroysimberg.com 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
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Defendant
Brian M. O'Connell represented by Brian Bradshaw Joslyn 

Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell 
515 N Flagler Drive 
20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401-4343 
561-832-5900 
Fax: 561-833-4209 
Email: bjoslyn@ciklinlubitz.com 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Charles Ler oy Pickett , Jr . 
(See above for address) 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Brandon Jay Hechtman 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Jeffr ey Alan Blaker 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Lorin Louis Mrachek 
Mrachek Fitgerald Rose Konopka Thomas
& Weiss, P.A. 
505 S Flagler Drive 
Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
561-655-2250 
Fax: 655-5537 
Email: lmrachek@mrachek-law.com 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Rachel Studley 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant
Ashley N. Crispin represented by Brian Bradshaw Joslyn 

(See above for address) 
 LEAD ATTORNEY 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Charles Ler oy Pickett , Jr . 
(See above for address) 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Brandon Jay Hechtman 
(See above for address) 

 



9/27/2017 CM/ECF - Live Database - flsd

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?129658661746098-L_1_0-1 4/44

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Jeffr ey Alan Blaker 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Lorin Louis Mrachek 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Rachel Studley 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell represented by Alan Benjamin Rose 

Mrachek Fitgerald, Rose, Konopka, Thomas
& Weiss, P.A. 
505 S Flagler Drive 
Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
561-355-6991 
Fax: 655-5537 
Email: arose@mrachek-law.com 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Brian Bradshaw Joslyn 
(See above for address) 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Charles Ler oy Pickett , Jr . 
(See above for address) 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Lorin Louis Mrachek 
(See above for address) 

 LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Brandon Jay Hechtman 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Rachel Studley 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant
Keith B. Stein represented by Charles Ler oy Pickett , Jr . 

(See above for address) 
 TERMINATED: 04/15/2016 
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LEAD ATTORNEY 
 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

 
Alexandra Jordan Schultz 
Cozen O'Connor 
1 North Clematis Street 
Suite 510 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 515-5205 
Email: aschultz@conroysimberg.com 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Jeffr ey Alan Blaker 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Rachel Studley 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant
Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP  
formerly known as

 Beys Stein Mobargha and Berland, LLP

represented by Charles Ler oy Pickett , Jr . 
(See above for address) 

 TERMINATED: 04/15/2016 
 LEAD ATTORNEY 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Alexandra Jordan Schultz 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Jeffr ey Alan Blaker 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Rachel Studley 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Defendant
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein represented by Alexandra Jordan Schultz 

(See above for address) 
 LEAD ATTORNEY 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Charles Ler oy Pickett , Jr . 
(See above for address) 

 TERMINATED: 04/15/2016 
 LEAD ATTORNEY 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
 

Jeffr ey Alan Blaker 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED



9/27/2017 CM/ECF - Live Database - flsd

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?129658661746098-L_1_0-1 6/44

Rachel Studley 
(See above for address) 

 ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Date Filed # Docket Text

09/17/2015 1 COMPLAINT against All Defendants. Filing fees $ 400.00 receipt number 113C-
8090084, filed by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit A, # 2 Civil Cover
Sheet Civil Cover Sheet)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 09/17/2015)

09/17/2015 2 Judge Assignment to Judge Kenneth A. Marra (lrz) (Entered: 09/18/2015)

09/17/2015 3 Clerks Notice pursuant to 28 USC 636(c). Parties are hereby notified that the U.S.
Magistrate Judge William Matthewman is available to handle any or all proceedings in
this case. If agreed, parties should complete and file the attached form. (lrz) (Entered:
09/18/2015)

09/22/2015 4 Order Requiring Counsel to Confer and File Joint Scheduling Report. Signed by Judge
Kenneth A. Marra on 9/21/2015. (ir) (Entered: 09/22/2015)

11/18/2015 5 NOTICE of Filing Proposed Summons(es) by Julian Bivins re 1 Complaint filed by
Julian Bivins (Attachments: # 1 Summon(s) Ciklin Lubitz, # 2 Summon(s) Curtis Rogers,
# 3 Summon(s) Brian O'Connell, # 4 Summon(s) Stephen Kelly, # 5 Summon(s) Ashley
Cripsin) (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 11/18/2015)

11/18/2015 6 Summons Issued as to Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen
M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell, Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (cqs) (Entered: 11/18/2015)

11/19/2015 7 NOTICE of Filing Proposed Summons(es) by Julian Bivins re 1 Complaint filed by
Julian Bivins (Attachments: # 1 Summon(s) Stein Law, # 2 Summon(s) Beys Liston, # 3
Summon(s) Keith Stein) (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 11/19/2015)

11/20/2015 8 Summons Issued as to Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B.
Stein, Keith B. Stein. (cqs) (Entered: 11/20/2015)

12/21/2015 9 NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr on behalf of Stephen M
Kelly. Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr added to party Stephen M Kelly(pty:dft).
(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 12/21/2015)

12/23/2015 10 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to Respond to Operative Complaint re 1
Complaint by Stephen M Kelly. Responses due by 1/11/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Text of
Proposed Order)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 12/23/2015)

12/23/2015 11 (WITHDRAWN PER DE# 14)First MOTION for Extension of Time to File
Response/Reply/Answer as to 1 Complaint Operative Complaint by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin,
Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Curtis Cahalloner
Rogers, Jr. Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr added to party Beys Liston Mobargha &
Berland, LLP(pty:dft), Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr added to party Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell(pty:dft), Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr added to party Ashley
N. Crispin(pty:dft), Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr added to party Law Offices of
Keith B. Stein(pty:dft), Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr added to party Brian M.
O'Connell(pty:dft), Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr added to party Curtis Cahalloner
Rogers, Jr(pty:dft). (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Pickett, Charles)
Modified on 12/28/2015 (cqs). (Entered: 12/23/2015)

12/23/2015 12 ORDER granting 10 Motion for Extension of Time. Response to complaint due Jan. 19,

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115545327
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115545328
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115545709
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115558818
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015786990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115786991
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115786992
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115786993
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115786994
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115786995
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115787211
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015794142
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115794143
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115794144
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115794145
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115795371
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115910302
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015925391
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115925392
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015925423
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115925424
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015925391
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2016 Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 12/23/2015. (mln) (Entered: 12/23/2015)

12/23/2015 13 (WITHDRAWN)NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell re 11 First MOTION
for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer as to 1 Complaint Operative
Complaint that attorney Charles Pickett does NOT r epresent Defendant Law offices of
Keith B. Stein (Pickett, Charles)Text Modified on 12/28/2015 (cqs). (Entered:
12/23/2015)

12/23/2015 14 NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF MOTION by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell,
Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell,
Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr, Keith B. Stein re 11 First MOTION for Extension of Time
to File Response/Reply/Answer as to 1 Complaint Operative Complaint filed by Law
Offices of Keith B. Stein, Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Brian M. O'Connell,
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Curtis
Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. . Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr added to party Keith B.
Stein(pty:dft). (Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 12/23/2015)

12/23/2015 15 Corrected MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer as to 1
Complaint by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr, Keith
B. Stein. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered:
12/23/2015)

12/23/2015 16 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell re 13 Notice (Other), Withdrawal of DE
13 (Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 12/23/2015)

12/23/2015 17 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell that attorney Charles Pickett does not
represent Defendant Beys LIston Mobargha & Berland, LLP (Pickett, Charles) (Entered:
12/23/2015)

12/28/2015  Set Deadlines All Defendants. Answer Due 1/19/2016. (cqs) (Entered: 12/28/2015)

12/28/2015  Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr terminated Pr DE#17. (cqs) (Entered: 12/28/2015)

01/08/2016 18 AMENDED COMPLAINT against All Plaintiffs, filed by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: #
1 Exhibit EXHIBIT A)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 01/08/2016)

01/12/2016 19 ENDORSED ORDER granting 15 Motion for Extension of Time to File
Response/Answer to 1 Complaint filed by Julian Bivins. Response due 1/19/16. Signed
by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 1/12/2016. (ir) (Entered: 01/12/2016)

01/19/2016 20 MOTION to Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint , MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of
Jurisdiction 18 Amended Complaint ( Responses due by 2/5/2016) by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of Keith B.
Stein, Brian M. O'Connell. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1, # 2 Exhibit 2)(Pickett, Charles)
(Entered: 01/19/2016)

01/20/2016 21 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell re 20 MOTION to Dismiss 18
Amended Complaint MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18 Amended
Complaint of Filing Exhibits 3-6 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 3, part 1, # 2 Exhibit 3, part 2,
# 3 Exhibit 3, part 3, # 4 Exhibit 4, # 5 Exhibit 5, # 6 Exhibit 6) (Pickett, Charles)
(Entered: 01/20/2016)

01/22/2016  Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr representing Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP
(Defendant) Activated. (Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 01/22/2016)

01/22/2016 22 NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Wendy J Stein on behalf of Curtis Cahalloner
Rogers, Jr. Attorney Wendy J Stein added to party Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr(pty:dft).

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115925646
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015925423
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115926116
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015925423
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015926166
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115926167
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115926251
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115925646
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115926290
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115972644
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015926166
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116007545
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116007546
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007552
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116007553
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116007554
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116007555
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116007556
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116007557
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116007558
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116024817
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(Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 01/22/2016)

01/22/2016 23 MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer to Complaint by Curtis
Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 01/22/2016)

01/22/2016 24 MOTION to Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint, 1 Complaint for Insufficient Service by
Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP. Responses due by 2/8/2016 (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit Declaration in Support of Motion to Dismiss, # 2 Text of Proposed Order)
(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 01/22/2016)

01/22/2016 25 Amended MOTION to Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint, 1 Complaint , First MOTION to
Stay Amended Complaint ( Responses due by 2/8/2016) by Beys Liston Mobargha &
Berland, LLP. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 01/22/2016)

01/23/2016 26 NOTICE by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP re 25 Amended MOTION to
Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint, 1 Complaint First MOTION to Stay Amended
Complaint of Filing Exhibits 1-6 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1, # 2 Exhibit 2, # 3 Exhibit
3, # 4 Exhibit 3 part 2, # 5 Exhibit 3 part 3, # 6 Exhibit 4, # 7 Exhibit 5, # 8 Exhibit 6)
(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 01/23/2016)

01/26/2016 27 ENDORSED ORDER granting 23 Motion for Extension of Time to File
Response/Answer to 18 Amended Complaint filed by Julian Bivins. Curtis Cahalloner
Rogers, Jr Answer due 2/11/2016. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 1/26/2016. (ir)
(Entered: 01/26/2016)

01/28/2016 28 NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Brian Bradshaw Joslyn on behalf of Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. Attorney Brian Bradshaw
Joslyn added to party Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell(pty:dft), Attorney Brian
Bradshaw Joslyn added to party Ashley N. Crispin(pty:dft), Attorney Brian Bradshaw
Joslyn added to party Brian M. O'Connell(pty:dft). (Joslyn, Brian) (Entered: 01/28/2016)

01/29/2016 29 MOTION to Dismiss 1 Complaint , MOTION to Stay ( Responses due by 2/16/2016) by
Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 01/29/2016)

02/05/2016 30 RESPONSE/REPLY to 29 MOTION to Dismiss 1 Complaint MOTION to Stay by Julian
Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Ex. 1 - Motion for Original Trial Judge to REtain
and/or Handle Case, # 2 Exhibit Ex. 2 - Palm Beach Post Articles, # 3 Exhibit Ex. 3 -
Pages from December 14, 2015 Transcript)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 02/05/2016)

02/08/2016 31 MOTION for Extension of Time Additional Time to Perfect Service On Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 2/25/2016 (Attachments:
# 1 Exhibit A- Affidavit of Service - Farah Muratovic, # 2 Exhibit B- Affidavit of Service
- Ashley Smith)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 02/08/2016)

02/08/2016 32 RESPONSE/REPLY to 25 Amended MOTION to Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint, 1
Complaint First MOTION to Stay Amended Complaint by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: #
1 Exhibit 1- Adversary Proceeding for Declaratory Judgment, # 2 Exhibit 2- Motion for
Original Trial Judge to Retain and/or Handle Case, # 3 Exhibit 3 - Motion for Additional
Time to Perfect Service, # 4 Exhibit 4 - Palm Beach Post articles)(Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 02/08/2016)

02/16/2016 33 RESPONSE/REPLY to 29 MOTION to Dismiss 1 Complaint MOTION to Stay by Julian
Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 02/16/2016)

02/16/2016 34 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to File Reply Memorandum of Law to
February 17, 2016  re 30 Response/Reply (Other), by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell,
Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell.
Responses due by 3/4/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Pickett, Charles)
(Entered: 02/16/2016)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116025066
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016025805
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116025806
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116025807
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016025990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116025991
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016025997
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016025990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116025998
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116025999
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116026000
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116026001
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116026002
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116026003
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116026004
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116026005
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116025066
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116047370
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116052015
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016082520
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116052015
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116082521
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116082522
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116082523
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016087362
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116087363
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116087364
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016087698
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016025990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116087699
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116087700
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116087701
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116087702
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116116243
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116052015
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016116806
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016082520
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116116807
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02/17/2016 35 REPLY to Response to Motion re 20 MOTION to Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint
MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18 Amended Complaint filed by Ciklin
Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of Keith
B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell. (Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 02/17/2016)

02/18/2016 36 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell re 35 Reply to Response to Motion, of
Filing Exhibit 1 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1, pgs. 1-50, # 2 Exhibit 1, pgs. 51-100, # 3
Exhibit 1, pgs. 101-150, # 4 Exhibit 1, pgs. 151-185) (Pickett, Charles) (Entered:
02/18/2016)

02/18/2016 37 REPLY to Response to Motion re 25 Amended MOTION to Dismiss 18 Amended
Complaint, 1 Complaint First MOTION to Stay Amended Complaint filed by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1, pgs. 1-50, # 2 Exhibit 1, pgs. 51-
100, # 3 Exhibit 1, pgs. 101-150)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 02/18/2016)

02/19/2016 38 ENDORSED ORDER granting nunc pro tunc 34 Motion for Extension of Time to file
reply memorandum. Reply due 2/18/16. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on
2/19/2016. (ir) (Entered: 02/19/2016)

02/19/2016 39 NOTICE by Julian Bivins re 31 MOTION for Extension of Time Additional Time to
Perfect Service On Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP (Attachments: # 1 Text of
Proposed Order) (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 02/19/2016)

02/22/2016 40 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell re 35 Reply to Response to Motion, of
Correction of Error (Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 02/22/2016)

02/24/2016 41 RESPONSE in Opposition re 31 MOTION for Extension of Time Additional Time to
Perfect Service On Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP filed by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP. Replies due by 3/7/2016. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1,
Declaration in Support of Beys' Response)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 02/24/2016)

02/25/2016 42 REPLY to Response to Motion re 31 MOTION for Extension of Time Additional Time to
Perfect Service On Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP filed by Julian Bivins.
(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 02/25/2016)

02/26/2016 43 MEMORANDUM in Support re 20 MOTION to Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint
MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18 Amended Complaint by Curtis
Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 02/26/2016)

02/29/2016 44 ORDER granting 31 Motion for Extension of Time to perfect service; denying as moot
24 Motion to Dismiss. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 2/26/2016. (ir) (Entered:
02/29/2016)

03/02/2016 45 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to File Joint Scheduling and Discvery
Conference Report re 4 Order Requiring Joint Scheduling Report by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin. Responses due by 3/21/2016 (Attachments: # 1
Text of Proposed Order)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 03/02/2016)

03/04/2016 46 ENDORSED ORDER granting 45 Motion for Extension of Time. Joint Scheduling
Report due by 3/18/2016 Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 3/4/2016. (ir) (Entered:
03/04/2016)

03/10/2016 47 NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Brandon Jay Hechtman on behalf of Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. Attorney Brandon Jay
Hechtman added to party Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell(pty:dft), Attorney Brandon
Jay Hechtman added to party Ashley N. Crispin(pty:dft), Attorney Brandon Jay

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116123229
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016123246
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116123229
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116123247
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116123248
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116123249
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116123250
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016128846
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016025990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116128847
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116128848
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116128849
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016116806
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016134094
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016087362
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116134095
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116136178
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116123229
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016151458
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016087362
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116151459
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116156401
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016087362
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116158148
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116164020
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016087362
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016025805
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016179929
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051115558818
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116179930
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016179929
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116213424
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Hechtman added to party Brian M. O'Connell(pty:dft). (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered:
03/10/2016)

03/18/2016 48 SCHEDULING REPORT - Rule 16.1  by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr (Stein, Wendy)
(Entered: 03/18/2016)

03/18/2016 49 NOTICE of Filing Proposed Summons(es) to Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP by
Julian Bivins re 18 Amended Complaint filed by Julian Bivins (Attachments: # 1
Summon(s)) (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 03/18/2016)

03/21/2016 50 Summons Issued as to Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP. (tpl) (Entered:
03/21/2016)

03/23/2016 51 SCHEDULING ORDER: Jury Trial set for 3/6/2017 09:00 AM in West Palm Beach
Division before Judge Kenneth A. Marra., Calendar Call set for 3/3/2017 10:00 AM in
West Palm Beach Division before Judge Kenneth A. Marra., Amended Pleadings due by
3/25/2016., Discovery due by 9/19/2016., Joinder of Parties due by 3/25/2016.,
Dispositive Motions due by 10/19/2016. ORDER REFERRING CASE to Magistrate
Judge William Matthewman for Discovery Matters, ORDER REFERRING CASE to
Mediation. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 3/22/2016. (ir) (Entered: 03/23/2016)

03/23/2016 52 ORDER SETTING DISCOVERY PROCEDURE. Signed by Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman on 3/23/2016. (srd) (Entered: 03/24/2016)

04/07/2016 53 STIPULATION for Substitution of Counsel by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP,
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein (Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered: 04/07/2016)

04/08/2016  Attorney Jeffrey Alan Blaker terminated. Per DE#53. (cqs) (Entered: 04/08/2016)

04/08/2016 54 Initial Disclosure(s) Rule 26 by Julian Bivins (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 04/08/2016)

04/14/2016 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin,
Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by 5/2/2016 (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered:
04/14/2016)

04/14/2016 56 MOTION to Withdraw Document 20 MOTION to Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint
MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18 Amended Complaint by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by
5/2/2016 (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 04/14/2016)

04/14/2016 57 NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Rachel Studley on behalf of Ciklin Lubitz Martens
& O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. Attorney Rachel Studley added to
party Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell(pty:dft), Attorney Rachel Studley added to
party Ashley N. Crispin(pty:dft), Attorney Rachel Studley added to party Brian M.
O'Connell(pty:dft). (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 04/14/2016)

04/15/2016  Attorney Jeffrey Alan Blaker representing Stein, Keith B. (Defendant) Activated. (cqs)
(Entered: 04/15/2016)

04/15/2016  Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr terminated Per DE#53. (cqs) (Entered: 04/15/2016)

04/18/2016 58 MOTION to Stay -- Abate by Stephen M Kelly. Responses due by 5/5/2016
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 04/18/2016)

04/18/2016 59 MOTION to Withdraw Document 20 MOTION to Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint
MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18 Amended Complaint by Stephen M
Kelly. Responses due by 5/5/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Pickett,
Charles) (Entered: 04/18/2016)

04/18/2016 60 NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF MOTION by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr re 29

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116247225
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016248096
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116248097
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116251010
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116261758
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116268091
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116325055
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116331718
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353604
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116354519
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116364948
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364959
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116364960
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116365925
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116052015
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MOTION to Dismiss 1 Complaint MOTION to Stay filed by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers,
Jr. (Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 04/18/2016)

04/18/2016 61 NOTICE by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein,
Keith B. Stein Defendants Notice of Joinder in Motion to Withdraw Motion to Dismiss or
Stay and Joinder in Motion to Abate (Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered: 04/18/2016)

05/02/2016 62 RESPONSE to Motion re 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate, 58 MOTION to Stay -- Abate and
Notice of Joinder 61 filed by Julian Bivins. Replies due by 5/12/2016. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 05/02/2016)

05/02/2016 63 RESPONSE in Opposition re 56 MOTION to Withdraw Document 20 MOTION to
Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18
Amended Complaint , 59 MOTION to Withdraw Document 20 MOTION to Dismiss 18
Amended Complaint MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18 Amended
Complaint and Notices of Joinder 60 and 61 (Objections) filed by Julian Bivins. Replies
due by 5/12/2016. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 05/02/2016)

05/12/2016 64 REPLY to Response to Motion re 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate filed by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. (Hechtman, Brandon)
(Entered: 05/12/2016)

05/12/2016 65 REPLY to Response to Motion re 56 MOTION to Withdraw Document 20 MOTION to
Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18
Amended Complaint filed by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin,
Brian M. O'Connell. (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 05/12/2016)

05/12/2016 66 REPLY to Response to Motion re 58 MOTION to Stay -- Abate filed by Stephen M
Kelly. (Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 05/12/2016)

05/12/2016 67 REPLY to Response to Motion re 59 MOTION to Withdraw Document 20 MOTION to
Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18
Amended Complaint filed by Stephen M Kelly. (Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 05/12/2016)

05/12/2016 68 MOTION to Adopt/Join 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate, 64 Reply to Response to Motion by
Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 05/12/2016)

05/12/2016 69 REPLY to Response to Motion re 56 MOTION to Withdraw Document 20 MOTION to
Dismiss 18 Amended Complaint MOTION to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction 18
Amended Complaint filed by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (Stein, Wendy) (Entered:
05/12/2016)

05/16/2016 70 ORDER granting 56 Motion to Withdraw; granting 59 Motion to Withdraw; denying as
moot 20 Motion to Dismiss; denying as moot 20 Motion to Dismiss for Lack of
Jurisdiction; denying as moot 25 Motion to Dismiss; denying as moot 25 Motion to Stay.
Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 5/13/2016. (ir) (Entered: 05/16/2016)

05/23/2016 71 NOTICE by Julian Bivins re 51 Scheduling Order, Order Referring Case to Judge, Order
Referring Case to Mediation,,,,,, Designation of Mediator (Denman, Joseph) (Entered:
05/23/2016)

05/24/2016 72 Clerks Notice to Filer re 71 Notice (Other). Parties/Mediator Not Added ; ERROR - The
Filer failed to add mediator. Filer is instructed to file a Notice of Entry of Mediator and
add the mediator.Wrong Event Selected ; ERROR - The Filer selected the wrong event.
The document was not re-docketed by the Clerk. It is necessary to refile this document.
(cqs) (Entered: 05/24/2016)

05/24/2016 73 NOTICE of Mediator Selection: Judge Howard A. Tescher selected. Filed/Added by
Julian Bivins, Howard A. Tescher. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 05/24/2016)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015545326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116366387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116423920
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116366387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116423933
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353604
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364959
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116365925
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116366387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469022
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469028
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353604
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469097
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469107
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364959
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469139
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469022
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469148
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353604
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051015972643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116476413
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353604
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364959
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016007544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016025990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016025990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116509338
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116261758
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116509338
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116514705
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06/08/2016 74 STIPULATION for Order Substituting Counsel by Stephen M Kelly (Attachments: # 1
Text of Proposed Order Order Substituting Counsel)(Studley, Rachel) (Entered:
06/08/2016)

06/14/2016 75 MOTION to Stay Discovery Pending Ruling on Motion to Abate by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell. Responses due by 7/1/2016 (Studley, Rachel) (Entered:
06/14/2016)

06/15/2016 76 NOTICE by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein,
Keith B. Stein Defendants Keith B. Stein, Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, and
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, PLLC's Notice of Joinder (Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered:
06/15/2016)

06/15/2016 77 MOTION to Stay re 68 MOTION to Adopt/Join 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate, 64 Reply to
Response to Motion , 61 Notice (Other), 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate, 58 MOTION to
Stay -- Abate by Stephen M Kelly. Responses due by 7/5/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Text of
Proposed Order)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 06/15/2016)

06/17/2016 78 ORDER Setting Hearing on 58 MOTION to Stay -- Abate, 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate :
Motion Hearing set for 7/22/2016 02:00 PM in West Palm Beach Division before Judge
Kenneth A. Marra. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 6/17/2016. (ir) (Entered:
06/17/2016)

06/23/2016 79 MOTION for Protective Order by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N.
Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A: Request for Production to
CLO Defendants, # 2 Exhibit B: Request for Production to Defendant Kelly, # 3 Exhibit
C: Stein Privilege Log, # 4 Exhibit D: Kelly Privilege Log)(Hechtman, Brandon)
(Entered: 06/23/2016)

06/27/2016 80 RESPONSE to Motion re 75 MOTION to Stay Discovery Pending Ruling on Motion to
Abate, 77 MOTION to Stay re 68 MOTION to Adopt/Join 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate,
64 Reply to Response to Motion , 61 Notice (Other), 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate, 58
MOTION to Stay -- Abate filed by Julian Bivins. Replies due by 7/8/2016. (Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 06/27/2016)

06/29/2016 81 Corrected MOTION for Protective Order by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Brian
M. O'Connell, Stephen M Kelly, Ashley N. Crispin. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A, # 2
Exhibit B, # 3 Exhibit C, # 4 Exhibit D)(Studley, Rachel) Modified to add missing filers
on 6/30/2016 (asl). (Entered: 06/29/2016)

06/30/2016 82 Clerks Notice to Filer re 81 Corrected MOTION for Protective Order . All Applicable
Filer Name(s) Not Selected ; ERROR - All of the applicable parties filing document
were not selected. The correction was made by the Clerk. It is not necessary to refile this
document. (asl) (Entered: 06/30/2016)

06/30/2016 83 Corrected MOTION for Protective Order by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit a, # 2 Exhibit b)(Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 06/30/2016)

07/08/2016 84 RESPONSE to Motion re 83 Corrected MOTION for Protective Order (Second Corrected
and Amended) filed by Julian Bivins. Replies due by 7/18/2016. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 07/08/2016)

07/08/2016 85 MOTION for Protective Order by Stephen M Kelly. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A -
Subpeona Duces Tecum to Accountants)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 07/08/2016)

07/11/2016 86 MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer Defendants Keith Stein,
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, PLLC and Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP's Agreed
Motion for Extension of Time to Respond to Request to Produce by Beys Liston

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016574508
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116574509
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116595381
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116602767
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016603597
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469139
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469022
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116366387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116603598
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116612580
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016640347
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116640348
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116640349
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116640350
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116640351
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116657269
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116595381
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016603597
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469139
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469022
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116366387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016673052
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116673053
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116673054
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116673055
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116673056
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016673052
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016678483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116678484
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116678485
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116711131
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016678483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016711415
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116711416
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116716449
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Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. (Blaker,
Jeffrey) (Entered: 07/11/2016)

07/11/2016 87 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell re 86 MOTION for Extension of Time
to File Response/Reply/Answer Defendants Keith Stein, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein,
PLLC and Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP's Agreed Motion for Extension of Time
to Respond to Request to Produce (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 07/11/2016)

07/12/2016 88 Defendant's MOTION for Extension of Time to Complete Discovery by Curtis
Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit A, # 2 Exhibit Exhibit B)(Stein,
Wendy) (Entered: 07/12/2016)

07/12/2016 89 Defendant's MOTION for Protective Order by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit A, # 2 Exhibit Exhibit B)(Stein, Wendy) (Entered:
07/12/2016)

07/12/2016 90 RESPONSE/REPLY to 87 Notice (Other), of Joinder by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 07/12/2016)

07/13/2016 91 ENDORSED ORDER granting 86 Defendants Keith Stein, Law Offices of Keith B.
Stein, PLLC and Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP's Agreed Motion for Extension
of Time to Respond to Request to Produce. Defendants shall respond to Plaintiff's
Request for Production on or before August 1, 2016. Signed by Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman on 7/13/2016. (no00) (Entered: 07/13/2016)

07/13/2016 92 ENDORSED ORDER requiring Defendants Brian M. O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, and
Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell (the "CLO Defendants") to file their own motion for extension
of time to respond to Plaintiff's Request for Production if they still seek an extension of
time. The CLO Defendants filed a Notice of Joinder [DE 87] in other defendants' Agreed
Motion for Extension of Time [DE 86], and Plaintiff filed an Objection to the Notice of
Joinder [DE 90], claiming that Plaintiff did not agree to an extension of time as to the
CLO Defendants. Therefore, if the CLO Defendants seek an extension of time to respond
to discovery, they are required to file their own motion requesting such extension. Signed
by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 7/13/2016. (no00) (Entered: 07/13/2016)

07/13/2016 93 ENDORSED ORDER granting 53 Stipulation filed by Law Offices of Keith B. Stein,
Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Keith B. Stein. Signed by Judge Kenneth A.
Marra on 7/13/2016. (ir) (Entered: 07/13/2016)

07/13/2016 94 REPLY to Response to Motion re 83 Corrected MOTION for Protective Order filed by
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit a, # 2 Exhibit b, # 3
Exhibit c, # 4 Exhibit d)(Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 07/13/2016)

07/13/2016 95 REPLY to Response to Motion re 83 Corrected MOTION for Protective Order filed by
Stephen M Kelly. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A - Defendants' Motion to Abate, # 2 Exhibit
B - Order Setting Hearing on Motion to Abate, # 3 Exhibit C - Subpoena for Documents
from Smith Law Firm, # 4 Exhibit D - Subpoena for Docments from Templeton Law
Firm)(Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 07/13/2016)

07/14/2016 96 RESPONSE in Opposition re 88 Defendant's MOTION for Extension of Time to
Complete Discovery - Plaintiff's Objection filed by Julian Bivins. Replies due by
7/25/2016. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/14/2016)

07/15/2016 97 RESPONSE in Opposition re 85 MOTION for Protective Order Regarding Subpoenas for
Documents to Accountants filed by Julian Bivins. Replies due by 7/25/2016. (Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 07/15/2016)

07/15/2016 98 Plaintiff's MOTION for Leave to File Sur-Reply Regarding Second Corrected and
Amended CLO Defendants' Motion for Protective Order [DE 83]  by Julian Bivins.

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116717690
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116716449
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723336
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116723337
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116723338
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116723811
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116723812
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116725186
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116717690
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116716449
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116325055
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016730856
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016678483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116730857
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116730858
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116730859
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116730860
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016731124
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016678483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116731125
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116731126
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116731127
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116731128
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116736391
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723336
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116743764
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016711415
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116744059
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(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/15/2016)

07/19/2016 99 RESPONSE in Opposition re 89 Defendant's MOTION for Protective Order filed by
Julian Bivins. Replies due by 7/29/2016. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/19/2016)

07/20/2016 100 REPLY to Response to Motion re 85 MOTION for Protective Order filed by Stephen M
Kelly. (Pickett, Charles) (Entered: 07/20/2016)

07/22/2016 101 RESPONSE/REPLY to 96 Response in Opposition to Motion for Extension of Time to
Respond to Plaintiff's Request for Production by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (Stein,
Wendy) (Entered: 07/22/2016)

07/22/2016 102 Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Motion Hearing held
on 7/22/2016 re 55 MOTION to Stay /Abate filed by Brian M. O'Connell, Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, 58 MOTION to Stay -- Abate filed by Stephen
M Kelly. Appearances by: J. Ronald Denman, Brandon Hechtman, Rachel Studley,
Jeffrey Blaker and Wendy Stein. Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov (ir) (Entered: 07/25/2016)

07/25/2016 103 RESPONSE in Support re 89 Defendant's MOTION for Protective Order filed by Curtis
Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 07/25/2016)

08/01/2016 104 ENDORSED ORDER granting 98 Plaintiff's Motion for Leave to File a Sur-reply
Regarding Second Corrected and Amended CLO Defendants' Motion for Protective
Order [Docket Entry 83]. Signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 8/1/2016.
(no00) (Entered: 08/01/2016)

08/01/2016 105 ORDER SETTING HEARING on 83 Defendants' Second Corrected and Amended
MOTION for Protective Order, 85 Defendant Stephen Kelly's MOTION for Protective
Order Regarding Subpoena for Documents to Accountants, 88 Defendant Curtis
Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.'s MOTION for Extension of Time to Respnd to Plaintiff's Request
for Production and 89 Defendant Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.'s MOTION for Protective
Order: Motion Hearing set for 8/23/2016 at 2:00 PM in West Palm Beach Division before
Magistrate Judge William Matthewman. Signed by Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman on 8/1/2016. (kza) (Entered: 08/01/2016)

08/01/2016 106 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Brian M. O'Connell re 58 MOTION to Stay -- Abate of Filing Documents from the
Guardianship Pr oceeding as Supplemental Support for the Motion to Abate. Attorney
Brandon Jay Hechtman added to party Stephen M Kelly(pty:dft). (Attachments: # 1
Appendix, # 2 Exhibit 1: Objection to Final Report, # 3 Exhibit 2: Objection to Final
Accounting (Guardianship Report) of Guardian of Property filed by Curtis Rogers and
Served July 8, 2015, # 4 Exhibit 3: Objection to Petition for Order Authorizing Payment
of Attorneys Fees and Expenses to Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP (Filed
12/1/14), # 5 Exhibit 4: Objection to Petition for Order Authorizing Payment of
Attorneys Fees and Expenses to Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP (Supplement to
Petition filed 12/1/14) (Filed 2/20/15), # 6 Exhibit 5: Order Approving Initial Plan and
Order Appointing Stephen Kelly, # 7 Exhibit 6: Objection to Petition for Order
Authorizing Payment of Compensation and Expenses of Guardian, # 8 Exhibit 7:
Objection to Petition for Order Authorizing Payment of Attorneys Fees and Expenses by
Casey Ciklin et. al., # 9 Exhibit 8: Objection to Supplemental Petition for Order
Authorizing Payment of Attorneys Fees and Expenses of Ciklin Lubitz Martens &
OConnell (Filed February 20, 2015), # 10 Exhibit 9: Objection to Supplemental Petition
for Order Authorizing Payment of Attorneys Fees and Expenses of Ciklin Lubitz &
OConnell (Filed 1/15/2016)) (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 08/01/2016)

08/04/2016 107 ORDER RE-SETTING HEARING on 83 Defendants' Second Corrected and Amended

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116756215
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116761997
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016711415
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116769917
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116736391
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116777617
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116744059
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116804465
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016678483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016711415
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723336
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016806883
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806884
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806885
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806886
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806887
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806888
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806889
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806890
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806891
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806892
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116806893
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116820003
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016678483
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MOTION for Protective Order, 85 Defendant Stephen Kelly's MOTION for Protective
Order Regarding Subpoena for Documents to Accountants, 88 Defendant Curtis
Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.'s MOTION for Extension of Time to Respond to Plaintiff's
Request for Production, 89 Defendant Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. 's MOTION for
Protective Order: Motion Hearing reset for 8/24/2016 at 10:00 AM before Magistrate
Judge William Matthewman. Signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on
8/4/2016. (kza) Modified on 8/4/2016 (kza). (Entered: 08/04/2016)

08/04/2016  Reset Hearings as to 83 Defendants' Second Corrected and Amended MOTION for
Protective Order, 85 Defendant Stephen Kelly's MOTION for Protective Order Regarding
Subpoena for Documents to Accountants, 88 Defendant Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.'s
MOTION for Extension of Time to Respond to Plaintiff's Request for Production, 89
Defendant Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. 's MOTION for Protective Order. Motion
Hearing reset for 8/24/2016 10:00 AM in West Palm Beach Division before Magistrate
Judge William Matthewman. (kza) (Entered: 08/04/2016)

08/08/2016 108 REPLY to Response to Motion re 98 Plaintiff's MOTION for Leave to File Sur-Reply
Regarding Second Corrected and Amended CLO Defendants' Motion for Protective
Order [DE 83] , 83 Corrected MOTION for Protective Order SUR-REPLY filed by Julian
Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 08/08/2016)

08/08/2016 109 NOTICE by Julian Bivins Supplemental Documents in Response to Defendant's 58
Motion to Abate (Attachments: # 1 Supplement Guardian's Adversary Petition
Requesting Guardianship Judge Declare Guardian and Attorneys Did Not Breach
Fiduciary Duty to Ward, # 2 Supplement Estate's Motion to Dismiss Guardian's Petition
for Declaratory Judgment, # 3 Supplement Guardian's Petition for Authorization to Act in
Federal Lawsuit, # 4 Supplement Estate's Objection to Guardian's Petition for
Authorization to Act in Federal Lawsuit, # 5 Supplement Guardian's Notice of Pending
Motions, # 6 Supplement Order Specially Setting Hearing on Estate's Motion to Dismiss
Guardian's Petition for Declaratory Relief and Motion to Dismiss Guardian's Petition to
Revoke Probate of Ward's Will, # 7 Supplement Guardian's Notice of Voluntary
Dismissal of Adversary Petition for Declaratory Judgment) (Denman, Joseph) Modified
on 8/9/2016 (cqs). (Entered: 08/08/2016)

08/08/2016 110 MOTION to Strike 106 Notice (Other),,,,,, of Filing Documents Attached Appendix by
Julian Bivins. Responses due by 8/25/2016 (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 08/08/2016)

08/08/2016 111 Clerks Notice to Filer re 109 Notice (Other),,,. Document Not Linked ; ERROR - The
filed document was not linked to the related docket entry. The correction was made by
the Clerk. It is not necessary to refile this document. (cqs) (Entered: 08/09/2016)

08/15/2016 112 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production by Julian
Bivins. Responses due by 9/1/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A - Plaintiff's Request for
Production to CLO Defendants, # 2 Exhibit B - CLO Defendants' Response to Plaintiff's
Request for Production, # 3 Exhibit C - Excerpt of Deposition of Melissa Lazarchick, # 4
Exhibit D - Plaintiff's Motion to Compel in Guardianship Proceeding, # 5 Exhibit E -
Plaintiff's Request for Production in Guardianship Proceeding)(Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 08/15/2016)

08/15/2016 113 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production from Defendant
Kelly by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 9/1/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A - Request
for Production to Defendant Kelly, # 2 Exhibit B - Kelly's Response to Plaintiff's Request
for Production, # 3 Exhibit C - Excerpt from Deposition of Melissa Lazarchick, # 4
Exhibit D - Plaintiff's Motion to Compel in Guardianship Proceeding, # 5 Exhibit E -
Plaintiff's Request for Production in Guardianship Proceeding)(Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 08/15/2016)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016711415
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723336
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016678483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016711415
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723336
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833547
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116744059
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016678483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016833932
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833933
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833934
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833935
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833936
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833937
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833938
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833939
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833997
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016806883
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016833932
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863107
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863108
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863109
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863110
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863111
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863112
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863147
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863148
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863149
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863150
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863151
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116863152
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08/16/2016 114 RESPONSE to Motion re 110 MOTION to Strike 106 Notice (Other),,,,,, of Filing
Documents Attached Appendix filed by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell. Replies due
by 8/26/2016. (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 08/16/2016)

08/16/2016 115 ORDER ADDING MOTIONS TO AUGUST 24, 2016 HEARING AND REQUIRING
EXPEDITED RESPONSES: Set Deadlines/Hearings as to 112 MOTION to Compel
Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production and 113 MOTION to Compel
Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production from Defendant Kelly.( Responses
due on or before 5:00 p.m. on 8/19/2016, Replies due on or before 12:00 p.m. on
8/23/2016., Motion Hearing set for 8/24/2016 at 10:00 AM in West Palm Beach Division
before Magistrate Judge William Matthewman.) Signed by Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman on 8/16/2016. (kza) (Entered: 08/16/2016)

08/17/2016 116 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production from Defendant
Stein by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 9/6/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A -
Plaintiff's Request for Production to Defendant Stein, # 2 Exhibit B - Defendant Steins'
Response to Request for Production, # 3 Exhibit C - Excerpt of Deposition of Melissa
Lazarchick, # 4 Exhibit D - Plaintiff's Motion to Compel in Guardianship Proceeding, # 5
Exhibit E - Plaintiff's Request for Production in Guardianship Proceeding)(Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 08/17/2016)

08/17/2016 117 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production from Defendant
Beys Liston by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 9/6/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A -
Plaintiff's Request for Production to Defendant Beys Liston, # 2 Exhibit B - Defendant
Beys Liston's Response to Plaintiff's Request for Production)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered:
08/17/2016)

08/17/2016 118 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production from Defendant
Rogers by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 9/6/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A -
Plaintiff's Request for Production to Defendant Rogers, # 2 Exhibit B - Defendant
Rogers' Response to Request for Production, # 3 Exhibit C - Excerpt of Deposition of
Melissa Lazarchick)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 08/17/2016)

08/18/2016 119 ORDER SETTING ADDITIONAL HEARING: Set Hearing as to 116 MOTION to
Compel Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production from Defendant Stein, 117
MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production from Defendant
Beys Liston and 118 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First Request for
Production from Defendant Rogers. (Motion Hearing set for 9/16/2016 at 1:00 PM in
West Palm Beach Division before Magistrate Judge William Matthewman.) Signed by
Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 8/18/2016. (kza) (Entered: 08/18/2016)

08/19/2016 120 RESPONSE in Opposition re 112 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First
Request for Production filed by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin,
Brian M. O'Connell. Replies due by 8/29/2016. (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered:
08/19/2016)

08/19/2016 121 RESPONSE in Opposition re 113 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First
Request for Production from Defendant Kelly filed by Stephen M Kelly. Replies due by
8/29/2016. (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 08/19/2016)

08/23/2016 122 REPLY to Response to Motion re 113 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First
Request for Production from Defendant Kelly filed by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 08/23/2016)

08/23/2016 123 REPLY to Response to Motion re 112 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First
Request for Production filed by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 08/23/2016)

08/23/2016 124 NOTICE TO THE PARTIES: The Court gives notice to the parties that, on August 23,

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116866422
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833997
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016806883
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116866453
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863107
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863147
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016874244
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874245
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874246
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874247
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874248
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874249
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016874308
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874309
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874310
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016874367
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874368
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874369
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116874370
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116879499
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016874244
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016874308
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016874367
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116885139
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863107
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116885154
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863147
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116894950
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863147
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116894953
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863107
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116895765
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2016, it received the attached document in an unmarked envelope with no return address
listed. The Court will not rely on the anonymously-sent document when ruling on any
matters in this case. Signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 8/23/2016.
(kza) (Entered: 08/23/2016)

08/23/2016 125 REPLY to Response to Motion re 110 MOTION to Strike 106 Notice (Other),,,,,, of
Filing Documents Attached Appendix filed by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered:
08/23/2016)

08/23/2016 126 NOTICE of filing receipt of correspondence. (ir) (Entered: 08/23/2016)

08/24/2016 127 ENDORSED ORDER granting 88 Defendant, Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.'s Motion for
Extension of Time to Respond to Plaintiff's Request for Production, as stated in open
court during the August 24, 2016 discovery hearing. Signed by Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman on 8/24/2016. (no00) (Entered: 08/24/2016)

08/24/2016 128 Paperless Minute Entry for proceedings held before Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman: J. Ronald Denman for Plaintiff, Charles Pickett for Defendant Kelly,
Rachel Studley and Brandon Hechtman for CLO Defendants, Wendy Stein for Defendant
Rogers and Jeffrey A. Blaker for Stein Defendants, present. Motion Hearing held on
8/24/2016 re Defendants' Second Corrected and Amended MOTION for Protective Order
[DE 83], Defendant Stephen Kelly's MOTION for Protective Order Regarding Subpoena
for Documents to Accountants [DE 85], Defendant Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.'s
MOTION for Extension of Time to Respond to Plaintiff's Request for Production [DE 88]
and Defendant Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.'s MOTION for Protective Order [DE 89];
Plaintiffs MOTION to Compel CLO Defendants Response to Plaintiff's First Request for
Production [DE 112] and Plaintiffs MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First
Request for Production from Defendant Kelly [DE 113]. Argument held. The Court
grants Motion [DE 88]. The Court takes the matter under advisement. Written order to be
issued. (Digital 10:05:46.) (kza) (Entered: 08/24/2016)

08/30/2016 129 MOTION for Extension of Time to Extend Certain Pre-Trial Deadlines by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell. Responses due by 9/16/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed
Order)(Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 08/30/2016)

08/31/2016 130 ORDER granting in part and reserving in part 129 Motion for Extension of Pre- Trial
Deadlines. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 8/30/2016. (ir) (Entered: 08/31/2016)

09/06/2016 131 RESPONSE in Opposition re 116 MOTION to Compel Response to Plaintiff's First
Request for Production from Defendant Stein Memorandum of Law in Opposition to
Plaintiff's Motion to Compel as to Keith B. Stein and Law Offices of Keith B. Stein,
PLLC's Respone to Plaintiff's First Request for Production filed by Law Offices of Keith
B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. Replies due by 9/16/2016. (Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered:
09/06/2016)

09/07/2016 132 OMNIBUS ORDER ON DISCOVERY MOTIONS: granting 83 Defendants' Second
Corrected and Amended MOTION for Protective Order; granting in part and denying in
part 85 Defendant Stephen Kelly's MOTION for Protective Order Regarding Subpoena
for Documents to Accountants; granting in part and denying in part 89 Defendant Curtis
Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.'s Motion for Protective Order; granting in part and denying in part
112 Plaintiffs MOTION to Compel CLO Defendants Response to Plaintiff's First Request
for Production; granting in part and denying in part 113 Plaintiffs MOTION to Compel
Response to Plaintiff's First Request for Production from Defendant Kelly. Signed by
Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 9/7/2016. (kza) (Entered: 09/07/2016)

09/09/2016 133 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Brian M. O'Connell re 130 Order on Motion for Extension of Time of Joint Consent to

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116896609
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833997
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016806883
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116896920
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723336
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016924245
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116924246
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116927420
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016924245
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116948497
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016874244
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116954446
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016678483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016711415
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016723810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863107
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016863147
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116961613
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116927420
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Move Trial Date  (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 09/09/2016)

09/12/2016 134 ORDER granting 129 Motion for Extension of Time. Dispositive Motions due by
12/19/2016. Calendar Call set for 7/7/2017 10:00 AM in West Palm Beach Division
before Judge Kenneth A. Marra. Jury Trial set for 7/10/2017 09:00 AM in West Palm
Beach Division before Judge Kenneth A. Marra. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on
9/12/2016. (ir) (Entered: 09/12/2016)

09/14/2016 135 ORDER SUBSTITUTING COUNSEL. Attorney Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr terminated as
to Defendant Stephen Kelly. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 9/13/2016. (ir)
(Entered: 09/14/2016)

09/16/2016 136 STIPULATION re 119 Order,,, Set/Reset Motion/R&R Deadlines and Hearings,,
Discovery Motions Set for Hearing on September 16, 2016 by Julian Bivins (Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 09/16/2016)

09/19/2016 137 OMNIBUS ORDER on Discovery Motions. Signed by Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman on 9/16/2016. (lbc) (Entered: 09/19/2016)

09/19/2016 138 NOTICE by Stephen M Kelly Notice of Compliance with DE 132 (Studley, Rachel)
(Entered: 09/19/2016)

09/20/2016 139 NOTICE of Compliance with This Court's Omnibus Order on Discovery Motions by
Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr re 132 Order on Motion for Protective Order,,, Order on
Motion to Compel,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 09/20/2016)

09/21/2016 140 Plaintiff's APPEAL of Magistrate Judge 132 Order on Motion for Protective Order,,,
Order on Motion to Compel,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, to District Court (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A -
Part 1 - Transcript of Hearing Dated December 3, 2015, # 2 Exhibit A - Part 2 -
Transcript of Hearing Dated December 3, 2015)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 09/21/2016)

09/24/2016 141 TRANSCRIPT of Proceedings held on 8/24/16 before Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman, 1-92 pages, Court Reporter: Carl Schanzleh, 305-523-5635. Transcript may
be viewed at the court public terminal or purchased by contacting the Court
Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that
date it may be obtained through PACER. Redaction Request due 10/20/2016. Redacted
Transcript Deadline set for 10/28/2016. Release of Transcript Restriction set for
12/27/2016. (Attachments: # 1 Designation Access Form)(hh) (Entered: 09/26/2016)

09/30/2016 142 Plaintiff's APPEAL of Magistrate Judge 137 Order to District Court and Objection to
Omnibus Order on Discovery Motions (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 09/30/2016)

10/05/2016 143 MOTION to Compel Discovery Responses ( Responses due by 10/24/2016), MOTION
for Extension of Time Excuse Untimely Discovery Requests Under 3-Day Mailing Rule
by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M.
O'Connell. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Service E-Mail, Aug. 18, 2016, # 2 Exhibit
Objection to Interrogatories Served by Brian M. OConnell, # 3 Exhibit Objection to
Interrogatories Served by Ciklin Lubitz & OConnell, # 4 Exhibit Objection to Request for
Admissions Served by Ciklin Lubitz & OConnell, # 5 Exhibit Objection to Request to
Produce Served by OConnell, Crispin and Ciklin Lubitz & OConnell, # 6 Exhibit
Objection to Request to Produce Served by Stephen M. Kelly, # 7 Exhibit Objection to
Interrogatories Served by Ashley Crispin, # 8 Exhibit ) Interrogatories by Brian M.
OConnell, # 9 Exhibit Interrogatories by Ciklin Lubitz & OConnell, # 10 Exhibit Request
for Admissions by Ciklin Lubitz & OConnell, # 11 Exhibit Request to Produce by
OConnell, Crispin and Ciklin Lubitz & OConnell, # 12 Exhibit Request to Produce by
Stephen M. Kelly, # 13 Exhibit Interrogatories by Ashley Crispin)(Hechtman, Brandon)
(Entered: 10/05/2016)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116968225
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016924245
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116979589
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116991647
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116879499
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116994977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116999742
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117003654
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116954446
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017011379
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116954446
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117011380
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117011381
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017025449
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117025450
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117050858
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116994977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017069114
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069115
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069116
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069117
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069118
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069119
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069120
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069121
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069122
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069123
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069124
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069125
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069126
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117069127
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10/10/2016 144 RESPONSE to 140 Plaintiff's APPEAL of Magistrate Judge 132 Order on Motion for
Protective Order,,, Order on Motion to Compel,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, to District Court by Ciklin
Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell.
(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 10/10/2016)

10/11/2016 145 MOTION to Compel Discovery Stein Defendants' Motion to Compel Response to
Discovery and Incorporated Memorandum in Support  by Beys Liston Mobargha &
Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. Responses due by
10/28/2016 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit, # 3 Exhibit, # 4 Exhibit, # 5 Exhibit, #
6 Exhibit)(Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered: 10/11/2016)

10/11/2016 146 ORDER denying 55 Motion to Stay; denying 58 Motion to Stay; denying 68 Motion to
Adopt/Join; denying as moot 75 Motion to Stay; denying as moot 77 Motion to Stay;
denying as moot 110 Motion to Strike. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 10/5/2016.
(ir) (Entered: 10/11/2016)

10/13/2016 147 RESPONSE to 142 Plaintiff's APPEAL of Magistrate Judge 137 Order to District Court
and Objection to Omnibus Order on Discovery Motions Stein Defendants' Response to
Appeal From and Objection to Omnibus Order on Discovery Motions by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. (Blaker,
Jeffrey) (Entered: 10/13/2016)

10/17/2016 148 STIPULATION re 143 MOTION to Compel Discovery Responses MOTION for
Extension of Time Excuse Untimely Discovery Requests Under 3-Day Mailing Rule by
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M.
O'Connell (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered:
10/17/2016)

10/18/2016 149 AGREED ORDER ON DEFENDANTS' MOTION TO COMPEL DISCOVERY
RESPONSES [DE 143] denying 143 Motion to Compel and granting 143 Motion for
Extension of Time. On or before October 31, 2016, Plaintiff shall respond to the
discovery propounded by Defendants Signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman
on 10/18/2016. (kza) (Entered: 10/18/2016)

10/20/2016 150 Plaintiff's REPLY to 144 Response/Reply (Other), In Support of Appeal from and
Objection to the Magistrate Judge's September 7, 2016 Omnibus Order on Discovery
Motions by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 10/20/2016)

10/21/2016 151 NOTICE of Change of Address by Wendy J Stein (Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 10/21/2016)

10/21/2016 152 NOTICE by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr re 142 Plaintiff's APPEAL of Magistrate Judge
137 Order to District Court and Objection to Omnibus Order on Discovery Motions
Notice of Joinder (Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 10/21/2016)

10/21/2016 153 RESPONSE in Opposition re 145 MOTION to Compel Discovery Stein Defendants'
Motion to Compel Response to Discovery and Incorporated Memorandum in Support and
Motion for Extension of Time to Respond to Stein Defendants' Discovery and
Memorandum of Law filed by Julian Bivins. Replies due by 10/31/2016. (Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 10/21/2016)

10/24/2016 154 Plaintiff's REPLY to 147 Response/Reply (Other), in Support of Appeal from and
Objection to the Magistrate Judge's September 16, 2016 "Omnibus Order on Discovery
Motions" by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 10/24/2016)

10/25/2016 155 Answer and Affirmative Defenses to Plaintiff's Amended Complaint (Dkt. No. 18)
ANSWER and Affirmative Defenses to Complaint by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr.
(Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 10/25/2016)

10/25/2016 156 ANSWER and Affirmative Defenses to Complaint with Jury Demand by Beys Liston

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117073923
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017011379
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116954446
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017075276
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117075277
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117075278
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117075279
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117075280
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117075281
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117075282
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117076512
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116353407
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016364947
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116469139
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116595381
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016603597
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116833997
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117091675
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117050858
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116994977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017106304
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017069114
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117106305
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117111973
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017069114
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017069114
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117124582
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117073923
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117126283
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117131032
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117050858
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116994977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117131335
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017075276
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117137281
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117091675
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117142288
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117142892
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Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. (Blaker,
Jeffrey) (Entered: 10/25/2016)

10/25/2016 157 ANSWER and Affirmative Defenses to Complaint with Jury Demand by CIKLIN
LUBITZ & O'CONNELL, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL, and ASHLEY N. CRISPIN by Ciklin
Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit Order App. Gdn Rogers, # 2 Exhibit Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release,
# 3 Exhibit Term Sheets, # 4 Exhibit Order Appt. Succ. Ltd. Gd. Kelly, # 5 Exhibit Order
approving the Hybrid/Contingences Fee Portion of Application of Attorneys for Ward for
Fees and Costs, # 6 Exhibit Hrng. Trans., Sept. 19, 2016, # 7 Exhibit 808 Lexington
Contract, # 8 Exhibit Offers, # 9 Exhibit Order on Global Settlement, # 10 Exhibit Mot.
Dismiss Gdn' Mot. Relief from Mar. 19, 2015 Order)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered:
10/25/2016)

10/25/2016 158 ANSWER and Affirmative Defenses to Complaint with Jury Demand by Stephen Kelly
by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Order App. Gdn Rogers, # 2 Exhibit Settlement Agreement
and Mutual Release, # 3 Exhibit Term Sheets, # 4 Exhibit Order Appt. Succ. Ltd. Gd.
Kelly, # 5 Exhibit Order approving the Hybrid/Contingences Fee Portion of Application
of Attorneys for Ward for Fees and Costs, # 6 Exhibit Hrng. Trans., Sept. 19, 2016, # 7
Exhibit 808 Lexington Contract, # 8 Exhibit Offers, # 9 Exhibit Order on Global
Settlement, # 10 Exhibit Mot. Dismiss Gdn' Mot. Relief from Mar. 19, 2015 Order)
(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 10/25/2016)

10/27/2016 159 Plaintiff's MOTION to Expedite Settlement Conference, MOTION to Stay Trial,
Discovery, and Other Deadlines Pending Completion of the Settlement Conference and a
Ruling on Appeal from and Objection to Magistrate Judge's September 7, 2016 and
September 16, 2016 "Omnibus Orders on Discovery Motions" and Exhaustion of all
Appellate Remedies ( Responses due by 11/14/2016) by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit Exhibit A to Motion for Expedited Settlement Conference, etc.)(Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 10/27/2016)

10/28/2016 160 ORDER requiring response re 159 Plaintiff's MOTION to Expedite Settlement
Conference MOTION to Stay Trial, Discovery, and Other Deadlines Pending Completion
of the Settlement Conference and a Ruling on Appeal from and Objection to Magistrate
Judge's September 7, 2016 and September 16, 2016 "Omnibus Orders on Discovery M.
Responses due by 10/31/2016 at 2:00 p.m. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on
10/27/2016. (ir) (Entered: 10/28/2016)

10/28/2016 161 RESPONSE in Support re 145 MOTION to Compel Discovery Stein Defendants' Motion
to Compel Response to Discovery and Incorporated Memorandum in Support filed by
Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 7)(Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered: 10/28/2016)

10/28/2016 162 RESPONSE in Support re 145 MOTION to Compel Discovery Stein Defendants' Motion
to Compel Response to Discovery and Incorporated Memorandum in Support Corrected
filed by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B.
Stein. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 7)(Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered: 10/28/2016)

10/31/2016 163 RESPONSE to Motion re 159 Plaintiff's MOTION to Expedite Settlement Conference
MOTION to Stay Trial, Discovery, and Other Deadlines Pending Completion of the
Settlement Conference and a Ruling on Appeal from and Objection to Magistrate Judge's
September 7, 2016 and September 16, 2016 "Omnibus Orders on Discovery M filed by
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M.
O'Connell. Replies due by 11/10/2016. (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 10/31/2016)

11/02/2016 164 ORDER denying 159 Motion for Expedited Settlement Conference; granting 159 Motion

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017143758
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143759
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143760
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143761
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143762
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143763
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143764
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143765
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143766
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143767
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143768
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017143779
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143780
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143781
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143782
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143783
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143784
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143785
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143786
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143787
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143788
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117143789
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017154634
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117154635
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117155465
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017154634
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017158433
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017075276
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117158434
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017159251
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017075276
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117159252
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117162157
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017154634
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117176418
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017154634
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017154634
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to Stay. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 11/2/2016. (ir) (Entered: 11/02/2016)

11/21/2016 165 NOTICE TO THE PARTIES signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on
11/21/2016. (Attachments: # 1 Letter to Judge Matthewman from J. Ronald Denman
dated November 17, 2016 with attachments) (kza) (Entered: 11/21/2016)

11/21/2016 166 NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Charles Dennis Bavol on behalf of Julian Bivins.
Attorney Charles Dennis Bavol added to party Julian Bivins(pty:pla). (Bavol, Charles)
(Entered: 11/21/2016)

12/02/2016 167 ORDER AFFIRMING IN PART AND REVERSING IN PART JUDGE
MATTHEWMAN'S SEPTEMBER 7, 2016 AND SEPTEMBER 16, 2016 ORDERS re
132 Order on Motion for Protective Order, Order on Motion to Compel 137 Order.
Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 12/2/2016. (ir) (Entered: 12/02/2016)

12/08/2016 168 ORDER AFTER IN CAMERA REVIEW: re 132 Order on Motion for Protective Order
re: 85 MOTION for Protective Order - on or before December 30, 2016, Defendant Kelly
shall produce to Plaintiff all of the documents listed in his privilege log except for the
portion of the document labeled Bates # 241 as described. Signed by Magistrate Judge
William Matthewman on 12/8/2016. (kza) (Entered: 12/08/2016)

12/09/2016 169 ORDER LIFTING STAY. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 12/9/2016. (ir)
(Entered: 12/09/2016)

12/13/2016 170 NOTICE by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Keith B. Stein of Appearance.
Attorney Alexandra Jordan Schultz added to party Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland,
LLP(pty:dft), Attorney Alexandra Jordan Schultz added to party Keith B. Stein(pty:dft).
(Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered: 12/13/2016)

12/13/2016 171 NOTICE of Compliance by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin,
Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell re 168 Order, (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered:
12/13/2016)

12/16/2016 172 ORDER granting in part and denying in part 145 Stein Defendants' Motion to Compel
Response to Discovery. Plaintiff shall fully respond to the written discovery fully
propounded by Defendants on or before December 23, 2016. (See Order for details).
Signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 12/16/2016. (kza) (Main Document
172 replaced on 12/19/2016) (kza). (Entered: 12/16/2016)

12/16/2016  Set Deadlines Per DE#172. Miscellaneous Deadline 12/23/2016. (cqs) (Entered:
12/16/2016)

12/19/2016 173 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to File Pretrial Motions by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Keith B. Stein. Responses due by 1/3/2017 (Attachments: # 1
Text of Proposed Order Proposed Order on Unopposed Motion)(Schultz, Alexandra)
(Entered: 12/19/2016)

12/19/2016 174 Corrected MOTION for Extension of Time to File Pretrial Motions by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Keith B. Stein. Responses due by 1/3/2017 (Attachments: # 1
Text of Proposed Order Proposed Order on Corrected Motion for Extension of Time)
(Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered: 12/19/2016)

12/19/2016 175 MOTION for Summary Judgment by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N.
Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by 1/3/2017 (Hechtman,
Brandon) (Entered: 12/19/2016)

12/19/2016 176 Statement of: Material Facts  by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin,
Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell re 175 MOTION for Summary Judgment
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Plaintiff's Response to Defendant's Requests for Admissions, #

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017249239
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117249240
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117251512
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117291174
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116954446
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116994977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117313978
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051116954446
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051016711415
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117321763
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117330643
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117334171
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117313978
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117347362
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017075276
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017353309
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117353310
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017355856
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117355857
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356238
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017356256
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356238
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356257
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2 Exhibit Oliver Bivins, Sr.'s Will, # 3 Exhibit Plaintiff's Answers to Defendants'
Answers to Interrogatories, # 4 Exhibit Beachton Mortgage, # 5 Exhibit NY Transfer
Certificate 1, # 6 Exhibit NY Transfer Certificate 2, # 7 Exhibit Guardianship Docket, # 8
Exhibit Guardian's Final Report)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 12/19/2016)

12/20/2016 177 ORDER terminating 173 Motion for Extension of Time; granting 174 Corrected Motion
for Extension of Time. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 12/19/2016. (ir) (Entered:
12/20/2016)

12/20/2016  Set/Reset Deadlines/Hearings: Dispositive Motions due by 1/19/2017. (ir) (Entered:
12/20/2016)

12/20/2016 178 Plaintiff's MOTION for Extension of Time to Extend Certain Pretrial Deadlines After
Lift of Stay by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 1/3/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Text of
Proposed Order)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 12/20/2016)

12/21/2016 179 RESPONSE in Opposition re 178 Plaintiff's MOTION for Extension of Time to Extend
Certain Pretrial Deadlines After Lift of Stay filed by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell,
Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. Replies due by 12/28/2016.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit E-Mail, Dec. 13, 2016)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered:
12/21/2016)

12/21/2016 180 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response 175 to Motion for
Summary Judgment by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)
(Denman, Joseph)Link Added Modified on 12/21/2016 (cqs). (Entered: 12/21/2016)

12/21/2016 181 Clerks Notice to Filer re 180 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to File
Response/Reply/Answer to Motion for Summary Judgment. Document Not Linked ;
ERROR - The filed document was not linked to the related docket entry. The correction
was made by the Clerk. It is not necessary to refile this document. (cqs) (Entered:
12/21/2016)

12/21/2016 182 ENDORSED ORDER granting 180 Motion for Extension of Time to File
Response/Reply to 175 MOTION for Summary Judgment filed by Brian M. O'Connell,
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly. Responses due
by 1/9/2017. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 12/21/2016. (ir) (Entered:
12/21/2016)

12/22/2016 183 NOTICE of Compliance by Julian Bivins re 172 Order on Motion to Compel, (Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 12/22/2016)

12/23/2016 184 RESPONSE to 183 Notice of Compliance by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP,
Keith B. Stein. (Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered: 12/23/2016)

12/27/2016 185 ORDER REGARDING STEIN DEFENDANTS' RESPONSE TO PLAINTIFF'S
NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE [DE 184]: if Plaintiff does not produce the two outstanding
transcripts to Defendants on or before January 9, 2017, Defendants may file an additional
discovery motion with the Court. Signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on
12/27/2016. (kza) (Entered: 12/27/2016)

12/28/2016 186 REPLY to Response to Motion re 178 Plaintiff's MOTION for Extension of Time to
Extend Certain Pretrial Deadlines After Lift of Stay filed by Julian Bivins. (Attachments:
# 1 Exhibit A)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 12/28/2016)

01/03/2017 187 ORDER granting in part and denying in part 178 Motion for Extension of Time. See
Order for Details. Dispositive Motions due by 2/28/2017. Signed by Judge Kenneth A.
Marra on 1/3/2017. (cqs) (Entered: 01/03/2017)

01/04/2017 188 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to Complete Discovery Responses to Stein

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356258
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356259
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356260
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356261
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356262
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356263
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356264
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117357034
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017353309
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017355856
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017362098
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117362099
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017364548
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017362098
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117364549
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017364690
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356238
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117364691
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017364690
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017364690
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356238
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117373619
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117347362
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117376205
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117373619
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117381382
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017387261
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017362098
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117387262
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117399039
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017362098
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017403550
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Defendant by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 01/04/2017)

01/04/2017 189 Unopposed MOTION to Withdraw Document 176 Statement,, 175 MOTION for
Summary Judgment by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen
M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by 1/18/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Text of
Proposed Order)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 01/04/2017)

01/05/2017 190 ORDER terminating 175 Motion for Summary Judgment; granting 189 Motion to
Withdraw Motion for Summary Judgment. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on
1/5/2017. (ir) (Entered: 01/05/2017)

01/08/2017 191 MOTION for Sanctions Pursuant to Rule 37(b)  by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell,
Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit
Plaintiff's Response to Request to Produce, # 2 Exhibit E-Mail, Jan. 4, 2017)(Hechtman,
Brandon) (Entered: 01/08/2017)

01/09/2017 192 NOTICE of Compliance by Julian Bivins re 149 Order on Motion to Compel,, Order on
Motion for Extension of Time, (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 01/09/2017)

01/10/2017 193 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell OF SERVICE OF PROPOSAL FOR
SETTLEMENT (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 01/10/2017)

01/10/2017 194 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to Complete Two Out-of-Time Fact Witness
Despositions by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein,
Keith B. Stein. Responses due by 1/24/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order
Proposed Order on Unopposed Motion for Leave)(Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered:
01/10/2017)

01/11/2017 195 ENDORSED ORDER granting 194 Motion for Extension of Time to Complete Two Out-
of-Time Fact Witness Depositions. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 1/11/2017. (ir)
(Entered: 01/11/2017)

01/18/2017 196 ENDORSED ORDER granting 188 Plaintiff's Unopposed Motion for Extension of Time
to Respond to Stein Defendants' Discovery. Signed by Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman on 1/18/2017. (no00) (Entered: 01/18/2017)

01/18/2017 197 ORDER REQUIRING REPLY FROM DEFENDANTS: Set Deadline as to 191
Defendants' MOTION for Sanctions Pursuant to Rule 37(b). (Reply due on or before
1/25/2017.) Signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 1/18/2017. (kza)
(Entered: 01/18/2017)

01/20/2017 198 NOTICE of Settlement by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr (Stein, Wendy) (Entered:
01/20/2017)

01/25/2017 199 REPLY to Response to Motion re 191 MOTION for Sanctions Pursuant to Rule 37(b)
filed by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian
M. O'Connell. (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 01/25/2017)

01/25/2017 200 ORDER denying as moot 191 Defendants' Motion for Rule 37(b) Sanctions. Signed by
Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 1/25/2017. (kza) (Entered: 01/25/2017)

01/30/2017 201 Plaintiff's MOTION for Discovery to Reopen and to Renew Motions to Compel by Julian
Bivins. Responses due by 2/13/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit, # 3 Exhibit,
# 4 Exhibit)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 01/30/2017)

02/03/2017 202 Joint MOTION for Extension of Time to extend Rule 26 Expert Disclosures and
Substantive Motion Deadlines by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 2/17/2017 (Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 02/03/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117403551
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017405804
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017356256
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356238
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117405805
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117408496
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117356238
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017405804
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017417566
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117417567
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117417568
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117422011
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117111973
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117424566
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017426326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117426327
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017426326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017403550
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117457894
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017417566
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117465005
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117483813
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017417566
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117485818
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017417566
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017506525
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117506526
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117506527
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117506528
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117506529
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117525683
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02/03/2017 203 TRANSCRIPT of Motion Hearing held on 07/22/16 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, 1-
119 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 2/24/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 3/6/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 5/4/2017. (sf) (Entered: 02/03/2017)

02/03/2017 204 ORDER granting 202 Motion for Extension of Time. Dispositive Motions due by
3/3/2017. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 2/3/2017. (ir) (Entered: 02/03/2017)

02/08/2017 205 Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel Defendant Crispin's Responses to Deposition Questions
by Julian Bivins. Attorney M. Kristen Allman added to party Julian Bivins(pty:pla).
Responses due by 2/22/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Deposition Ashley Crispin - Exhibit 1, #
2 Deposition Stephen Kelly, Part I - Exhibit 2, # 3 Deposition Stephen Kelly, Part II -
Exhibit 2, # 4 Exhibit Curtis Rogers' Waiver - Exhibit 3)(Allman, M.) (Entered:
02/08/2017)

02/09/2017 206 MOTION to Compel Depo Answers by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 2/23/2017
(Allman, M.) (Entered: 02/09/2017)

02/10/2017 207 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to file motions to compel Brian O'Connell's
Deposition Responses and Memorandum in Support re 206 MOTION to Compel Depo
Answers by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 2/24/2017 (Allman, M.) (Entered:
02/10/2017)

02/10/2017 208 ENDORSED ORDER granting 207 Plaintiff's Motion to Enlarge Time to File Motions to
Compel Brian O'Connell's Depsotion Responses. Signed by Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman on 2/10/2017. (no00) (Entered: 02/10/2017)

02/10/2017 209 Amended MOTION to Compel Deposition Responses of Brian O'Connell, Esq. by Julian
Bivins. Responses due by 2/24/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Deposition Brian O'Connell, Esq.
- Exhibit 1, # 2 Deposition Stephen Kelly, Part I - Exhibit 2, # 3 Deposition Stephen
Kelly, Part II - Exhibit 2, # 4 Exhibit Curtis Rogers' Waiver - Exhibit 3)(Allman, M.)
(Entered: 02/10/2017)

02/10/2017 210 MOTION to Compel Defendant Kelly Deposition Responses by Julian Bivins. Responses
due by 2/24/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Deposition Stephen Kelly - Part 1, # 2 Deposition
Stephen Kelly - Part 2, # 3 Exhibit Curtis Rogers' Waiver)(Allman, M.) (Entered:
02/10/2017)

02/13/2017 211 STIPULATION of Dismissal Joint Stipulation for Dismissal with Prejudice of All Claims
as Against Defendant Curtis Challoner Rogers, Jr . Only by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Stein, Wendy) (Entered: 02/13/2017)

02/13/2017 212 ORDER DISMISSING CLAIMS AGAINST DEFENDANT CURTIS CHALLONER
ROGERS re 211 Stipulation of Dismissal filed by Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. Signed
by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 2/13/2017. (ir) (Entered: 02/13/2017)

02/13/2017 213 RESPONSE in Opposition re 201 Plaintiff's MOTION for Discovery to Reopen and to
Renew Motions to Compel filed by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices
of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. Replies due by 2/21/2017. (Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered:
02/13/2017)

02/13/2017 214 RESPONSE to Motion re 201 Plaintiff's MOTION for Discovery to Reopen and to
Renew Motions to Compel filed by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N.
Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. Replies due by 2/21/2017. (Studley,
Rachel) (Entered: 02/13/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117525733
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117528483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117525683
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017546821
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117546822
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117546823
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117546824
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117546825
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117546875
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117554627
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117546875
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117554627
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017555204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117555205
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117555206
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117555207
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117555208
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017557387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117557388
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117557389
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117557390
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017559329
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117559330
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117561380
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017559329
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117562466
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017506525
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117562822
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017506525
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02/21/2017 215 REPLY to Response to Motion re 201 Plaintiff's MOTION for Discovery to Reopen and
to Renew Motions to Compel filed by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Deposition
Stephen Kelly - Part 1, # 2 Deposition Stephen Kelly - Part 2)(Allman, M.) (Entered:
02/21/2017)

02/22/2017 216 RESPONSE to Motion re 205 Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel Defendant Crispin's
Responses to Deposition Questions filed by Ashley N. Crispin. Replies due by 3/1/2017.
(Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 02/22/2017)

02/22/2017 217 RESPONSE to Motion re 209 Amended MOTION to Compel Deposition Responses of
Brian O'Connell, Esq. filed by Brian M. O'Connell. Replies due by 3/1/2017. (Studley,
Rachel) (Entered: 02/22/2017)

02/22/2017 218 RESPONSE to Motion re 210 MOTION to Compel Defendant Kelly Deposition
Responses filed by Stephen M Kelly. Replies due by 3/1/2017. (Studley, Rachel)
(Entered: 02/22/2017)

02/27/2017 219 MOTION for Leave to File Amended Reply to Defendants' Response in Opposition to
Plaintiff's Motion to Re-Open Discovery and to Allow Combining of Allowable Number
of Pages in Reply by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Amended Reply to
Defendants' Response in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion to Reopen Discovery, # 2
Exhibit Amended Reply - Exhibit 1, # 3 Exhibit Amended Reply - Exhibit 2, # 4 Exhibit
Amended Reply - Exhibit 3, Part 1, # 5 Exhibit Amended Reply, Exhibit 3, Part 2, # 6
Exhibit Amended Reply, Exhibit 4, # 7 Exhibit Amended Reply, Exhibit 5)(Allman, M.)
(Entered: 02/27/2017)

02/28/2017 220 ORDER requesting identity of current guardian re 201 Plaintiff's MOTION for Discovery
to Reopen and to Renew Motions to Compel filed by Julian Bivins. Signed by Judge
Kenneth A. Marra on 2/28/2017. (ir) (Entered: 02/28/2017)

03/01/2017 221 REPLY to 216 Response to Motion Opposing Plaintiff's Motion to Compel Crispin
Deposition Responses by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Verified Petition to
Revoke Probate, # 2 Exhibit Verified Petition as to Authorization to Act)(Allman, M.)
(Entered: 03/01/2017)

03/01/2017 222 REPLY to 217 Response to Motion to Compel O'Connell Deposition Responses by Julian
Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Verified Probate Revocation Petition, # 2 Exhibit
Verified Petition to Act)(Allman, M.) (Entered: 03/01/2017)

03/01/2017 223 REPLY to 218 Response to Motion to Compel Kelly Deposition Responses by Julian
Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Verified Revocation Petition, # 2 Exhibit Verified
Petition to Act)(Allman, M.) (Entered: 03/01/2017)

03/01/2017 224 REPLY to 218 Response to Motion to Compel Kelly Answers by Julian Bivins.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit)(Allman, M.) (Entered: 03/02/2017)

03/03/2017 225 MOTION for Summary Judgment by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law
Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. Responses due by 3/17/2017 (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit 1, # 2 Exhibit 2, # 3 Exhibit 3, # 4 Exhibit 4, # 5 Exhibit 5, # 6 Exhibit 6, # 7
Exhibit 7, # 8 Exhibit 8, # 9 Exhibit 9, # 10 Exhibit 10, # 11 Exhibit 11, # 12 Exhibit 12,
# 13 Exhibit 13, # 14 Exhibit 14, # 15 Exhibit 15, # 16 Exhibit 16, # 17 Exhibit 17, # 18
Exhibit 18, # 19 Exhibit 19, # 20 Exhibit 20, # 21 Exhibit 21, # 22 Exhibit 22, # 23
Exhibit 23)(Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered: 03/03/2017)

03/03/2017 226 Statement of: Material Facts by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of
Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein re 225 MOTION for Summary Judgment (Blaker, Jeffrey)
(Entered: 03/03/2017)

03/03/2017 227 MOTION for Summary Judgment by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N.

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017592802
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017506525
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117592803
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117592804
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117598746
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017546821
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117598792
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017555204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117598810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017557387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017614977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117614978
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117614979
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117614980
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117614981
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117614982
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117614983
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117614984
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117619290
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017506525
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017630013
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117598746
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117630014
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117630015
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017630034
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117598792
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117630035
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117630036
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017630057
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117598810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117630058
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117630059
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017630062
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117598810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117630063
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117630064
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017639974
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639975
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639976
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639978
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639979
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639980
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639981
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639982
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639983
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639984
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639985
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639986
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639987
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639988
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639989
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639991
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639992
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639993
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639994
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639995
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639996
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117639997
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640330
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017639974
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640696
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Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by 3/17/2017 (Hechtman,
Brandon) (Entered: 03/03/2017)

03/03/2017 228 Statement of: Material Facts by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin,
Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell re 227 MOTION for Summary Judgment
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Pl. Resp. RFA, # 2 Exhibit Texas Settlement, # 3 Exhibit Texas
Settlement, # 4 Exhibit Rogers' Resignation, # 5 Exhibit N. App. CLO, # 6 Exhibit
Release, # 7 Exhibit Oliver Sr.'s Will, # 8 Exhibit J. Denman dep. Sept. 9, 2015, # 9
Exhibit Agreed Final Judgment, # 10 Exhibit Petition to Revoke Probate, # 11 Exhibit
Pet. Determine Beneficiaries, # 12 Exhibit Pl. Ans. Interrogatories, # 13 Exhibit Hrng.
Trans. 8:11-9:12, Sept. 17, 2013, # 14 Exhibit Agreed Order on Pet. Set for Hrg., Sept.
22, 2015, # 15 Exhibit Pet. to Compel Oliver Bivins, Jr. to Comply with Settlement, # 16
Exhibit J. Denman dep, Jan. 23, 2017, # 17 Exhibit J. Bivins a/p/r/ dep. Jan 20, 2017, #
18 Exhibit R 26 Expert Rpt, Sharp CPA, # 19 Exhibit Hrng. Trans. Jul. 14, 2013, # 20
Exhibit Closing Statement, # 21 Exhibit Beachton Mortgage, # 22 Exhibit NY Trans.
Cert. 1, # 23 Exhibit NY Trans. Cert. 2, # 24 Exhibit Agreed Order on Pet. for Payment,
May 23, 2014, # 25 Exhibit Order Authorizing Payment of Att. for Guardian Kelly, May
23, 2014, # 26 Exhibit Pet. Authority Sell 808 Lexington, # 27 Exhibit C. Rogers dep.,
Jan. 12, 2017, # 28 Exhibit S. Kelly dep., Jan. 11, 2017, # 29 Exhibit Lieberman dep.,
Jan. 23, 2014, # 30 Exhibit Eastern Consolidated Broker Opinion of Value for 808
Lexington, # 31 Exhibit Order on Am. Pet. to Compel Rel. Funds, Dec. 22, 2015, # 32
Exhibit Docket, # 33 Exhibit Final Report of Guardian, # 34 Exhibit R. 26 Expert Rpt.,
Gilbert, Esq.)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 03/03/2017)

03/03/2017 229 MOTION to Seal Confidential Document per Local Rule 5.4 by Ciklin Lubitz Martens &
O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. (Attachments: # 1
Text of Proposed Order) (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 03/03/2017)

03/03/2017  SYSTEM ENTRY - Docket Entry 230 [motion] restricted/sealed until further notice.
(1208262) (Entered: 03/03/2017)

03/04/2017 231 MOTION to Strike from Record and Claw Back Inadvertently Filed Privileged Attorney
Workproduct, to Seek Defendants' Destruction of such Documents and to Preclude
Defendants' Dissemination or Use and to Substitute Corr ected Exhibits by Julian Bivins.
Responses due by 3/20/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit E-Mail to Defendants' Counsel, #
2 Exhibit Corrected Verified Revocation Petition)(Allman, M.) (Entered: 03/04/2017)

03/04/2017 232 Amended MOTION to Strike from the Record and Claw Back Inadvertently Filed
Privileged Work Product, to Seek Defendants' Destruction of Such Documents and to
Preclude Defendants' Dissemination of Use Thereof and to Substitute Corrected Exhibits
and Memorandum in Support by Julian Bivins. Responses due by 3/20/2017
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit E-Mail to Defendants' Counsel, # 2 Exhibit Amended
Verification Petition)(Allman, M.) (Entered: 03/04/2017)

03/06/2017 233 RESPONSE to 220 Order by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit, # 3
Exhibit, # 4 Exhibit, # 5 Exhibit)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 03/06/2017)

03/07/2017 234 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Brian M. O'Connell re 229 MOTION to Seal Confidential Document per Local Rule 5.4
Amended L.R. 7.1 Certificate of Conference (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 03/07/2017)

03/07/2017 235 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Brian M. O'Connell re 228 Statement,,,,,,, CORRECTED EXHIBIT "3" TO THE
STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS RE: MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT [DE
228-3] (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Letters of Limited Guardianship, April 23, 2014)
(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 03/07/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017640751
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640696
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640752
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640753
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640754
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640755
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640756
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640757
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640758
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640759
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640760
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640761
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640762
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640763
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640764
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640765
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640766
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640767
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640768
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640769
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640770
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640771
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640772
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640773
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640774
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640775
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640776
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640777
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640778
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640779
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640780
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640781
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640782
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640783
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640784
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640785
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017640807
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640808
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017641077
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117641078
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117641079
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017641082
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117641083
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117641084
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017646092
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117619290
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117646093
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117646094
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117646095
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117646096
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117646097
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117647780
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017640807
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017648399
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017640751
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117648400
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03/07/2017 236 (STRICKEN PER DE#237)Statement of: Identity of the Sole Current Guardian in
Compliance with Court Order by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of Keith B.
Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein re 220 Order (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit
Resignation of Curtis Rogers, # 2 Exhibit Pet. Discharge by Mr. Rogers, # 3 Exhibit
Example Leters of Co-Guardianshipt, # 4 Exhibit 808 Lexington Deed)(Hechtman,
Brandon)Text Modified on 3/7/2017 (Entered: 03/07/2017)

03/07/2017 237 NOTICE of Striking 236 Statement,, filed by Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Brian M. O'Connell, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell,
Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Keith B. Stein by Beys Liston Mobargha &
Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein (Hechtman, Brandon)
(Entered: 03/07/2017)

03/07/2017 238 Statement of: Identity of the Sole Current Guardian in Compliance with Court Order by
Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N.
Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B.
Stein re 220 Order (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Resignation of Curtis Rogers, # 2 Exhibit
Pet. Discharge by Mr. Rogers, # 3 Exhibit Example Letters of Co-Guardianship, # 4
Exhibit 808 Lexington Deed)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 03/07/2017)

03/08/2017 239 ORDER Setting Hearing on 219 MOTION for Leave to File Amended Reply to
Defendants' Response in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion to Re-Open Discovery and to
Allow Combining of Allowable Number of Pages in Reply : Motion Hearing set for
3/24/2017 09:30 AM in West Palm Beach Division before Judge Kenneth A. Marra.
Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 3/8/2017. (ir) (Entered: 03/08/2017)

03/08/2017 240 NOTICE of Compliance (Updated) with Local Rule 7.1 by Julian Bivins re 232 Amended
MOTION to Strike from the Record and Claw Back Inadvertently Filed Privileged Work
Product, to Seek Defendants' Destruction of Such Documents and to Preclude
Defendants' Dissemination of Use Thereof and to Substitute Corrected Ex filed by Julian
Bivins (Allman, M.) (Entered: 03/08/2017)

03/08/2017 241 ORDER SETTING HEARING on 205 Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel Defendant
Crispin's Responses to Deposition Questions, 209 Amended MOTION to Compel
Deposition Responses of Brian O'Connell, Esq. and 210 MOTION to Compel Defendant
Kelly Deposition Responses: Motion Hearing set for 4/11/2017 at 2:00 PM in West Palm
Beach Division before Magistrate Judge William Matthewman. Signed by Magistrate
Judge William Matthewman on 3/8/2017. (kza) (Entered: 03/08/2017)

03/10/2017 242 PAPERLESS ORDER RESETTING Hearing on Motion 219 MOTION for Leave to File
Amended Reply to Defendants' Response in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion to Re-Open
Discovery and to Allow Combining of Allowable Number of Pages in Reply : Motion
Hearing reset for 3/31/2017 02:30 PM in West Palm Beach Division before Judge
Kenneth A. Marra. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 3/10/2017. (ir) (Entered:
03/10/2017)

03/13/2017 243 RESPONSE in Opposition re 219 MOTION for Leave to File Amended Reply to
Defendants' Response in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion to Re-Open Discovery and to
Allow Combining of Allowable Number of Pages in Reply filed by Beys Liston Mobargha
& Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M
Kelly, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein. Replies due by
3/20/2017. (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 03/13/2017)

03/13/2017 244 MOTION to Take Deposition from Oliver Bivins II to Complete Out of Time Fact
Witness Deposition by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit A - Email, # 2

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017650043
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117619290
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117650044
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117650045
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117650046
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117650047
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117650214
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017650043
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017650277
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117619290
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117650278
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117650279
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117650280
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117650281
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117653935
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017614977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117654311
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017641082
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117655723
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017546821
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017555204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017557387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017614977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117675193
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017614977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017676635
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117676636
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117676637
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Exhibit Exhibit B - Email, # 3 Exhibit Exhibit C - Email, # 4 Exhibit Exhibit D - Email, #
5 Exhibit Exhibit E - Email)(Denman, Joseph) Modified Text on 3/14/2017 (ls). (Entered:
03/13/2017)

03/15/2017 245 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer as to 226
Statement, 228 Statement,,,,,,, 225 MOTION for Summary Judgment , 227 MOTION for
Summary Judgment for Kelly, Cikilin Lubitz &O'Connell and Stein by Julian Bivins.
(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 03/15/2017)

03/16/2017 246 ENDORSED ORDER granting 245 Motion for Extension of Time to File
Response/Reply to Re: 225 MOTION for Summary Judgment filed by Law Offices of
Keith B. Stein, Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Keith B. Stein, 227 MOTION for
Summary Judgment filed by Brian M. O'Connell, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell,
Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly. Responses due by 3/24/2017. Signed by Judge
Kenneth A. Marra on 3/16/2017. (ir) (Entered: 03/16/2017)

03/16/2017 247 MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer Unopposed Motion for
Extension of Time for Defendants to File Reply Brief in Support of Motions for Final
Summary Judgment by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Ashley N. Crispin,
Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell. Attorney Jeffrey
Alan Blaker added to party Ashley N. Crispin(pty:dft), Attorney Jeffrey Alan Blaker
added to party Stephen M Kelly(pty:dft), Attorney Jeffrey Alan Blaker added to party
Brian M. O'Connell(pty:dft). (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit)(Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered:
03/16/2017)

03/17/2017 248 ENDORSED ORDER granting 247 Motion for Extension of Time to File
Response/Reply to Re: 225 MOTION for Summary Judgment filed by Law Offices of
Keith B. Stein, Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Keith B. Stein, 227 MOTION for
Summary Judgment filed by Brian M. O'Connell, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell,
Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly. Replies due by 4/7/2017. Signed by Judge Kenneth
A. Marra on 3/17/2017. (ir) (Entered: 03/17/2017)

03/17/2017 249 ORDER RE-SETTING HEARING: 209 Amended MOTION to Compel Deposition
Responses of Brian O'Connell, Esq., 210 MOTION to Compel Defendant Kelly
Deposition Responses , 205 Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel Defendant Crispin's
Responses to Deposition Questions : Motion Hearing set for 4/18/2017 at 2:00 PM in
West Palm Beach Division before Magistrate Judge William Matthewman. Signed by
Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 3/17/2017. (kza) (Entered: 03/17/2017)

03/20/2017 250 RESPONSE to Motion re 244 MOTION to Take Deposition from Oliver Bivins II to
Complete Out of Time Fact Witness Deposition filed by Beys Liston Mobargha &
Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein. Replies due by
3/27/2017. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit)(Studley, Rachel) (Entered:
03/20/2017)

03/20/2017 251 REPLY to 243 Response in Opposition to Motion, for Leave to Amend Reply to
Defendants' Responses in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion to Reopen Discovery and To
Renew Motions to Compel and to Permit Joint Amended Reply to Combine Allowable
Number of Pages in Reply to Defendants' Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion to Reopen
Discovery by Julian Bivins. (Allman, M.) (Entered: 03/20/2017)

03/21/2017 252 ORDER granting 229 Motion to Seal until conclusion of this proceeding. Signed by
Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 3/20/2017. (ir) (Entered: 03/21/2017)

03/24/2017 253 ORDER GR ANTING PLAINTIFF'S AMENDED MOTION TO STRIKE FROM THE
RECORD AND CLAW BACK INADVERTENTLY FILED PRIVILEGED WORK

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117676638
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117676639
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117676640
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117687511
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640330
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017640751
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017639974
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640696
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117687511
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017639974
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640696
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017690920
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117690921
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017690920
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017639974
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640696
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117695653
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017555204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017557387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017546821
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017703359
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017676635
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117703360
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117703361
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117704352
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117675193
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117704661
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017640807
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117722847
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PRODUCT. TO SEEK DEFENDANTS' DESTRUCTION OF SUCH DOCUMENTS
AND TO PRECLUDE DEFENDANTS' DISSEMiNATION OR USE THEREOF AND
TO SUBSTITUTE CORRECTED EXHIBITS granting 231 Motion to Strike ; granting
232 Motion to Strike. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 3/23/2017. (lan) (Entered:
03/24/2017)

03/24/2017 254 NOTICE by Julian Bivins of Mediation (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 03/24/2017)

03/24/2017 255 First RESPONSE to 176 Statement,, of Material Facts  by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: #
1 Exhibit Exhibit 1, # 2 Exhibit Exhibit 2, # 3 Exhibit Exhibit 3, # 4 Exhibit Exhibit 4, #
5 Exhibit Exhibit 5, # 6 Exhibit Exhibit 6, # 7 Exhibit Exhibit 7, # 8 Exhibit Exhibit 8, #
9 Exhibit Exhibit 9, # 10 Exhibit Exhibit 10, # 11 Exhibit Exhibit 11, # 12 Exhibit Exhibit
12, # 13 Exhibit Exhibit 13, # 14 Exhibit Exhibit 14, # 15 Exhibit Exhibit 15)(Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 03/24/2017)

03/24/2017 256 First RESPONSE to 226 Statement of Material Facts (Stein's)  by Julian Bivins.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit, # 3 Exhibit, # 4 Exhibit, # 5 Exhibit, # 6 Exhibit,
# 7 Exhibit, # 8 Exhibit)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 03/24/2017)

03/24/2017 257 RESPONSE to Motion re 225 MOTION for Summary Judgment Stein Defendants filed
by Julian Bivins. Replies due by 3/31/2017. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 03/24/2017)

03/24/2017 258 RESPONSE to Motion re 227 MOTION for Summary Judgment Kelly, O'Connell,
Crispin and CLO filed by Julian Bivins. Replies due by 3/31/2017. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 03/24/2017)

03/24/2017 259 NOTICE by Julian Bivins re 256 Response/Reply (Other) Amended Exhibit 8
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit) (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 03/24/2017)

03/24/2017 260 NOTICE by Julian Bivins re 255 Response/Reply (Other),, Amended Exhibit 9
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit) (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 03/24/2017)

03/27/2017 261 REPLY to Response to Motion re 244 MOTION to Take Deposition from Oliver Bivins
II to Complete Out of Time Fact Witness Deposition filed by Julian Bivins. (Attachments:
# 1 Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 03/27/2017)

03/28/2017 262 ORDER denying 244 Motion to Take Deposition from Oliver Bivins. Signed by Judge
Kenneth A. Marra on 3/27/2017. (ir) (Entered: 03/28/2017)

03/31/2017 263 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Motion
Hearing held on 3/31/2017 re 219 MOTION for Leave to File Amended Reply to
Defendants' Response in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion to Re-Open Discovery and to
Allow Combining of Allowable Number of Pages in Reply filed by Julian Bivins. Total
time in court: 1 hour(s) : 15 minutes. Attorney Appearance(s): Alexandra Jordan Schultz,
Joseph Ronald Denman, Brandon Jay Hechtman. Court Reporter: Diane Miller, 561-514-
3728 / Diane_Miller@flsd.uscourts.gov. (ir) (Entered: 04/03/2017)

04/03/2017 264 Notice of Supplemental Authority re 263 Motion Hearing,, Excerpt from CONCLUSION
OF GUARDIANSHIPS AND GUARDIANSHIP APPOINTMENTS, GP FL-CLE 24-1,
Section 24.27 (D) by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M
Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit CONCLUSION OF
GUARDIANSHIPS AND GUARDIANSHIP APPOINTMENTS, GP FL-CLE 24-1)
(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 04/03/2017)

04/05/2017 265 TRANSCRIPT of Motion Hearing held on 3/31/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, 1-
72 pages, Court Reporter: Diane Miller, 561-514-3728 / Diane_Miller@flsd.uscourts.gov.
Transcript may be viewed at the court public terminal or purchased by contacting the
Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline for Release of Transcript Restriction.
After that date it may be obtained through PACER. Redaction Request due 4/26/2017.

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017641077
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017641082
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117725037
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017727229
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017356256
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727230
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727231
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727232
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727233
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727234
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727235
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727236
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727237
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727238
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727239
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727240
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727241
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727242
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727243
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727244
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017727250
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640330
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727251
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727252
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727253
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727254
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727255
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727256
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727257
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727258
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727261
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017639974
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727267
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640696
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017727276
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017727250
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727277
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017727280
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017727229
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117727281
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017730932
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017676635
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117730933
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117730934
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117733489
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017676635
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017614977
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017761603
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117761604
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117776555
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Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 5/8/2017. Release of Transcript Restriction set for
7/5/2017. (dmr) (Entered: 04/05/2017)

04/06/2017 266 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell Notice of Service of Proposal for
Settlement (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 04/06/2017)

04/06/2017 267 NOTICE by Stephen M Kelly Notice of Service of Proposal for Settlement (Studley,
Rachel) (Entered: 04/06/2017)

04/07/2017 268 Unopposed MOTION to Continue Hearing on the Motions to Compel Responses to
Depositions re 249 Order Setting Hearing on Motion,, by Ciklin Lubitz Martens &
O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by
4/21/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered:
04/07/2017)

04/07/2017 269 ORDER granting 268 Motion to Continue. Re: 209 Amended MOTION to Compel
Deposition Responses of Brian O'Connell, Esq. filed by Julian Bivins, 210 MOTION to
Compel Defendant Kelly Deposition Responses filed by Julian Bivins, 205 Plaintiff's
MOTION to Compel Defendant Crispin's Responses to Deposition Questions filed by
Julian Bivins. Motion Hearing set for 4/25/2017 02:00 PM in West Palm Beach Division
before Judge William Matthewman. Signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman
on 4/7/2017. (lan) Modified hearing status/text per Chambers on 4/10/2017 (sk).
(Entered: 04/07/2017)

04/07/2017  Set Hearings as to 209 Amended MOTION to Compel Deposition Responses of Brian
O'Connell, Esq., 210 MOTION to Compel Defendant Kelly Deposition Responses , 205
Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel Defendant Crispin's Responses to Deposition Questions .
Per 269 Order. Motion Hearing set for 4/25/2017 02:00 PM in West Palm Beach Division
before Judge Kenneth A. Marra. (lan) (Entered: 04/07/2017)

04/07/2017 270 Clerks Notice of Docket Correction re 269 Order on Motion to Continue,, Set/Reset
Motion/R&R Deadlines and Hearings,. Corr ection  Incorrect Judge for hearing. Correct
Judge entered. (lan) (Entered: 04/07/2017)

04/07/2017 271 REPLY to 256 Response/Reply (Other) Section II of Plaintiff's Statement of Material
Facts  by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B.
Stein. (Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered: 04/07/2017)

04/07/2017 272 RESPONSE in Support re 225 MOTION for Summary Judgment filed by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. (Blaker,
Jeffrey) (Entered: 04/07/2017)

04/07/2017 273 RESPONSE to 255 Response/Reply (Other),, PLAINTIFF'S STATEMENT OF
ADDITIONAL MATERIAL FACTS IN OPPOSITION TO SUMMARY JUDGMENT by
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M.
O'Connell. (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 04/07/2017)

04/07/2017 274 REPLY to Response to Motion re 227 MOTION for Summary Judgment filed by Ciklin
Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell.
(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 04/07/2017)

04/07/2017  Set/Reset Deadlines/Hearings per Chambers re Order 269 as to 209 Amended MOTION
to Compel, 210 MOTION to Compel, 205 Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel. Motion
Hearing set for 4/25/2017 02:00 PM in West Palm Beach Division before Magistrate
Judge William Matthewman. (sk) (Entered: 04/10/2017)

04/10/2017 275 ORDER holding in abeyance 201 Motion for Discovery; denying 219 Motion for Leave
to Amend Reply. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 4/9/2017. (ir) (Entered:
04/10/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117781739
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117781792
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017785881
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117695653
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117785882
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117786100
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017785881
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017555204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017557387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017546821
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017555204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017557387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017546821
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117786100
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117786100
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117787081
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017727250
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117787127
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017639974
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789844
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017727229
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117789876
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640696
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117786100
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017555204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017557387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017546821
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117791575
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017506525
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017614977
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04/10/2017 276 Clerks Notice of Docket Correction per Chambers re Order 269 as to 209 Amended
MOTION to Compel, 210 MOTION to Compel, 205 Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel.
Motion Hearing set for 4/25/2017 02:00 PM in West Palm Beach Division before
Magistrate Judge William Matthewman. (sk) (Entered: 04/10/2017)

04/25/2017 277 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman: Motion Hearing held on 4/25/2017 re 205 Plaintiff's MOTION to Compel
Defendant Crispin's Responses to Deposition Questions filed by Julian Bivins, 209
Amended MOTION to Compel Deposition Responses of Brian O'Connell, Esq. filed by
Julian Bivins; 210 MOTION to Compel Defendant Kelly Deposition Responses filed by
Julian Bivins. Argument held. The Court takes the matter under advisement. Written
order to be issued. Total time in court: 1 hour(s) : 48 minutes. Attorney Appearance(s):
Joseph Ronald Denman, Brandon Jay Hechtman, Jeffrey Alan Blaker, Alexandra Jordan
Schultz. (Digital 14:05:38) (kza) (Entered: 04/25/2017)

04/26/2017 278 ENDORSED ORDER denying as moot 206 Plaintiff's Motion to Compel O'Connell's
Deposition Responses in light of the fact that Plaintiff filed an amended motion [DE
209]. Signed by Magistrate Judge William Matthewman on 4/26/2017. (no00) (Entered:
04/26/2017)

04/27/2017 279 REPORT REGARDING Report of Mediation by Julian Bivins (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 04/27/2017)

04/27/2017 280 OMNIBUS ORDER ON DISCOVERY MOTIONS: denying 205 Plaintiff's Motion to
Compel Defendant Crispin's Deposition Responses; denying 209 Plaintiff's Amended
Motion to Compel O'Connell's Deposition Responses; denying 210 Plaintiff's Motion to
Compel Stephen Kelly's Deposition Responses. Signed by Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman on 4/27/2017. (kza) (Entered: 04/27/2017)

04/28/2017 281 FINAL MEDIATION REPORT (for image see dE#279) by Herbert Stettin. Disposition:
Case did not settle.(cqs) (Entered: 04/28/2017)

04/28/2017 282 Clerks Notice to Filer re 279 Report Regarding. Wrong Event Selected ; ERROR - The
Filer selected the wrong event. The document was re-docketed by the Clerk, see
[de#280]. It is not necessary to refile this document. (cqs) (Entered: 04/28/2017)

05/09/2017 283 Defendant's MOTION to Disqualify Counsel One of Plaintiff's Counsel from Advocating
at Trial  by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly,
Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by 5/23/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Rule 26(a)
(1) Initial Disclosures, # 2 Exhibit Bivins Settlement, # 3 Exhibit K Sharp Depo Excerpt,
# 4 Exhibit Gilbert Depo Excerpt)(Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 05/09/2017)

05/11/2017 284 Notice of Supplemental Authority re 227 MOTION for Summary Judgment by Ciklin
Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell
(Attachments: # 1 Supplement 4th DCA Opinion, # 2 Supplement 4th DCA Case Docket,
# 3 Supplement Appellant's Initial Brief, April 28, 2016, # 4 Supplement Appellee
Amended Answer Brief, September 2, 2016, # 5 Supplement Appellant's Reply Brief,
September 27, 2016) (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 05/11/2017)

05/11/2017 285 Plaintiff's OBJECTION of Magistrate Judge 280 Order on Motion to Compel,,,,, to
District Court (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 05/11/2017)

05/19/2017 286 TRANSCRIPT of Hearing Proceedings held on 4/25/17 before Magistrate Judge William
Matthewman, 1-82 pages, Court Reporter: Bonnie J. Lewis, 305-523-5635. Transcript
may be viewed at the court public terminal or purchased by contacting the Court
Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that
date it may be obtained through PACER. Redaction Request due 6/9/2017. Redacted

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017546821
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017555204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017557387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117546875
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117866342
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117866565
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017546821
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017555204
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017557387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117866342
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017912185
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117912186
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117912187
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117912188
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117912189
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017921836
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640696
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117921837
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117921838
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117921839
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117921840
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117921841
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117924088
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117866565
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017959750
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Transcript Deadline set for 6/19/2017. Release of Transcript Restriction set for
8/17/2017. (Attachments: # 1 Designation Access Form)(hh) (Entered: 05/22/2017)

05/23/2017 287 RESPONSE to Motion re 283 Defendant's MOTION to Disqualify Counsel One of
Plaintiff's Counsel from Advocating at Trial  filed by Julian Bivins. Replies due by
5/30/2017. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit 1, # 2 Errata Exhibit 2)(Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 05/23/2017)

05/24/2017 288 MOTION to Strike Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Expert Report  ( Responses due by 6/7/2017),
MOTION in Limine to Preclude Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Testimony by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Exhibit 1 to Gilbert deposition, # 2 Exhibit I. Gilbert, Esq.
deposition, # 3 Exhibit Fla. Prof'l Guardian Registry, # 4 Exhibit R. 26 Expert Rpt. I.
Gilbert, Esq.)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 05/24/2017)

05/24/2017 289 MOTION to Strike Kara Sharp, CPA's Expert Report ( Responses due by 6/7/2017),
MOTION in Limine to Preclude Kara Sharp's Testimony by Ciklin Lubitz Martens &
O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit K. Sharp deposition, # 2 Exhibit R. 26 Expert Rpt. K. Sharp, # 3 Exhibit
Settlement Detail Chart)(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 05/24/2017)

05/25/2017 290 RESPONSE to 285 OBJECTION of Magistrate Judge 280 Order on Motion to Compel
by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M.
O'Connell. (Studley, Rachel) Modified to add link and text on 5/25/2017 (jua). (Entered:
05/25/2017)

05/25/2017 291 RESPONSE to 285 Plaintiff's OBJECTION of Magistrate Judge 280 Order on Motion to
Compel,,,,, to District Court by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of
Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. (Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered: 05/25/2017)

05/30/2017 292 REPLY to Response to Motion re 283 Defendant's MOTION to Disqualify Counsel One
of Plaintiff's Counsel from Advocating at Trial  filed by Ciklin Lubitz Martens &
O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M. O'Connell. (Studley, Rachel)
(Entered: 05/30/2017)

06/01/2017 293 REPLY to Response to Motion re 285 Plaintiff's OBJECTION of Magistrate Judge 280
Order on Motion to Compel,,,,, to District Court Plaintiff's Reply to Defendants'
Responses [DE 290 and 291] To Appeal from and Objection to the Magistrate Judge's
April 27, 2017 "Omnibus Order on Discovery Motions" filed by Julian Bivins.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Privilege Log Composite)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered:
06/01/2017)

06/01/2017 294 REPLY to Response to Motion re 283 Defendant's MOTION to Disqualify Counsel One
of Plaintiff's Counsel from Advocating at Trial  Defendants' Corrected Reply filed by
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Brian M.
O'Connell. (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 06/01/2017)

06/01/2017 295 ORDER denying 283 Motion to Disqualify Counsel. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra
on 6/1/2017. (ir) (Entered: 06/01/2017)

06/01/2017 296 ORDER denying 225 Motion for Summary Judgment; granting in part and denying in
part 227 Motion for Summary Judgment. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on
6/1/2017. (ir) (Entered: 06/01/2017)

06/01/2017 297 JUDGMENT in favor of Stephen M Kelly against Julian Bivins. Signed by Judge
Kenneth A. Marra on 6/1/2017. (ir) (Entered: 06/01/2017)

06/05/2017 298 Unopposed MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer as to 288
MOTION to Strike Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Expert Report  MOTION in Limine to Preclude

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117959751
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017967944
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017912185
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117967945
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117967946
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973522
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117973523
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117973524
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117973525
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117973526
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973536
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117973537
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117973538
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117973539
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117976975
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117924088
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117866565
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117978090
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117924088
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117866565
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117990519
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017912185
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018003388
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117924088
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117866565
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118003389
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118004086
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017912185
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118004242
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017912185
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118004500
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017639974
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117640696
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118004521
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118014754
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973522
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Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Testimony, 289 MOTION to Strike Kara Sharp, CPA's Expert
Report MOTION in Limine to Preclude Kara Sharp's Testimony by Julian Bivins.
(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/05/2017)

06/06/2017 299 ENDORSED ORDER granting 298 Motion for Extension of Time to File
Response/Reply to 288 MOTION to Strike Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Expert Report  MOTION
in Limine to Preclude Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Testimony filed by Brian M. O'Connell, Ciklin
Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, 289 MOTION to
Strike Kara Sharp, CPA's Expert Report MOTION in Limine to Preclude Kara Sharp's
Testimony filed by Brian M. O'Connell, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N.
Crispin, Stephen M Kelly. Responses due by 6/12/2017. Signed by Judge Kenneth A.
Marra on 6/6/2017. (ir) (Entered: 06/06/2017)

06/09/2017 300 Initial Disclosure(s) of Rule 26(A)(3) Pretrial Disclosures by Beys Liston Mobargha &
Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein (Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered:
06/09/2017)

06/09/2017 301 Initial Disclosure(s) of Pretrial Disclosure per Local Rule 16.1(d) and Rule 26(a)(3) by
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell (Hechtman,
Brandon) (Entered: 06/09/2017)

06/09/2017 302 Initial Disclosure(s) of Pretrial Disclosure per Local Rule 16.1(d) and Rule 26(a)(3),
Corrected by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell
(Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 06/09/2017)

06/09/2017 303 Initial Disclosure(s) of Plaintiff's Rule 26(a)(3) Pretrial Disclosures by Julian Bivins
(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/09/2017)

06/12/2017 304 RESPONSE to Motion re 288 MOTION to Strike Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Expert Report
MOTION in Limine to Preclude Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Testimony filed by Julian Bivins.
Replies due by 6/19/2017. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Rule 26 Expert Report of Jeffrey
Skatoff, Esq.)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/12/2017)

06/12/2017 305 RESPONSE to Motion re 289 MOTION to Strike Kara Sharp, CPA's Expert Report
MOTION in Limine to Preclude Kara Sharp's Testimony filed by Julian Bivins. Replies
due by 6/19/2017. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/12/2017)

06/15/2017 306 REPLY to Response to Motion re 288 MOTION to Strike Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Expert
Report MOTION in Limine to Preclude Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Testimony filed by Ciklin
Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. (Studley, Rachel)
(Entered: 06/15/2017)

06/15/2017 307 REPLY to Response to Motion re 289 MOTION to Strike Kara Sharp, CPA's Expert
Report MOTION in Limine to Preclude Kara Sharp's Testimony filed by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. (Studley, Rachel)
(Entered: 06/15/2017)

06/16/2017 308 MOTION to Stay or Dismiss this Action Without Prejudice, Verified by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by
6/30/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Order Appointing Temporary Administrator and
Setting Amount of Bond, # 2 Exhibit Application for Appointment as Temporary
Administrator and for Letter of Temporary Administration, # 3 Exhibit Objection to
Petition for Administration, # 4 Exhibit Ancillary Letters of Administration, # 5 Exhibit
Objection to Continued Appointment, # 6 Exhibit Agreed Motion for Continuance, # 7
Exhibit Order Granting Agreed Motion for Continuance, # 8 Exhibit Texas Petition in
Intervention and Request for Appointment of Disinterested Third-Party Temporary
Administrator, # 9 Exhibit Verified Petition for Appointment of Curator)(Hechtman,
Brandon) (Entered: 06/16/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973536
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118014754
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973522
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973536
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118036556
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118036730
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118036765
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118037387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018042446
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973522
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118042447
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118042469
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973536
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118057403
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973522
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118057456
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973536
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018063398
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118063399
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118063400
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118063401
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118063402
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118063403
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118063404
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118063405
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118063406
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118063407
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06/19/2017 309 RESPONSE to Motion re 308 MOTION to Stay or Dismiss this Action Without
Prejudice, Verified filed by Julian Bivins. Replies due by 6/26/2017. (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit Petition to be appointed, # 2 Exhibit Petition for Ancillary Administration, # 3
Exhibit Order Admitting Will, # 4 Exhibit Ancillary Letters of Administration, # 5
Exhibit Verified Petition, # 6 Exhibit Amended Verified Petition, # 7 Exhibit Excerpt
from Kelly Transcript, # 8 Exhibit Excerpt from Rogers Transcript)(Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 06/19/2017)

06/22/2017 310 MOTION in Limine by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M.
O'Connell. (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 06/22/2017)

06/22/2017 311 SUPPLEMENT to 303 Initial Disclosure(s) Supplemental Rule 26(a)(3) Pretrial
Disclosures by Julian Bivins (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/22/2017)

06/22/2017 312 First MOTION in Limine Exclude Settlement by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 06/22/2017)

06/22/2017 313 Second MOTION in Limine Texas Settlement by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 06/22/2017)

06/22/2017 314 Third MOTION in Limine JRD to Testify at Trial  by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 06/22/2017)

06/22/2017 315 Fourth MOTION in Limine Exclude Orders to Establish Res Judicata  by Julian Bivins.
(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/22/2017)

06/22/2017 316 Fifth MOTION in Limine to Exclude Attorney-client Privilege by Julian Bivins.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 2017.01.09 Transcript of Brian O'Connell, # 2 Exhibit
2017.01.09 Transcript [Ashley Crispin], # 3 Exhibit 2017.01.11 Transcript [Stephen
Kelly][Vol. I and II], # 4 Exhibit 2017.01.12 Transcript [Curtis Rogers], # 5 Exhibit
2016.07.12 RRFP [Crispin, O'Connell and CLO], # 6 Exhibit 2016.07.21 RRFP [Curtis
Rogers], # 7 Exhibit 2016.07.11 RRFP [Stephen Kelly], # 8 Exhibit 2017.03.29
Transcript [Jeffrey Skatoff][Full with Exhibits])(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/22/2017)

06/22/2017 317 SUPPLEMENT to 311 Supplement CORRECTED Supplement to Rule 26(a)(3) PreTrial
Disclosures by Julian Bivins (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/22/2017)

06/22/2017 318 PRETRIAL STIPULATION by Julian Bivins (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/22/2017)

06/23/2017 319 ORDER affirming Magistrate Judge April 27, 2017 Order DE 280 ;denying 201 Motion
for Discovery; denying 285 Appeal/Objection of Magistrate Judge Order to District
Court. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 6/23/2017. (ir) (Entered: 06/23/2017)

06/23/2017 320 Initial Disclosure(s) of Plaintiff's Objection to CLO Defendants' Corrected Fed. R. 26(A)
(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure [DE 302] and Objection to Stein Defendants' Rule 26(A)(3)
Pretrial Disclosures [DE300] Re: 300 Initial Disclosure(s) filed by Law Offices of Keith
B. Stein, Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Keith B. Stein, 302 Initial Disclosure(s)
filed by Brian M. O'Connell, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin by
Julian Bivins (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/23/2017)

06/23/2017 321 Initial Disclosure(s) of Defendants' Objections to Plaintiff's Rule 26(A)(3) Pretrial
Disclosures Re: 317 Supplement filed by Julian Bivins by Beys Liston Mobargha &
Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Law Offices of
Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein (Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered:
06/23/2017)

06/26/2017 322 Corrected MOTION in Limine by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of Keith B.
Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein. (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 06/26/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018067988
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018063398
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118067989
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118067990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118067991
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118067992
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118067993
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118067994
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118067995
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118067996
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118084326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085331
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118037387
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085334
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085337
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085340
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085343
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018085364
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085365
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085366
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085367
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085368
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085369
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085370
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085371
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085372
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085391
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085331
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085397
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118086708
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117866565
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017506525
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051117924088
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118089632
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118036556
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118036765
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118090484
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085391
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118091264
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06/26/2017 323 CLERK'S Notice of Policy re Electronic Submission of Exhibits.

Unless otherwise ordered by the presiding Judge, Administrative Order 2016-70 directs
that within three (3) days of the conclusion of a proceeding, parties must file in the
CMECF system electronic versions of most documentary exhibits admitted into evidence
(excluding sealed exhibits in criminal cases), including photographs of non-documentary
physical exhibits. At the time of filing the electronic exhibits, the attorney for the filing
party shall complete and file a Certificate of Compliance Re Admitted Evidence.
Electronically filed exhibits are subject to CM/ECF Administrative Procedures, Section
6, Redaction of Personal Information, Privacy Policy, and Inappropriate Materials.
Failure to file the electronic exhibits and Notice of Compliance within three (3) days may
result in the imposition of sanctions. The Certificate of Compliance Re Admitted
Evidence, a Quick Reference Guide to Electronically Filing Trial Exhibits, and the full
text of Administrative Order 2016-70 can be found at the Courts website,
http://www.flsd.uscourts.gov as to Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Julian Bivins,
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Stephen M Kelly, Law Offices of
Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein. (ir) (Entered: 06/26/2017)

06/26/2017 324 REPLY to Response to Motion re 308 MOTION to Stay or Dismiss this Action Without
Prejudice, Verified filed by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian
M. O'Connell. (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 06/26/2017)

06/27/2017 325 PAPERLESS Order Cancelling 7/7/17 Calendar Call Hearing. Jury selection will begin
on or about 7/17/17 or after completion of Court's first case on trial calendar. Dates are
subject to change if first case settles. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 6/27/2017.
(ir) (Entered: 06/27/2017)

06/27/2017 326 RESPONSE to Motion re 322 Corrected MOTION in Limine filed by Julian Bivins.
Replies due by 7/5/2017. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Edward Robbins Expert Report)
(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/27/2017)

06/27/2017 327 RESPONSE to Motion re 316 Fifth MOTION in Limine to Exclude Attorney-client
Privilege, 314 Third MOTION in Limine JRD to Testify at Trial , 315 Fourth MOTION in
Limine Exclude Orders to Establish Res Judicata , 312 First MOTION in Limine Exclude
Settlement, 313 Second MOTION in Limine Texas Settlement filed by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Law
Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein. Replies due by 7/5/2017.
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Ver'd Pet Take Action NY Property - 9-13-12)(Studley,
Rachel) (Entered: 06/27/2017)

06/28/2017 328 ORDER denying 308 Motion to Stay. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 6/27/2017.
(ir) (Entered: 06/28/2017)

06/29/2017 329 NOTICE by Julian Bivins Deposition Designations (Attachments: # 1 Designation)
(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 06/29/2017)

06/30/2017 330 Joint MOTION for Extension of Time to File Proposed Jury Instructions and Verdict
Form by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B.
Stein. Responses due by 7/14/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Schultz,
Alexandra) (Entered: 06/30/2017)

07/03/2017 331 Proposed Jury Instructions by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Plaintiff's Verdict Form, #
2 Defendants' Verdict Form)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/03/2017)

07/05/2017 332 PAPERLESS ORDER granting nunc pro tunc 330 Joint Motion for Extension of Time.
Proposed Jury Instructions and Verdict Form shall be filed on or before July 3, 2017.
Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 7/5/2017. (lh1) (Entered: 07/05/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118094715
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018063398
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018100956
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118091264
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118100957
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018101197
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018085364
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085340
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085343
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085334
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085337
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118101198
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118101867
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018063398
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018112338
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118112339
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018117929
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118117930
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018120329
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118120330
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118120331
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018117929
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07/05/2017 333 REPLY to Response to Motion re 314 Third MOTION in Limine JRD to Testify at Trial
filed by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/05/2017)

07/05/2017 334 REPLY to Response to Motion re 312 First MOTION in Limine Exclude Settlement filed
by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/05/2017)

07/05/2017 335 REPLY to Response to Motion re 315 Fourth MOTION in Limine Exclude Orders to
Establish Res Judicata  filed by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/05/2017)

07/05/2017 336 REPLY to Response to Motion re 313 Second MOTION in Limine Texas Settlement filed
by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/05/2017)

07/05/2017 337 REPLY to Response to Motion re 316 Fifth MOTION in Limine to Exclude Attorney-
client Privilege filed by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/05/2017)

07/06/2017 338 NOTICE by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell,
Ashley N. Crispin, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein of
Filing of Defendants' Objections and Counter -Designations to Plaintiff's Deposition
Designations (Attachments: # 1 Objections and Counter-Designations) (Schultz,
Alexandra) (Entered: 07/06/2017)

07/07/2017 339 Proposed Voir Dire Questions by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin,
Brian M. O'Connell. (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 07/07/2017)

07/07/2017 340 Proposed Voir Dire Questions by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of
Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. (Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered: 07/07/2017)

07/10/2017 341 MOTION to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom by Ciklin Lubitz Martens &
O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by 7/24/2017
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 07/10/2017)

07/11/2017 342 ORDER granting 341 Motion to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom. Signed
by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 7/10/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/11/2017)

07/12/2017 343 MOTION Motion to Allow Access to Courthouse with Electronic Devises by Julian
Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered:
07/12/2017)

07/12/2017 344 MOTION Plaintiff's Motion for Judicial Notice of Palm Beach County, Florida, Ancillary
Letters of Administration in re: Estate of Oliver Bivins and 67th Street Deeds with Memo
by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Certified Copy of Letters of Administratin, #
2 Exhibit Certified Copies of Deeds, # 3 Text of Proposed Order)(Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 07/12/2017)

07/12/2017 345 MOTION to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom by Beys Liston Mobargha &
Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. Responses due by 7/26/2017
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered: 07/12/2017)

07/13/2017 346 SUPPLEMENT Corrected Suppl Rule 26(a)(3) PreTrial Disclosur es by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell (Studley, Rachel) (Entered:
07/13/2017)

07/13/2017 347 Amended MOTION to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by
7/27/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Studley, Rachel) (Entered:
07/13/2017)

07/13/2017 348 ORDER granting 343 Motion to Allow Access to Courthouse with Electronic Devises.
Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 7/12/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/13/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118125810
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085340
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118125815
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085334
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118125830
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085343
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118125855
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085337
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118125863
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018085364
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018132130
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118132131
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118136890
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118137583
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018143147
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118143148
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118146305
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018143147
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018154171
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118154172
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018154266
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118154267
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118154268
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118154269
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018154877
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118154878
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118157619
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018157728
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118157729
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118158100
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018154171
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07/13/2017 349 ORDER granting 345 Motion to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom. Signed
by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 7/12/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/13/2017)

07/13/2017 350 Proposed Voir Dire Questions by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/13/2017)

07/14/2017 351 NOTICE by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell,
Ashley N. Crispin, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein re
329 Notice (Other) of Filing Defendant's Objections and Counter -Designations to
Plaintiff's Deposition Designations for Rhonda Gluck. Attorney Rachel Studley added to
party Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP(pty:dft), Attorney Rachel Studley added to
party Law Offices of Keith B. Stein(pty:dft), Attorney Rachel Studley added to party
Keith B. Stein(pty:dft). (Attachments: # 1 Objections and Counter-Designations)
(Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 352 RESPONSE to Motion re 344 MOTION Plaintiff's Motion for Judicial Notice of Palm
Beach County, Florida, Ancillary Letters of Administration in re: Estate of Oliver Bivins
and 67th Street Deeds with Memo filed by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP,
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein,
Brian M. O'Connell, Keith B. Stein. Replies due by 7/21/2017. (Studley, Rachel)
(Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 353 NOTICE to parties: Jury selection will begin on Monday, July 17, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. in
Courtroom #1 on the FOURTH FLOOR. (ir) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 354 ORDER granting 347 Amended Motion to Bring Electronic Equipment into the
courtroom. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 7/14/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 355 ORDER denying without prejudice 344 Motion for judicial notice. Signed by Judge
Kenneth A. Marra on 7/14/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 356 ORDER denying as moot 310 Motion in Limine; granting in part, denying in part and
reserving in part 322 Motion in Limine. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on
7/14/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 357 ORDER entered 288 Motion to Strike ; entered 288 Motion in Limine; entered 289
Motion to Strike ; entered 289 Motion in Limine. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on
7/14/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 358 ORDER granting without prejudice 312 Motion in Limine; denying without prejudice
313 Motion in Limine; granting without prejudice 314 Motion in Limine; denying
without prejudice 315 Motion in Limine; denying without prejudice 316 Motion in
Limine. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 7/14/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 359 NOTICE by Julian Bivins of Intent to Introduce Rule 1006 Summaries at Trial
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A to Notice of Intent, etc., # 2 Exhibit B to Notice of Intent,
etc., # 3 Exhibit C to Notice of Intent, etc., # 4 Exhibit D to Notice of Intent, etc., # 5
Exhibit E to Notice of Intent, etc., # 6 Exhibit F to Notice of Intent, etc., # 7 Exhibit G to
Notice of Intent, etc) (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 360 NOTICE by Julian Bivins re 338 Notice (Other), Plaintiffs' Notice of Filing Objections
and Counter-Designations to Defendants' Deposition Designations and Counter -
Designations (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Plaintiffs' Objections and Counter-Designations
to Defendants' Deposition Designations and Counter-Designations) (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 07/14/2017)

07/14/2017 361 Plaintiff's Objection to CLO Defendants' Corrected Supplemental Fed. R. 26(A)(3) Pre-
Trial Disclosure [DE 346] to 346 Supplement by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 07/14/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118158115
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018154877
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118159507
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018164543
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018112338
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118164544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118164699
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018154266
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118165904
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018157728
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118165936
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018154266
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118165990
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118084326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118091264
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118166010
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973522
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973522
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973536
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973536
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118166088
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085334
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085337
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085340
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118085343
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018085364
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018167745
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118167746
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118167747
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118167748
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118167749
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118167750
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118167751
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118167752
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018168479
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018132130
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118168480
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118168654
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118157619
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07/15/2017 362 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell
re 338 Notice (Other), Highlighted Deposition Transcripts  (Attachments: # 1 Deposition
Bernstein, # 2 Deposition Bivins 2013, # 3 Deposition Bivins 2015, # 4 Deposition
Bivins Sr., # 5 Deposition Crispin I, # 6 Deposition Crispin II, # 7 Deposition Crispin, # 8
Deposition Ginsburg, # 9 Deposition Gluck, # 10 Deposition hawkins, # 11 Deposition
heinrich, # 12 Deposition Kuhnel, # 13 Deposition Kuhnel 2012, # 14 Deposition Kuhnel
2013, # 15 Deposition Kuhnel 2015, # 16 Deposition Lieberman 2017, # 17 Deposition
Lieberman, # 18 Deposition O'Connell 2017, # 19 Deposition Stein, # 20 Deposition
O'Connell 2013) (Studley, Rachel) (Entered: 07/15/2017)

07/17/2017 363 Amended MOTION to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom by Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell. Responses due by
7/31/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Studley, Rachel) (Entered:
07/17/2017)

07/17/2017 364 Amended MOTION to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. Responses due
by 7/31/2017 (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered:
07/17/2017)

07/17/2017 367 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Jury
Trial begun on 7/17/2017. Total time in court: 7 hour(s) : 45 minutes. Attorney
Appearance(s): Rachel Studley, Jeffrey Alan Blaker, Joseph Ronald Denman, Charles
Dennis Bavol, Brandon Jay Hechtman. Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. (ir) (Entered: 07/18/2017)

07/18/2017 365 ORDER granting 363 Motion to Bring Electronic Equipment into the courtroom. Signed
by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 7/17/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/18/2017)

07/18/2017 366 ORDER granting 364 Amended Motion to Bring Electronic Equipment into the
courtroom. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on 7/18/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/18/2017)

07/18/2017 370 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Jury
Trial held on 7/18/2017. Day 2. Opening statements and evidence presented. Total time in
court: 7 hour(s). Attorney Appearance(s): Rachel Studley, Jeffrey Alan Blaker, Alexandra
Jordan Schultz, Joseph Ronald Denman, Charles Dennis Bavol, Brandon Jay Hechtman.
Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 / Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov.
(ir) (Entered: 07/19/2017)

07/19/2017 368 PLAINTIFF'S NOTICE OF FILING HIGHLIGHTED DEPOSITION TRANSCRIPTS
PURSUANT TO PLAINTIFF AND DEFENDANTS' DEPOSITION DESIGNATIONS,
OBJECTIONS, AND COUNTER-DESIGNATIONS by Julian Bivins (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit, # 2 Exhibit, # 3 Exhibit, # 4 Exhibit, # 5 Exhibit, # 6 Exhibit, # 7 Exhibit, # 8
Exhibit, # 9 Exhibit, # 10 Exhibit, # 11 Exhibit, # 12 Exhibit, # 13 Exhibit, # 14 Exhibit,
# 15 Exhibit, # 16 Exhibit, # 17 Exhibit, # 18 Exhibit, # 19 Exhibit, # 20 Exhibit, # 21
Exhibit, # 22 Exhibit, # 23 Exhibit, # 24 Exhibit, # 25 Exhibit, # 26 Exhibit, # 27 Exhibit,
# 28 Exhibit, # 29 Exhibit, # 30 Exhibit, # 31 Exhibit, # 32 Exhibit, # 33 Exhibit, # 34
Exhibit) (rms1) (Entered: 07/19/2017)

07/19/2017 369 Clerks Notice of Noncompliance of 368 Notice (Other),,, re: Failure to Electronically File
Document(s). Pursuant to Administrative Order 2006-24 and the CM/ECF Administrative
Procedures, electronic filing is mandatory for attorneys admitted to practice in this Court
unless otherwise noted in the Administrative Procedures. It is not necessary to re-file this
document but future filings must comply with the CM/ECF Administrative Procedures.
(rms1) (Entered: 07/19/2017)

07/19/2017 371 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Jury

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018169154
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018132130
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169155
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169156
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169157
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169158
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169159
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169160
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169161
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169162
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169163
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169164
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169165
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169166
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169167
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169168
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169169
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169170
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169171
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169172
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169173
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118169174
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018174348
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118174349
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018175409
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118175410
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118175697
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018174348
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118175844
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018175409
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018182295
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182296
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182297
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182298
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182299
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182300
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182301
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182302
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182303
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182304
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182305
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182306
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182307
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182308
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182309
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182310
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182311
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182312
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182313
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182314
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182315
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182316
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182317
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182318
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182319
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182320
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182321
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182322
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182323
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182324
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182325
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182326
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182327
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182328
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118182329
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018182295
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Trial held on 7/19/2017. Day 3. Total time in court: 7 hour(s). Attorney Appearance(s):
Rachel Studley, Jeffrey Alan Blaker, Alexandra Jordan Schultz, Joseph Ronald Denman,
Charles Dennis Bavol, Brandon Jay Hechtman. Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-
514-3768 / Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. (ir) (Entered: 07/19/2017)

07/20/2017 372 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Jury
Trial held on 7/20/2017. Day 4. Total time in court: 7 hour(s). Trial continued to 7/24/17.
Attorney Appearance(s): Rachel Studley, Jeffrey Alan Blaker, Alexandra Jordan Schultz,
Joseph Ronald Denman, Charles Dennis Bavol, Brandon Jay Hechtman. Court Reporter:
Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 / Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. (ir) (Entered:
07/24/2017)

07/24/2017 373 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Jury
Trial held on 7/24/2017. Day 5. Total time in court: 8 hour(s). Attorney Appearance(s):
Rachel Studley, Jeffrey Alan Blaker, Alexandra Jordan Schultz, Joseph Ronald Denman,
Charles Dennis Bavol, Brandon Jay Hechtman. Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-
514-3768 / Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. (ir) (Entered: 07/25/2017)

07/25/2017 375 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Jury
Trial held on 7/25/2017. Day 6. Duabert hearing on witness Irwin Gilbert held after jury
sent home. Court reserves ruling. Total time in court: 9 hour(s). Attorney Appearance(s):
Rachel Studley, Jeffrey Alan Blaker, Alexandra Jordan Schultz, Joseph Ronald Denman,
Charles Dennis Bavol, Brandon Jay Hechtman, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-
514-3768 / Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. (ir) (Entered: 07/26/2017)

07/26/2017 374 ENDORSED ORDER granting 288 Motion to Strike ; granting 288 Motion in Limine to
Preclude Irwin Gilbert, Esq.'s Testimony. Defendants' motion to preclude Irwin Gilbert's
testimony as an expert witness is granted. The Court finds that Mr. Gilbert does not have
the qualifications by way of knowledge, education, training or experience to be able to
provide testimony as an expert witness relative to the appropriate standard of care to
which an attorney representing a professional guardian of an incapacitated ward would be
required to adhere. The Court also finds the motion was filed timely. Signed by Judge
Kenneth A. Marra on 7/26/2017. (ir) (Entered: 07/26/2017)

07/26/2017 377 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Jury
Trial held on 7/26/2017. Day 7. Total time in court: 7 hour(s). Attorney Appearance(s):
Rachel Studley, Jeffrey Alan Blaker, Alexandra Jordan Schultz, Joseph Ronald Denman,
Charles Dennis Bavol, Brandon Jay Hechtman. Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-
514-3768 / Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. (ir) (Entered: 07/27/2017)

07/27/2017 376 Plaintiff's MOTION for Reconsideration re 374 Order on Motion to Strike, Order on
Motion in Limine,,,, by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/27/2017)

07/27/2017 378 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Jury
Trial held on 7/27/2017. Day 8. Both sides rest. Court reserves ruling on Rule 50
motions. Jury charge conference held. Closing statements to begin on 7/28/17. Total time
in court: 8 hour(s) : 15 minutes. Attorney Appearance(s): Rachel Studley, Jeffrey Alan
Blaker, Alexandra Jordan Schultz, Joseph Ronald Denman, Charles Dennis Bavol,
Brandon Jay Hechtman, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. (ir) (Entered: 07/28/2017)

07/28/2017 379 PAPERLESS Minute Entry for proceedings held before Judge Kenneth A. Marra: Jury
Trial completed on 7/28/2017. Closing arguments, jury deliberations and verdict returned.
Total time in court: 5 hour(s). Attorney Appearance(s): Rachel Studley, Jeffrey Alan
Blaker, Alexandra Jordan Schultz, Joseph Ronald Denman, Charles Dennis Bavol,
Brandon Jay Hechtman. Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. (ir) (Entered: 07/28/2017)

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973522
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051017973522
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118218566
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07/28/2017 380 Court's Jury Instructions. (ir) (Entered: 07/28/2017)

07/28/2017 381 JURY VERDICT. (ir) (Additional attachment(s) added on 7/31/2017: # 1 Restricted
Unredacted Jury Note/Verdict - Jury Verdict) (ir). (Entered: 07/28/2017)

07/28/2017 382 PLAINTIFF'S Exhibit List. (ir) (Entered: 07/28/2017)

07/28/2017 383 DEFENDANT'S Exhibit List. (ir) (Entered: 07/28/2017)

07/28/2017 384 Jury Notes. (ir) (Additional attachment(s) added on 7/31/2017: # 1 Restricted Unredacted
Jury Note/Verdict - Jury Notes) (ir). (Entered: 07/28/2017)

07/29/2017 385 TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 07/17/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, Volume
Number 1 of 9, 1-111 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 8/21/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 8/29/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 10/27/2017. (sf) (Entered: 07/29/2017)

07/29/2017 386 TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 07/18/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, Volume
Number 2 of 9, 1-242 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 8/21/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 8/29/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 10/27/2017. (sf) (Entered: 07/29/2017)

07/29/2017 387 TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 07/19/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, Volume
Number 3 of 9, 1-308 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 8/21/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 8/29/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 10/27/2017. (sf) (Entered: 07/29/2017)

07/29/2017 388 TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 07/20/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, Volume
Number 4 of 9, 1-302 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 8/21/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 8/29/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 10/27/2017. (sf) (Entered: 07/29/2017)

07/29/2017 389 TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 07/24/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, Volume
Number 5 of 9, 1-340 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 8/21/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 8/29/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 10/27/2017. (sf) (Entered: 07/29/2017)

07/29/2017 390 TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 07/25/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, Volume
Number 6 of 9, 1-355 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.

https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118225523
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018225536
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118226937
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118225544
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118225550
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018225642
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118226919
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118226343
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118226346
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118226352
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118226358
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118226361
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118226364
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Redaction Request due 8/21/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 8/29/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 10/27/2017. (sf) (Entered: 07/29/2017)

07/29/2017 391 TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 07/26/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, Volume
Number 7 of 9, 1-294 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 8/21/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 8/29/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 10/27/2017. (sf) (Entered: 07/29/2017)

07/29/2017 392 TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 07/27/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, Volume
Number 8 of 9, 1-339 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 8/21/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 8/29/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 10/27/2017. (sf) (Entered: 07/29/2017)

07/29/2017 393 TRANSCRIPT of Jury Trial held on 07/28/2017 before Judge Kenneth A. Marra, Volume
Number 9 of 9, 1-167 pages, Court Reporter: Stephen Franklin, 561-514-3768 /
Stephen_Franklin@flsd.uscourts.gov. Transcript may be viewed at the court public
terminal or purchased by contacting the Court Reporter/Transcriber before the deadline
for Release of Transcript Restriction. After that date it may be obtained through PACER.
Redaction Request due 8/21/2017. Redacted Transcript Deadline set for 8/29/2017.
Release of Transcript Restriction set for 10/27/2017. (sf) (Entered: 07/29/2017)

07/31/2017 394 MOTION for Attorney Fees and Costs by Stephen M Kelly. Responses due by 8/14/2017
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Affidavit - Studley, # 2 Exhibit Affidavit - Pickett, # 3 Exhibit
PFS - Kelly, # 4 Exhibit Copy of Time Card, # 5 Exhibit Copy of Cost Card)(Studley,
Rachel) (Entered: 07/31/2017)

07/31/2017 395 TRIAL EXHIBITS 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 41, 42, 45, 48, 50, 52, 54, 55, 58,
60, 61, 62, 66, 67, 68, 70, 71, 74, 75, 78, 79, 80 by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit 31, # 2 Exhibit 32, # 3 Exhibit 33, # 4 Exhibit 34, # 5 Exhibit 35, # 6 Exhibit 36,
# 7 Exhibit 37, # 8 Exhibit 38, # 9 Exhibit 39, # 10 Exhibit 41, # 11 Exhibit 42, # 12
Exhibit 45, # 13 Exhibit 48, # 14 Exhibit 50, # 15 Exhibit 52, # 16 Exhibit 54, # 17
Exhibit 55, # 18 Exhibit 58, # 19 Exhibit 60, # 20 Exhibit 61, # 21 Exhibit 62, # 22
Exhibit 66, # 23 Exhibit 67, # 24 Exhibit 68, # 25 Exhibit 70, # 26 Exhibit 71, # 27
Exhibit 74, # 28 Exhibit 75, # 29 Exhibit 78, # 30 Exhibit 79, # 31 Exhibit 80)(Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 07/31/2017)

07/31/2017 396 TRIAL EXHIBITS 81, 83, 86, 87, 88, 97, 98, 99, 100, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 108, 110,
112, 113, 115, 116, 119, 120, 121, 127, 129, 131, 134, 135, 136, 137, 138, 145, 146, 147,
148, 153, 163, 164, 165, 167, 169, 170 by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 81, #
2 Exhibit 83, # 3 Exhibit 86, # 4 Exhibit 87, # 5 Exhibit 88, # 6 Exhibit 97, # 7 Exhibit
98, # 8 Exhibit 99, # 9 Exhibit 100, # 10 Exhibit 102, # 11 Exhibit 103, # 12 Exhibit 104,
# 13 Exhibit 105, # 14 Exhibit 106, # 15 Exhibit 108, # 16 Exhibit 110, # 17 Exhibit 112,
# 18 Exhibit 113, # 19 Exhibit 115, # 20 Exhibit 116, # 21 Exhibit 119, # 22 Exhibit 120,
# 23 Exhibit 121, # 24 Exhibit 127, # 25 Exhibit 129, # 26 Exhibit 131, # 27 Exhibit 134,
# 28 Exhibit 135, # 29 Exhibit 136, # 30 Exhibit 137, # 31 Exhibit 138, # 32 Exhibit 145,
# 33 Exhibit 146, # 34 Exhibit 147, # 35 Exhibit 148, # 36 Exhibit 153, # 37 Exhibit 163,
# 38 Exhibit 164, # 39 Exhibit 165, # 40 Exhibit 167, # 41 Exhibit 169, # 42 Exhibit 170)
(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/31/2017)

07/31/2017 397 TRIAL EXHIBITS 173, 174, 175, 178, 179, 180, 181, 182, 183, 184, 185, 186, 187, 188,
189, 192, 193, 194, 195, 197, 198, 199, 200, 201 by Julian Bivins. (Attachments: # 1
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118231283
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118231483
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118231484
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118231485
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118231486
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118231487
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Exhibit 173, # 2 Exhibit 174, # 3 Exhibit 175, # 4 Exhibit 178, # 5 Exhibit 179, # 6
Exhibit 180, # 7 Exhibit 181, # 8 Exhibit 182, # 9 Exhibit 183, # 10 Exhibit 184, # 11
Exhibit 185, # 12 Exhibit 186, # 13 Exhibit 187, # 14 Exhibit 188, # 15 Exhibit 189, # 16
Exhibit 192, # 17 Exhibit 193, # 18 Exhibit 194, # 19 Exhibit 195, # 20 Exhibit 197, # 21
Exhibit 198, # 22 Exhibit 199, # 23 Exhibit 200, # 24 Exhibit 201)(Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 07/31/2017)

07/31/2017 398 Plaintiff's CERTIFICATE of Compliance Re Admitted Evidence by Joseph Ronald
Denman on behalf of Julian Bivins (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 07/31/2017)

08/01/2017 399 NOTICE by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell,
Keith B. Stein of Filing Defendant's Exhibits Admitted into Evidence (Attachments: # 1
Exhibit CLO 8, # 2 Exhibit CLO 26, # 3 Exhibit CLO 28, # 4 Exhibit CLO 30, # 5
Exhibit CLO 35, # 6 Exhibit CLO 45, # 7 Exhibit CLO 57, # 8 Exhibit CLO 64, # 9
Exhibit CLO 66, # 10 Exhibit CLO 69, # 11 Exhibit CLO 70, # 12 Exhibit CLO 75, # 13
Exhibit CLO 95, # 14 Exhibit Stein 54, # 15 Exhibit Stein 55) (Studley, Rachel) (Entered:
08/01/2017)

08/01/2017 400 NOTICE by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein,
Keith B. Stein of Filing Trial Exhibits (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Stein 54, # 2 Exhibit
Stein 55) (Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered: 08/01/2017)

08/01/2017 401 CERTIFICATE of Compliance Re Admitted Evidence for exhibit(s): Stein 54 and Stein
55 by Alexandra Jordan Schultz on behalf of Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP,
Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein (Schultz, Alexandra) (Entered: 08/01/2017)

08/01/2017 402 CERTIFICATE of Compliance Re Admitted Evidence by Rachel Studley on behalf of
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. O'Connell (Studley,
Rachel) (Entered: 08/01/2017)

08/02/2017 403 CLERK'S NOTICE Instructing counsel to arrange for pick up of the Original Plaintiff's
and Defendant's Trial Exhibits within five days (August 9,2018) at the U.S. District
Court/ Southern District of Florida West Palm Beach Divisional Office of the Clerk room
202. (dj) Modified on 8/4/2017 (dj). (Entered: 08/02/2017)

08/03/2017 404 RELEASE OF EXHIBITS ORIGINAL DEFENDANT'S (KEITH B. STEIN) TRIAL
EXHIBITS released to Diane Blasi (lan) (Entered: 08/03/2017)

08/04/2017 405 RELEASE OF EXHIBITS ORIGINAL PLAINTIFF TRIAL EXHIBITS released to
Charles Goldberg (lan) (Entered: 08/07/2017)

08/04/2017 406 RELEASE OF EXHIBITS ORIGINAL DEFENDANT'S TRIAL EXHIBITS released to
Diane Blasi (lan) (Entered: 08/07/2017)

08/14/2017 407 JUDGMENT in favor of Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith
B. Stein, Keith B. Stein against Julian Bivins. Signed by Judge Kenneth A. Marra on
8/11/2017. (ir) (Entered: 08/14/2017)

08/14/2017 408 RESPONSE to Motion re 394 MOTION for Attorney Fees and Costs filed by Julian
Bivins. Replies due by 8/21/2017. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Verified Petition for
Authorization to Act with Respect to any and all Claims, Defenses, or the Like in
Pending Federal Court, # 2 Exhibit Notice of Cancellation of Hearing, # 3 Exhibit Order
on Julian Bivins' Objection to Stephen Kelly as Successor Guardian, # 4 Exhibit
Objections to Time and Billing)(Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 08/14/2017)

08/14/2017 409 NOTICE by Julian Bivins re 408 Response to Motion, (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit
Corrected Exhibit B to DE 408-2, # 2 Exhibit Exhibit E to DE 408) (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 08/14/2017)
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233499
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233500
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233501
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https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233505
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233506
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233507
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233508
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233509
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233510
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051018233769
https://ecf.flsd.uscourts.gov/doc1/051118233770
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08/21/2017 410 MOTION for Bill of Costs by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of
Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. Responses due by 9/5/2017 (Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered:
08/21/2017)

08/21/2017 411 MEMORANDUM in Support re 410 MOTION for Bill of Costs by Beys Liston
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, Keith B. Stein. (Attachments:
# 1 Exhibit Bill of Costs)(Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered: 08/21/2017)

08/21/2017 412 REPLY to Response to Motion re 394 MOTION for Attorney Fees and Costs filed by
Stephen M Kelly. (Hechtman, Brandon) (Entered: 08/21/2017)

08/24/2017 413 NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Lorin Louis Mrachek on behalf of Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell. Attorney Lorin Louis Mrachek added to party Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell(pty:dft). (Mrachek, Lorin) (Entered: 08/24/2017)

08/24/2017 414 NOTICE of Attorney Appearance by Alan Benjamin Rose on behalf of Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell. Attorney Alan Benjamin Rose added to party Ciklin Lubitz
Martens & O'Connell(pty:dft). (Rose, Alan) (Entered: 08/24/2017)

08/25/2017 415 Renewed MOTION for Judgment as a Matter of Law and for New Trial, and Alternative
Motion for Remittitur by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian
M. O'Connell. Attorney Lorin Louis Mrachek added to party Ashley N. Crispin(pty:dft),
Attorney Lorin Louis Mrachek added to party Brian M. O'Connell(pty:dft).
(Attachments: # 1 Appendix)(Mrachek, Lorin) (Entered: 08/25/2017)

08/25/2017 416 MOTION for Judgment (Final) on Affirmative Defenses of Collateral Estoppel/Res
Judicata and Release  by Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Brian
M. O'Connell. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit NY Settlement Agreement, # 2 Exhibit Order
on Hybrid Contingencies Fee, # 3 Exhibit Agreed Order on Petitions for Payment of
Attys' Fees and Costs, # 4 Exhibit Order Approving Global Settlement Agreement)
(Mrachek, Lorin) (Entered: 08/25/2017)

09/08/2017 417 Plaintiff's MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer as to 415
Renewed MOTION for Judgment as a Matter of Law and for New Trial, and Alternative
Motion for Remittitur, 416 MOTION for Judgment (Final) on Affirmative Defenses of
Collateral Estoppel/Res Judicata and Release  by Julian Bivins. (Denman, Joseph)
(Entered: 09/08/2017)

09/08/2017 418 NOTICE of Settlement by Julian Bivins (Denman, Joseph) (Entered: 09/08/2017)

09/08/2017 419 Plaintiff's MOTION for New Trial as to Stein Defendants by Julian Bivins. (Denman,
Joseph) (Entered: 09/08/2017)

09/14/2017 420 ENDORSED ORDER denying as moot based on parties notice of settlement 417 Motion
for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply/Answer. Signed by Judge Kenneth A.
Marra on 9/14/2017. (ir) (Entered: 09/14/2017)

09/22/2017 421 RESPONSE in Opposition re 419 Plaintiff's MOTION for New Trial as to Stein
Defendants Stein Defendants' Memorandum of Law in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion
for New Trial  filed by Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, Law Offices of Keith B.
Stein, Keith B. Stein. Replies due by 9/29/2017. (Blaker, Jeffrey) (Entered: 09/22/2017)

09/25/2017 422 NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF MOTION by Stephen M Kelly re 394 MOTION for
Attorney Fees and Costs filed by Stephen M Kelly (Studley, Rachel) (Entered:
09/25/2017)
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9:15-cv-81298-KAM  Bivins v. Rogers et al
 Kenneth A. Marra, presiding

 William Matthewman, referral
 Date filed:  09/17/2015

 Date of last filing:  09/25/2017
 

Case Summary

Office: West Palm Beach     Filed: 09/17/2015
Jury Demand: Defendant     Demand: $75000

Natur e of Suit: 190     Cause: 28:1332 Diversity-Breach of Fiduciary
Duty

Jurisdiction: Diversity     Disposition: Judgment - Jury Verdict
County: Palm Beach (Office: West Palm
Beach) Terminated:

Origin: 1    Reopened:
Lead Case: None
Related Case: None Other Court Case:

None
Defendant Custody Status:
Flags:  REF_DISCOV,WM

Plaintiff:  Julian Bivins  repr esented
by 

M. Kristen Allman Phone: 813-221-3759
Fax: 813-221-3198
Email: kallman@bleakleybavol.com

Plaintiff:  Julian Bivins  repr esented
by 

Charles Dennis Bavol Phone: 813-221-3759
Fax: 813-221-3198
Email: cbavol@bleakleybavol.com

Plaintiff:  Julian Bivins  repr esented
by 

Joseph Ronald Denman Phone: 813-221-3759
Fax: 813-221-3198
Email: rdenman@bleakleybavol.com

Defendant:  Stephen M Kelly  repr esented
by 

Jeffrey Alan Blaker Phone: 561-697-8088
Fax: 697-8664
Email: jblaker@conroysimberg.com

Defendant:  Stephen M Kelly  repr esented
by 

Brandon Jay Hechtman Phone: (305) 448-3939
Fax: (305) 441-1745
Email: bhechtman@wickersmith.com

Defendant:  Stephen M Kelly  repr esented
by 

Rachel Studley Phone: 561-689-3800
Fax: 689-9206
Email: rstudley@wickersmith.com

Defendant:  Brian M.
O'Connell

 repr esented
by 

Jeffrey Alan Blaker Phone: 561-697-8088
Fax: 697-8664
Email: jblaker@conroysimberg.com

Defendant:  Brian M.
O'Connell

 repr esented
by 

Brandon Jay Hechtman Phone: (305) 448-3939
Fax: (305) 441-1745
Email: bhechtman@wickersmith.com

Defendant:  Brian M.
O'Connell

 repr esented
by 

Brian Bradshaw Joslyn Phone: 561-832-5900
Fax: 561-833-4209
Email: bjoslyn@ciklinlubitz.com

Defendant:  Brian M.  repr esented Lorin Louis Mrachek Phone: 561-655-2250
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O'Connell by Fax: 655-5537
Email: lmrachek@mrachek-law.com

Defendant:  Brian M.
O'Connell

 repr esented
by 

Charles Leroy Pickett, Jr. Phone: 561-832-5900
Fax: 833-4209
Email: Cpickett@ciklinlubitz.com

Defendant:  Brian M.
O'Connell

 repr esented
by 

Rachel Studley Phone: 561-689-3800
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA  

WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION 
CASE NO.: 15-81298-CV-MARRA-MATTHEWMAN 

                                                   
 
JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative   
of the ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 
 Plaintiff,        
vs. 
CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR.,  
as former guardian, STEPHEN M. KELLY, 
as successor guardian, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL,  
ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ & 
O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, 
BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP 
f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP, 
and LAW OFFICES OF KEITH B. STEIN, PLLC,  
n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, 
 Defendants. 
 
     / 

 
AMENDED COMPLAINT  

 
COMES NOW the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, by and through his undersigned counsel, and sues CURTIS 

CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR., the former guardian of Oliver Bivins (the “Ward”), STEPHEN 

M. KELLY, as successor guardian of the Ward, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL, ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, 

CIKLIN LUBITZ & O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & 

BERLAND, LLP f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP, and LAW OFFICES 

OF KEITH B. STEIN, PLLC, n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, and says: 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. The Ward, Oliver Wilson Bivins, died on March 2, 2015.  The Ward was a citizen 

of, and domiciled in, Amarillo, Potter County, Texas on the date of his death. 

2. Julian Bivins (hereinafter, "Julian") is the Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of the deceased Ward in Palm Beach County, Florida (the “Deceased Ward”).   

3. Curtis Rogers (hereinafter, "Rogers") is the former guardian of the Deceased Ward.  

Rogers is a citizen of, and domiciled in, Palm Beach County, Florida.   

4. Stephen M. Kelly (hereinafter, “Kelly”) is the successor guardian of the Deceased 

Ward.  Kelly is a citizen of, and domiciled in Boynton Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida. 

5. Brian M. O'Connell (hereinafter, "O'Connell") is a citizen of, and domiciled in Palm 

Beach County, Florida. 

6. Ashley N. Crispin (hereinafter, "Crispin") is a citizen of, and domiciled in Palm 

Beach County, Florida. 

7. Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell (hereinafter, "Ciklin") is general partnership organized 

under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of business in Palm Beach County, 

Florida.  The partners of Ciklin are the following: Dean Vegosen, P.L., Phil D. O’Connell, JR., 

P.A., Brian B. Joslyn, P.A., Jason S. Heselkorn, P.A., John D. Boykin, P.A., Jerald S. Beer, P.A., 

Bruce G. Alexander, P.A., Alan J. Ciklin, P.A., and Robert L. Crane, P.A. 

8. Dean Vogeson (hereinafter, "Vogeson"), is the sole member of Dean Vogeson P.L. 

and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Dean Vogeson P.L. is a Florida 

professional liability association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal 

place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.   
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9. Phil D. O’Connell, (hereinafter, "Phil O’Connell"), is the sole shareholder of Phil 

D. O’Connell Jr., P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. D Phil D. 

O’Connell Jr., P.A. is a professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida 

with its principal place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.   

10. Brian B. Joslyn, (hereinafter, "Joslyn"), is the sole shareholder of Brian B. Joslyn, 

P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Brian B. Joslyn, P.A. is a 

professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of 

business is in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

11. Jason S. Haselkorn, (hereinafter, "Haselkorn"), is the sole shareholder of Jason S. 

Haselkorn, P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Jason S. 

Haselkorn, P.A. is a professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with 

its principal place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.  .   

12. John D. Boykin, (hereinafter, "Boykin"), is the sole shareholder of John D. Boykin, 

P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. John D. Boykin, P.A. is a 

professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of 

business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.  .   

13. Jerald S. Beer, (hereinafter, "Beer"), is the sole shareholder of Jerald S. Beer, P.A. 

and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Jerald S. Beer, P.A. is a 

professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of 

business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.    

14. Bruce G. Alexander, (hereinafter, "Alexander"), is the sole shareholder of Bruce G. 

Alexander, P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Bruce G. 
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Alexander, P.A. is a professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with 

its principal place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.  .   

15. Alan. J. Ciklin, (hereinafter, "Alan Ciklin"), is the sole shareholder of Alan. J. 

Ciklin, P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Alan. J. Ciklin, P.A. 

is a professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal 

place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.   

16. Robert L. Crane, (hereinafter, "Crane"), is the sole shareholder of Robert L. Crane, 

P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Robert L. Crane, P.A. is a 

professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of 

business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.   

17. Keith B. Stein (hereinafter, "Stein") is a citizen of and domiciled in New York, but 

does business in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

18. Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP f/k/a Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP 

(hereinafter, "Beys") is a limited liability partnership doing business in Palm Beach County, 

Florida with its principal place of business in New York.  The partners of Beys are the following: 

Jason H. Berland, Michael P. Beys, Joshua D. Liston, and Nader Mobargha.  Keith B. Stein was a 

partner of the former iteration of Beys: Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP. 

19. Jason H. Berland (hereinafter, "Berland") is a citizen of and domiciled in New 

York. 

20. Michael P. Beys (hereinafter, "Michael Beys") is a citizen of and domiciled in New 

York. 

21. Joshua D. Liston (hereinafter, "Liston") is a citizen of and domiciled in New York. 
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22. Nader Mobargha (hereinafter, "Mobargha") is a citizen of and domiciled in New 

York. 

23. The Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, PLLC n/k/a Stein Law, PLLC (hereinafter, 

"Stein Law Firm") is a professional limited liability company doing business in Palm Beach 

County, Florida with its principal place of business in New York.  Keith B. Stein is the sole 

member of the Stein Law Firm.  

24. Stein, Beys, and Stein Law Firm committed tortious acts in Palm Beach County, 

Florida which resulted in the causes of actions under this complaint causing injury to the Estate of 

the Deceased Ward in Palm Beach County, Florida.  Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm expected 

or should reasonably have expected to have consequences in Palm Beach County, Florida because 

they each derived substantial revenue from the legal services they provided Rogers and Kelly from 

New York to Florida. 

25. Plaintiff is a deemed a citizen of the State of Texas, the same state as the decedent 

under 28 U.S.C. § 1332 (c)(2). 

26. Defendants are all citizens of states other than Texas for purposes of 28 U.S.C. 

§1332. 

27. This is an action for money damages that exceed $75,000.00, exclusive of interest, 

attorney’s fees and costs.  

28. Accordingly, this is a civil action which falls within the Court’s original jurisdiction 

under 28 U.S.C. § 1332 (diversity of citizenship). 
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

29. Oliver Bivins’ (hereinafter, “Oliver Sr.”) first marriage was to Dorothy Bivins, and 

they had a child, Julian Bivins. 

30. In 1961, Oliver Sr. married Lorna Bivins (hereinafter, "Lorna"), a woman 25 years 

younger from New York.  

31. In approximately 1990, when Oliver Sr. was approximately 70 years old, he and 

Lorna adopted a child together, Oliver Bivins, Jr. (hereinafter "Oliver Jr."). 

32. At all material times during the marriage, Oliver Sr. lived in Amarillo, Texas and 

Lorna and Oliver Jr. lived in New York, New York at 67th Street, although for intermittent periods 

of time, Lorna and Oliver Jr. resided in Palm Beach, Florida at Lorna and Oliver Sr.’s 

condominium. 

33. On March 5, 1992, Oliver Sr. created a joint trust with Lorna to which he transferred 

family owned oil and mineral rights in Amarillo, Texas (hereinafter the “Joint Trust”).  

34. In addition to the oil and mineral rights in Amarillo, Texas, the couple owned four 

properties.  Lorna owned a property located at 82 Portland Place in London, England (hereinafter 

“London Property”) and a property at 67th Street in New York, New York (hereinafter “67th 

Street”), and Lorna and Oliver Sr. owned together, as tenants by the entirety, properties at 808 

Lexington Avenue, New York, New York (hereinafter “808 Lexington”) and 330 South Ocean 

Blvd., Palm Beach, Florida (hereinafter “Ocean Blvd”).  (The properties identified in this 

paragraph will be collectively referred to herein as “The Properties”.)   

35. On April 12, 2010, Oliver Sr. filed for divorce from Lorna in Amarillo, Texas 

seeking to dissolve the marriage and terminate the Joint Trust.   
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36. On July 28, 2010, the Court entered a Final Decree of Divorce and an Order 

Terminating the Joint Trust. 

37. In the divorce, Oliver Sr. received everything, including the oil and mineral rights 

in Amarillo, Texas.   

38. The Texas Court presiding over the divorce made no provision in its order, 

however, with respect to the Properties and no Guardian or other Defendant made any effort to re-

open the Texas divorce proceeding to address the property rights of the parties pertaining to the 

Properties.   

39. Lorna continued to hold the London and 67th Street properties in her name alone, 

although Oliver Sr. funded these properties to the extent not covered by tenants renting the 

properties.  As for the the properties at 808 Lexington Avenue and 330 Ocean Boulevard, which 

were held as tenants by the entirety prior to the divorce, became held by Lorna and Oliver Sr. as 

tenants in common. 

40. Following the divorce, Oliver Sr. transferred to Julian interests owned by Oliver Sr. 

in several parcels of real property, including the oil and mineral rights in Amarillo, Texas and a 

condominium in Amarillo, Texas. 

41. On or about January 5, 2011, petitions to determine incapacity for both Oliver Sr. 

and Lorna were filed in Florida and an emergency temporary guardian, Stephen Kelly, was 

appointed over their person and property. 

42. Lorna passed away in February 2011, shortly after the temporary guardianship was 

established. 

43. Oliver Jr. was appointed the personal representative of the estate of Lorna Bivins. 
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44. On or about May 10, 2011, the Court appointed Rogers as the limited guardian of 

the person and property of Oliver Sr. 

Texas Settlement 

45. Rogers’ first order of business was to seek an ex parte emergency order preventing 

Oliver Sr., who was in Florida temporarily from his long time home in Texas, from leaving Florida.  

He then began an investigation into the transfers of real property from Oliver Sr. to Julian and 

sought approval from the Florida guardianship court to bring an action against Julian and Julian 

simultaneously filed an action in Texas to validate the transfers. 

46. The Florida guardianship court entered an order permitting Rogers to retain counsel 

on a contingency basis to prosecute and defend the actions involving the transfers. 

47. Rogers, with a Texas supervising guardian, thereafter obtained an appointment as 

the Texas guardian over Oliver Sr.'s property in Texas. 

48. The Texas litigation sought to undo all of the transfers that Oliver Sr. had made to 

Julian in Texas.  The attorneys hired in Texas, pursuant to the contingency fee agreement, were 

entitled to 25% of the entire estate that was transferred back to Oliver Sr., even if Julian agreed to 

do it the very next day. 

49. On or about February 27, 2013, Julian and Rogers entered into a settlement 

agreement as to the Texas proceedings (hereinafter “Texas Settlement”).   

50. The Properties were not the subject of the Texas lawsuit and the Texas Settlement 

made no provision for them.   

51. As part of the Texas Settlement, Julian was required to transfer back to Oliver Sr. 

all of the Texas real property previously transferred to Julian, except that Julian was permitted to 
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keep the Ranch and all interim distributions and other proceeds Julian had already received from 

the real property.   

52. The Texas properties were transferred to a trust for the benefit of Julian and Oliver 

Sr. (hereinafter the "Texas Trust") with Julian having a 37% interest in the Texas Trust and Oliver 

Sr. having a 63% interest in the Texas Trust. 

53. As a major consideration for Julian entering into the Texas Settlement, Rogers was 

to resign as guardian of Oliver Sr. in Texas and Florida within thirty (30) days of court approval 

of the Texas settlement, and Steve Kelly was to serve as successor guardian. 

54. Rogers was required to, but did not, submit a final accounting and documents 

necessary to obtain an order of discharge from the Texas and Florida guardianships within 30 days 

of the approval of the Texas settlement by the Texas and Florida guardianship courts.   

55. As part of the Texas Settlement, Rogers was released from liabilities for his errors 

and omissions and other breaches of his fiduciary obligation, by Julian in is capacity as an 

interested party and sole beneficiary of Oliver Sr.’s only know will, only through the date of the 

Texas Settlement.  This release was not made on behalf of the Ward, and could not be, whereas 

Oliver Sr. was alive, and Julian was not and had no authority to release Rogers on behalf of Oliver 

Sr.   

56. The Florida guardianship court approved the settlement on April 1, 2013.   

New York Settlement 

57. In November 2012, Rogers entered into a contingency fee/hybrid agreement with 

Ciklin to initiate an action in Florida requesting that the Court presiding over the Lorna estate (the 

“Lorna Court”) give no full faith and credit to the Texas Divorce Decree, so that the Lorna Court 
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would deem the Properties to pass to Oliver Sr. as though he were still married to Lorna at the time 

of her death. (“Florida Beneficiary Petition”). 

58. In or about October 2012, Rogers also engaged Keith Stein of Beys to partition the 

808 Lexington property (“New York litigation”).   

59. Prior to initiating the partition action of 808 Lexington, Stein, who was not a 

litigator, had only prepared, at best, one prior partition action in the course of his more than two 

decades of practice. 

60. At the time of the partition action, and for several years prior, 808 Lexington was 

encumbered by a mortgage in the original principal sum of $850,000.00 (“808 Mortgage”). 

61. By the time of the partition action, the balance of the mortgage was approximately 

$387,000.00, while the value of 808 Lexington was in excess of $4,000,000.  

62. Prior to, and following the date of the Texas Settlement, Rogers failed to take any 

action to pay, monitor, negotiate, or prevent default, acceleration, or negative consequences to the 

Ward in connection with the 808 Mortgage.   

63. On or about October 5, 2012, unbeknownst to Julian, and presumably because 

Rogers had not taken any action to manage the 808 Lexington asset or liabilities and the 808 

Mortgage was in default, the son of the paralegal of Oliver Jr.’s attorney (who was also a close 

friend of Oliver Jr.) formed a corporation known as Beachton Tuxedo, LLC (“Beachton”) and 

surreptitiously acquired the 808 Mortgage via an Assignment of Mortgage (“Assignment”) for the 

outstanding balance owed on the mortgage.  

64. As of the date of the Assignment, the notes secured by the Mortgage were in default, 

had been accelerated, and gave Beachton the immediate right to foreclose on 808 Lexington.  The 

default interest rate on the Beachton mortgage was 17%. 
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65. As further consideration for Beachton to acquire the 808 Mortgage and not 

foreclose on it, Oliver Jr., individually, and as personal representative of the Estate of Lorna, 

assigned to Beachton a 40% of his and/or the Estate of Lorna’s equity interest in 808 Lexington, 

which, at a bare minimum, gave Beachton an immediate return on its $387,000 mortgage of far in 

excess of one million dollars, yet Beachton did not provide a satisfaction of mortgage in exchange 

for the interest and also continued to charge interest at the maximum rate allowable under the 808 

Mortgage.   

66. Accordingly, the assignment by Oliver Jr. resulted in a satisfaction of the 808 

Mortgage, or alternatively a usurious rate of interest being charged by Beachton on the 808 

Mortgage.  

67. In July 2013, Rogers, as guardian for Oliver Sr., Oliver Jr., individually and as 

personal representative of the Estate of Lorna, and Beachton entered into a settlement agreement 

to settle the Florida Beneficiary Petition and the New York Litigation (hereinafter referred to as 

the “New York Settlement.”  A true and correct copy of the New York Settlement Agreement is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference. 

68. Pursuant to the New York Settlement, Oliver Jr. agreed to immediately transfer to 

Oliver Sr. the 50% interest of the Estate of Lorna in 808 Lexington and Ocean Boulevard, such 

that as a result of such transfers, Oliver Sr. would own 100% fee simple interest in 808 Lexington 

and Ocean Boulevard.   

69. The Estate of Lorna was required to satisfy all real estate taxes and related charges 

through May 8, 2013, and one-half of the real estate taxes and related charges from May 9, 2013, 

through the date immediately prior to the closing date. 
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70. Additionally, in connection with the New York Settlement, Oliver Jr. and Beachton 

agreed that the 40% interest in the 808 Lexington that Oliver Jr. had assigned to Beachton when it 

took over the 808 Mortgage, would be transferred to a 20% interest in the 67th Street property, 

which continued to amount to an interest by Beachton of well over a million dollars at minimum.  

(The percentage change in the transfer was due to the fact that the value of the 67th Street property 

was significantly higher that the value of 808 Lexington.) 

71. Notwithstanding Beachton’s acceptance of the 20% interest in 67th Street, Beachton 

continued to charge the maximum interest rate allowable under the 808 Mortgage, plus late fees, 

which combined with the 20% interest in 67th Street, constituted a satisfaction of the 808 Mortgage, 

or alternatively, a usurious rate of interest. 

72. The closing date under the New York Settlement was to occur within ten (10) 

business days of the date upon which all approvals have been received from the Florida court, and 

each such other court.  No other such court approval was required to approve the New York 

Settlement besides the Florida Court, which did so on September 17, 2013.  Accordingly, the 

closing date was October 1, 2013 (“Closing Date”).   

73. Under the terms of the New York Settlement, Rogers, acting as guardian for Oliver 

Sr., agreed to waive and/or relinquish in favor of the Estate of Lorna any and all right, title, and 

interest in and to 67th Street and the London Property. 

74. The New York Settlement required Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr., to pay the 

Beachton mortgage debt in full on or before August 31, 2013, and in exchange, Beachton agreed 

to continue to forebear from taking action based on the purported failure to make payments under 

the 808 Mortgage that Beachton purchased, including foreclosure.   
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75. On or about November, 2014, 67th Street sold for $22.5 million.  Accordingly, 

Beachton’s 20% interest in the 67th Street property was worth $4.5 million. 

76. Any claim by Beachton that an outstanding balance was due on the Beachton 

mortgage was usurious as Beachton became entitled to receive, via its 20% equity interest in 67th 

Street, more than five (5) times the outstanding balance owed on the 808 Mortgage.   

77. Neither Rogers nor his counsel took any action to have a Court declare the 808 

Mortgage acquired by Beachton as having been satisfied or otherwise usurious.   

78. Moreover, despite representations to the Florida guardianship Court that they 

would do so, Rogers neither made any genuine efforts to procure substitute financing for the 

Beachton mortgage at a lower interest rate than the default rate Beachton mortgage was charging, 

nor undertook any action to remove the Beachton lien from the 808 property due to it being 

usurious or satisfied, or undertook any action to bring the note current to avoid the default interest 

being charged.  

79. The terms of the New York Settlement, to which Julian, as an interested person and 

sole beneficiary to Oliver Sr.’s only known will, persistently objected, provided that all interest on 

the mortgage debt accruing after June 30, 2013, but on or before the date the Beachton mortgage 

debt is paid in full, was to be payable 50% by the Estate of Lorna and 50% by Rogers, as guardian 

of Oliver Sr.   

80. Moreover, the New York Settlement agreement provides that if “any party fails to 

comply with any of the party’s obligations set forth in Section 2 or 3 of this Agreement, the party 

to whom the obligation is owed shall have the right to enforce the terms set forth therein and the 

legal fees and costs incurred by the aggrieved party in enforcing such terms shall be paid by the 

Party found to be in breach of such terms.”   
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808 Lexington Management 

81. Despite the terms of the Texas Settlement and the consideration provided 

thereunder, Rogers remained in office as guardian for Oliver Sr. until April 23, 2014, when Kelly 

was appointed by the Court as successor guardian of Oliver Sr.    

82. From April 1, 2013 (the date of the Florida Court’s approval of the Texas 

Settlement) until Rogers was discharged by the Court in April 2014, as Florida guardian for Oliver 

Sr. (the “Interim Guardianship”), Rogers had a duty to properly manage 808 Lexington as a rental 

property. 

83. From April 23, 2014 (the date Kelly was appointed by the Court as successor 

guardian of Oliver Sr.) until the closing of the sale of 808 Lexington by Kelly, as guardian of 

Oliver Sr., Kelly had a duty to properly manage 808 Lexington as a rental property. 

84. The 808 Lexington Property consisted of four floors.  The first floor was rented out 

by a restaurant, Fig and Olive, which generated approximately $23,500 per month in rent.  The 

lease for Fig and Olive was set to expire in November 2014. 

85. The second floor of 808 Lexington was leased out to Pinafore Nursery and 

generated approximately $3,500 per month in rent, which was considerably below market.  The 

lease for Pinafore Nursery expired on December 31, 2010, and there was no new written lease 

entered into by Pinafore Nursery.   Following the expiration of the lease with Pinafore Nursery, it 

continued to pay a monthly rent of $3,500, notwithstanding that it was a holdover tenant without 

a lease. 

86. The fourth floor apartment had been rented out to Kimberly Beamis for $2,300 per 

month, but she vacated the premises prior to January 1, 2013 due to the failure of Rogers to 

maintain the unit.  Thereafter, fourth floor apartment became occupied by a person related to one 
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of the owners of Beachton for $1,500 per month, which amount was paid directly to Oliver Jr. and 

nothing to the Rogers or Kelly on behalf of the Ward.  The $1500, to the extent it was paid, was 

well below market value, no lease was in place, and Rogers or Kelly failed to investigate, 

participate, or take any action for the benefit of the Ward pertaining to this unit.   

87. The third floor tenant was evicted in either 2012 or 2013.  Neither Rogers nor Kelly 

undertook any efforts to re-rent this unit, which had a monthly rental value of several thousand 

dollars.   

88. Prior to the New York Settlement, Rogers should have been collecting 50% of the 

rental income from 808 Lexington, and should have made efforts to obtain full market rent on the 

second, third, and fourth floor units.     

89. Following the Court’s approval of the New York Settlement, Rogers should have 

been collecting all of the rental income from 808 Lexington.  Yet, during the period of Interim 

Guardianship, Rogers only passively collected 50% of the rental income from Fig and Olive.  

Rogers and Kelly ignored the remaining rent that Oliver Jr. was collecting on the other 50% of the 

rental income from Fig and Olive and ignored any effort to obtain any rental income from the other 

units or tenants.   

90. Following his appointment as successor guardian, Kelly should have been 

collecting all of the rental income from 808 Lexington.  Yet, until the sale of 808 Lexington, he 

only passively collected 50% of the rental income from Fig and Olive.  Kelly ignored the remaining 

rent that Oliver Jr. was collecting on the other 50% of the rental income from Fig and Olive and 

ignored any effort to obtain any rental income from the other units or tenants. 

91. Until recent efforts undertaken mainly by Julian at his own expense, Oliver Jr. had 

not paid any money to the State of New York or to Rogers or Kelly for any past due property taxes 
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pursuant to the New York Settlement, or for the amount of property taxes on 808 Lexington from 

May 9, 2013, to the date immediately prior to the Closing Date. 

92. Until recent efforts undertaken mainly by Julian at his own expense, Oliver Jr. had 

not paid any of the interest that accrued on the 808 Mortgage from June 30, 2013, until it was paid 

in full.   

93. During the period of Interim Guardianship, Rogers also failed to take actions for 

the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, the following acts with respect to 808 

Lexington: 

a. Enter into discussions with Fig and Olive regarding renewing its lease or increasing the 

monthly rental payments; 

b. Enter into discussions with Pinafore Nursery to sign a new lease and increase its rent 

from the monthly rent it was paying for the previous four years; 

c. Take any action to market the third or fourth floor apartments; 

d. Take any action with respect to repairing, renovating, or maintaining 808 Lexington, 

including, but not limited to, its common areas, to obtain the highest and best rental 

values for the property;  

e. Collect the appropriate rental income due Oliver Sr. from the lease of 808 Lexington;  

f. Pursue an action against Oliver Jr. to force Oliver Jr. to use the rental income from 808 

Lexington to pay down the Beachton mortgage and to enforce the New York 

Settlement; 

g. Bring an action against Beachton for usury or satisfaction based upon the interest it 

received in 808 Lexington and thereafter 67th Street; and  
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h. Obtain commercial financing to pay off the 808 Mortgage assigned to Beachton to 

avoid the default interest rate it was accruing against 808 Lexington. 

94. After his appointment as successor guardian of Oliver Sr. on April 23, 2014, Kelly 

also failed to take actions for the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, the following 

acts with respect to 808 Lexington: 

a. Enter into discussions with Fig and Olive regarding renewing its lease or increasing the 

monthly rental payments; 

b. Enter into discussions with Pinafore Nursery to sign a new lease and increase its rent 

from the monthly rent it was paying for the previous four years; 

c. Take any action to market the third or fourth floor apartments; 

d. Take any action with respect to repairing, renovating, or maintaining 808 Lexington, 

including, but not limited to, its common areas, to obtain the highest and best rental 

values for the property;  

e. Collect the appropriate rental income due Oliver Sr. from the lease of 808 Lexington;  

f. Properly pursue an action against Oliver Jr. to force Oliver Jr. to use the rental income 

from 808 Lexington to pay down the Beachton mortgage and to enforce the New York 

Settlement; 

g. Bring an action against Beachton for usury or satisfaction based upon the interest it 

received in 808 Lexington and thereafter 67th Street; and  

h. Obtain commercial financing to pay off the 808 Mortgage assigned to Beachton to 

avoid the default interest rate it was accruing against 808 Lexington. 
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Due Diligence as to New York Settlement 

95. Prior to entering into the New York Settlement, Rogers failed to do any type of due 

diligence as to the true fair market value of 808 Lexington and 67th Street, including, but not limited 

to, obtaining appraisals of the properties.  Yet, Rogers and his counsel represented to the Florida 

Court that the New York Settlement was in the best interests of Oliver Sr. and that the properties 

were approximately equal in value. 

96. On or about the Closing Date, the fair market value of 808 Lexington was 

approximately $5 million and the true fair market value of 67th Street was more than $22.5 million. 

97. The fair market value of the London property has never been addressed other than 

in a cursory fashion by Rogers or the attorneys he hired to protect the Ward’s interest, despite the 

property being located in the most exclusive and high priced rental district in London and 

documents within the Guardians possession indicating that it had a value far in excess of the Ocean 

Boulevard property. 

98. As a result, contrary to what was represented by Rogers and his counsel to the 

guardianship court to obtain approval for the settlement, the estate of Oliver Sr. received assets 

from the New York Settlement with a value substantially less than those received by the Estate of 

Lorna.   

COUNT I 
Breach of Fiduciary Duty Against Defendants Rogers,  

O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and Stein Law Firm 
 

99. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 18   Entered on FLSD Docket 01/08/2016   Page 18 of 32



19 
 

100. During the period of the Interim Guardianship, Rogers had a fiduciary duty to 

Oliver Sr. to act in his best interest until Rogers was discharged as guardian, including, among 

other things, a duty of loyalty.  

101. O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm (“Counsel for 

Rogers”) represented Rogers, in his capacity as guardian for Oliver Sr., in connection with the 

New York Settlement and thereafter.   

102. Counsel for Rogers, while he was acting as guardian for Oliver Sr., owed similar 

duties to Oliver Sr. and were fully aware that the work they were doing for Rogers, as guardian of 

Oliver Sr., was for the benefit of Oliver Sr. 

103. Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr., and Counsel for Rogers were negligent and 

reckless in the exercise of their fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr., resulting in damages to him. 

104. By failing to take actions for the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, 

failing to, (a) properly manage 808 Lexington, (b) perform proper due diligence of the value of 

808 Lexington, 67th Street, Ocean Boulevard, or the London Property to properly evaluate the 

fairness of the New York Settlement, (c) take prompt or appropriate action against Oliver Jr. to 

collect rents and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr., (d) failing to ensure that rental 

income from 808 Lexington was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage, (e) arrange for 

commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton mortgage, and (f) failing to pursue 

action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or released, Rogers damaged the 

Estate of Oliver Sr. in contravention of his fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr. 

105. At all material times, Counsel for Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr., owed fiduciary 

duties to Oliver Sr. and were involved and participated in Rogers’ actions or inactions, resulting 

in the above described damage.  
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106. Plaintiff was required to retain the Bleakley Bavol Law Firm to mitigate the 

damages to the Estate of Oliver Sr. and is required to pay it a reasonable fee for its services. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendants 

Rogers, O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm and such other relief as 

the Court deems just and proper, including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against 

Defendants.   

COUNT II 
Breach of Fiduciary Duty Against Defendants Kelly, 

O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and Stein Law Firm 
 

107. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

108. Following his appointment as successor guardian of Oliver Sr. on April 23, 2014, 

Kelly had a fiduciary duty to Oliver Sr. to act in his best interest until Kelly was discharged as 

guardian, including, among other things, a duty of loyalty.  

109. O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm represented Kelly 

(“Counsel for Kelly”), in his capacity as successor guardian for Oliver Sr.   

110. Counsel for Kelly, while he was acting as guardian for Oliver Sr., owed similar 

duties to Oliver Sr. and were fully aware that the work they were doing for Kelly, as successor 

guardian of Oliver Sr., was for the benefit of Oliver Sr. 

111. Kelly, as guardian of Oliver Sr., and Counsel for Kelly were negligent and reckless 

in the exercise of their fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr., resulting in damages to him. 
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112. By failing to take actions for the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, 

failing to (a) properly manage 808 Lexington, (b) take prompt or appropriate action against Oliver 

Jr. to collect rents and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr., (c) failing to ensure that 

rental income from 808 Lexington was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage, (d) arrange for 

commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton mortgage,  (e) entering into an 

unreasonable exclusive sales agreement with Lipa Lieberman, and (f) failing to pursue action 

against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or released, Kelly damaged the Estate of 

Oliver Sr. in contravention of Defendants’ fiduciary duties. 

113. At all material times, Counsel for Kelly, as successor guardian of Oliver Sr., owed 

fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr. and were involved and participated in Kelly’s actions or inactions, 

resulting in the above described damage.  

114. Plaintiff was required to retain the Bleakley Bavol Law Firm to mitigate the 

damages to the Estate of Oliver Sr. and is required to pay it a reasonable fee for its services.  

115. WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the 

ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against 

Defendants Kelly, O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm and such other 

relief as the Court deems just and proper, including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against 

Defendants.   

COUNT III 
Negligence Against Defendant Rogers 

 
116. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

117. Defendant Rogers had a duty to the Ward to administer the guardianship observing 
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a standard in dealing with guardianship property that would be observed by a prudent person 

dealing with the property of another, in the best interest of the ward, using such special skills and/or 

expertise to the extent that any such representation was made as to the special skills or expertise 

of the guardian. 

118. Defendant Rogers, as guardian of the Ward, negligently administered the 

guardianship by failing to discharge his duties as guardian and by wasting and mismanaging the 

Ward’s property. 

119. Defendant Rogers was negligent in the following ways: 

(a) By failing to properly manage 808 Lexington; 

(b) By failing to perform proper due diligence of the value of 808 Lexington and 67th Street 

to properly evaluate the fairness of the New York Settlement; 

(c) By failing to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents and taxes owed by the Estate 

of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(d) By failing to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington was used to pay down the 

Beachton mortgage; 

(e) By failing to arrange for commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton 

mortgage; 

(f) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

(g) By permitting Beachton to collect usurious interest on the 808 Lexington mortgage; 

(h) By permitting the guardianship attorney’s to collect unnecessary and excessive fees; 

(i) By failing to monitor or challenge excessive hourly attorney’s fees charged by the 

guardianship attorneys; 
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(j) By failing to prepare or implement a guardianship plan; 

(k) By failing to prepare accurate annual reports regarding the guardianship assets; 

(l) By failing to maintain guardianship financial records to accurately track and recover 

guardianship assets;  

(m) By pursuing needless and wasteful litigation against the Ward’s heir;  

(n) By failing to take action against the Ward’s former wife, Lorna Bivins, to recover 

contribution for unpaid taxes; and  

(o) By charging the Ward excessive guardian fees; 

120. As a direct and proximate result of the negligence of Defendant Rogers as set forth 

above, the Ward has suffered damages. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendant 

Rogers and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, including an award of attorneys’ 

fees and costs against Defendants.   

COUNT IV 
Negligence Against Defendant Kelly 

 
1121. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

122. Defendant Kelly had a duty to the Ward to manage the guardianship observing a 

standard in dealing with guardianship property that would be observed by a prudent person dealing 

with the property of another, in the best interest of the ward, using such special skills and/or 

expertise to the extent that any such representation was made as to the special skills or expertise 

of the guardian. 
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123. Defendant Kelly, as guardian of the Ward, negligently administered the 

guardianship by failing to discharge his duties as guardian and by wasting and mismanaging the 

Ward’s property. 

124. Defendant Kelly was negligent in the following ways: 

(a) By failing to properly manage 808 Lexington; 

(b) By failing to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents and taxes owed by the Estate 

of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(c) By failing to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington was used to pay down the 

Beachton mortgage; 

(d) By failing to arrange for commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton 

mortgage; 

(e) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

 (f) By permitting Beachton to collect usurious interest on the 808 Lexington mortgage; 

 (g) By failing to monitor or challenge excessive hourly attorney’s fees charged by the 

guardianship attorneys; 

(h) By failing to prepare or implement a guardianship plan; 

(i) By failing to prepare accurate annual reports regarding the guardianship assets; and 

(j) By failing to maintain guardianship financial records to accurately track and recover 

guardianship assets. 

(k) By charging the Ward excessive guardian fees; 

125. As a direct and proximate result of the negligence of Defendant Kelly as set forth 

above, the Ward has suffered damages. 
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WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendant 

O’Connell and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, including an award of 

attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants.   

COUNT V 
Professional Negligence Against Defendant O’Connell 

 
126. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

127. O’Connell represented both Rogers and Kelly in their capacity guardians for Oliver 

Sr. 

128. During the guardianship, O’Connell undertook to provide legal services to the 

guardianship, with the full knowledge that Oliver Sr. was an intended beneficiary of his legal 

services.  At all times O’Connell held himself out as competent in the areas of law for which he 

was retained to provide representation. 

129. O’Connell was required to exercise the same legal skill as a reasonably competent 

attorney and to use reasonable care in determining and implementing a strategy to be followed to 

achieve the guardianship’s goals, or alternatively goals that were in the best interest of Oliver Sr. 

130. In the course of handling legal matters for the guardianship, O’Connell negligently 

failed to act with the degree of competence generally possessed by attorneys in the State of Florida 

who handle similar matters.  Oliver Sr., through his guardians was forced to pay O’Connell a 

substantial amount of money for his representation.  

131. O’Connell was negligent and/or committed malpractice in the following ways: 
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(a) By failing to perform proper due diligence of the value of 808 Lexington and 67th Street, 

or Ocean Boulevard or the London Property to properly evaluate the fairness of the New 

York Settlement; 

(b) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the clear discrepancy in the values of 

the properties involving in the New York Settlement; 

(c) By advising the client to enter into the New York settlement against the best interest of 

the guardianship and encouraging settlement to obtain fees rather than benefit Oliver Sr.; 

(d) By failing to advise the guardianship to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents 

and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(e) By failing to advise the guardianship to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington 

was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage; 

(f) By failing to advise the guardianship to arrange for commercial reasonable substitute 

financing for the Beachton mortgage; 

(g) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

(h) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the usurious interest charged by 

Beachton; 

(i) By charging and taking from the guardianship excessive attorney’s fees; and by failing 

to prevent Lipa Lieberman from obtaining an exclusive sales agreement or excessive fees 

because Lieberman had helped O’Connell bolster his fee claim under the hybrid 

contingency fee claim; 

(j) By failing to properly prosecute claim against Oliver Jr. under Global Settlement and 

trying to settle for low amount solely to obtain fees as opposed to acting in best interest of 
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Oliver Sr. and/ or his estate, and engaging in acts constituting a conflict of interest by 

seeking to avoid recoupment against Oliver Jr. unless she could obtain a release from Julian 

as to the Guardian; and 

(k) By failing to account to the Court or Julian that he and his firm had failed to comply 

with the Global Settlement Order by improperly holding back several hundred thousand 

dollars from the proceeds of the sale of 808 Lexington in the firm’s trust account. 

132. As a direct and proximate result of O’Connell’s negligence and/or malpractice, the 

Ward sustained damages. 

133. Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell is vicariously liable for the negligence of its attorneys 

including O’Connell. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendant 

O’Connell and Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, 

including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants.   

COUNT VI 
Professional Negligence Against Defendant Crispin 

 
134. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

135. Crispin represented both Rogers and Kelly in their capacity guardians for Oliver 

Sr. 

136. During the guardianship, Crispin undertook to provide legal services to the 

guardianship, with the full knowledge that Oliver Sr. was an intended beneficiary of his legal 
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services.  At all times Crispin held herself out as competent in the areas of law for which she was 

retained to provide representation. 

137. Crispin was required to exercise the same legal skill as a reasonably competent 

attorney and to use reasonable care in determining and implementing a strategy to be followed to 

achieve the guardianship’s goals, or alternatively goals that were in the best interest of Oliver Sr. 

138. In the course of handling legal matters for the guardianship, Crispin negligently 

failed to act with the degree of competence generally possessed by attorneys in the State of Florida 

who handle similar matters.  Oliver Sr., through his guardians was forced to pay Crispin a 

substantial amount of money for her representation. 

139. Crispin was negligent and/or committed malpractice in the following ways: 

(a) By failing to perform proper due diligence of the value of 808 Lexington and 67th, or 

Ocean Boulevard or the London Property Street to properly evaluate the fairness of the 

New York Settlement; 

(b) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the clear discrepancy in the values of 

the properties involving in the New York Settlement; 

(c) By advising the client to enter into the New York settlement against the best interest of 

the guardianship and encouraging settlement to obtain fees rather than benefit Oliver Sr.; 

(d) By failing to advise the guardianship to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents 

and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(e) By failing to advise the guardianship to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington 

was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage; 

(f) By failing to advise the guardianship to seek substitute financing for the Beachton 

mortgage; 
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(g) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

(h) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the usurious interest charged by 

Beachton; 

(i) By charging and taking from the guardianship excessive attorney’s fees and by failing 

to prevent Lipa Lieberman from obtaining an exclusive sales agreement or excessive fees 

because Lieberman had helped Crispin’s firm bolster their fee claim under the hybrid 

contingency fee claim; 

(j) By failing to properly prosecute claim against Oliver Jr. under Global Settlement and 

trying to settle for low amount solely to obtain fees as opposed to acting in best interest of 

Oliver Sr. and/ or his estate, and engaging in acts constituting a conflict of interest by 

seeking to avoid recoupment against Oliver Jr. unless she could obtain a release from Julian 

as to the Guardian; and 

(k) By failing to account to the Court or Julian that she and her firm had failed to comply 

with the Global Settlement Order by improperly holding back several hundred thousand 

dollars from the proceeds of the sale of 808 Lexington in the firm’s trust account. 

140. As a direct and proximate result of Crispin’s negligence and/or malpractice, the 

Ward sustained damages. 

141. Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell is vicariously liable for the negligence of its attorneys 

including Crispin. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendant 
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Crispin and Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, 

including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants.   

COUNT VII 
Professional Negligence Against Defendant Stein 

 
142. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

143. Stein represented both Rogers and Kelly in their capacity guardians for Oliver Sr. 

with the full knowledge and understanding that Oliver Sr. was the intended beneficiary of his legal 

services. 

144. During the guardianship, Stein undertook to provide legal services to the 

guardianship.  At all times Stein held himself out as competent in the areas of law for which he 

was retained to provide representation. 

145. Stein was required to exercise the same legal skill as a reasonably competent 

attorney and to use reasonable care in determining and implementing a strategy to be followed to 

achieve the guardianship’s goals. 

146. In the course of handling legal matters for the guardianship, Stein negligently failed 

to act with the degree of competence generally possessed by attorneys in the State of Florida who 

handle similar matters.  The guardianship paid Stein a substantial amount of money for the sole 

purpose of representing the guardianship. 

147. Stein was negligent and/or committed malpractice in the following ways: 

(a) By failing to perform proper due diligence of the value of 808 Lexington and 67th Street, 

Ocean Boulevard or the London Property to properly evaluate the fairness of the New York 

Settlement; 
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(b) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the clear discrepancy in the values of 

the properties involving in the New York Settlement; 

(c) By advising the client to enter into the New York settlement against the best interest of 

the guardianship; 

(d) By failing to advise the guardianship to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents 

and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(e) By failing to advise the guardianship to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington 

was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage; 

(f) By failing to arrange for commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton 

mortgage, as opposed to preventing such an alternative unless it also included financing to 

cover attorney’s fees for himself, his firm, and the guardians and their other counsel; 

(g) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

(h) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the usurious interest charged by 

Beachton; 

(i) By charging and taking from the guardianship excessive attorney’s fees; 

(j) By taking large sums of money under the guise of retainers without accounting or 

documentation therefore; and 

(k) By failing to account to the Court or to Julian regarding the failure to comply with the 

terms of the Global Settlement Agreement as the closing agent. 

148. As a direct and proximate result of Stein’s negligence and/or malpractice, the Ward 

sustained damages. 
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149.  Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP f/k/a Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP 

and The Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, PLLC n/k/a Stein Law, PLLC are vicariously liable for the 

negligence of their attorneys including Stein. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendants 

Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, 

including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants.   

Jury Demand 

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable. 

Dated: January 8, 2016.   Respectfully Submitted,  
 
       

 
 
      /s/ J. Ronald Denman________________     

J. Ronald Denman  
Florida Bar Number 0863475 

      The Bleakley Bavol Law Firm 
      15170 North Florida Avenue 
      Tampa, FL 33613 
      (813) 221-3759 [Telephone] 
      (813) 221-3198 [Facsimile] 
      rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 
      Attorneys for JULIAN BIVINS 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA  

WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION 
 

                                                  Case No.: ________________________ 
            District Judge: _____________________ 
            Magistrate Judge: __________________  
 
 
JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative   
of the ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 
 Plaintiff,        
vs. 
CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR.,  
as former guardian, STEPHEN M. KELLY, 
as successor guardian, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL,  
ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ & 
O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, 
BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP 
f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP, 
and LAW OFFICES OF KEITH B. STEIN, PLLC,  
n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, 
 Defendants. 
 
     / 

 
COMPLAINT  

 
COMES NOW the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, by and through his undersigned counsel, and sues CURTIS 

CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR., the former guardian of Oliver Bivins (the “Ward”), STEPHEN 

M. KELLY, as successor guardian of the Ward, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL, ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, 

CIKLIN LUBITZ & O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & 

BERLAND, LLP f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP, and LAW OFFICES 

OF KEITH B. STEIN, PLLC, n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, and says: 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. The Ward, Oliver Wilson Bivins, died on March 2, 2015.  The Ward was a citizen 

of, and domiciled in, Amarillo, Potter County, Texas on the date of his death. 

2. Julian Bivins (hereinafter, "Julian") is the Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of the deceased Ward in Palm Beach County, Florida (the “Deceased Ward”).   

3. Curtis Rogers (hereinafter, "Rogers") is the former guardian of the Deceased Ward.  

Rogers resides in Palm Beach County, Florida.   

4. Stephen M. Kelly (hereinafter, “Kelly”) is the successor guardian of the Deceased 

Ward.  Kelly resides in Boynton Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida. 

5. Brian M. O'Connell (hereinafter, "O'Connell") resides and does business in Palm 

Beach County, Florida. 

6. Ashley N. Crispin (hereinafter, "Crispin") resides and does business in Palm Beach 

County, Florida. 

7. Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell (hereinafter, "Ciklin") is a law firm with its principal 

place of business in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

8. Keith B. Stein (hereinafter, "Stein") resides in New York, but does business in Palm 

Beach County, Florida. 

9. Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP f/k/a Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP 

(hereinafter, "Beys") is a limited liability partnership doing business in Palm Beach County, 

Florida with its principal place of business in New York. 

10. The Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, PLLC n/k/a Stein Law, PLLC (hereinafter, 

"Stein Law Firm") is a limited liability partnership doing business in Palm Beach County, Florida 

with its principal place of business in New York. 
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11. Stein, Beys, and Stein Law Firm committed tortious acts in Palm Beach County, 

Florida which resulted in the causes of actions under this complaint causing injury to the Estate of 

the Deceased Ward in Palm Beach County, Florida.  Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm expected 

or should reasonably have expected to have consequences in Palm Beach County, Florida because 

they each derived substantial revenue from the legal services they provided Rogers and Kelly from 

New York to Florida. 

12. Plaintiff is a deemed a citizen of the State of Texas, the same state as the decedent 

under 28 U.S.C. § 1332 (c)(2). 

13. Defendants are all citizens of states other than Texas for purposes of 28 U.S.C. 

§1332. 

14. This is an action for money damages that exceed $75,000.00, exclusive of interest, 

attorney’s fees and costs.  

15. Accordingly, this is a civil action which falls within the Court’s original jurisdiction 

under 28 U.S.C. § 1332 (diversity of citizenship). 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

16. Oliver Bivins’ (hereinafter, “Oliver Sr.”) first marriage was to Dorothy Bivins and 

they had a child, Julian Bivins. 

17. In 1961, Oliver Sr. married Lorna Bivins (hereinafter, "Lorna"), a woman 25 years 

younger from New York.  

18. In approximately 1990, when Oliver Sr. was approximately 70 years old, he and 

Lorna adopted a child together, Oliver Bivins, Jr. (hereinafter "Oliver Jr."). 

19. At all material times during the marriage, Oliver Sr. lived in Amarillo, Texas and 

Lorna and Oliver Jr. lived in New York, New York at 67th Street, although for intermittent periods 
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of time, Lorna and Oliver Jr. resided in Palm Beach, Florida at Lorna and Oliver Sr.’s 

condominium. 

20. On March 5, 1992, Oliver Sr. created a joint trust with Lorna to which he transferred 

family owned oil and mineral rights in Amarillo, Texas (hereinafter the “Joint Trust”).  

21. In addition to the oil and mineral rights in Amarillo, Texas, the couple owned the 

following four properties as follows.  Lorna owned a property at 82 Portland Place in London, 

England (hereinafter “London Property”) and a property at 67th Street in New York, New York 

(hereinafter “67th Street”) and Lorna and Oliver Sr. owned together, as tenants by the entirety, 

properties at 808 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York (hereinafter “808 Lexington”) and 330 

South Ocean Blvd., Palm Beach, Florida (hereinafter “Ocean Blvd”).  (The properties identified 

in this paragraph will be collectively referred to herein as “The Properties”.)   

22. On April 12, 2010, Oliver Sr. filed for divorce from Lorna in Amarillo, Texas 

seeking to dissolve the marriage and terminate the Joint Trust.   

23. On July 28, 2010, the Court entered a Final Decree of Divorce and an Order 

Terminating the Joint Trust. 

24. In the divorce, Oliver Sr. received everything, including the oil and mineral rights 

in Amarillo, Texas.   

25. The Texas Court made no provision in its order, however, with respect to The 

Properties and no Guardian or other Defendant made any effort to re-open the Texas divorce 

proceeding to address the property rights of the parties pertaining to the Properties.   

26. Lorna continued to hold the London and 67th Street properties in her name alone, 

although Oliver Sr. funded these properties to the extent not covered by tenants renting the 

properties, and the properties at 808 Lexington Avenue and 330 Ocean Boulevard, which were 
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held as tenants by the entirety prior to the divorce, became held by Lorna and Oliver Sr. as tenants 

in common. 

27. Following the divorce, Oliver Sr. transferred to Julian interests owned by Oliver Sr. 

in several parcels of real property, including the oil and mineral rights in Amarillo, Texas and a 

condominium in Amarillo, Texas. 

28. On or about January 5, 2011, petitions to determine incapacity for both Oliver Sr. 

and Lorna were filed and an emergency temporary guardian, Stephen Kelly, was appointed over 

their person and property. 

29. Lorna passed away in February 2011, shortly after the temporary guardianship was 

established. 

30. Oliver Jr. was appointed the personal representative of the estate of Lorna Bivins. 

31. On or about May 10, 2011, the Court appointed Rogers as the limited guardian of 

the person and property of Oliver Sr. 

Texas Settlement 

32. Rogers investigated the transfers of real property from Oliver Sr. to Julian and 

sought approval from the Florida guardianship court to bring an action against Julian and Julian 

simultaneously filed an action in Texas to validate the transfers. 

33. The Florida guardianship court entered an order permitting Rogers to retain counsel 

on a contingency basis to prosecute and defend the actions involving the transfers. 

34. Rogers, with a Texas supervising guardian, was appointed in Texas as guardian of 

Oliver Sr.'s property in Texas. 

35. On or about February 27, 2013, Julian and Rogers entered into a settlement 

agreement as to the Texas proceedings (hereinafter “Texas Settlement”).   
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36. The Properties were not the subject of the Texas lawsuit and the Texas Settlement 

made no provision for them.   

37. As part of the Texas Settlement, Julian was required to transfer back to Oliver Sr. 

all of the Texas real property previously transferred to Julian, except that Julian was permitted to 

keep the Ranch and all interim distributions and other proceeds Julian had already received from 

the real property.   

38. The Texas properties were transferred to a trust for the benefit of Julian and Oliver 

Sr. (hereinafter the "Texas Trust") with Julian having a 37% interest in the Texas Trust and Oliver 

Sr. having a 63% interest in the Texas Trust. 

39. As a major consideration for Julian entering into the Texas Settlement, Rogers was 

to resign as guardian of Oliver Sr. in Texas and Florida within thirty (30) days of court approval 

of the Texas settlement, and Steve Kelly was to serve as successor guardian. 

40. Rogers was required to submit a final accounting and documents necessary to 

obtain an order of discharge from the Texas and Florida guardianships within 30 days of the 

approval of the Texas settlement by the Texas and Florida guardianship courts.   

41. As part of the Texas Settlement, Rogers was released from liabilities for his errors 

and omissions and other breaches of his fiduciary obligation, only through the date of the Texas 

Settlement. 

42. The Florida guardianship court approved the settlement on April 1, 2013.   

New York Settlement 

43. In November 2012, Rogers entered into a contingency fee/hybrid agreement with 

Ciklin to initiate an action in Florida requesting that the Court presiding over the Lorna estate (the 

“Lorna Court”) give no full faith and credit to the Texas Divorce Decree, so that the Lorna Court 
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would deem the Properties to pass to Oliver Sr. as though he were still married to Lorna at the time 

of her death. (“Florida Beneficiary Petition”). 

44. In or about October 2012, Rogers also engaged Keith Stein of Beys to partition the 

808 Lexington property (“New York litigation”).   

45. Prior to initiating the partition action of 808 Lexington, Stein had only prepared, at 

best, one prior partition action in the course of his more than two decades of practice. 

46. At the time of the partition action, and for several years prior, 808 Lexington was 

encumbered by a mortgage in the original principal sum of $850,000.00 (“808 Mortgage”). 

47. By the time of the partition action, the balance of the mortgage was approximately 

$387,000.00.  

48. Prior to, and following the date of the Texas Settlement, Rogers failed to take any 

action to pay, monitor, negotiate, or prevent default, acceleration, or negative consequences to the 

Ward in connection with the 808 Mortgage. 

49. On or about October 5, 2012, unbeknownst to Julian, and presumably because 

Rogers had not taken any action to manage the 808 Lexington asset or liabilities and the 808 

Mortgage was in default, the son of the paralegal of Oliver Jr.’s attorney (who was also a close 

friend of Oliver Jr.) surreptitiously formed a corporation known as Beachton Tuxedo, LLC 

(“Beachton”) and acquired the 808 Mortgage via an Assignment of Mortgage (“Assignment”) for 

the outstanding balance owed on the mortgage.  

50. As of the date of the Assignment, the notes secured by the Mortgage were in default, 

had been accelerated by Beachton and gave Beachton the right to foreclose on 808 Lexington.  The 

default interest rate on the Beachton mortgage was 17%. 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 1   Entered on FLSD Docket 09/17/2015   Page 7 of 18



8 
 

51. As further consideration for Beachton to acquire the 808 Mortgage and not 

foreclose on it, Oliver Jr., individually, and as personal representative of the Estate of Lorna, 

assigned to Beachton, 40% of the equity interest in 808 Lexington, which, at a bare minimum, 

provided Beachton with an interest of far more than a million dollars, (on a $387,000 mortgage) 

yet Beachton continued to charge interest at the maximum rate allowable under the 808 Mortgage.   

52. Accordingly, the assignment by Oliver Jr. resulted in a potentially usurious interest 

being charged by Beachton on the 808 Mortgage, or alternatively, a satisfaction of the 808 

Mortgage. 

53. In July 2013, Roger, as guardian for Oliver Sr., Oliver Jr., individually and as 

personal representative of the Estate of Lorna, and Beachton entered into a settlement agreement 

to settle the Florida Beneficiary Petition and the New York Litigation (hereinafter referred to as 

the “New York Settlement.”  A true and correct copy of the New York Settlement Agreement is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference. 

54. Pursuant to the New York Settlement, Oliver Jr. agreed to transfer to Oliver Sr. the 

50% interest of the Estate of Lorna in 808 Lexington and Ocean Boulevard, such that as a result 

of such transfers, Oliver Sr. would own 100% fee simple interest in 808 Lexington and Ocean 

Boulevard.   

55. The Estate of Lorna was required to satisfy all real estate taxes and related charges 

through May 8, 2013, and one-half of the real estate taxes and related charges from May 9, 2013, 

through the date immediately prior to the closing date. 

56. Additionally, in connection with the New York Settlement, Oliver Jr. and Beachton 

agreed that the 40% interest in the 808 Lexington that Oliver Jr. had assigned to Beachton when it 

took over the 808 Mortgage, would be transferred to a 20% interest in the 67th Street property, 
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which amounted to an interest by Beachton of well over a million dollars.  (The percentage change 

in the transfer was due to the fact that the value of the 67th Street property was significantly higher 

that the value of 808 Lexington. 

57. Notwithstanding Beachton’s acceptance of the 20% interest in 67th Street, Beachton 

continued to charge the maximum interest rate allowable under the 808 Mortgage, plus late fees, 

which combined with the 20% interest in 67th Street, constituted a usurious rate of interest, or 

alternatively, a satisfaction of the 808 Mortgage. 

58. The closing date under the New York Settlement was to occur within ten (10) 

business days of the date upon which all approvals have been received from the Florida court, and 

each such other court.  No other such court approval was required to approve the New York 

Settlement besides the Florida Court, which did so on September 17, 2013.  Accordingly, the 

closing date was October 1, 2013 (“Closing Date”).   

59. Under the terms of the New York Settlement, Rogers, acting as guardian for Oliver 

Sr., agreed to waive and/or relinquish in favor of the Estate of Lorna any and all right, title, and 

interest in and to 67th Street and the London Property. 

60. The New York Settlement required Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr., to pay the 

Beachton mortgage debt in full on or before August 31, 2013, and in exchange, Beachton agreed 

to continue to forebear from taking action based on the purported failure to make payments under 

the 808 Mortgage that Beachton purchased, including foreclosure.   

61. On or about November 2014, 67th Street sold for $22.5 million.  Accordingly, 

Beachton’s 20% interest in the 67th Street property was worth $4.5 million. 
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62. Any claim by Beachton that an outstanding balance was due on the Beachton 

mortgage was usurious as Beachton became entitled to receive, via its 20% equity interest in 67th 

Street, more than five (5) times the outstanding balance owed on the 808 Mortgage.   

63. Neither Rogers nor his counsel took any action to have a Court declare the 808 

Mortgage acquired by Beachton as having been satisfied or otherwise usurious.   

64. Moreover, despite representations to the Florida guardianship Court that they 

would do so, Rogers neither made any genuine efforts to procure substitute financing for the 

Beachton mortgage at a lower interest rate than the default rate Beachton mortgage was charging, 

nor undertook any action to remove the Beachton lien from the 808 property due to it being 

usurious or satisfied.  

65. The terms of the New York Settlement, to which Julian persistently objected, 

provided that all interest on the mortgage debt accruing after June 30, 2013, but on or before the 

date the Beachton mortgage debt is paid in full, was to be payable 50% by the Estate of Lorna and 

50% by Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr.   

66. Moreover, the New York Settlement agreement provides that if “any party fails to 

comply with any of the party’s obligations set forth in Section 2 or 3 of this Agreement, the party 

to whom the obligation is owed shall have the right to enforce the terms set forth therein and the 

legal fees and costs incurred by the aggrieved party in enforcing such terms shall be paid by the 

Party found to be in breach of such terms.”   

808 Lexington Management 

67. Rogers remained in office as guardian for Oliver Sr. until April 23, 2014, when 

Kelly was appointed by the Court as successor guardian of Oliver Sr.    
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68. From April 1, 2013 (the date of the Florida Court’s approval of the Texas 

Settlement) until Rogers was discharged by the Court in April 2014, as Florida guardian for Oliver 

Sr. (the “Interim Guardianship”), Rogers had a duty to manage 808 Lexington as a rental property. 

69. From April 23, 2014 (the date Kelly was appointed by the Court as successor 

guardian of Oliver Sr.) until the closing of the sale of 808 Lexington by Kelly, as guardian of 

Oliver Sr., Kelly had a duty to manage 808 Lexington as a rental property. 

70. The 808 Lexington Property consisted of four floors.  The first floor was rented out 

by a restaurant, Fig and Olive, which generated approximately $23,500 per month in rent.  The 

lease for Fig and Olive was set to expire in November 2014. 

71. The second floor of 808 Lexington was leased out to Pinafore Nursery and 

generated approximately $3,500 per month in rent.   The lease for Pinafore Nursery expired on 

December 31, 2010, and there was no new written lease entered into by Pinafore Nursery.   

Following the expiration of the lease with Pinafore Nursery, it continued to pay a monthly rent of 

$3,500, notwithstanding that it was a holdover tenant without a lease. 

72. The fourth floor apartment had been rented out to Kimberly Beamis for $2,300 per 

month, but she vacated the premises prior to January 1, 2013 due to the failure of Rogers to 

maintain the unit.  Thereafter, fourth floor apartment became occupied by a person related to one 

of the owners of Beachton for $1,500 per month, which amount was paid to Oliver Jr. and nothing 

to the Rogers or Kelly on behalf of the Ward.  The $1500, to the extent it was paid, was well below 

market value, no lease was in place, and Rogers or Kelly failed to investigate, participate, or take 

any action for the benefit of the Ward pertaining to this unit.   
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73. The third floor tenant was evicted in either 2012 or 2013.  Neither Rogers nor Kelly 

undertook any efforts to re-rent this unit, which had a monthly rental value of several thousand 

dollars.   

74. Prior to the New York Settlement, Rogers should have been collecting 50% of the 

rental income from 808 Lexington, and should have made efforts to obtain full market rent on the 

second, third, and fourth floor units.     

75. Following the Court’s approval of the New York Settlement, Rogers should have 

been collecting all of the rental income from 808 Lexington.  Yet, during the period of Interim 

Guardianship, Rogers only passively collected 50% of the rental income from Fig and Olive.  

Rogers and Kelly ignored the remaining rent that Oliver Jr. was collecting on the other 50% of the 

rental income from Fig and Olive and ignored any effort to obtain any rental income from the other 

units or tenants.   

76. Following his appointment as successor guardian, Kelly should have been 

collecting all of the rental income from 808 Lexington.  Yet, until the sale of 808 Lexington, he 

only passively collected 50% of the rental income from Fig and Olive.  Kelly ignored the remaining 

rent that Oliver Jr. was collecting on the other 50% of the rental income from Fig and Olive and 

ignored any effort to obtain any rental income from the other units or tenants. 

77. Oliver Jr. has also not paid any money to the State of New York or to Rogers or 

Kelly for any past due property taxes pursuant to the New York Settlement, or for the amount of 

property taxes on 808 Lexington from May 9, 2013, to the date immediately prior to the Closing 

Date. 

78. Oliver Jr. has not paid any of the interest that accrued on the 808 Mortgage from 

June 30, 2013, until it was paid in full.   
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79. During the period of Interim Guardianship, Rogers also failed to take actions for 

the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, the following acts with respect to 808 

Lexington: 

a. Enter into discussions with Fig and Olive regarding renewing its lease or increasing the 

monthly rental payments; 

b. Enter into discussions with Pinafore Nursery to sign a new lease and increase its rent 

from the monthly rent it was paying for the previous four years; 

c. Take any action to market the third or fourth floor apartments; 

d. Take any action with respect to repairing, renovating, or maintaining 808 Lexington, 

including, but not limited to, its common areas, to obtain the highest and best rental 

values for the property;  

e. Collect the appropriate rental income due Oliver Sr. from the lease of 808 Lexington;  

f. Bring an action against Oliver Jr. to force Oliver Jr. to use the rental income from 808 

Lexington to pay down the Beachton mortgage and to enforce the New York 

Settlement; 

g. Bring an action against Beachton for usury or satisfaction based upon the interest it 

received in 808 Lexington and thereafter 67th Street; and  

h. Obtain commercial financing to pay off the 808 Mortgage assigned to Beachton to 

avoid the default interest rate it was accruing against 808 Lexington. 

80. After his appointment as successor guardian of Oliver Sr. on April 23, 2014, Kelly 

also failed to take actions for the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, the following 

acts with respect to 808 Lexington: 
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a. Enter into discussions with Fig and Olive regarding renewing its lease or increasing the 

monthly rental payments; 

b. Enter into discussions with Pinafore Nursery to sign a new lease and increase its rent 

from the monthly rent it was paying for the previous four years; 

c. Take any action to market the third or fourth floor apartments; 

d. Take any action with respect to repairing, renovating, or maintaining 808 Lexington, 

including, but not limited to, its common areas, to obtain the highest and best rental 

values for the property;  

e. Collect the appropriate rental income due Oliver Sr. from the lease of 808 Lexington;  

f. Bring an action against Oliver Jr. to force Oliver Jr. to use the rental income from 808 

Lexington to pay down the Beachton mortgage and to enforce the New York 

Settlement; 

g. Bring an action against Beachton for usury or satisfaction based upon the interest it 

received in 808 Lexington and thereafter 67th Street; and  

h. Obtain commercial financing to pay off the 808 Mortgage assigned to Beachton to 

avoid the default interest rate it was accruing against 808 Lexington. 

Due Diligence as to New York Settlement 

81. Prior to entering into the New York Settlement, Rogers failed to do any type of due 

diligence as to the true fair market value of 808 Lexington and 67th Street, including, but not limited 

to, obtaining appraisals of the properties.  Yet, Rogers and his counsel represented to the Florida 

Court that the New York Settlement was in the best interests of Oliver Sr. and that the properties 

were approximately equal in value. 
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82. On or about the Closing Date, the fair market value of 808 Lexington was 

approximately $5 million and the true fair market value of 67th Street was more than $22.5 million. 

83. The fair market value of the London property has never been addressed other than 

in a cursory fashion by Rogers or the attorneys he hired to protect the Ward’s interest, despite the 

property being located in the most exclusive and high priced rental district in London. 

84. As a result, the estate of Oliver Sr. received assets from the New York Settlement 

with a value substantially less than those received by the Estate of Lorna.   

COUNT I 
Breach of Fiduciary Duty Against Defendants Rogers,  

O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and Stein Law Firm) 
 

85. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 84, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

86. During the period of the Interim Guardianship, Rogers had a fiduciary duty to 

Oliver Sr. to act in his best interest until Rogers was discharged as guardian, including, among 

other things, a duty of loyalty.  

87. O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm (“Counsel for 

Rogers”) represented Rogers, in his capacity as guardian for Oliver Sr., in connection with the 

New York Settlement and thereafter.   

88. Counsel for Rogers, while he was acting as guardian for Oliver Sr., owed similar 

duties to Oliver Sr. and were fully aware that the work they were doing for Rogers, as guardian of 

Oliver Sr., was for the benefit of Oliver Sr. 

89. Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr., and Counsel for Rogers were negligent and 

reckless in the exercise of their fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr., resulting in damages to him. 
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90. By failing to take actions for the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, 

failing to, (a) properly manage 808 Lexington, (b) perform proper due diligence of the value of 

808 Lexington and 67th Street to properly evaluate the fairness of the New York Settlement, (c) 

take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr., 

(d) failing to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington was used to pay down the Beachton 

mortgage, (e) seek substitute financing for the Beachton mortgage, and (f) failing to pursue action 

against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or released, Rogers damaged the Estate of 

Oliver Sr. in contravention of Defendants’ fiduciary duties. 

91. At all material times, Counsel for Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr., owed duties to 

Oliver Sr. and were involved and participated in Rogers’ actions or inactions, resulting in the above 

described damage.  

92. Plaintiff was required to retain the Bleakley Bavol Law Firm to mitigate the 

damages to the Estate of Oliver Sr. and is required to pay it a reasonable fee for its services. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendants 

Rogers, O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm and such other relief as 

the Court deems just and proper, including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against 

Defendants.   

COUNT II 
Breach of Fiduciary Duty Against Defendants Kelly, 

O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and Stein Law Firm 
 

93. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 84, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  
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94. Following his appointment as successor guardian of Oliver Sr. on April 23, 2014, 

Kelly had a fiduciary duty to Oliver Sr. to act in his best interest until Kelly was discharged as 

guardian, including, among other things, a duty of loyalty.  

95. O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm represented Kelly 

(“Counsel for Kelly”), in his capacity as successor guardian for Oliver Sr.   

96. Counsel for Kelly, while he was acting as guardian for Oliver Sr., owed similar 

duties to Oliver Sr. and were fully aware that the work they were doing for Kelly, as successor 

guardian of Oliver Sr., was for the benefit of Oliver Sr. 

97. Kelly, as guardian of Oliver Sr., and Counsel for Kelly were negligent and reckless 

in the exercise of their fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr., resulting in damages to him. 

98. By failing to take actions for the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, 

failing to (a) properly manage 808 Lexington, (b) take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents and 

taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr., (c) failing to ensure that rental income from 808 

Lexington was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage, (d) seek substitute financing for the 

Beachton mortgage, and (e) failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed 

satisfied or released, Kelly damaged the Estate of Oliver Sr. in contravention of Defendants’ 

fiduciary duties. 

99. At all material times, Counsel for Kelly, as successor guardian of Oliver Sr., owed 

duties to Oliver Sr. and were involved and participated in Kelly’s actions or inactions, resulting in 

the above described damage.  

100. Plaintiff was required to retain the Bleakley Bavol Law Firm to mitigate the 

damages to the Estate of Oliver Sr. and is required to pay it a reasonable fee for its services. 
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WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendants 

Kelly, O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm and such other relief as the 

Court deems just and proper, including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants.   

Jury Demand 

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable. 

Dated: September 17, 2015.   Respectfully Submitted,  
 
      THE BLEAKLEY BAVOL LAW FIRM 

 

 
 
      /s/ J. Ronald Denman________________     

J. Ronald Denman  
Florida Bar Number 0863475 

      15170 North Florida Avenue 
      Tampa, FL 33613 
      (813) 221-3759 [Telephone] 
      (813) 221-3198 [Facsimile] 
      rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 
      Attorneys for JULIAN BIVINS 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA  

WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION 
CASE NO.: 15-81298-CV-MARRA-MATTHEWMAN 

                                                   
 
JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative   
of the ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 
 Plaintiff,        
vs. 
CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR.,  
as former guardian, STEPHEN M. KELLY, 
as successor guardian, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL,  
ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ & 
O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, 
BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP 
f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP, 
and LAW OFFICES OF KEITH B. STEIN, PLLC,  
n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, 
 Defendants. 
 
     / 

 
AMENDED COMPLAINT  

 
COMES NOW the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, by and through his undersigned counsel, and sues CURTIS 

CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR., the former guardian of Oliver Bivins (the “Ward”), STEPHEN 

M. KELLY, as successor guardian of the Ward, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL, ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, 

CIKLIN LUBITZ & O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & 

BERLAND, LLP f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP, and LAW OFFICES 

OF KEITH B. STEIN, PLLC, n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, and says: 
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. The Ward, Oliver Wilson Bivins, died on March 2, 2015.  The Ward was a citizen 

of, and domiciled in, Amarillo, Potter County, Texas on the date of his death. 

2. Julian Bivins (hereinafter, "Julian") is the Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of the deceased Ward in Palm Beach County, Florida (the “Deceased Ward”).   

3. Curtis Rogers (hereinafter, "Rogers") is the former guardian of the Deceased Ward.  

Rogers is a citizen of, and domiciled in, Palm Beach County, Florida.   

4. Stephen M. Kelly (hereinafter, “Kelly”) is the successor guardian of the Deceased 

Ward.  Kelly is a citizen of, and domiciled in Boynton Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida. 

5. Brian M. O'Connell (hereinafter, "O'Connell") is a citizen of, and domiciled in Palm 

Beach County, Florida. 

6. Ashley N. Crispin (hereinafter, "Crispin") is a citizen of, and domiciled in Palm 

Beach County, Florida. 

7. Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell (hereinafter, "Ciklin") is general partnership organized 

under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of business in Palm Beach County, 

Florida.  The partners of Ciklin are the following: Dean Vegosen, P.L., Phil D. O’Connell, JR., 

P.A., Brian B. Joslyn, P.A., Jason S. Heselkorn, P.A., John D. Boykin, P.A., Jerald S. Beer, P.A., 

Bruce G. Alexander, P.A., Alan J. Ciklin, P.A., and Robert L. Crane, P.A. 

8. Dean Vogeson (hereinafter, "Vogeson"), is the sole member of Dean Vogeson P.L. 

and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Dean Vogeson P.L. is a Florida 

professional liability association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal 

place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.   
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9. Phil D. O’Connell, (hereinafter, "Phil O’Connell"), is the sole shareholder of Phil 

D. O’Connell Jr., P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. D Phil D. 

O’Connell Jr., P.A. is a professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida 

with its principal place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.   

10. Brian B. Joslyn, (hereinafter, "Joslyn"), is the sole shareholder of Brian B. Joslyn, 

P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Brian B. Joslyn, P.A. is a 

professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of 

business is in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

11. Jason S. Haselkorn, (hereinafter, "Haselkorn"), is the sole shareholder of Jason S. 

Haselkorn, P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Jason S. 

Haselkorn, P.A. is a professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with 

its principal place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.  .   

12. John D. Boykin, (hereinafter, "Boykin"), is the sole shareholder of John D. Boykin, 

P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. John D. Boykin, P.A. is a 

professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of 

business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.  .   

13. Jerald S. Beer, (hereinafter, "Beer"), is the sole shareholder of Jerald S. Beer, P.A. 

and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Jerald S. Beer, P.A. is a 

professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of 

business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.    

14. Bruce G. Alexander, (hereinafter, "Alexander"), is the sole shareholder of Bruce G. 

Alexander, P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Bruce G. 
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Alexander, P.A. is a professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with 

its principal place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.  .   

15. Alan. J. Ciklin, (hereinafter, "Alan Ciklin"), is the sole shareholder of Alan. J. 

Ciklin, P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Alan. J. Ciklin, P.A. 

is a professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal 

place of business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.   

16. Robert L. Crane, (hereinafter, "Crane"), is the sole shareholder of Robert L. Crane, 

P.A. and is a citizen of and domiciled in Palm Beach County, Florida. Robert L. Crane, P.A. is a 

professional association organized under the laws of the State of Florida with its principal place of 

business is in Palm Beach County, Florida.   

17. Keith B. Stein (hereinafter, "Stein") is a citizen of and domiciled in New York, but 

does business in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

18. Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP f/k/a Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP 

(hereinafter, "Beys") is a limited liability partnership doing business in Palm Beach County, 

Florida with its principal place of business in New York.  The partners of Beys are the following: 

Jason H. Berland, Michael P. Beys, Joshua D. Liston, and Nader Mobargha.  Keith B. Stein was a 

partner of the former iteration of Beys: Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP. 

19. Jason H. Berland (hereinafter, "Berland") is a citizen of and domiciled in New 

York. 

20. Michael P. Beys (hereinafter, "Michael Beys") is a citizen of and domiciled in New 

York. 

21. Joshua D. Liston (hereinafter, "Liston") is a citizen of and domiciled in New York. 
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22. Nader Mobargha (hereinafter, "Mobargha") is a citizen of and domiciled in New 

York. 

23. The Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, PLLC n/k/a Stein Law, PLLC (hereinafter, 

"Stein Law Firm") is a professional limited liability company doing business in Palm Beach 

County, Florida with its principal place of business in New York.  Keith B. Stein is the sole 

member of the Stein Law Firm.  

24. Stein, Beys, and Stein Law Firm committed tortious acts in Palm Beach County, 

Florida which resulted in the causes of actions under this complaint causing injury to the Estate of 

the Deceased Ward in Palm Beach County, Florida.  Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm expected 

or should reasonably have expected to have consequences in Palm Beach County, Florida because 

they each derived substantial revenue from the legal services they provided Rogers and Kelly from 

New York to Florida. 

25. Plaintiff is a deemed a citizen of the State of Texas, the same state as the decedent 

under 28 U.S.C. § 1332 (c)(2). 

26. Defendants are all citizens of states other than Texas for purposes of 28 U.S.C. 

§1332. 

27. This is an action for money damages that exceed $75,000.00, exclusive of interest, 

attorney’s fees and costs.  

28. Accordingly, this is a civil action which falls within the Court’s original jurisdiction 

under 28 U.S.C. § 1332 (diversity of citizenship). 
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

29. Oliver Bivins’ (hereinafter, “Oliver Sr.”) first marriage was to Dorothy Bivins, and 

they had a child, Julian Bivins. 

30. In 1961, Oliver Sr. married Lorna Bivins (hereinafter, "Lorna"), a woman 25 years 

younger from New York.  

31. In approximately 1990, when Oliver Sr. was approximately 70 years old, he and 

Lorna adopted a child together, Oliver Bivins, Jr. (hereinafter "Oliver Jr."). 

32. At all material times during the marriage, Oliver Sr. lived in Amarillo, Texas and 

Lorna and Oliver Jr. lived in New York, New York at 67th Street, although for intermittent periods 

of time, Lorna and Oliver Jr. resided in Palm Beach, Florida at Lorna and Oliver Sr.’s 

condominium. 

33. On March 5, 1992, Oliver Sr. created a joint trust with Lorna to which he transferred 

family owned oil and mineral rights in Amarillo, Texas (hereinafter the “Joint Trust”).  

34. In addition to the oil and mineral rights in Amarillo, Texas, the couple owned four 

properties.  Lorna owned a property located at 82 Portland Place in London, England (hereinafter 

“London Property”) and a property at 67th Street in New York, New York (hereinafter “67th 

Street”), and Lorna and Oliver Sr. owned together, as tenants by the entirety, properties at 808 

Lexington Avenue, New York, New York (hereinafter “808 Lexington”) and 330 South Ocean 

Blvd., Palm Beach, Florida (hereinafter “Ocean Blvd”).  (The properties identified in this 

paragraph will be collectively referred to herein as “The Properties”.)   

35. On April 12, 2010, Oliver Sr. filed for divorce from Lorna in Amarillo, Texas 

seeking to dissolve the marriage and terminate the Joint Trust.   
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36. On July 28, 2010, the Court entered a Final Decree of Divorce and an Order 

Terminating the Joint Trust. 

37. In the divorce, Oliver Sr. received everything, including the oil and mineral rights 

in Amarillo, Texas.   

38. The Texas Court presiding over the divorce made no provision in its order, 

however, with respect to the Properties and no Guardian or other Defendant made any effort to re-

open the Texas divorce proceeding to address the property rights of the parties pertaining to the 

Properties.   

39. Lorna continued to hold the London and 67th Street properties in her name alone, 

although Oliver Sr. funded these properties to the extent not covered by tenants renting the 

properties.  As for the the properties at 808 Lexington Avenue and 330 Ocean Boulevard, which 

were held as tenants by the entirety prior to the divorce, became held by Lorna and Oliver Sr. as 

tenants in common. 

40. Following the divorce, Oliver Sr. transferred to Julian interests owned by Oliver Sr. 

in several parcels of real property, including the oil and mineral rights in Amarillo, Texas and a 

condominium in Amarillo, Texas. 

41. On or about January 5, 2011, petitions to determine incapacity for both Oliver Sr. 

and Lorna were filed in Florida and an emergency temporary guardian, Stephen Kelly, was 

appointed over their person and property. 

42. Lorna passed away in February 2011, shortly after the temporary guardianship was 

established. 

43. Oliver Jr. was appointed the personal representative of the estate of Lorna Bivins. 
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44. On or about May 10, 2011, the Court appointed Rogers as the limited guardian of 

the person and property of Oliver Sr. 

Texas Settlement 

45. Rogers’ first order of business was to seek an ex parte emergency order preventing 

Oliver Sr., who was in Florida temporarily from his long time home in Texas, from leaving Florida.  

He then began an investigation into the transfers of real property from Oliver Sr. to Julian and 

sought approval from the Florida guardianship court to bring an action against Julian and Julian 

simultaneously filed an action in Texas to validate the transfers. 

46. The Florida guardianship court entered an order permitting Rogers to retain counsel 

on a contingency basis to prosecute and defend the actions involving the transfers. 

47. Rogers, with a Texas supervising guardian, thereafter obtained an appointment as 

the Texas guardian over Oliver Sr.'s property in Texas. 

48. The Texas litigation sought to undo all of the transfers that Oliver Sr. had made to 

Julian in Texas.  The attorneys hired in Texas, pursuant to the contingency fee agreement, were 

entitled to 25% of the entire estate that was transferred back to Oliver Sr., even if Julian agreed to 

do it the very next day. 

49. On or about February 27, 2013, Julian and Rogers entered into a settlement 

agreement as to the Texas proceedings (hereinafter “Texas Settlement”).   

50. The Properties were not the subject of the Texas lawsuit and the Texas Settlement 

made no provision for them.   

51. As part of the Texas Settlement, Julian was required to transfer back to Oliver Sr. 

all of the Texas real property previously transferred to Julian, except that Julian was permitted to 
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keep the Ranch and all interim distributions and other proceeds Julian had already received from 

the real property.   

52. The Texas properties were transferred to a trust for the benefit of Julian and Oliver 

Sr. (hereinafter the "Texas Trust") with Julian having a 37% interest in the Texas Trust and Oliver 

Sr. having a 63% interest in the Texas Trust. 

53. As a major consideration for Julian entering into the Texas Settlement, Rogers was 

to resign as guardian of Oliver Sr. in Texas and Florida within thirty (30) days of court approval 

of the Texas settlement, and Steve Kelly was to serve as successor guardian. 

54. Rogers was required to, but did not, submit a final accounting and documents 

necessary to obtain an order of discharge from the Texas and Florida guardianships within 30 days 

of the approval of the Texas settlement by the Texas and Florida guardianship courts.   

55. As part of the Texas Settlement, Rogers was released from liabilities for his errors 

and omissions and other breaches of his fiduciary obligation, by Julian in is capacity as an 

interested party and sole beneficiary of Oliver Sr.’s only know will, only through the date of the 

Texas Settlement.  This release was not made on behalf of the Ward, and could not be, whereas 

Oliver Sr. was alive, and Julian was not and had no authority to release Rogers on behalf of Oliver 

Sr.   

56. The Florida guardianship court approved the settlement on April 1, 2013.   

New York Settlement 

57. In November 2012, Rogers entered into a contingency fee/hybrid agreement with 

Ciklin to initiate an action in Florida requesting that the Court presiding over the Lorna estate (the 

“Lorna Court”) give no full faith and credit to the Texas Divorce Decree, so that the Lorna Court 
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would deem the Properties to pass to Oliver Sr. as though he were still married to Lorna at the time 

of her death. (“Florida Beneficiary Petition”). 

58. In or about October 2012, Rogers also engaged Keith Stein of Beys to partition the 

808 Lexington property (“New York litigation”).   

59. Prior to initiating the partition action of 808 Lexington, Stein, who was not a 

litigator, had only prepared, at best, one prior partition action in the course of his more than two 

decades of practice. 

60. At the time of the partition action, and for several years prior, 808 Lexington was 

encumbered by a mortgage in the original principal sum of $850,000.00 (“808 Mortgage”). 

61. By the time of the partition action, the balance of the mortgage was approximately 

$387,000.00, while the value of 808 Lexington was in excess of $4,000,000.  

62. Prior to, and following the date of the Texas Settlement, Rogers failed to take any 

action to pay, monitor, negotiate, or prevent default, acceleration, or negative consequences to the 

Ward in connection with the 808 Mortgage.   

63. On or about October 5, 2012, unbeknownst to Julian, and presumably because 

Rogers had not taken any action to manage the 808 Lexington asset or liabilities and the 808 

Mortgage was in default, the son of the paralegal of Oliver Jr.’s attorney (who was also a close 

friend of Oliver Jr.) formed a corporation known as Beachton Tuxedo, LLC (“Beachton”) and 

surreptitiously acquired the 808 Mortgage via an Assignment of Mortgage (“Assignment”) for the 

outstanding balance owed on the mortgage.  

64. As of the date of the Assignment, the notes secured by the Mortgage were in default, 

had been accelerated, and gave Beachton the immediate right to foreclose on 808 Lexington.  The 

default interest rate on the Beachton mortgage was 17%. 
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65. As further consideration for Beachton to acquire the 808 Mortgage and not 

foreclose on it, Oliver Jr., individually, and as personal representative of the Estate of Lorna, 

assigned to Beachton a 40% of his and/or the Estate of Lorna’s equity interest in 808 Lexington, 

which, at a bare minimum, gave Beachton an immediate return on its $387,000 mortgage of far in 

excess of one million dollars, yet Beachton did not provide a satisfaction of mortgage in exchange 

for the interest and also continued to charge interest at the maximum rate allowable under the 808 

Mortgage.   

66. Accordingly, the assignment by Oliver Jr. resulted in a satisfaction of the 808 

Mortgage, or alternatively a usurious rate of interest being charged by Beachton on the 808 

Mortgage.  

67. In July 2013, Rogers, as guardian for Oliver Sr., Oliver Jr., individually and as 

personal representative of the Estate of Lorna, and Beachton entered into a settlement agreement 

to settle the Florida Beneficiary Petition and the New York Litigation (hereinafter referred to as 

the “New York Settlement.”  A true and correct copy of the New York Settlement Agreement is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference. 

68. Pursuant to the New York Settlement, Oliver Jr. agreed to immediately transfer to 

Oliver Sr. the 50% interest of the Estate of Lorna in 808 Lexington and Ocean Boulevard, such 

that as a result of such transfers, Oliver Sr. would own 100% fee simple interest in 808 Lexington 

and Ocean Boulevard.   

69. The Estate of Lorna was required to satisfy all real estate taxes and related charges 

through May 8, 2013, and one-half of the real estate taxes and related charges from May 9, 2013, 

through the date immediately prior to the closing date. 
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70. Additionally, in connection with the New York Settlement, Oliver Jr. and Beachton 

agreed that the 40% interest in the 808 Lexington that Oliver Jr. had assigned to Beachton when it 

took over the 808 Mortgage, would be transferred to a 20% interest in the 67th Street property, 

which continued to amount to an interest by Beachton of well over a million dollars at minimum.  

(The percentage change in the transfer was due to the fact that the value of the 67th Street property 

was significantly higher that the value of 808 Lexington.) 

71. Notwithstanding Beachton’s acceptance of the 20% interest in 67th Street, Beachton 

continued to charge the maximum interest rate allowable under the 808 Mortgage, plus late fees, 

which combined with the 20% interest in 67th Street, constituted a satisfaction of the 808 Mortgage, 

or alternatively, a usurious rate of interest. 

72. The closing date under the New York Settlement was to occur within ten (10) 

business days of the date upon which all approvals have been received from the Florida court, and 

each such other court.  No other such court approval was required to approve the New York 

Settlement besides the Florida Court, which did so on September 17, 2013.  Accordingly, the 

closing date was October 1, 2013 (“Closing Date”).   

73. Under the terms of the New York Settlement, Rogers, acting as guardian for Oliver 

Sr., agreed to waive and/or relinquish in favor of the Estate of Lorna any and all right, title, and 

interest in and to 67th Street and the London Property. 

74. The New York Settlement required Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr., to pay the 

Beachton mortgage debt in full on or before August 31, 2013, and in exchange, Beachton agreed 

to continue to forebear from taking action based on the purported failure to make payments under 

the 808 Mortgage that Beachton purchased, including foreclosure.   
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75. On or about November, 2014, 67th Street sold for $22.5 million.  Accordingly, 

Beachton’s 20% interest in the 67th Street property was worth $4.5 million. 

76. Any claim by Beachton that an outstanding balance was due on the Beachton 

mortgage was usurious as Beachton became entitled to receive, via its 20% equity interest in 67th 

Street, more than five (5) times the outstanding balance owed on the 808 Mortgage.   

77. Neither Rogers nor his counsel took any action to have a Court declare the 808 

Mortgage acquired by Beachton as having been satisfied or otherwise usurious.   

78. Moreover, despite representations to the Florida guardianship Court that they 

would do so, Rogers neither made any genuine efforts to procure substitute financing for the 

Beachton mortgage at a lower interest rate than the default rate Beachton mortgage was charging, 

nor undertook any action to remove the Beachton lien from the 808 property due to it being 

usurious or satisfied, or undertook any action to bring the note current to avoid the default interest 

being charged.  

79. The terms of the New York Settlement, to which Julian, as an interested person and 

sole beneficiary to Oliver Sr.’s only known will, persistently objected, provided that all interest on 

the mortgage debt accruing after June 30, 2013, but on or before the date the Beachton mortgage 

debt is paid in full, was to be payable 50% by the Estate of Lorna and 50% by Rogers, as guardian 

of Oliver Sr.   

80. Moreover, the New York Settlement agreement provides that if “any party fails to 

comply with any of the party’s obligations set forth in Section 2 or 3 of this Agreement, the party 

to whom the obligation is owed shall have the right to enforce the terms set forth therein and the 

legal fees and costs incurred by the aggrieved party in enforcing such terms shall be paid by the 

Party found to be in breach of such terms.”   
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808 Lexington Management 

81. Despite the terms of the Texas Settlement and the consideration provided 

thereunder, Rogers remained in office as guardian for Oliver Sr. until April 23, 2014, when Kelly 

was appointed by the Court as successor guardian of Oliver Sr.    

82. From April 1, 2013 (the date of the Florida Court’s approval of the Texas 

Settlement) until Rogers was discharged by the Court in April 2014, as Florida guardian for Oliver 

Sr. (the “Interim Guardianship”), Rogers had a duty to properly manage 808 Lexington as a rental 

property. 

83. From April 23, 2014 (the date Kelly was appointed by the Court as successor 

guardian of Oliver Sr.) until the closing of the sale of 808 Lexington by Kelly, as guardian of 

Oliver Sr., Kelly had a duty to properly manage 808 Lexington as a rental property. 

84. The 808 Lexington Property consisted of four floors.  The first floor was rented out 

by a restaurant, Fig and Olive, which generated approximately $23,500 per month in rent.  The 

lease for Fig and Olive was set to expire in November 2014. 

85. The second floor of 808 Lexington was leased out to Pinafore Nursery and 

generated approximately $3,500 per month in rent, which was considerably below market.  The 

lease for Pinafore Nursery expired on December 31, 2010, and there was no new written lease 

entered into by Pinafore Nursery.   Following the expiration of the lease with Pinafore Nursery, it 

continued to pay a monthly rent of $3,500, notwithstanding that it was a holdover tenant without 

a lease. 

86. The fourth floor apartment had been rented out to Kimberly Beamis for $2,300 per 

month, but she vacated the premises prior to January 1, 2013 due to the failure of Rogers to 

maintain the unit.  Thereafter, fourth floor apartment became occupied by a person related to one 
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of the owners of Beachton for $1,500 per month, which amount was paid directly to Oliver Jr. and 

nothing to the Rogers or Kelly on behalf of the Ward.  The $1500, to the extent it was paid, was 

well below market value, no lease was in place, and Rogers or Kelly failed to investigate, 

participate, or take any action for the benefit of the Ward pertaining to this unit.   

87. The third floor tenant was evicted in either 2012 or 2013.  Neither Rogers nor Kelly 

undertook any efforts to re-rent this unit, which had a monthly rental value of several thousand 

dollars.   

88. Prior to the New York Settlement, Rogers should have been collecting 50% of the 

rental income from 808 Lexington, and should have made efforts to obtain full market rent on the 

second, third, and fourth floor units.     

89. Following the Court’s approval of the New York Settlement, Rogers should have 

been collecting all of the rental income from 808 Lexington.  Yet, during the period of Interim 

Guardianship, Rogers only passively collected 50% of the rental income from Fig and Olive.  

Rogers and Kelly ignored the remaining rent that Oliver Jr. was collecting on the other 50% of the 

rental income from Fig and Olive and ignored any effort to obtain any rental income from the other 

units or tenants.   

90. Following his appointment as successor guardian, Kelly should have been 

collecting all of the rental income from 808 Lexington.  Yet, until the sale of 808 Lexington, he 

only passively collected 50% of the rental income from Fig and Olive.  Kelly ignored the remaining 

rent that Oliver Jr. was collecting on the other 50% of the rental income from Fig and Olive and 

ignored any effort to obtain any rental income from the other units or tenants. 

91. Until recent efforts undertaken mainly by Julian at his own expense, Oliver Jr. had 

not paid any money to the State of New York or to Rogers or Kelly for any past due property taxes 
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pursuant to the New York Settlement, or for the amount of property taxes on 808 Lexington from 

May 9, 2013, to the date immediately prior to the Closing Date. 

92. Until recent efforts undertaken mainly by Julian at his own expense, Oliver Jr. had 

not paid any of the interest that accrued on the 808 Mortgage from June 30, 2013, until it was paid 

in full.   

93. During the period of Interim Guardianship, Rogers also failed to take actions for 

the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, the following acts with respect to 808 

Lexington: 

a. Enter into discussions with Fig and Olive regarding renewing its lease or increasing the 

monthly rental payments; 

b. Enter into discussions with Pinafore Nursery to sign a new lease and increase its rent 

from the monthly rent it was paying for the previous four years; 

c. Take any action to market the third or fourth floor apartments; 

d. Take any action with respect to repairing, renovating, or maintaining 808 Lexington, 

including, but not limited to, its common areas, to obtain the highest and best rental 

values for the property;  

e. Collect the appropriate rental income due Oliver Sr. from the lease of 808 Lexington;  

f. Pursue an action against Oliver Jr. to force Oliver Jr. to use the rental income from 808 

Lexington to pay down the Beachton mortgage and to enforce the New York 

Settlement; 

g. Bring an action against Beachton for usury or satisfaction based upon the interest it 

received in 808 Lexington and thereafter 67th Street; and  
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h. Obtain commercial financing to pay off the 808 Mortgage assigned to Beachton to 

avoid the default interest rate it was accruing against 808 Lexington. 

94. After his appointment as successor guardian of Oliver Sr. on April 23, 2014, Kelly 

also failed to take actions for the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, the following 

acts with respect to 808 Lexington: 

a. Enter into discussions with Fig and Olive regarding renewing its lease or increasing the 

monthly rental payments; 

b. Enter into discussions with Pinafore Nursery to sign a new lease and increase its rent 

from the monthly rent it was paying for the previous four years; 

c. Take any action to market the third or fourth floor apartments; 

d. Take any action with respect to repairing, renovating, or maintaining 808 Lexington, 

including, but not limited to, its common areas, to obtain the highest and best rental 

values for the property;  

e. Collect the appropriate rental income due Oliver Sr. from the lease of 808 Lexington;  

f. Properly pursue an action against Oliver Jr. to force Oliver Jr. to use the rental income 

from 808 Lexington to pay down the Beachton mortgage and to enforce the New York 

Settlement; 

g. Bring an action against Beachton for usury or satisfaction based upon the interest it 

received in 808 Lexington and thereafter 67th Street; and  

h. Obtain commercial financing to pay off the 808 Mortgage assigned to Beachton to 

avoid the default interest rate it was accruing against 808 Lexington. 
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Due Diligence as to New York Settlement 

95. Prior to entering into the New York Settlement, Rogers failed to do any type of due 

diligence as to the true fair market value of 808 Lexington and 67th Street, including, but not limited 

to, obtaining appraisals of the properties.  Yet, Rogers and his counsel represented to the Florida 

Court that the New York Settlement was in the best interests of Oliver Sr. and that the properties 

were approximately equal in value. 

96. On or about the Closing Date, the fair market value of 808 Lexington was 

approximately $5 million and the true fair market value of 67th Street was more than $22.5 million. 

97. The fair market value of the London property has never been addressed other than 

in a cursory fashion by Rogers or the attorneys he hired to protect the Ward’s interest, despite the 

property being located in the most exclusive and high priced rental district in London and 

documents within the Guardians possession indicating that it had a value far in excess of the Ocean 

Boulevard property. 

98. As a result, contrary to what was represented by Rogers and his counsel to the 

guardianship court to obtain approval for the settlement, the estate of Oliver Sr. received assets 

from the New York Settlement with a value substantially less than those received by the Estate of 

Lorna.   

COUNT I 
Breach of Fiduciary Duty Against Defendants Rogers,  

O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and Stein Law Firm 
 

99. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  
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100. During the period of the Interim Guardianship, Rogers had a fiduciary duty to 

Oliver Sr. to act in his best interest until Rogers was discharged as guardian, including, among 

other things, a duty of loyalty.  

101. O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm (“Counsel for 

Rogers”) represented Rogers, in his capacity as guardian for Oliver Sr., in connection with the 

New York Settlement and thereafter.   

102. Counsel for Rogers, while he was acting as guardian for Oliver Sr., owed similar 

duties to Oliver Sr. and were fully aware that the work they were doing for Rogers, as guardian of 

Oliver Sr., was for the benefit of Oliver Sr. 

103. Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr., and Counsel for Rogers were negligent and 

reckless in the exercise of their fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr., resulting in damages to him. 

104. By failing to take actions for the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, 

failing to, (a) properly manage 808 Lexington, (b) perform proper due diligence of the value of 

808 Lexington, 67th Street, Ocean Boulevard, or the London Property to properly evaluate the 

fairness of the New York Settlement, (c) take prompt or appropriate action against Oliver Jr. to 

collect rents and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr., (d) failing to ensure that rental 

income from 808 Lexington was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage, (e) arrange for 

commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton mortgage, and (f) failing to pursue 

action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or released, Rogers damaged the 

Estate of Oliver Sr. in contravention of his fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr. 

105. At all material times, Counsel for Rogers, as guardian of Oliver Sr., owed fiduciary 

duties to Oliver Sr. and were involved and participated in Rogers’ actions or inactions, resulting 

in the above described damage.  
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106. Plaintiff was required to retain the Bleakley Bavol Law Firm to mitigate the 

damages to the Estate of Oliver Sr. and is required to pay it a reasonable fee for its services. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendants 

Rogers, O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm and such other relief as 

the Court deems just and proper, including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against 

Defendants.   

COUNT II 
Breach of Fiduciary Duty Against Defendants Kelly, 

O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and Stein Law Firm 
 

107. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

108. Following his appointment as successor guardian of Oliver Sr. on April 23, 2014, 

Kelly had a fiduciary duty to Oliver Sr. to act in his best interest until Kelly was discharged as 

guardian, including, among other things, a duty of loyalty.  

109. O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm represented Kelly 

(“Counsel for Kelly”), in his capacity as successor guardian for Oliver Sr.   

110. Counsel for Kelly, while he was acting as guardian for Oliver Sr., owed similar 

duties to Oliver Sr. and were fully aware that the work they were doing for Kelly, as successor 

guardian of Oliver Sr., was for the benefit of Oliver Sr. 

111. Kelly, as guardian of Oliver Sr., and Counsel for Kelly were negligent and reckless 

in the exercise of their fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr., resulting in damages to him. 
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112. By failing to take actions for the benefit of the Ward, including, but not limited to, 

failing to (a) properly manage 808 Lexington, (b) take prompt or appropriate action against Oliver 

Jr. to collect rents and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr., (c) failing to ensure that 

rental income from 808 Lexington was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage, (d) arrange for 

commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton mortgage,  (e) entering into an 

unreasonable exclusive sales agreement with Lipa Lieberman, and (f) failing to pursue action 

against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or released, Kelly damaged the Estate of 

Oliver Sr. in contravention of Defendants’ fiduciary duties. 

113. At all material times, Counsel for Kelly, as successor guardian of Oliver Sr., owed 

fiduciary duties to Oliver Sr. and were involved and participated in Kelly’s actions or inactions, 

resulting in the above described damage.  

114. Plaintiff was required to retain the Bleakley Bavol Law Firm to mitigate the 

damages to the Estate of Oliver Sr. and is required to pay it a reasonable fee for its services.  

115. WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the 

ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against 

Defendants Kelly, O’Connell, Crispin, Ciklin, Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm and such other 

relief as the Court deems just and proper, including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against 

Defendants.   

COUNT III 
Negligence Against Defendant Rogers 

 
116. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

117. Defendant Rogers had a duty to the Ward to administer the guardianship observing 
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a standard in dealing with guardianship property that would be observed by a prudent person 

dealing with the property of another, in the best interest of the ward, using such special skills and/or 

expertise to the extent that any such representation was made as to the special skills or expertise 

of the guardian. 

118. Defendant Rogers, as guardian of the Ward, negligently administered the 

guardianship by failing to discharge his duties as guardian and by wasting and mismanaging the 

Ward’s property. 

119. Defendant Rogers was negligent in the following ways: 

(a) By failing to properly manage 808 Lexington; 

(b) By failing to perform proper due diligence of the value of 808 Lexington and 67th Street 

to properly evaluate the fairness of the New York Settlement; 

(c) By failing to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents and taxes owed by the Estate 

of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(d) By failing to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington was used to pay down the 

Beachton mortgage; 

(e) By failing to arrange for commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton 

mortgage; 

(f) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

(g) By permitting Beachton to collect usurious interest on the 808 Lexington mortgage; 

(h) By permitting the guardianship attorney’s to collect unnecessary and excessive fees; 

(i) By failing to monitor or challenge excessive hourly attorney’s fees charged by the 

guardianship attorneys; 
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(j) By failing to prepare or implement a guardianship plan; 

(k) By failing to prepare accurate annual reports regarding the guardianship assets; 

(l) By failing to maintain guardianship financial records to accurately track and recover 

guardianship assets;  

(m) By pursuing needless and wasteful litigation against the Ward’s heir;  

(n) By failing to take action against the Ward’s former wife, Lorna Bivins, to recover 

contribution for unpaid taxes; and  

(o) By charging the Ward excessive guardian fees; 

120. As a direct and proximate result of the negligence of Defendant Rogers as set forth 

above, the Ward has suffered damages. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendant 

Rogers and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, including an award of attorneys’ 

fees and costs against Defendants.   

COUNT IV 
Negligence Against Defendant Kelly 

 
1121. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

122. Defendant Kelly had a duty to the Ward to manage the guardianship observing a 

standard in dealing with guardianship property that would be observed by a prudent person dealing 

with the property of another, in the best interest of the ward, using such special skills and/or 

expertise to the extent that any such representation was made as to the special skills or expertise 

of the guardian. 
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123. Defendant Kelly, as guardian of the Ward, negligently administered the 

guardianship by failing to discharge his duties as guardian and by wasting and mismanaging the 

Ward’s property. 

124. Defendant Kelly was negligent in the following ways: 

(a) By failing to properly manage 808 Lexington; 

(b) By failing to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents and taxes owed by the Estate 

of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(c) By failing to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington was used to pay down the 

Beachton mortgage; 

(d) By failing to arrange for commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton 

mortgage; 

(e) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

 (f) By permitting Beachton to collect usurious interest on the 808 Lexington mortgage; 

 (g) By failing to monitor or challenge excessive hourly attorney’s fees charged by the 

guardianship attorneys; 

(h) By failing to prepare or implement a guardianship plan; 

(i) By failing to prepare accurate annual reports regarding the guardianship assets; and 

(j) By failing to maintain guardianship financial records to accurately track and recover 

guardianship assets. 

(k) By charging the Ward excessive guardian fees; 

125. As a direct and proximate result of the negligence of Defendant Kelly as set forth 

above, the Ward has suffered damages. 
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WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendant 

O’Connell and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, including an award of 

attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants.   

COUNT V 
Professional Negligence Against Defendant O’Connell 

 
126. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

127. O’Connell represented both Rogers and Kelly in their capacity guardians for Oliver 

Sr. 

128. During the guardianship, O’Connell undertook to provide legal services to the 

guardianship, with the full knowledge that Oliver Sr. was an intended beneficiary of his legal 

services.  At all times O’Connell held himself out as competent in the areas of law for which he 

was retained to provide representation. 

129. O’Connell was required to exercise the same legal skill as a reasonably competent 

attorney and to use reasonable care in determining and implementing a strategy to be followed to 

achieve the guardianship’s goals, or alternatively goals that were in the best interest of Oliver Sr. 

130. In the course of handling legal matters for the guardianship, O’Connell negligently 

failed to act with the degree of competence generally possessed by attorneys in the State of Florida 

who handle similar matters.  Oliver Sr., through his guardians was forced to pay O’Connell a 

substantial amount of money for his representation.  

131. O’Connell was negligent and/or committed malpractice in the following ways: 
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(a) By failing to perform proper due diligence of the value of 808 Lexington and 67th Street, 

or Ocean Boulevard or the London Property to properly evaluate the fairness of the New 

York Settlement; 

(b) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the clear discrepancy in the values of 

the properties involving in the New York Settlement; 

(c) By advising the client to enter into the New York settlement against the best interest of 

the guardianship and encouraging settlement to obtain fees rather than benefit Oliver Sr.; 

(d) By failing to advise the guardianship to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents 

and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(e) By failing to advise the guardianship to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington 

was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage; 

(f) By failing to advise the guardianship to arrange for commercial reasonable substitute 

financing for the Beachton mortgage; 

(g) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

(h) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the usurious interest charged by 

Beachton; 

(i) By charging and taking from the guardianship excessive attorney’s fees; and by failing 

to prevent Lipa Lieberman from obtaining an exclusive sales agreement or excessive fees 

because Lieberman had helped O’Connell bolster his fee claim under the hybrid 

contingency fee claim; 

(j) By failing to properly prosecute claim against Oliver Jr. under Global Settlement and 

trying to settle for low amount solely to obtain fees as opposed to acting in best interest of 
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Oliver Sr. and/ or his estate, and engaging in acts constituting a conflict of interest by 

seeking to avoid recoupment against Oliver Jr. unless she could obtain a release from Julian 

as to the Guardian; and 

(k) By failing to account to the Court or Julian that he and his firm had failed to comply 

with the Global Settlement Order by improperly holding back several hundred thousand 

dollars from the proceeds of the sale of 808 Lexington in the firm’s trust account. 

132. As a direct and proximate result of O’Connell’s negligence and/or malpractice, the 

Ward sustained damages. 

133. Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell is vicariously liable for the negligence of its attorneys 

including O’Connell. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendant 

O’Connell and Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, 

including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants.   

COUNT VI 
Professional Negligence Against Defendant Crispin 

 
134. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

135. Crispin represented both Rogers and Kelly in their capacity guardians for Oliver 

Sr. 

136. During the guardianship, Crispin undertook to provide legal services to the 

guardianship, with the full knowledge that Oliver Sr. was an intended beneficiary of his legal 
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services.  At all times Crispin held herself out as competent in the areas of law for which she was 

retained to provide representation. 

137. Crispin was required to exercise the same legal skill as a reasonably competent 

attorney and to use reasonable care in determining and implementing a strategy to be followed to 

achieve the guardianship’s goals, or alternatively goals that were in the best interest of Oliver Sr. 

138. In the course of handling legal matters for the guardianship, Crispin negligently 

failed to act with the degree of competence generally possessed by attorneys in the State of Florida 

who handle similar matters.  Oliver Sr., through his guardians was forced to pay Crispin a 

substantial amount of money for her representation. 

139. Crispin was negligent and/or committed malpractice in the following ways: 

(a) By failing to perform proper due diligence of the value of 808 Lexington and 67th, or 

Ocean Boulevard or the London Property Street to properly evaluate the fairness of the 

New York Settlement; 

(b) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the clear discrepancy in the values of 

the properties involving in the New York Settlement; 

(c) By advising the client to enter into the New York settlement against the best interest of 

the guardianship and encouraging settlement to obtain fees rather than benefit Oliver Sr.; 

(d) By failing to advise the guardianship to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents 

and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(e) By failing to advise the guardianship to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington 

was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage; 

(f) By failing to advise the guardianship to seek substitute financing for the Beachton 

mortgage; 
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(g) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

(h) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the usurious interest charged by 

Beachton; 

(i) By charging and taking from the guardianship excessive attorney’s fees and by failing 

to prevent Lipa Lieberman from obtaining an exclusive sales agreement or excessive fees 

because Lieberman had helped Crispin’s firm bolster their fee claim under the hybrid 

contingency fee claim; 

(j) By failing to properly prosecute claim against Oliver Jr. under Global Settlement and 

trying to settle for low amount solely to obtain fees as opposed to acting in best interest of 

Oliver Sr. and/ or his estate, and engaging in acts constituting a conflict of interest by 

seeking to avoid recoupment against Oliver Jr. unless she could obtain a release from Julian 

as to the Guardian; and 

(k) By failing to account to the Court or Julian that she and her firm had failed to comply 

with the Global Settlement Order by improperly holding back several hundred thousand 

dollars from the proceeds of the sale of 808 Lexington in the firm’s trust account. 

140. As a direct and proximate result of Crispin’s negligence and/or malpractice, the 

Ward sustained damages. 

141. Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell is vicariously liable for the negligence of its attorneys 

including Crispin. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendant 
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Crispin and Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, 

including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants.   

COUNT VII 
Professional Negligence Against Defendant Stein 

 
142. Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of 

Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, hereby re-alleges and adopts by reference all allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 98, supra, as if fully set forth herein.  

143. Stein represented both Rogers and Kelly in their capacity guardians for Oliver Sr. 

with the full knowledge and understanding that Oliver Sr. was the intended beneficiary of his legal 

services. 

144. During the guardianship, Stein undertook to provide legal services to the 

guardianship.  At all times Stein held himself out as competent in the areas of law for which he 

was retained to provide representation. 

145. Stein was required to exercise the same legal skill as a reasonably competent 

attorney and to use reasonable care in determining and implementing a strategy to be followed to 

achieve the guardianship’s goals. 

146. In the course of handling legal matters for the guardianship, Stein negligently failed 

to act with the degree of competence generally possessed by attorneys in the State of Florida who 

handle similar matters.  The guardianship paid Stein a substantial amount of money for the sole 

purpose of representing the guardianship. 

147. Stein was negligent and/or committed malpractice in the following ways: 

(a) By failing to perform proper due diligence of the value of 808 Lexington and 67th Street, 

Ocean Boulevard or the London Property to properly evaluate the fairness of the New York 

Settlement; 
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(b) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the clear discrepancy in the values of 

the properties involving in the New York Settlement; 

(c) By advising the client to enter into the New York settlement against the best interest of 

the guardianship; 

(d) By failing to advise the guardianship to take action against Oliver Jr. to collect rents 

and taxes owed by the Estate of Lorna or Oliver Jr.; 

(e) By failing to advise the guardianship to ensure that rental income from 808 Lexington 

was used to pay down the Beachton mortgage; 

(f) By failing to arrange for commercially reasonable substitute financing for the Beachton 

mortgage, as opposed to preventing such an alternative unless it also included financing to 

cover attorney’s fees for himself, his firm, and the guardians and their other counsel; 

(g) By failing to pursue action against Beachton to have its mortgage deemed satisfied or 

released; 

(h) By failing to advise the guardianship regarding the usurious interest charged by 

Beachton; 

(i) By charging and taking from the guardianship excessive attorney’s fees; 

(j) By taking large sums of money under the guise of retainers without accounting or 

documentation therefore; and 

(k) By failing to account to the Court or to Julian regarding the failure to comply with the 

terms of the Global Settlement Agreement as the closing agent. 

148. As a direct and proximate result of Stein’s negligence and/or malpractice, the Ward 

sustained damages. 
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149.  Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP f/k/a Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP 

and The Law Offices of Keith B. Stein, PLLC n/k/a Stein Law, PLLC are vicariously liable for the 

negligence of their attorneys including Stein. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the ancillary 

Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, deceased, requests the Court award damages against Defendants 

Stein, Beys, and the Stein Law Firm and such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, 

including an award of attorneys’ fees and costs against Defendants.   

Jury Demand 

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all issues so triable. 

Dated: January 8, 2016.   Respectfully Submitted,  
 
       

 
 
      /s/ J. Ronald Denman________________     

J. Ronald Denman  
Florida Bar Number 0863475 

      The Bleakley Bavol Law Firm 
      15170 North Florida Avenue 
      Tampa, FL 33613 
      (813) 221-3759 [Telephone] 
      (813) 221-3198 [Facsimile] 
      rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 
      Attorneys for JULIAN BIVINS 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 15-81298-CV-MARRA/MATTHEWMAN 
 

 
JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative 
of the Ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
v. 
 
CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR. as  
former guardian, STEPHEN M. KELLY, as 
successor guardian, BRIAN M. O’CONNELL, 
ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ & 
O’CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, BEYS  
LISTON MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP 
f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, 
LLP, and LAW OFFICES OF KEITH B. STEIN, 
PLLC, n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC,   
 
  Defendants. 
      / 
 

DEFENDANTS, KELLY’S, O’CONNELL’S, CRISPIN’S, 
STEIN’S, THE CLO LAW FIRM’S, AND THE STEIN LAW FIRM’S, 

MOTION TO DISMISS OR STAY, WITH INTEGRATED MEMORANDUM OF LAW  
 

Defendants, Stephen M. Kelly, Brian M. O’Connell (“O’Connell”), Ashley N. Crispin 

(“Crispin”), Keith B. Stein, Ciklin Lubitz & O’Connell (“the CLO Law Firm”), and the Law 

Office of Keith B. Stein, PLLC (“the Stein Law Firm”) (collectively “the Moving Defendants”), 

by and through the undersigned counsel and pursuant to Rule 12(b)(1) of the Federal Rules of 

Civil Procedure, hereby respectfully submit their Motion to Dismiss or Stay with Integrated 

Memorandum of Law.  

I. SUMMARY OF MOTION 

Under the Colorado River doctrine, a federal court should dismiss or abstain from 

exercising jurisdiction over a case if there is a parallel proceeding in state court and the interests 
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of wise judicial administration demand abstention.  This Court may consider matters outside the 

pleadings to determine the relevant issues, including (1) whether the proceedings are parallel; (2) 

the order in which the courts assumed jurisdiction over property; (3) the relative inconvenience 

of the fora; (4) avoidance of piecemeal litigation; (5) the order in which jurisdiction was obtained 

and the relative progress of the two actions; (6) whether federal law provides the rule of decision; 

(7) whether the state court will adequately protect the rights of all parties; (8) forum shopping; 

and (9) vexatious or reactive nature of the second suit.   

Here, Plaintiff seeks to litigate based directly on guardianship proceedings that have been 

pending in the probate division of a Florida state court since 2011.  Over the years, the Plaintiff, 

as an interested person, has participated in the guardianship proceedings and contested numerous 

matters therein.  Since the ward passed away on March 2, 2015, the Plaintiff, in his purported 

capacity of personal representative of the former ward’s estate, has participated in the 

guardianship proceedings.  The allegations that form the basis for the Plaintiff’s Amended 

Complaint (and initial Complaint) in this federal court are squarely before the state court 

presiding over the guardianship proceedings, and all of the factors above are either inapplicable 

or inure in favor of the moving Defendants.  Accordingly, as set forth below, Plaintiff’s 

Amended Complaint should be dismissed or this action stayed.                  

II. INTRODUCTION TO TIMELINE AND PARTIES1 
   
On or about January 2, 2011, a petition to determine incapacity of Oliver Bivins, Sr. 

(“Oliver Sr.” or “the Ward”) was filed in the Probate Division of the Circuit Court of the Fifteen 

Judicial Circuit in an for Palm Beach County, Florida (hereinafter, “the Florida State 

                                                 
1  The Moving Defendants accept the Plaintiff’s allegations as true solely for the purposes of this Motion.  

 2 
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Probate/Guardianship Court”).2  On or about May 10, 2011, the Court appointed Defendant 

Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. (“Rogers”) as the limited guardian of the person and property of 

Oliver Sr.  (DE 18, Amended Complaint, ¶ 44).3  According to the Amended Complaint, Rogers 

retained Defendant Stein and his then-law firm in or about October 2012 concerning certain 

guardianship properties in New York.  (DE 58, and DE 59-80).  Again, according to the 

Amended Complaint, Rogers retained the CLO Firm in November 2012.  (DE 57).  On April 23, 

2014, Kelly was appointed successor guardian.  (DE 83, 108).  The administration of the 

guardianship and its properties is set forth in more detail in section III below. 

The Ward passed away on March 2, 2015.  (DE 1).  Plaintiff is the Ward’s son by the 

Ward’s first marriage.  (DE 29).  The Plaintiff alleges that he “is the Personal Representative of 

the ancillary Estate of the deceased Ward in Palm Beach, County, Florida.”  (DE 2).4  On July 8, 

2015 and July 9, 2015, guardians Rogers and Kelly filed and served their respective final 

accountings and reports of guardianship property with the Florida State Probate/Guardianship 

Court.  On August 7 and 10, 2015, Plaintiff filed his Objections with the Florida State 

Probate/Guardianship Court.  Copies of Plaintiff’s Objections to Rogers’ and Kelly’s 

accountings/reports are attached as “Exhibits “A” and “B,” respectively.5   

                                                 
2  See DE 18, Amended Complaint, ¶ 41, and DE 18-1 (caption indicating court). 
 
3  The Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court appointed Defendant Kelly as emergency temporary guardian on 
January 5, 2011.  (DE 41).  Kelly’s actions prior to the appointment of Rogers are not at issue.  (See DE 1, passim). 
   
4  That appointment is subject to an action to revoke the appointment and the letters of administration issued to 
Plaintiff.  (See Exhibit 6, Verified Petition for Revocation of Probate).   
 
5  In determining a motion based on Colorado River doctrine, the court may consider matters outside the pleadings.  
E.g., First Keystone Consultants, Inc. v. Schlesinger Electrical Contractors, Inc., 862 F. Supp. 2d 170, 181, 181 n.11 
(E.D.N.Y. 2012).  
 

 3 
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Plaintiff’s objections concern property that is the res of the guardianship.  He contests the 

guardians’ actions concerning that property, and alleges the same or directly related allegations 

that he alleges in this Court.  (See Exhibits 1 & 2, ¶¶ 1-3, 5-6, 8).  The Plaintiff also alleges that 

the CLO Firm6 breached its fiduciary duty to the ward and failed to benefit the ward, and, 

accordingly, should not be paid.  The Plaintiff has been actively litigating his Objections in the 

Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court guardianship proceeding, which are currently pending 

and have not been ruled upon.   

On September 17, 2015, Plaintiff filed his Complaint with this federal court.  (DE 1).  

The allegations raised the same issues as Plaintiff’s Objections filed in Florida State 

Probate/Guardianship Court, and closely derivative or related issues--all challenging the 

guardians and their attorneys’ actions concerning the property of the guardianship.  (DE 1, 

passim).  Plaintiff then waited more than two months to apply for summonses (see DE 5, 7), and 

did not serve the first of the summonses until the evening of December 3, 2015, when he served 

Defendants Crispin and Stein.   

Defendants had no prior notice that Plaintiff would attempt to bypass the ongoing 

guardianship proceedings and obtain review of the actions of the guardians and their attorneys by 

this federal court.  Accordingly, on December 4, 2015, the Moving Defendants herein (and 

Defendant Rogers) filed and served an Adversarial Proceeding for Declaratory Judgment 

(“Adversarial Proceeding Complaint”) directly raising all of the Plaintiff’s issues in the 

appropriate court; the Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court, where the guardianship 

                                                 
6  Defendants O’Connell and Crispin were the only active agents of the CLO Firm.  Defendants O’Connell, Crispin, 
Stein, the CLO Firm, and the Stein Firm shall be hereinafter collectively referred to as “the lawyer Defendants.”   

 4 
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proceeding had been pending and litigated for more than five years.  A copy of the Adversarial 

Proceeding Complaint with exhibits thereto is attached as Exhibit “C.”7   

Plaintiff served the remaining Defendants after December 4, 2015.  Plaintiff filed and 

served his Amended Complaint on January 8, 2016.  Like the original, the Amended Complaint 

alleged that the guardians and their attorneys acted inappropriately regarding guardianship assets.  

(See DE 18).  

III. APPLICATION OF COLORADO RIVER DOCTRINE          

In Colorado River Water Conservation District v. United States, 424 U.S. 800, 96 S.Ct. 

1236, 47 L.Ed.2d 483 (1976), the Supreme Court held that abstention may be appropriate where 

there are parallel state-court proceedings and principles of wise judicial administration warrant a 

decision to abstain from exercising jurisdiction.  Colorado River, 424 U.S. at 818-20.  “Wise 

judicial administration [gives] regard to conservation of judicial resources and comprehensive 

disposition of litigation.”  Id. at 817.  The doctrine concerns the situation when one proceeding 

suddenly becomes two.  See D.A. Osguthorpe Family Partnership v. ASC Utah, Inc., 705 F.3d 

1223, 1233 (10th Cir. 2013).  Under certain “exceptional circumstances” identified by the 

Colorado River Court, a district court may decline to exercise jurisdiction over a parallel state 

proceeding.  Moorer v. Demopolis Waterworks and Sewer Board, 374 F.3d 994, 997 (11th Cir. 

2004).            

 A. Parallel State Proceedings 

“The court must decide whether the [state proceedings] and the … federal action are … 

‘parallel.’”  Amason & Assocs., Inc. v. Columbus Land Dev., LLC, 2014 WL 467509, at *10 

(N.D. Ala. Feb. 5, 2014).  “Proceedings need not involve exactly identical parties, issues, and 

                                                 
7  In determining a motion based on Colorado River doctrine, the court may consider matters outside the pleadings.  
E.g., First Keystone, 862 F. Supp. 2d at 181, 181 n.11..  

 5 
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requests for relief to be deemed parallel.”  Id. (citing Ambrosia Coal and Constr. Co. v. Morales, 

368 F.3d 320, 1329 (11th Cir. 2004)).  “Rather, the Colorado River analysis applies when state 

and federal proceedings involve substantially the same parties and substantially the same 

issues.”  Id. (citing Ambrosia Coal and Constr. Co. v. Morales, 368 F.3d 320, 1330 (11th Cir. 

2004)).  

 Here, the proceedings are parallel.  Both involve the same property—the property of the 

guardianship and actions taken therein.  Both fully address—as the primary issues--the Plaintiff’s 

allegations of breaches of the duties owed to the ward by the guardians and by the lawyer 

Defendants.  (See DE 18, Amended Complaint passim, and Ex. 3; Moving Defendants’ 

Adversary Proceeding for Declaratory Relief, passim).  Even in specific sub-issues, the 

proceedings are parallel.  For example, failure to properly manage the property known as “808 

Lexington” is a sub-issue of the Amended Complaint and Plaintiff’s Objections.  (See DE 18, 

Amended Complaint, ¶¶ 104-05, 112-13, 119, 124 and Exhibits 1 & 2, Plaintiff Objections filed 

in the Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court, ¶ 1).  Plaintiff has been litigating this sub-issue 

in the Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court since at least February 2015.  (See Ex. 5, 

Objection to Petition for Order, ¶¶ 6-8).8  

 The parties are substantially the same in both proceedings.  The Plaintiff was an 

“interested person” in the Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court and participated in those 

proceedings.  (See Ex. 5, Objection, pg 1, alleging an objection to payment of guardian fees as an 

“interested person”).  He participates now in the Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court 

proceedings as now as the purported “ancillary representative of the Estate of [the former 

                                                 
8  For another example, of parallel sub-issues, the Plaintiff alleges breach of fiduciary duty to the ward and failure to 
benefit the ward on the part of the CLO Law Firm in both proceedings.  (See Amended Complaint ¶¶ 101-03, 105 
and Ex. 1, Plaintiff’s Objection to Rogers’ Final Accounting, ¶ 7).  
       

 6 
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ward].”  (See Ex. 1, Objection, pg 1).  Defendant Kelly, a one of the guardians, was a formal 

party in the guardianship.  The lawyer Defendants, as agents of the guardians, cannot be 

considered strangers to the guardianship proceeding.  Here, the parties are substantially similar in 

both proceedings.         

According to the Court in Sini v. Citibank, N.A., 990 F. Supp. 2d 1370 (S.D. Fla. 2014), 

“[t]he crucial question [regarding whether there a parallel state proceeding for Colorado River 

Doctrine purposes] is whether the ‘similarity between the two cases is sufficient to justify the 

conclusion that the state court litigation will be an adequate vehicle for the complete and prompt 

resolution of the issue[s] between the parties.’”  Sini v. Citibank, N.A., 990 F. Supp. 2d 1370, 

1376 (S.D. Fla. 2014) (citing and quoting Brown v. Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Fla, Inc., 2011 

WL 11532078, at *8 (S.D. Fla. Aug. 8, 2011)).  Here, the Florida State Probate/Guardianship 

Court is already intimately familiar with all of the facts, the properties, the actions taken by the 

guardians, the actions taken by the lawyer Defendants, as well as the orders issued and 

settlements entered into.  The Plaintiff’s Amended Complaint invites this federal court to assume 

jurisdiction over a dispute that will entail review of years of probate proceedings, and the actions 

taken therein by the guardians and the guardians’ attorneys’.  The Florida State 

Probate/Guardianship Court is a more than “adequate vehicle for the complete and prompt 

resolution of the issue[s] between the parties.”     

Because here, the state and federal proceedings are parallel, the Court should next 

consider the factors set forth by the Supreme Court to determine whether abstention from the 

Court’s exercise of jurisdiction is appropriate.  Sini, 990 F. Supp. 2d at 1376, 1377.       

 B. Jurisdiction Over the Property at Issue 

 7 
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“The first Colorado River factor concerns whether one of the courts has assumed 

jurisdiction over the property at issue.”  Amason, 2014 WL 467509 at *10.  Here, although the 

allegations concern the Moving Defendants actions vis-à-vis property of the guardianship, the 

Plaintiff does not seek relief against that property, accordingly, the first factor is neutral.  See id. 

(where neither proceeding was in rem, “the first factor is neutral”.).    

 C. Relative Inconvenience of the Fora 

This factor concerns the physical proximity of the federal forum to the evidence and 

witnesses.  Id.  Here, both courts are located within one-half mile of each other, according this 

factor is also neutral.    

 D. Avoidance of Piecemeal Litigation and Inconsistent Results 
 

 “The third Colorado River factor considers the potential for inconsistency and piecemeal 

litigation.”  Amason, 2014 WL 467509, at *11.  Piecemeal litigation occurs when different 

tribunals consider the same issue, thereby duplicating efforts and possibly reaching different 

results.”  Id.  The circumstances under which the parallel cases would lead to piecemeal 

litigation must be abnormally excessive and deleterious.  Id.  Where, as here, “identical litigation 

has been filed in both federal and state courts, duplicative proceedings would be unduly 

excessive.”  Id. at *12.  Here, the mammoth size of the guardianship proceeding indicates the 

distinct possibility of piecemeal litigation.  During the five-plus years of proceedings, there have 

been four settlement agreements and orders, at least three appeals and 1,176 docket entries to 

date.  (See Ex. 4, State Court Docket Sheet).  Plaintiff’s Amended Complaint, in essence, will 

require that much of that litigation be revisited and the appropriateness of the moving 

Defendants’ actions taken therein reviewed by this Court, instead of the Court familiar with it.  

This case should live out the rest of its days in the place where it began years ago and where all 

 8 
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the actions at issue occurred: in the Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court.  Accordingly, this 

factor—avoidance of piecemeal litigation--favors abstention. 

 Further there are concerns about collateral estoppel if the two cases continue.  Because 

the Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court is intimately familiar with the factual 

underpinnings of the parties’ actions, it will likely conclude first, with will moot the issues 

before this federal Court.  As the Amason Court said, “To continue this action knowing that such 

an outcome is likely, is an unnecessary waste of judicial resources.”  Id.; see also, Sini, 990 F. 

Supp. 2d at 1379 (because one court’s rulings on similar or identical claims could have 

preclusive and binding effect on the other court, a party may try to accelerate or stall action in 

one case in an effort to win a ruling from the more favorable forum.  Given the duplicative 

claims … in the state action, the redundant proofs required by the respective claims, and the 

potential for conflicting rulings, the Court finds that the parallel cases present a serious danger of 

“abnormally excessive or deleterious” piecemeal litigation, and this factor weighs strongly in 

favor of abstention.”). 

 Accordingly, the factor of avoiding piecemeal litigation and inconsistent results favors 

abstention. 

E. The Order in which Jurisdiction was obtained and the Relative 
Progress of the Two Actions       

 
 “The order in which jurisdiction was taken is not a mechanical concept automatically 

favoring the party who files first, but rather a concept that favors the case that is more 

advanced.”  Kaplan v. Kaplan, 903 F. Supp. 2d 1304, 1309 (M.D. Fla. 2012), aff'd, 524 F. App’x 

547 (11th Cir. 2013).  A very similar case, the Kaplan Court explained: 

Certainly “more advanced,” the probate administration was opened six years ago 
(four years before the federal action) and contains more than 1,020 docket entries, 
which include contests over a personal representative, over the settlements of 

 9 
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claims, and over interim accountings. Both from the administration of probate and 
from Alexander's many associated lawsuits, the state court has acquired a brutally 
intimate familiarity with the dispute surrounding Leon's administration of Mack's 
estate. Interference from parallel federal litigation squanders the state court's 
accumulated investment. 

Kaplan, 903 F. Supp. 2d at 1309.  This factor also favors abstention.  
 

   F. Whether Federal Law Provides the Rule of Decision 

Here, all of the claims in the federal court are common law claims based on Florida law, 

accordingly, this factor favors abstention. 

G. Whether the State Court will Adequately Protect the Rights of All 
Parties          

 
Where as here, the guardian cannot be discharged without court approval and the 

opportunity for all interested parties to object, and possessing a singular expertise in Florida 

guardianship proceedings, all parties, including the Plaintiff, will have their rights adequately 

protected in the state court.  State courts are assumed to have developed a proficiency in probate 

matters.  Kaplan, 903 F. Supp. 2d at 1310.  Accordingly, this factor favors abstention. 

H. Forum Shopping 
 

Having raised his objections and having participated for years in the guardianship 

proceeding, the Plaintiff is clearly forum shopping by bring his claims in the federal court. 

I. Vexatious or Reactive Nature of the Second Suit 
 
As clearly indicated by Plaintiff’s lawsuit against the attorneys that represented the 

guardian and the ward, Plaintiff’s suit is vexation and reactive. 

Request for Relief 

Based on the forgoing, the Moving Defendants respectfully request that this Court enter a 

stay of this federal action pending the conclusion of the proceedings in the Florida State 

 10 
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Probate/Guardianship Court.  See Moorer, 374 F.3d at 998 (stay is preferred remedy for 

Colorado River abstention).     

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD FAITH CONFERENCE 
CONFERRED AND UNABLE TO RESOLVE ALL ISSUES PRESENTED IN THE MOTION  

 
 Pursuant to Local Rule 7.1(a)(3), I hereby certify that the undersigned counsel for the 
movants has conferred with all parties or non-parties who may be affected by the relief sought in 
this motion in a good faith effort to resolve the issues.  On or about December 22, 2015, counsel 
for the sole Plaintiff informed me that he opposes the relief sought in the foregoing motion.   

 
Dated: January 19, 2016. Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
     /s/______Charles L. Pickett, Jr.________________ 
     Charles L. Pickett, Jr. (Florida Bar No. 0051217) 

Cpickett@ciklinlubitz.com  
     CIKLIN LUBITZ & O'CONNELL 

515 North Flagler Drive, 20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 
Tel: (561) 832-5900; Fax: (561) 833-4209 
Attorneys for Defendants  O’Connell, Crispin, Kelly, Stein, 

 the CLO firm, and the Stein firm 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 I hereby certify that on January 19, 2016, I electronically filed the foregoing document 
with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF.  I also certify that the foregoing document is being 
served this day on all counsel of record or pro se parties identified on the attached Service List in 
the manner specified, either via transmission of notices of electronic filing generated by 
CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner for those counsel or parties who are not authorized 
to receive electronically notices of electronic filing. 
 
         /s/ Charles L. Pickett, Jr. ______  
       Charles L. Pickett (FBN: 0051217) 
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SERVICE LIST 
 

Via CM/ECF 
 
J. Ronald Denman, Esq.  
rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 
THE BLEAKLEY BAVOL LAW FIRM 
15170 North Florida Avenue 
Tampa, FL 33613 
Phone:  813-221-3759 
Fax:  813-221-3198 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 

 
 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 20   Entered on FLSD Docket 01/19/2016   Page 12 of 12

mailto:rdenman@bleakleybavol.com


 

{00378788.1 } 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

 
Case No. 15-81298-CV-MARRA/MATTHEWMAN 

 
 
JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative 
of the Ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
v. 
 
CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR. as  
former guardian, STEPHEN M. KELLY, as 
successor guardian, BRIAN M. O’CONNELL, 
ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ & 
O’CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, BEYS  
LISTON MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP 
f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, 
LLP, and LAW OFFICES OF KEITH B. STEIN, 
PLLC, n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC,   
 
  Defendants. 
             / 
 

DEFENDANT, CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR.’S  
MOTION TO DISMISS OR STAY 

 
Defendant, Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. hereby adopts and joins Defendant, Beys Liston 

Mobargha & Berland, LLP’s Amended Motion to Dismiss or Stay, with Integrated Memorandum 

of Law [D.E. 25], specifically sections III and IV of the Motion, as well as Defendants, Kelly’s, 

O’Connell’s, Crispin’s, Stein’s, the Cloe Law Firm’s, and the Stein Law Firm’s, Motion to 

Dismiss or Stay, with Integrated Memorandum of Law [D.E. 20, 21] as if fully stated herein. 

WHEREFORE, Defendant, Curtis Cahalloner Rogers, Jr. requests that this Court grant 

this Motion to Dismiss or Stay, dismiss this action, or enter a stay of this federal action pending 

the conclusion of the parallel proceedings in the Florida State Probate/Guardianship Court, and 

for other such relief as the Court deems just and proper. 
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Dated:  January 29, 2016. 
     Respectfully submitted, 
 
     /s/Wendy J. Stein    

Wendy J. Stein, Esq., FBN:  389552 
D. David Keller, Esq., FBN:  288799 
KELLER LANDSBERG PA 
Counsel for Defendant, Curtis Cahalloner 

Rogers, Jr. 

Broward Financial Centre, Suite 1400 
500 East Broward Boulevard 
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33394 
Telephone: (954) 761-3550 
Facsimile: (954) 525-2134 
Primary: wendy.stein@kellerlandsberg.com 
Second: david.keller@kellerlandsberg.com 
Third: lydia.dellatto@kellerlandsberg.com 

 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 
WE HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 29th day of January, 2016, I electronically filed the 

foregoing document with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF. I also certify that the foregoing 
document is being served this day on all counsel of record identified on the attached Service List 
via transmission of Notices of Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF. 

 
 
     By:  /s/Wendy J. Stein    

Wendy J. Stein 
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SERVICE LIST 
 

J. Ronald Denman, Esq.  
rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 
THE BLEAKLEY BAVOL LAW FIRM 
15170 North Florida Avenue 
Tampa, FL 33613 
Phone:  813-221-3759 
Fax:  813-221-3198 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
 
Charles L. Pickett, Jr. 
Cpickett@ciklinlubitz.com  
CIKLIN LUBITZ & O'CONNELL 
515 North Flagler Drive, 20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 
Phone:  (561) 832-5900 
Fax:  (561) 833-4209 
Attorneys for Defendants, O’Connell, Crispin, Kelly, Stein, 
the CLO firm, and the Stein firm 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR PALM 
BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
IN RE: GUARDIANSHIP OF:   GUARDIANSHIP DIVISION 
 
OLIVER BIVINS,    FILE NO: 502011GA000006XXXXSB 
 
Incapacitated. 
___________________________/ 
 
Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP, 
 

Petitioner, 
v. 
 
JULIAN BIVINS, purported ancillary personal  
representative of the Estate of Oliver Bivins, Sr. by and through 
his purported appointment as Temporary Administrator  
of the Estate of Oliver Bivins, 
 
 Respondent. 
______________________________________________/ 
 

ADVERSARY PROCEEDING FOR DECLARATORY JUDGMENT 
 

Beys Liston Mobargha & Berland, LLP (“the Beys Firm”), moves this Court to enter a 

declaratory judgment finding that neither, Curtis Rogers, as former Guardian of Oliver Bivins, 

Sr. (“Former Guardian”), Stephen M. Kelly, as Guardian of Oliver Bivins, Sr. (“Guardian”) 

(collectively “The Guardians”), Keith B. Stein, as counsel for The Guardian and/or former 

Guardian (“Stein”), nor the Beys Firm breached any fiduciary duty to the Ward, Oliver Bivins, 

Sr. and in support states as follows: 

1. The Ward, Oliver Bivins, is the subject of the above captioned guardianship. The Circuit 

Civil Court, in and for Palm Beach County, Florida, has, and currently retains, jurisdiction, of the 

person and property of this guardianship. As it relates to the guardianship of the person, The 

Ward, died on or about March 2, 2015.  

Filing # 36915337 E-Filed 01/22/2016 10:16:49 PM
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2. Julian Bivins (“Julian”) has alleged that he is duly serving as the Temporary 

Administrator for the Estate of the Ward in Texas and as such purportedly had himself appointed 

as the ancillary Personal Representative in Florida. Julian Bivins, is a court appointed fiduciary 

of the Estate of Oliver Bivins which is pending before this Court, Julian Bivins, in his capacity as 

Temporary Administrator, has consented to, and has appeared in all capacities in the above 

captioned proceeding. Therefore, personal and subject matter jurisdiction is proper in Palm 

Beach County, Florida and Julian Bivins, in all capacities, is subject to the jurisdiction of this 

Court. 

3. The Former Guardian is a resident of Palm Beach County, Florida and does business in 

Palm Beach County, Florida. 

4. The Guardian is a resident of Palm Beach County, Florida and does business in Palm 

Beach County, Florida. 

5. Stein is a New York resident.  

6. The Beys Firm is a limited liability partnership organized under the law of New York that 

performed services in New York for the Guardian and/or former Guardian and the Word in New 

York. 

7. Venue is proper in Palm Beach County, Florida as the Guardianship and Ancillary Estate 

are both pending before this Court. 

8. The Former Guardian became aware that Julian had improperly transfers or assisted the 

Ward in transferring substantial assets from the Ward to Julian at a time when Julian was either 

acting as a fiduciary, by and through a power of attorney, or when the Ward was incapacitated or 

Julian was exercising undue influence over the Ward in order to effectuate a transfer of wealth 

from the Ward to Julian. The Former Guardian sought this Court’s approval to file a lawsuit 
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against Julian. When Julian received notice of the Former Guardians intention to sue him, Julian 

“beat him to the punch” and sued him for various torts, including breach of fiduciary duty.  

9. The lawsuit resulted in a Court-approved Comprehensive Settlement Agreement, 

whereby a release was given to the Former Guardian, and his agents, by Julian. The Former 

Guardian was represented in Florida as it related to the described lawsuit, by O’Connell, Crispin 

and Ciklin Lubitz & O’Connell. See “A,” attached to the Adversary Proceeding for Declaratory 

Judgment filed herein by Curtis Rogers and others (hereinafter, “the Rogers Adversary 

Proceeding.”  

10. Later, litigation ensued between the Former Guardian, and Oliver Bivins, Jr, the Ward’s 

other son, over the assets of the Estate of Lorna Bivins, the “divorced”1 spouse of the Ward, 

mother of Oliver Bivins, Jr. and step-mother to the Respondent. The Former Guardian was 

represented as it related to the described lawsuit, and a related New York partition action, by 

O’Connell, Crispin, (as it related to Florida) Stein and the Beys Firm (as it related to New York) 

and Ciklin Lubitz & O’Connell (as it related to Florida).  

11. That litigation was also settled in a Court-approved Settlement Agreement. Julian 

objected to the approval of the Settlement Agreement, however, lost and failed to timely appeal. 

Julian later, as described below, assented to the agreement and order by moving to enforce it.  

See Exhibit “B,” attached to the Rogers Adversary Proceeding. 

12. Litigation then ensued again between the Guardian and Julian over the sale of real 

property, 808 Lexington Ave., New York, New York, garnered by the Former Guardian in the 

Settlement Agreement described in paragraph 11 above.  

13. That litigation was also settled in a Court –approved Settlement Agreement. As part of 

                                                 
1 The Divorce was the issue that was contested by the Former Guardian. The Divorce was procured by Julian as part 
of his scheme to divest the Ward and Lorna Bivins of their assets.  
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that Settlement Agreement, a release was given to the Guardian by Julian. The Former Guardian 

was represented in New York as it related to the described lawsuit, by the Beys Firm.  See 

Exhibit “C,” attached to the Rogers Adversary Proceeding. 

14. Litigation then ensued between the Guardian and Oliver Bivins, Jr. as it related to the 

management, allocation of expenses, maintenance, encumbrances, among other things, related to, 

property previously owned by Oliver Bivins, Jr., as the personal representative of the Estate of 

Lorna Bivins and the Former Guardian/Guardian and then solely by the Former 

Guardian/Guardian, 808 Lexington Ave., New York, New York.  Julian also participated in that 

lawsuit as an intervenor.  

15. Julian, the Guardian and Oliver Bivins, Jr. then settled that lawsuit(s) in a Court-approved 

Settlement Agreement/ Agreed Order. See attached as Exhibit “D,” attached to the Rogers 

Adversary Proceeding. 

16. Despite the above, Julian has alleged that the Beys Firm and its former partner Stein, 

have acted in manner contrary to the best interests of the Ward, or have failed to uphold their 

fiduciary duties to the Ward, to the extent they have any. See Exhibit “E,” attached to the Rogers 

Adversary Proceeding (Objections to the Final Accountings filed by both the Former Guardian 

and the Guardian).  

17. At all times material, the Former Guardian, Guardian and their counsel Stein and the 

Beys Firm were acting in the best interest of the Ward and his guardianship Estate. 

18. The Guardians, Stein, and Beys Firm have not breached any duty to the Ward.  

19. The Guardians, Stein, and Beys Firm have not caused damages to the Ward or his estate. 

20. The Guardians cannot be discharged absent the remedies sought in this Adversary 

Proceeding.  
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REQUEST FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF 

1. The Petitioner re-alleges each and every allegation in paragraphs 1 through 20 of 

this Complaint.  

2. This is an action brought pursuant to §86.041, Florida Statutes, and seeks a 

declaration determining a question(s) relating the administration of the Guardianship- Has the 

Petitioner, Stein, the Guardian and the former Guardian breached their fiduciary duty, if any, to the 

Ward? In the unlikely case there is a determined breach, to what extent has Julian released the 

Petitioner or has become barred by the doctrine(s) of laches, estoppel, waiver, satisfaction, set off, 

offset, payment, res judicata, collateral estoppel, failure to mitigate damages, unclean hands or lack of 

authority? 

3. Given the allegations of the Respondent as described in paragraph 16 above, there is a 

bona fide, actual, present, practical need for the declaration. 

4. The request for declaratory relief relates to a present controversy as to a state of facts.  

5. An immunity, power, privilege, or right of the Petitioner is dependent on the facts or the 

law applicable to the facts.  

6. Respondent has an actual, present, adverse, and antagonistic interest in the subject matter 

of this Adversary Proceeding, either in fact or law. 

7. The antagonistic and adverse interests are all before the Court by proper process or 

representation. 

8. The relief sought is not merely the giving of legal advice by the courts or the answer to 

questions propounded from curiosity. 

9.    Petitioner has retained the services of the undersigned law firm to represent it in this 

matter and have agreed to pay it reasonable attorney's fees and costs. 
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WHEREFORE, Petitioner requests this Court enter a declaration, by way of judgment, 

declaring that the Guardian, the former Guardian, Stein, and Petitioner have acted in the best 

interest of the Ward and his Estateand have not breached any fiduciary duty to the Ward or in the 

unlikely case there is a determined breach, finding that Julian has released the Guardian, the 

former Guardian, Stein, and Petitioner or has become barred by the doctrine(s) of laches, 

estoppel, waiver, satisfaction, set off, offset, payment, res judicata, collateral estoppel, failure to 

mitigate damages, unclean hands or lack of authority, and to award Petitioner its their reasonable 

attorneys’ fees and costs. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was sent by e-mail service 

this 22nd day of January, 2016 to J. RONALD DENMAN, ESQ. Registered Agent and Attorney 

for Julian Bivins, rdenman@bleakleybavol.comchebert@bleakleybavol.com and 

lsmiler@bleakleybavol.com (15170 North Florida Avenue, Tampa, FL  33613) and by email 

service to DONNA P. LEVINE, ESQ., Attorney for Oliver Bivins, II, 

Levine.susaneck.@gmail.com (3003 S. Congress Ave., Suite 1A, Palm Springs, FL 33461); and 

RONDA D. GLUCK, ESQ., Co-Counsel for Curtis Rogers, attorneys@bocaattorney.com (980 

N. Federal Highway, Suite 402, Boca Raton, FL 33432), Ashley Crispin, individually and as 

counsel for Keith Stein, Stein Law, Stephen Kelly, Curtis Rogers, Brian O’Connell, and Ciklin 

Lubitz & O’Connell.           

     /s/______Charles L. Pickett, Jr.________________ 
     Charles L. Pickett, Jr. (Florida Bar No. 0051217) 

Cpickett@ciklinlubitz.com  
     CIKLIN LUBITZ & O'CONNELL 

515 North Flagler Drive, 20th Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 
Tel: (561) 832-5900; Fax: (561) 833-4209 
Attorneys for the Beys Firm 
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81754-9/15774560/RS/smm

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT SOUTHERN
DISTRICT OF FLORIDA WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION

JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal
Representative of the ancillary Estate of
Oliver Wilson Bivins,

                 Plaintiff,

vs.

CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS,
JR., as former guardian, STEPHEN M.
KELLY, as successor guardian, BRIAN
M. O'CONNELL, ASHLEY N.
CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ &
O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, BEYS
LISTON MOBARGHA & BERLAND,
LLP, and LAW OFFICES OF KEITH
B. STEIN, PLLC n/k/a STEIN LAW,
PLLC,

                 Defendants.
____________________________/

CASE NO. 9:15-cv-81298-KAM

NOTICE OF APPEARANCE

PLEASE  take  notice  that  Rachel  Studley  of  the  law  firm  of  WICKER  SMITH

O'HARA MCCOY & FORD, P.A., enters an appearance in the above styled case on

behalf of, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL, ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, and CIKLIN LUBITZ &

O’CONNELL.

WE HEREBY CERTIFY that a copy hereof has been electronically served via
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CASE NO. 9:15-cv-81298-KAM

2

Florida ePortal to: J. Ronald Denman, Esquire, rdenman@bleakleybavol.com; on April

14, 2016.

/s/ Rachel Studley
Rachel Studley, Esquire
Florida Bar No. 0578088
WICKER SMITH O'HARA MCCOY & FORD, P.A.
Attorneys for BRIAN M. O'CONNELL, ASHLEY
N. CRISPIN and CIKLIN, LUBITZ & O’CONNELL
515 N. Flagler Dr. Suite 1600
West Palm Beach, FL  33401
Phone: (561) 689-3800
Fax: (561) 689-9206
wpbcrtpleadings@wickersmith.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 15-81298-CIV-MARRA/MATTHEWMAN

JULIAN BIVINS, as personal representative
of the ancillary estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins,

Plaintiff,

vs.

CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR. as
former guardian, et al,

Defendants.
____________________________________/

ORDER1

This cause is before the Court upon Plaintiff’s Motion to Reopen Discovery and Renew

Motions to Compel (DE 201).  The Court has carefully considered the Motion and is otherwise

fully advised in the premises.

Plaintiff seeks to reopen discovery in light of the recent settlement and waiver of privilege

by Defendant Curtis Rogers, and his demand for the attorneys he hired as guardian for Oliver

Bivins, Sr. to release all communications subject to attorney client/work product privilege.  There

are two questions that must be answered to rule on this motion: (1) Can a predecessor guardian

waive attorney-client privilege and work product privilege? and (2) Who is the current guardian?

With respect to the first question, the Court concludes that a predecessor guardian cannot

waive the attorney-client privilege.  The position of a guardian is not personal to the individual

appointed. A guardian acts as an arm of the court and effectively is a legal status that exists

separate and apart from the person fulfilling the duties and responsibilities of the position.  See,

 The Court presumes familiarity with its prior Orders.1
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e.g., Chicago Trust Co. v. Knabb, 196 So. 200, 204 (Fla. 1940) (“The fact that the personnel of

the trustees was changed from time to time could have no effect on the rights of the parties. The

successor trustee in each instance succeeded to all the rights.”); K.A.S. v. R.E.T., 914 So. 2d

1056, 1061 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 2005) (the guardian operates as an “arm of the court”); In re

Wright, 668 So 2d 661, 663 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 1996) (a “court-appointed guardian [is] not [ ]  a

private individual serving a private interest, but rather [ ] an arm of the court fulfilling a regulated

function.”).  As a result, only the person currently holding the position or status of guardian can

decide whether to waive the privilege.  

With respect to attorney work product, that privilege is held by both the client and the

attorney, and either the client or attorney can assert the privilege. See QBE Ins. Corp. v. Griffin,

No. 2:08–cv–949–MEF, 2009 WL 2913478, at * 3 (M.D. Ala. Sept. 4, 2009) (“Unlike the

attorney client privilege, which belongs only to the client, the work-product privilege is shared

between the attorney and the client.”) (citing In re Antitrust Grand Jury, 805 F.2d 155, 164 (6th

Cir.1986); Hanson v. U.S. Agency for Intern. Dev., 372 F.3d 286, 294 (4th Cir.2004)); see also

In re Grand Jury Proceedings, 43 F.3d 966, 972 (5  Cir. 1994) (same).  Given that the waiverth

cannot be unilateral, any waiver that is not agreed to by both the attorney and client is invalid. 

In reply, Plaintiff states that Defendant Rodgers has not been discharged from his

guardianship role, thereby suggesting that he is still guardian and can therefore waive the

privileges.  Consequently, the Court requests that the parties inform the Court as to the current

guardian, as he or she is only the person who can waive the privilege. Once established, the Court

can rule on the instant motion consistent with the dictates of this order. 

Accordingly, it is hereby ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the parties shall inform

the Court as to identity of the current guardian within 10 days of the date of entry of this
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Order. 

 DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers at West Palm Beach, Palm Beach County,

Florida, this 28  day of February, 2017.th

______________________________________
KENNETH A. MARRA
United States District Judge
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 éîæïî éèæé èïæïì

 èîæïë èíæîìôîë èìæíô

 é èëæí èèæîë çïæçô

 ïîôîð çîæïîôîï çíæíô

 îï çëæî çèæçôïïôïìô

 ïë

½±®®»½¬»¼  îïæîð

½±­¬  íçæçôïïôïê ìéæïë

 çëæïè

½±­¬­  çæïì

½±«½¸»­  èèæê

½±«²­»´  êæïè íëæïí

 íêæïê íèæïî ìðæïð

 ìêæïï ëëæèôïé êéæíô

 ïè êèæí èîæîí çíæîë

½±«²­»´ù­  êéæïï

½±«°´»  ïîæí îéæîë

½±«®¬  ïïæïôïðôïêôîí

 ïîæï ïëæï ïèæïè

 ïçæïïôïí îðæè îîæé

 îìæí îêæîð îèæîë

 íðæïî íëæè íéæîí

 íèæè ìëæîí ìêæî ëïæî

 ëíæêôïèôîð ëëæîíôîë

 ëêæé ëéæëôéôïéôîð

 ëèæíôìôïï êìæë êèæè

 êçæê éêæïç éçæçôîî

 èðæî èïæëôïçôîï èîæì

 èíæíôèôïé èìæïðôïîô

 ïìôïç èëæîôîîôîì

 èèæìôëôïðôïïôïî

 çðæîð çìæíôîí

½±«®¬ù­  ïçæï îçæïì

 èíæïï èìæîð çïæïí

½±«®¬­  îëæïï ëëæîï

½±«­·²  ìæïé

½±ª»®»¼  ïëæîí íéæç

 çìæç çêæê

½®»¿¬»  íèæïç íçæîí

½®»¿¬»¼  ìçæïé

½®»¿¬·²¹  íéæïé

½®»¼·¬  èïæê èíæîì

 èìæí

Ý®·­°·²  èæïð ïíæë

 éîæì éêæïðôïî éèæïì

 çðæïï

ÝÎÑÍÍó

ÛÈßÓ×ÒßÌ×ÑÒ
 çéæïí

½«´´»¼  ïîæïé

½«®®»²¬  êæïî çæïë

Ý«®¬·­  ëæïð ïìæîîôîì

 ïêæç ïéæí îéæïç

 íðæïêôîí íïæíôïíôîï

 íîæêôîí ëïæïí êîæïì

½«­¬±³  íêæîî

Ü

¼¿¬»  êæïî ïëæïç

 ìíæîð ëèæïë êêæïð

 çîæîì çìæîî

¼¿¬»­  éîæë

¼¿§ó¬±ó¼¿§  èæïè

¼¿§­  ïðæïç îëæïë

 îèæç ííæé

ÜÝß  îéæé

¼»¿¼´·²»  îîæîì

¼»¿´·²¹  ëîæîì

¼»¿´¬  íìæïê

¼»¿¬¸  ïëæïë

¼»¾¿¬·²¹  êèæï

¼»½»¿­»¼  ïëæîð ïêæï

Ü»½»³¾»®  êíæïð

¼»½·¼»  ïíæé

¼»½·­·±²  çéæïêôïç

¼»¼«½¬»¼  çïæçôïë

 çíæïê

¼»»³»¼  ïèæïôì

¼»»°»®  èìæîî

¼»º¿«´¬  ëïæïç çìæïè

¼»º»²¼·²¹  ïìæïê

Ü»º»²­»  èêæîí

¼»º·²·¬»  ëèæîï

¼»º·²·¬·±²  ïéæïèôîð

 ìèæìôïî êéæï

¼»º·²·¬·ª»  çìæîì

¼»º·²·¬·ª»´§  èðæïî

¼»¹®»»  ëðæê

¼»²·»­  èðæîð èéæïðô

 ïí

ÜÛÒÓßÒ  ìæïð

 ííæîì íìæï íëæîë

 íêæçôïîôïì ìëæëôéôîî

 ëðæïì ëîæïð ëìæïîô

 ïè ëëæïïôïìôîðôîî

 ëêæîì ëéæí éìæîî

 éêæïèôîîôîë ééæìôê

 èðæïíôïë èéæïôì

 èçæèôïð çêæïëôïé

 çéæçôïî çèæî ççæë

Ü»²²»§  íèæîî

¼»°¿®¬³»²¬  ïìæïôì

¼»°»²¼  ïèæîì ëîæë

 ëéæîî êçæí

¼»°»²¼­  ïðæìôë íðæê

 ëîæïï ëéæïð êéæï

 êçæïïôïî éìæïíôïé

 èçæî çîæîí çëæïê

¼»°±­·¬·±²  ëðæîî

 éîæïé éíæì éìæî

 çêæïè ççæïð

¼»­·®»  êíæïï

¼»¬¿·´  îëæîì

¼»¬»®³·²¿¬·±²
 ïïæïï èîæïç

¼»¬»®³·²»  ïîæîî

 ïéæïï îîæîë îèæîë

 ííæë íèæïç ìéæïë

 ëïæè êíæîî êëæè ééæï

 èîæïè çïæï

¼»¬»®³·²»¼  èðæîïô

 îë èîæïí èëæïì

 èéæïïôîí èèæîîôîë

 èçæí

¼·¿®§  îïæïè îîæïç

¼·¿®§·²¹  îëæç

¼·»¼  ïëæïí

¼·»­  ïêæîðôîí

¼·ºº»®  èèæïèôïç

¼·ºº»®»²½»  ìéæîë

 ëéæïï êçæé

¼·ºº»®»²¬·¿¬»  êèæîí

¼·ºº»®»²¬´§  íèæê

 èîæîë

¼·ºº»®·²¹  ìðæí
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¼·ºº·½«´¬  êíæé êçæïî

¼·®»½¬  ìæç ëïæïê

 ëëæîôç éêæïê

¼·®»½¬·±²­  èæîð

¼·®»½¬´§  éðæè

¼·­¿°°±·²¬  çíæîë

¼·­¾«®­»¼  ìðæïë

¼·­½¸¿®¹»  ïêæïïôîì

 ïéæìôïðôïìôîî ïèæçô

 ïïôïèôîðôîí ïçæéôîë

 îðæïî îïæìôïïôïé

 îîæìôïð îìæì îëæïôïî

 îêæì îèæïôè íðæîí

 ííæçôïç

¼·­½¸¿®¹»¼  ïëæîì

 ïêæîï ïèæïë ïçæïð

 îêæçôïïôïëôîë îéæïëô

 îî îèæì íðæìôïíôïê

¼·­½±ª»®§  íïæïé

¼·­½«­­  ìêæïèôîï

 ëêæïï

¼·­½«­­»¼  ìèæïï

 ëèæí

¼·­½«­­·²¹  íêæîì

¼·­½«­­·±²  ìçæïî

 ëðæï ëìæïé êéæïê

 çìæîî

¼·­½«­­·±²­  éêæïï

 éçæê

¼·­³·­­  èìæê èëæîôê

¼·­°«¬»  éçæîï

¼·­°«¬·²¹  èèæè

¼·­¬·²½¬·±²  ëêæî

 éìæîì

¼·­¬·²¹«·­¸·²¹
 ìéæîð

¼·ª±®½»  èðæîïôîìôîë

 èïæéôïïôïçôîì èîæïìô

 îð èíæéôîí èëæïìôïé

 èêæíôèôïë èéæïïôîðô

 îì èèæïî

¼±½µ»¬  ïëæïè ïêæè

 ïéæçôïï îðæïëôîð

¼±½«³»²¬  íðæïç

 íìæè ìëæîì ìêæïê

 êéæî èïæé çðæîë

¼±½«³»²¬¿®§  èëæïê

¼±½«³»²¬¿¬·±²
 ìíæîìôîë ìçæïé ëðæìô

 ëôïê

¼±½«³»²¬­  ïðæïð

 íèæïç íçæîí ìðæîð

 ìïæîî ìêæïí ìçæïì

 ëíæïé ëéæïç èëæç

¼±´´¿®­  çæç ïîæì

 ëçæïîôïíôîï

¼±´´¿®­ù  ëéæïï

Ü±²²¿  çêæç

¼±±®  ëìæïíôïì

¼±«¾´»  éçæïïôîî

¼®¿º¬  ìðæïç

¼®¿º¬·²¹  íìæç íëæïî

¼®»¿³  ëïæë

¼®·´´  îïæïí ëîæîë

¼®·²µ  ííæîí

¼®±°°·²¹  íïæïç

¼«»  ïëæîì

¼«´§  ìæé

¼«¬§  îéæì íðæïë çîæç

 çëæïí

Û

»ó³¿·´  éíæïì ééæïç

 éèæç

»ó³¿·´­  éïæîí éîæé

 éèæï

»¿®´§  ìçæîë

»¿­·´§  ïïæîð êíæîï

»¼«½¿¬»¼  ïéæé

»ºº»½¬  èîæé çèæì

»ºº±®¬  íìæç

»´»½¬®±²·½  ééæîì

»´»³»²¬­  íïæîð

»³»®¹»²½§  ìêæîí

»³°´±§»¼  ìæïí

»²¼  èæìôë íëæïì

 êëæîë êéæì

»²¼»¼  îêæïî îéæïí

 èïæïëôïê èëæë

»²¼­  ïêæîî íèæç

»²º±®½»  èçæïî

»²º±®½»³»²¬  çêæç

»²¹¿¹»¼  èæè

»²¬»®  îíæê íèæîë

 íçæïëôïèôîð çéæïê

»²¬»®»¼  ïïæîð íðæïð

 éèæí çìæïé

»²¬»®­  íèæé

»²¬·¬´»¼  éðæïïôîð

 éïæë

»¯«·ª¿´»²¬  ëéæïè

 ëèæï

ÛÍÏË×ÎÛ  ìæê

»­­»²¬·¿´´§  ïçæç

 îìæïè ìðæïí

»­¬¿¬»  éæïï èæç

 êêæïïôïìôïêôïè

 éðæïè çïæïç çíæéôèô

 ïð

»­¬¿¬»­  ìæîì ëæíôé

»¬½»¬»®¿  ïêæîí

ÛÌÙ  ïëæçôïðôïìôîì

 ïêæìôïî ïéæïë ïèæé

 îðæïí îêæìôïïôïî

 îéæïçôîî íðæè

ÛÌÙùÍ  îêæîë

»ª¿´«¿¬·²¹  ëêæïè

»ª»²·²¹  çêæîï

»ª»²¬­  ïëæïî

»ª»²¬«¿´´§  íëæïì

»ª·¼»²½»  êìæïëôîí

 êçæïë èðæîôîí èîæì

 èëæíôè èéæîï çíæïì

»ª·¼»²¬·¿®§  èïæïð

 èëæïê

»¨¿½¬  íëæí ìçæïí

 ëçæí êïæïôïì éïæîï

ÛÈßÓ×ÒßÌ×ÑÒ
 ìæç

»¨¿³·²»  ïçæïî

»¨¿³·²»¼  ìæé ïçæïí

»¨½¸¿²¹»  íïæì

 íìæïí éîæïï éíæç

»¨½´«­·ª»  éðæç éïæêô

 ïê éîæïôîë éèæí

»¨½«­»  íçæîî ìèæïî

 çïæïè

»¨·­¬  çëæïé

»¨·­¬»¼  ééæèôïì éèæê

 çëæïð

»¨·­¬·²¹  ïíæïçôîðôîï

»¨·­¬­  ïïæîì ìíæîìôîë

»¨°¿²­·ª»  éïæïî

»¨°»½¬  îìæïç îëæïíô

 ïé éèæïêôîî

»¨°»½¬¿¬·±²  éîæïï

»¨°»½¬»¼  íéæï éîæîë

 èðæë

»¨°»²­»­  êïæïë

 éíæîíôîë

»¨°»®·»²½»  îðæç

»¨°»®¬  íëæïë éîæîïô

 îî éìæïèôïçôîì

 éêæïè ééæï

»¨°»®¬·­»  ìîæí

»¨°»®¬­  éìæè çîæïê

»¨°·®¿¬·±²  êíæïê

»¨°·®·²¹  êíæïð

»¨°´¿·²  êèæîð

»¨°´¿·²»¼  èæïï

»¨°´¿·²·²¹  îíæè

 êçæìôè

»¨¬»²¬  îéæç ìéæí

»¨¬®¿°±´¿¬»  èîæïê

»¨¬®¿°±´¿¬»¼  èîæïç

»¨¬®»³»´§  ìðæïë

Ú

º¿½¬  ìðæîë êçæîì

 èëæïí

º¿½¬±®  ëîæïëôïê

 ëçæîï

º¿½¬­  íðæéôïè ëîæë

 ëíæïð ëéæïî êïæïí

 éïæïï èçæî çíæïé

 çëæîî

º¿½¬«¿´  èïæïè

º¿·´«®»  ëïæïè

º¿·®  êðæïï

º¿·¬¸  èïæê èíæîì èìæí

º¿³·´·¿®  îéæé éðæïèô

 ïç éïæî éëæîð çðæç

º¿­¸·±²  ïîæïè

º¿­¬  çéæïï

º¿­¬ó³±ª·²¹  êðæé

º»¼»®¿´  ïîæïë ïìæïéô

 îîôîë

º»»  íìæïëôîð íëæéôîï

 íêæîôíôîð íéæíôîì

 íèæèôîî íçæïì éïæîì

 éîæïðôîì éíæïð

 éëæïè ééæï èîæïé

 çïæé

º»»´  íðæïì èëæïï

º»»­  çæïìôïê ïïæîë

 ïëæï îèæîì îçæïôïîô

 ïê íëæîï íêæïôïêôîí

 íèæí ìîæîí ììæïí

 ëèæïè êïæïð êìæîôêô

 ïç çïæîë çîæï

º»´¬  êéæïé

º·¼«½·¿®§  îìæîë îéæì

 çîæç

Ú·¹  êíæîôçôîî

º·¹¸¬  ééæë

º·¹«®»­  êïæïì éïæïï

º·´»  ïðæïé ïíæïê ïìæê

 ïèæîí ïçæé îîæïð

 îëæéôè íïæï ìçæïë

 êïæïì êíæé êëæïç
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 èíæïðôïï èìæïìôïë

 èëæç èçæîì çêæì

º·´»¼  ïðæïîôïí ïïæïô

 îë ïêæîôëôïï ïéæìô

 ïìôîî ïèæïîôïç ïçæé

 îðæîî îïæîôïì îîæîð

 îëæïðôïì îêæïç

 îçæïíôïë ííæïç êëæêô

 ïè éçæî èîæí èìæïôìô

 ç èçæïìôïêôïèôîë

 çðæîôïé çéæîì çèæí

º·´»­  ïðæïé ïîæîïôîî

 îïæïð ëðæïë ééæïëô

 îï èîæì

º·´·²¹  ïèæïé ïçæîì

 îïæïé îîæì çìæîë

º·´·²¹­  îîæé

º·²¿´  ïêæíôîì ïèæïîô

 ïç ïçæîë îíæîë

 îëæïï ìëæîí ìêæï

º·²¿²½·²¹  ëíæïï

 çìæë

º·²¼  îêæí éìæë èîæïï

 èëæïî èèæçôïê

º·²¼·²¹  èêæîôê èèæêô

 é

º·²¼·²¹­  èïæïèôîï

º·²·­¸  íïæïð íîæïí

 ìïæç ìîæïî ìíæïðôïï

 éìæîï èìæïï

º·²·­¸»¼  éìæîí

º·®³  ìæïç ëæïçôîë

 êæïçôîð éæïë çæîôïêô

 îì ïðæïï ïïæîï ïîæçô

 ïì ïíæîí ïìæïêôïçô

 îïôîìôîë ïëæîôè ïêæî

 ïéæïí îîæçôïìôïçôîì

 íðæîî ííæïç íìæëôïïô

 ïç íêæï íéæì íçæïôé

 ìðæïéôïçôîï ìïæîï

 ìíæï ììæçôîï éïæîë

 éîæïð éíæé éìæí

 èîæïé èçæïìôïè çïæé

 çêæí

º·®³ù­  ïîæïì îéæîð

º·®³­  ïðæïê íèæïè

Ú´±®·¼¿  éæïêôïç èæëô

 é éïæïí

º±´µ­  èæîí êêæí

º±´´±©  ïéæï

º±®»½´±­»¼  çèæé

º±®»½´±­«®»  çéæîïô

 îí çèæïôë

º±®»º®±²¬  èéæïé

º±®»ª»®  íîæê

º±®³  çæê ïðæïì ïïæì

 ïíæìôïê ïëæì ïêæïí

 ïèæîî ïçæïèôîî

 îðæîì îïæë îîæïôïé

 îíæî îìæîôïíôîï

 îëæïè îéæîôïêôîì

 îèæîî îçæïïôîð íðæëô

 ïéôîì íïæê íîæíôçôîì

 ííæïðôïë íìæîì

 íéæïë íèæïôïë íçæëô

 ïéôîë ìðæèôîî ìïæïì

 ìîæé ììæîí ìëæïï

 ìéæî ìèæîï ìçæïð

 ëðæîï ëïæêôîï ëîæìô

 ïìôîï ëíæéôèôîïôîî

 ëêæïôïëôîï ëéæèôçôîï

 ëèæéôèôïç ëçæçôïêô

 ïéôïè êðæïçôîðôîï

 êïæïïôîïôîîôîí êîæëô

 ïïôïîôïéôîïôîë êíæë

 êìæíôîð êëæíôïê

 êêæïôîôïíôîíôîìôîë

 êçæïôîïôîî éðæëôïí

 éïæïôïðôïèôïç éîæíô

 ïíôïì éíæîôíôïïôîð

 éìæêôïðôïïôïîôïê

 éëæïôçôïçôîë éêæêôé

 ééæïïôïîôïêôîî éçæìô

 ïíôîë èðæç èïæîôïí

 èîæï èíæïì èìæïé

 èëæì èêæì èçæï

 çðæïçôîí çïæïðôîïô

 îí çîæìôïíôîî çíæìô

 ïïôîî çìæêôéôïçôîð

 çëæïë çêæë çèæî

º±®³¿´  ìíæïë ìéæîð

 ìèæïôë

º±®³¿´·¦»¼  êæïé

º±®³¿´´§  ìïæîì

º±®©¿®¼  îîæîì

 îëæïí íëæïç èêæé

º±«¹¸¬  íéæïí

Ú±«®¬¸  îéæé

º®¿³»  ïïæïî îðæî

 íîæìôëôïêôïç ííæïìô

 îï êèæë

º®¿³»­  éæïð

º®¿«¼«´»²¬  èéæïê

º®¿«¼«´»²¬´§  èðæîïô

 îë èïæïïôîðôîì

 èîæïìôîð èëæïìôïé

 èêæí èéæïïôîðôîì

 èèæïí

º®»»  éìæç

º®·»²¼´§  ìæïè

º®±²¬  éîæé éíæë

º«´´  ìæïï éçæïé èïæê

 èíæîì èìæí çðæì

º«²½¬·±²­  îìæïè

 ìîæîð

º«²¼»¼  íéæïç

º«²¼­  ëîæé çèæïð

Ù

¹¿·²­  êëæîì

¹¿³»  çïæïë

¹¿¬¸»®»¼  èîæë

¹»²»®¿´  íëæî êíæïîô

 ïë

¹»²»®¿´·¦»¼  èèæé

¹»²»®¿´´§  ëîæîí

¹·ª»  çæïè ïðæé ïíæïç

 ïêæê ïéæéôè ïçæïì

 îêæîï íéæïð ëðæïð

 ëéæïð ëèæîï êïæïê

 êëæîï êêæê éðæîî

 éîæè èðæïê èèæïë

¹·ª·²¹  êéæè

Ù´«½µ  êæéôïë

Ù±¼  ìæì

¹±ª»®²»¼  ííæïï

¹®¿¾  ííæîí

¹®»¿¬  ìëæîë

¹®»¿¬»®  êðæïé

¹®±­­  ëéæîí ëèæîôìôê

¹®±«²¼  ìíæïí

¹®±«²¼­  èïæê èíæïçô

 îî èìæê

¹«¿®¼·¿²  ëæîð êæî

 éæîð ïìæî ïêæïðôïëô

 îðôîí ïéæí ïèæïë

 ïçæïê îïæîì îîæíôê

 îíæïé îìæéôïîôïçôîíô

 îì îëæïíôîð îêæïôîî

 îéæïì îèæìôïè îçæìôê

 íðæîôïî ííæè íëæîðô

 îìôîë ìëæç ìêæïçôîí

 ëíæîë ëìæìôçôïí

 ëëæîì ëêæí êëæïè

 éðæç éçæïï èðæè çëæí

 çéæïéôîð

¹«¿®¼·¿²ù­  ëêæëôê

¹«¿®¼·¿²­  ïêæê

 îëæîï îçæïêôîï íðæï

¹«¿®¼·¿²­¸·°  ëæïë

 ïíæïï ïëæïôïï îðæîí

 îíæç îéæïïôîî îèæïç

 ìëæïì ìêæîôê êêæïìô

 ïé çîæïî çíæíôè

 çìæïë çëæïôîì

¹«»­­  èæïêôïç çæïðô

 îí ïðæïî ïêæïì ïéæé

 ïèæïð ïçæîí îîæîë

 îêæí íðæïç ìçæê ëêæî

 ëéæïð êíæïç êëæîð

 éðæé ééæîë èéæïç

 çïæïëôïêôîì çèæì

¹«»­­·²¹  çæîî êíæïèô

 îð çïæïì

¹«·¼¿²½»  îéæïð

¹«§­  éìæïë

Ø

¸¿²¼  ìæî ëìæïë

¸¿²¼·²¹  ìëæîì

 ìêæïê

¸¿²¼´»  éæïë ëìæïê

¸¿²¼´»¼  éæé íèæë

¸¿²¼­  îëæè

¸¿°°»²»¼  ìïæïè

 êçæîë éëæïé

¸¿°°§  ïðæè ìëæï

 ëïæç ëêæïï

¸¿®¼  êðæç

Ø¿§»­  ììæïð

¸»¿®  çèæîî

¸»¿®¼  ïïæîí éîæê

¸»¿®·²¹  ïèæîë îëæïê

 ëéæïë ëèæïì ëçæï

 êïæïè êíæí êìæïìôïëô

 îîôîí êëæïôïî êêæí

 êéæçôïçôîð éïæïéôîîô

 îì éîæîí éíæïð

 éëæïè éçæîí èðæí

 èïæïðôïì èìæîï

 çíæïì

¸»¿®·²¹­  èìæîï

ØÛÝØÌÓßÒ
 çèæïé

Ø»·²®·½¸  íìæïç

 ìðæîï ìïæîï ììæçôîï

¸»´°»¼  íèæïè

¸»´°º«´  îèæïð ìîæï

¸»´°­  çèæë

¸»­·¬¿¬·²¹  ìéæïç

¸»§  îëæïì

¸·®»  èæï íèæïï éëæïî

¸·®»¼  èæë íçæïí éëæêô

 ïðôîí éêæì

¸±´¼  îïæí íéæïî

 ìîæïí ëìæè

¸±´¼·²¹  îéæïð

¸±°»  îëæîí

¸±«®ó´±²¹  êéæç

¸±«®­  éìæï çéæë

¸«²¼®»¼  ïîæí ïëæïêô

 îï ïêæé ïéæê èîæè

 çïæïí

¸§¾®·¼  íìæïë

¸§°±¬¸»¬·½¿´  ïèæïï

 îîæïï íðæïç
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×

·¼»¿  ïïæîì íïæî

 ìèæïç

·¼»²¬·º·»¼  îçæí

·¼»²¬·º·»­  ïîæîì

·¼»²¬·º§·²¹  ïèæïè

××  çêæïðôïî

·³°¿½¬  îïæí íéæîï

·³°´·½¿¬·±²  ëëæïç

 èîæîì èèæïéôîë

·³°´·»¼  èèæîï

·³°±®¬¿²¬  ìðæïë

 èèæîí

·³°±®¬¿²¬´§  çæïî

·³°®±°»®  èéæïê

·²½´«¼»¼  ììæïè

·²½´«¼·²¹  ìðæç

 èêæïé

·²½±³»  éçæïé èðæé

·²¼»°»²¼»²¬  îïæîí

·²¼·½¿¬·²¹  ìêæïë

 èçæì

·²¼·ª·¼«¿´  éæîï

·²º¿³±«­  ïéæé

·²º±®³¿¬·±²  îìæîë

 îëæê êçæïé èïæè

·²·¬·¿´  çëæïôîí

·²¶«®§  íèæéôïðôïìôïè

·²­¬¿²½»  ïíæïè

·²­¬·¬«¬»¼  çéæîî

·²­¬®«½¬·²¹  ëêæîì

·²­¬®«½¬·±²­  ìèæïë

·²¬»²¼»¼  îèæïí

 ìíæìôê

·²¬»²­»  ëðæï

·²¬»²¬  íîæé

·²¬»®»­¬  êçæîí çìæïè

·²¬»®»­¬»¼  ïéæïëôïèô

 ïçôîì ïèæïí îîæïëô

 îð êëæç

·²¬»®»­¬­  îçæëôé

 ëïæîð ëîæç ëìæï

 èêæïë èéæïé

·²¬»®²¿´  îíæè

·²¬»®²¿´´§  ïïæïì

 ïíæèôîí

·²¬»®°®»¬»¼  îéæïî

·²¬»®®«°¬»¼  ìíæïð

·²¬»®®«°¬·±²  ìëæí

·²¬·³¿¬»´§  íîæîî

·²ª¿¼»­  íêæé

·²ª»²¬±®§  çëæïèôîï

·²ª±·½»  éíæïéôîî

 éìæî

·²ª±´ª»  ìéæí

·²ª±´ª»¼  éæïé èæíôé

 ïïæïé îîæé îìæè

 îëæîôîë íîæîï íëæïîô

 ïë ìðæî ìïæîë ìëæèô

 ïì èçæïïôîï

·²ª±´ª»³»²¬  ìðæïî

 ìêæêôè èçæîî

·²ª±´ª·²¹  êæîì çæì

·®®»­°»½¬·ª»  îïæïð

·­­«»  îíæïë îìæïïôïë

 êëæïï ééæïð

·­­«»­  îïæîð îíæïôïéô

 îï íêæîì ìðæî ëíæïì

·¬»³­  ïðæí ïêæïé

 îðæé îïæîï îêæîï

 íïæîë ìíæïê

Ö

¶±¾  îìæïé íðæï

Ö±·²  íêæïí

¶±·²¬  íìæç

Ö®  ëðæîí ëïæí éçæï

 èçæïí çðæëôîî çëæïïô

 îë çêæïôì

¶«¼¹»  ïèæè îíæêôîì

 îëæïê èíæïï èìæïë

Ö«´·¿²  íïæì íêæïë

 ìêæïï êëæîôïïôïìôîì

 êêæîï êéæîí êèæïð

 êçæïç éðæîôè éïæì

 èðæîî èïæïôïîôîðôîì

 èîæéôïìôîð èëæïëôïè

 èêæîôïë èéæïîôîì

 èèæïí çðæìôîî

Ö«´·¿²ù­  íëæïí ìðæç

Ö«²»  ìëæçôïë

¶«²·±®  çêæïí

¶«®·­¼·½¬·±²  èíæç

Õ

Õ»·¬¸  éæëôê ëêæïè

 ëéæìôïê éðæïé éïæîí

 çéæîë

Õ»´´§  ëæîîôîë ïîæïëô

 îð ïíæîôïïôîð ïìæîô

 êôèôïë ïëæçôïë ïêæíô

 ïï ïéæëôïì ïèæé

 îðæïïôïí îêæìôëôïí

 îéæïè îèæïí íïæîï

 ííæî êîæîí éðæïé

 éîæî çðæíôîî çëæëôêô

 çôîì

Õ»´´§ù­  îðæïè îéæîï

µ·²¼  èæïê íëæïê

µ²»©  íçæîï ìðæïð

 êçæïç

µ²±©·²¹  éðæîí

µ²±©´»¼¹»  ëêæïê

Õ±¾®·²  ìêæïèôîï

Ô

´¿½µ  îéæîì íðæë íîæç

 êèæïî éëæïì

´¿·¼  îðæïì êéæë

 èíæïçôîî

´¿²¹«¿¹»  ëîæîí

´¿©  ïðæïê ïíæîí

 îéæîð íéæí íçæïôé

 ììæç êëæîì éðæïç

 éïæïî èìæî çêæí

´¿©­«·¬  ìëæîð

´¿©§»®  èèæîí

´¿©§»®­  îêæï ìïæí

´¿§±«¬  íëæî

´»¿®²»¼  ïîæè

´»¿­»  êíæíôçôïêôîí

´»¿­»­  íìæîï

´»¼¹»®  çæîë

´»¹  îëæîë

´»¹¿´  îèæé

´»²¼»®  çëæïï

´»²¼»®­  çìæïê

´»¬¬»®  îìæì ìðæîí

 ìíæïë

´»¬¬·²¹  ìðæïé

´»ª»´  çíæïê

Ô»ª·²»  îðæïé éçæê

 çðæïî çêæç

Ô»¨·²¹¬±²  ìéæé

 ëçæïë êðæïè êïæç

 êîæîì êíæí êìæï èðæé

 çéæïçôîî çèæïðôïí

Ô·»¾»®³¿²  éæï

 ìèæîí ìçæíôïîôïé

 ëðæëôïê éðæçôïðôïé

 éïæíôëôïêôîì éîæçôîð

 éíæèôïè éëæé éêæïì

 ééæè éèæïðôïí

Ô·»¾»®³¿²ù­  éîæïé

´·º»  êëæîë

´·³·¬  ìðæïí

´·²»­  îèæé

Ô·°¿  êæîë éïæëôîì

 éîæçôïéôîð éíæèôïè

 éëæé ééæè éèæïðôïí

´·­¬  ïîæïç çëæïç

´·­¬·²¹  éðæïð éïæéôïê

 éîæïôïîôîë éíæè éèæí

 çëæîï

´·¬·¹¿¬»¼  íïæïê

 íéæîð

´·¬·¹¿¬»­  íèæè

´·¬·¹¿¬·±²  ìæîë ëæîôìô

 è êæïèôïç éæïïôïíô

 ïìôïêôïè èæé íéæì

 íèæë ììæìôïîôîï

 éðæîë éèæïë èíæì

 èéæïëôïè

´±¿²  ëíæïí çíæïë

´±²¹  ìæîï ëæïðôîî êæé

 ííæêôè

´±±µ»¼  íìæî

Ô±®²¿  ïëæïïôïí

 îðæîíôîë îïæîôí

 êêæïê èïæïçôîë

 èíæïï

´±¬  ïðæïê îëæïç îéæçô

 ïï çëæîî

Ô«¾·¬¦  ìæïìôïë îêæêô

 ïì

Ô§¬¿´  íèæîî

Ó

³¿¼»  ïéæîë ïèæë

 îêæëôéôïë ëíæí ëêæéô

 çôïîôïíôïê ëéæì êîæé

 êìæïðôîë êêæí êéæïðô

 ïéôïè êèæé èðæî

 èíæïê èìæîì èéæîð

Óß×  ìéæîð

³¿µ»  ïèæïð ïçæí

 îëæè îêæîì îéæïëôîï

 íðæíôïë ëèæì êèæîï

 èëæïé èêæîï èéæè

³¿µ·²¹  îïæïéôïèôïç

 íìæè ìéæîí ëïæîë

 êèæïë çïæî

³¿²¿¹»¼  êîæïçôîì

Ó¿²¿¹»³»²¬  çïæë

³¿²²»®  ïíæé

³¿®µ»¬  ìèæé êðæéôïï

³¿¬¸  êïæï

³¿¬¬»®  êæëôîì éæéô

 ïïôïîôïíôïé çæîð

 ïîæêôèôïíôïçôîì

 ïíæïôêôïïôïîôïíôïëô

 îïôîîôîë ïìæïôëôïðô

 ïë ïëæí ïêæîï ïèæèô
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 ïéôîï îïæç íìæïê

 ììæïë ìçæîì

³¿¬¬»®­  ëæïêôîì êæìô

 ïðôïèôîï èæç çæì

 ïîæïôçôïð îïæé êëæî

Ó½µ»²²¿  ìæïî

³»¿²­  êèæîôîð

³»¿¬  éîæé

³»½¸¿²·½¿´  îïæïí

³»¼·¿¬·±²  ìíæîï

³»»¬  ëæïí ìêæïéôîï

³»»¬·²¹  ëæïì

³»³±  ïíæîë ïìæïì

³»³±®§  îðæïç êêæç

³»²¬·±²  îíæì

³»²¬·±²»¼  ìéæïé

 èëæîî

³»®·¬­  èíæçôïî

 èìæïîôïíôïê çëæïé

³»¬  ëæïì èæè

³·´´·±²  çæè íìæîð

 íëæì ìðæïèôîï ìïæç

 ìíæëôé ììæî ëðæîë

 ëïæë ëéæïï ëèæîë

 ëçæîôèôïîôïí êïæïð

³·²¼  íéæî ëèæïí

 éíæê

³·²»  èæîî

³·²»®¿´  èêæïé èéæïé

³·²·  èíæë

³·²·­¬»®·¿´  îíæîí

 îìæïè

³·²«¬»  èëæïç çêæïë

Ó·­½¸¿®¿½¬»®·¦¿¬·±

²  ííæïð íêæëôé ëðæïí

 éîæïë

³·­³¿²¿¹»¼  êïæîðô

 îë êîæìôèôïë

³·­³¿²¿¹·²¹  êîæç

³·­«²¼»®­¬¿²¼·²¹
 ëèæë

³·¨»¼  îîæî

³±³»²¬  ëíæïð

 êëæïð êçæïí

³±²»§  çæî íèæïí

 çîæïï

³±²¬¸  ïïæí éçæïïô

 ïèôîí èðæë

³±²¬¸´§  çæîì çïæî

³±²¬¸­  ïðæîì ïëæïí

 îðæë ìîæîë ìíæî

 ëèæïé éðæî éçæî çêæí

³±®²·²¹  ïëæîí éîæë

 éíæîï

³±®¬¹¿¹»  ëïæïðôïìô

 ïèôïç ëîæéôïîôïèôîì

 ëíæì ëçæéôïï êðæîìô

 îë êïæçôïë çïæèôïìô

 îð çîæîôïèôîðôîì

 çíæïôèôïçôîð çìæì

 çèæïïôïí

³±¬·±²  éðæî èìæê

 èëæîôê èçæïê

³±ª»  îðæç îîæîì

 íëæïç êéæïï

³±ª·²¹  îëæïð éïæîë

³«¬«¿´  ììæïç

Ò

²¿®®±©  éêæïð

²¿¬«®»  ïðæîôîð

 ïèæîì îðæé îèæç

²»½»­­¿®·´§  îèæïêô

 îí íðæê íëæïï íèæì

 ìïæîë éðæïì éëæî

 èêæë

²»»¼»¼  ïëæîë íëæïè

²»¹±¬·¿¬»¼  íðæïï

 ííæï ììæîð

²»¹±¬·¿¬·²¹  ìíæîï

²»¹±¬·¿¬·±²­  ìðæïï

 êéæì êèæí çêæè

²»¬  ìçæè ëéæîíôîì

 ëèæîôìôë êðæïé êïæçô

 ïî çïæè çíæéôç

²»¬¬»¼  êïæî

²»¬¬·²¹  ëçæïí

²±²½±³°´·¿²½»
 éçæî

²±®³¿´  ïêæïðôïë

²±¬·½»  ïëæïç ïèæîë

 êëæê

²±¬·º·»¼  ëéæé

²±¬·º§  îîæïì íêæïë

 ìíæë

Ò±ª»³¾»®  ìëæïðôïê

²«³¾»®  ïîæïðôïí

 ïíæïí ïìæëôè ïëæí

 îëæïë íïæîë êïæîð

 êîæìôèôïð

²«³¾»®­  ïìæïð

 îìæïî íëæí ìçæïï

 êèæïç çîæêôé çíæîí

²«³»®¿´  çêæïî

²«³»®·½­  ëçæîï

Ñ

Ñù½±²²»´´  ìæêôïîôïìô

 ïëôïê ììæïé ìèæïî

 çêæîðôîì çéæë

±¾¶»½¬  ïéæïê îîæïë

 îçæïì ëïæïê ëêæîî

 êëæïìôîð èëæîð èèæï

 çîæïí çéæì

±¾¶»½¬»¼  ìîæîì

 êéæîï

±¾¶»½¬·²¹  îðæé

 êëæïî

±¾¶»½¬·±²  ïéæîï

 ïèæë îïæïðôïì îìæèô

 ïð îêæïðôïê íêæê

 ììæë ìéæî ìèæïë

 ëðæèôïí ëïæïëôîîôîë

 êìæè êéæç êçæïôïð

 éðæïî éïæè éëæïì

 éêæïë éèæîí èìæïôì

 èëæîð èçæï çìæïçôîð

 çèæî

±¾¶»½¬·±²­  ïéæîë

 ïèæìôïíôïêôïç ïçæèô

 îë îðæïéôïèôîî

 îïæïç îîæîðôîí

 îëæïðôïì ëîæî èíæí

±¾´·¹¿¬·±²  ïçæïë

 çìæï

±¾´·¹¿¬·±²­  çëæïî

 çêæî

±¾¬¿·²»¼  ìèæïé

 ëíæïí

±¾¬¿·²·²¹  éíæïé

±½½«®  îèæè

±½½«®®»¼  ìðæì èíæïí

±½½«®­  ïïæïë

±ºº·½»  îíæïî çðæî

 çêæç

±·´  èêæïé

Ñ´·ª»  êíæîôçôîî

Ñ´·ª»®  êæîë çæì

 ïíæïï ïëæç ïêæì ïéæë

 ïèæêôé îïæìôç îêæîíô

 îì îéæîí îèæïí

 îçæïèôîë íðæïë

 ëðæîí ëïæí éèæîë

 èïæïçôîë èêæïëôïê

 èçæïî çðæìôîî çïæí

 çëæïïôîë çêæïôìôïð

±²»ù­  êéæï

±²»ó·­­«»  íéæïï

±²¹±·²¹  éèæïë

±°»²  ïíæïôïîôïë

 ïìæïôïì ïêæîî îéæïí

 ëìæïì

±°»²»¼  ïîæîë ëìæïí

±°»²·²¹  êçæïê

±°»®¿¬·²¹  íëæê

±°·²·±²  îéæé ìéæïç

 ìèæïôëôêôéôïðôîð

 ìçæìôè ëðæê ëïæí

 ëìæîôí êïæïç êîæíôïì

 êëæïí éëæîí

±°·²·±²­  ìèæïé

 ëéæïç

±°°±®¬«²·¬§  ïéæïë

±°°±­»¼  ïïæïé

 ìéæïè ìèæë çíæîôïê

±®¿´  íçæî ìðæì

±®¿²¹»  ìîæèôçôïé

±®¼»®  ïìæí ïèæç îíæé

 îìæì èîæïé èíæîí

 èìæîôîð èêæî èèæïðô

 ïï çïæïí çíæêôïí

 çìæîí

±®¼»®»¼  ççæï

±®¼»®­  çæïí ïïæîð

 èèæìôëôîí

±®¼·²¿®§  ïêæïì îðæê

±®·»²¬¿¬·±²  êíæè

±«¬ó±ºó°±½µ»¬
 éíæîíôîë

±«¬­¬¿²¼·²¹  ïðæïôî

±ª»®¿¹»  çíæí

±ª»®´±±µ  ïçæë

±ª»®°¿·¼  çîæïë

±ª»®­»»·²¹  îïæîìôîë

 éèæîï

±ª»®¬«®²  èêæè

±©»  çíæïð

±©»¼  íðæïë

±©²»¼  èêæïê

Ð

°ò³ò  çêæîî

°¿½µ¿¹»  ïðæïê

°¿·¼  ïðæïôïè ïïæîï

 îçæîìôîë íìæîð

 íêæïé íéæïôí ìîæë

 ììæèôïï ëîæïç éêæë

 çïæéôïé çîæïðôïçôîì

 çíæïôéôç

°¿·²¬·²¹  èæïé

°¿°»®©±®µ  ïíæîì

°¿®¿¹®¿°¸  ìëæîð

 ìêæí èðæïç èîæïî

 èêæïïôïîôïì èéæïì

°¿®½»´  íêæîî ìðæï

°¿®½»´­  èêæïê
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°¿®¬  îíæè íêæíôîî

 íéæëôéôèôïê íçæïìôîí

 ìðæï ìîæïë ììæïîôïèô

 ïç ìçæîð ëîæïè ëêæí

 êìæïé éçæé èïæïëôïé

 èëæêôç çíæîì

°¿®¬·½·°¿²¬  êèæîôîì

 êçæç

°¿®¬·½·°¿¬»¼  êéæíô

 îì

°¿®¬·»­  ïéæïë íèæïï

 ìîæîî ìíæë ìçæîï

°¿®¬²»®  ìæïçôîï

 éèæîï

°¿®¬²»®­  éêæîì

°¿®¬§  èæïç ïïæïè

 ïéæîë íðæïï ììæïôí

 êêæîî êéæïôîë êèæîô

 ïðôïïôïìôïéôïèôîðô

 îîôîì êçæéôç

°¿­­»¼  ïêæïé îïæïì

 íðæîï ííæïè éèæîî

°¿«­»  ííæîë ëðæïð

°¿§  îèæîð îçæçôïê

 íèæïî ììæí ëïæïíôïè

 ëîæïî ëíæì êìæïôêôïç

 çíæè çèæïï

°¿§·²¹  íçæîî ëîæîôéô

 îì ééæï

°¿§³»²¬  éêæïí

 éèæïðôïí çïæîë

°¿§³»²¬­  çïæî

°¿§­  íçæíôé

°»²¼·²¹  çæïê ïðæïî

 ïïæîî íïæïí

°»®½»²¬  ïëæïéôîï

 ïêæé ïéæê éðæïï éïæê

 èîæè çïæïí

°»®½»²¬¿¹»  çïæïé

°»®º±®³  ìêæîë ìéæêô

 çôïî ìèæç éëæéôïïôïî

 éèæïì

°»®º±®³»¼  ìîæê

 ìéæïê éîæç ééæç

 éèæïð

°»®·±¼  ïéæïêôîï ïèæï

 îèæë ìëæïë çíæîð

°»®³¿²»²¬  ìêæïç

°»®­±²  ïéæïèôïç

 îîæîï íðæç êëæç

 éêæìôè

°»®­±²¿´  ïêæïç íèæéô

 çôïìôïè

°»®­±²¿´´§  ëíæîì

°»®­±²­  ïèæïí îîæïë

°»®¬¿·²·²¹  ïéæë

 îçæïè ëðæïê

°»®«­»  îèæí

°»¬·¬·±²  ïïæïôïðôïêô

 îë ïêæïïôïèôîì ïéæìô

 ïðôïìôîî ïèæïïôîí

 ïçæéôîì îðæïîôïê

 îïæïé îîæìôïð îëæïô

 ëôéôè îçæïí íðæîî

 íïæïíôïç ííæïç

 ìêæïèôîî ëìæéôîðôîí

 ëëæêôéôïê ëêæì

 ëéæïìôïë ëçæï êïæèô

 ïéôïè êîæîôïêôîðôîì

 êíæì êìæïîôïêôïè

 êëæïôïíôïë êêæìôïð

 êèæç êçæïè éïæïé

 éèæîë èïæë èîæíôïè

 èíæïçôîî èçæïïôïèô

 ïçôîðôîë çðæïôíôç

 çïæïôîì

°»¬·¬·±²»¼  ìîæîí

 êëæë

°»¬·¬·±²­  çæïîôïëôïè

 ïðæèôïîôïí ïïæîî

 îèæîì

°¸±²»  ìëæí

°¸®¿­»¼  èðæîð

 èéæïðôïì

°·½¬«®»  ëëæìôë

°·»½»  îðæïç ììæí

Ð·±²»»®  íìæîï

°·°»  ëïæë

°´¿½»  ííæç ìéæïð

°´¿²­  çêæîï

°´»¿¼·²¹  èíæç èìæè

 èëæïí çðæïì

°´»¿¼·²¹­  çðæïë

 çèæì

°±½µ»¬  îçæïè

°±·²¬  ëæïï ïëæîð

 ïêæïôïë ïéæïôîôîð

 ïçæê îëæí ííæîí ìçæï

 ëíæîôïî êðæï êíæç

 êëæê êèæì êçæîí

 éîæïç èîæë çëæìôïê

°±·²¬­  ëçæë êðæè

°±®¬·±²  íìæïîôîï

Ð±®¬´¿²¼  ìéæïð

°±­·¬·±²  íîæë ííæé

 ëêæëôé

°±­·¬·ª»  ïëæïé

Ð±­­·¾´§  éèæïç

°±­¬«®»  êëæè

°±¬  îçæîë

°±¬¿¬±»­  éîæè

°±¬»²¬·¿´´§  íìæîï

°®¿½¬·½»  íêæîí íèæïé

°®»½»¼·²¹  çèæï

°®»½·­»  ïðæïë ëîæîë

 ëèæîï êëæîî éîæè

°®»½·­»´§  èìæïè

°®»¼·½¿¬»  îêæïðôïê

 îéæîì íðæëôïé íîæçô

 îì íèæïë íçæîë

 ìðæîî ìïæïì ììæîí

 ìèæîï ëïæîï ëîæìôïì

 ëíæé ëéæîï ëèæé

 êðæïî êíæë êìæè êêæï

 êèæïí êçæï éðæïî

 éïæèôïè éîæïë éíæïïô

 îð éìæïð éëæïìôîë

 èèæî èçæï çîæïì çìæè

°®»³·­»  îêæç

°®»°¿®»  íìæë

°®»°¿®»¼  çéæî

°®»­»²½»  êéæïé

°®»­»²¬  ëéæê êéæíôìô

 ïêôîì

°®»­»²¬¿¬·±²­  èíæïé

°®»­»²¬»¼  ëðæì

 êìæïëôîí çíæïì

°®»­«°°±­·²¹  éëæïð

°®»¬¬§  ïíæí ìïæî

°®»ª»²¬»¼  çéæîë

°®·½»  ëçæí

°®·½»­  êïæî

°®·³¿®·´§  ëæé éæïè

 ëèæîí

°®·±®  êæìôîì êîæïëô

 îðôîì êçæïè éðæïôç

 éïæïê éèæì

°®·ª·´»¹»  ëïæîë

°®·ª·´»¹»¼  íëæîí

 ìéæì ëëæï

°®±¾´»³  íîæé èêæîì

°®±½»¼«®¿´  ïçæç

 êëæè

°®±½»¼«®»  éèæîð

°®±½»¼«®»­  ïçæê

°®±½»»¼  ìðæïç èíæìô

 ê èëæé èêæê èèæë

 çèæë

°®±½»»¼­  èðæé çïæïè

°®±½»­­  ïïæéôçôïë

 ïíæíôîî ïêæïðôîë

 ïéæïí îíæè îëæîë

 ìïæîë ìîæï

°®±½«®»¼  èðæîîôîë

 èïæïïôîðôîì èîæïìô

 îð èëæïëôïè èêæí

 èéæïîôîïôîì èèæïí

°®±½«®·²¹  éðæîì

 éïæíôïí

°®±¼«½·²¹  ìîæï

°®±¼«½¬  ìîæî ëêæîí

 éêæïëôîï

°®±º»­­·±²¿´  îîæê

 îëæîï

°®±¹®»­­  ïðæîë ïïæîô

 í

°®±°»®´§  êîæïçôîí

°®±°»®¬·»­  ìéæïê

 ìèæïïôïì ìçæîí ëðæî

 ëêæïç ëéæë êðæê

 ééæïð

°®±°»®¬§  ïêæïçôîí

 ìéæïôïð ìçæïí ëðæîì

 ëïæïï ëéæïè ëèæïôîì

 ëçæèôïîôïí êðæî

 êïæèôïè êîæíôïðôïëô

 îð êíæïê êìæïè êëæï

 êêæìôïï êèæïð êçæïèô

 ïçôîì éðæîôìôè éïæì

 éîæïî éíæï éëæîï

 èêæïé çïæïç çèæè

°®±°±­»¼  îìæì

°®±­»½«¬»  çëæïè

°®±ª·¼»  ìèæïð éìæç

 éëæïé çéæè

°®±ª·¼»¼  ìêæïï ìèæê

 ìçæé ëðæë êçæïë

 éíæïç

°®±ª·¼»®­  çïæí

°®±ª·¼·²¹  ìíæîð

 éîæîïôîí éíæç çêæïç

°®±ª·²¹  êïæë

°®±ª·­·±²  çðæîï

°«´´  ïëæïé

°«²½¸»¼  êíæîð

°«®½¸¿­»  êçæïç éðæí

 éïæì

°«®½¸¿­»¼  êçæîì

 éðæè

°«®°±®¬»¼  çðæïð

°«®°±­»­  éîæïð

°«®­«¿²¬  èçæïê

°«®­«»  íéæîì çëæïí

°«¬  ïïæïôïðôîë ìçæè

 ëíæïê èëæç

°«¬¬·²¹  îìæïè

Ï

¯«¿²¬·º·½¿¬·±²
 ëçæîï

¯«¿²¬·¬§  ìïæï
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¯«¿®¬»®  çêæîð

¯«»­¬·±²  ïîæïê

 îëæîí ìïæïï ìëæïí

 ìêæë ëîæí êðæïî

 êèæïê èìæïì çëæîð

 çèæê

¯«»­¬·±²·²¹  çéæè

¯«»­¬·±²­  ìèæïí

 çêæïé çéæéôïð çèæïçô

 îï

¯«·½µ  ëðæïð éïæîë

¯«·½µ´§  éæîî íïæì

Î

®¿·­»  ìæî éîæê

®¿°·¼  ííæí

®¿¬»  çìæïè

®»¿½¸  èèæïè

®»¿¼  îéæïî ëîæïôí

 éîæïé çìæîí çèæîíô

 îì

®»¿¼·²¹  ìëæïç èîæîë

 èíæî

®»¿¼§  çéæíôìôê

®»¿´  éæïï èæç éðæïè

 èêæïê

®»¿´·¦»  ëçæì

®»¿­±²  îðæïð íéæïê

 êìæéôçôïéôîï

®»¿­±²¿¾´»  îçæï

®»¿­±²­  íéæïé êìæïíô

 îì

®»½¿´´  ëæïì çæïé ïëæé

 ííæìôïê íëæîôïïôïî

 ìðæîíôîì ìïæîìôîë

 ìíæïé ììæîë ìêæîðô

 îì ìéæëôèôïïôïìôîíô

 îì ìèæîîôîë ìçæïï

 ëðæîî ëïæïôîôéôïðôïî

 ëîæîí ëêæçôïî ëèæïí

 êðæîë êïæïî êîæê

 êíæêôïé êëæîî êêæë

 êèæïë éïæîðôîí

 éîæïêôîð éíæïîôïéô

 îî éìæì éëæïë éêæï

 éçæèôçôïì èðæï èîæê

 èìæìôèôïè èëæëôê

 çïæê çîæë

®»½»·°¬­  éçæîî

®»½»·ª¿¾´»­  ïðæî

®»½»·ª»  ïðæïð éçæïï

®»½»·ª»¼  çæí éîæîï

®»½»·ª·²¹  ëëæèôïé

®»½»²¬´§  éîæïç

®»½»­­  ìëæê èðæïì

 çêæïê

®»½·¬»  ìðæîë

®»½±´´»½¬·±²  ëíæî

 ëèæîî êðæïë êíæïîô

 ïë êëæïè èìæîð çðæé

 çìæïì

®»½±³³»²¼¿¬·±²­
 ïçæïë

®»½±²­¬®«½¬  ïçæîí

®»½±®¼  êèæè èéæë

®»½±®¼­  ïîæïç îîæì

 êïæë êíæîï èçæîì

®»½¬·º§  ïçæïé îíæïé

®»¼®¿º¬·²¹  íëæïí

®»º»®  êæïêôîð èîæî

®»º»®»²½»¼  ìíæïê

®»º»®®¿´  êæïë

®»º·²¿²½»  çìæìôïê

®»º·²¿²½»¼  çíæîð

®»º·²¿²½·²¹  ëîæïé

®»º®»­¸  êëæïé

®»º®»­¸·²¹  ëèæîî

®»¹¿®¼  ìðæì ìîæî

 ìëæî ëçæîë èïæîî

 çïæè

®»¹«´¿®  ççæë

®»·³¾«®­»  çíæí

®»·³¾«®­»³»²¬
 ïëæï ìîæì çíæïð

Î»·¬»®  íèæîî

®»´¿¬»  ëæè èîæç

®»´¿¬»¼  êëæî çëæïð

®»´¿¬»­  ìïæê

®»´¿¬·±²  éïæîî çêæê

®»´¿¬·±²­¸·°  îèæïîô

 ïì ééæî

®»´¿¬·ª»  ëçæîì

®»´»¿­»  íèæïí ììæïç

 çðæì

®»´»¿­»¼  çðæîî

®»´»ª¿²¬  èíæïè

®»´§  ëêæïè

®»³¿®µ  èíæïê

®»³»³¾»®  êæîî

 íïæïï ííæï íìæéôïð

 íëæïéôïè íêæîì

 íéæïê ìçæïïôïçôîíô

 îì éïæîï éîæì èìæîë

 èçæïëôîë

®»³»³¾®¿²½»  êêæé

®»³±ª»  íïæïíôîð

®»³±ª»¼  ïêæïê íðæî

®»²¼»®  îèæïé

®»²¼»®»¼  îçæïé

®»²»©  êíæîôïïôîí

®»²¬  éçæïïôîî

®»²¬¿´  éçæïêôïé èðæé

®»²¬­  êêæïî

®»°¸®¿­»  íìæïì

®»°±®¬  èæïîôïë îíæïè

 çëæïôéôèôîì

ÎÛÐÑÎÌÛÎ  ìæî

 íîæïî ìîæïí çêæïïô

 ïì çèæîë ççæìôéôç

®»°±®¬·²¹  ïðæíôîð

®»°±®¬­  èæïï

®»°®»­»²¬  ëæïç

 íèæïï

®»°®»­»²¬¿¬·±²
 ïîæïì ïëæïë ììæïë

 ëéæì êîæé êìæîë

 êëæîí êèæéôîï

®»°®»­»²¬¿¬·±²­
 ëêæéôïðôïî êìæïð

 èðæï

®»°®»­»²¬»¼  ëæîë

 éæîï ïìæîï ëéæïê

 êìæëôîî êéæîð éçæîï

 çìæíôïð

®»°®»­»²¬·²¹  éæîð

 ïìæîì ïëæè îîæê

 îìæîì íëæïê ëêæí

®»°®»­»²¬­  ëæïç

®»¯«»­¬  ïèæïè ìïæîï

 ìêæîë ìéæêôçôïîôîí

 ìèæç êëæé éíæïç çéæì

®»¯«»­¬»¼  êïæè

®»¯«»­¬·²¹  ìïæîì

®»¯«»­¬­  çðæîð

®»¯«·®»  íèæïïôïê

®»­»®ª»  çêæïèôîî

®»­»®ª»¼  ççæïð

®»­·¹²  ííæî

®»­·¹²»¼  ïêæïê ííæé

®»­±´«¬·±²  íéæïï

 íèæîð

®»­±´ª»  íéæîë íçæïî

®»­°»½¬  ïéæì ìçæïé

Î»­°±²¼·²¹  èðæïç

®»­°±²­»  êëæïç

 çèæïè

®»­°±²­·¾·´·¬§
 îïæîî îêæîì îéæïëô

 îðôîï îèæîôé

®»­°±²­·¾´»  èæïç

 íçæîïôîî çìæîë

 çéæïëôïè

®»­«³»  çêæïè

®»¬¿·²»¼  ìðæé

®»¬¿·²»®  íèæîë

®»¬»²¬·±²  éêæïî

®»¬«®²  íïæïç çîæïï

®»ª·»©  ïíæëôê îïæîî

 îíæë îçæïì ìçæïê

 êïæïì êíæîï êëæîï

 çðæîë çêæîð çéæï

®»ª·»©»¼  ëíæïé

 çðæïé

®»ª·»©·²¹  ëðæîî

 ëíæïê èðæïï çêæîë

®»ª·»©­  îðæï îèæîë

®»ª·­·±²­  íìæè

®·¼  çìæïè

®·¹¸¬­  èêæïé

Î±¹»®­  ëæïð ïìæîîô

 îì ïêæç ïéæí îéæïç

 íðæïêôîí íïæíôïíôîï

 íîæêôîí ííæïìôîð

 ìêæïè ëïæïí êîæïë

 éçæîî çëæì

®±´»  íéæì

Î±³¿²  çêæïî

Î±²  ííæîî ìëæïé

 ëêæî

Î±²¼¿  êæéôèôïë

®±§¿´¬·»­  íéæïí ìðæì

®«´»  ïéæîí ïèæí îèæí

 èìæïîôïë

®«´»¼  èìæïç

®«²  ïèæîì îêæîë

®«²¹  èæîîôîë

®«­¸  éïæîð

®«­¸»¼  éïæïë

Í

­¿´»  êðæïï êïæç

 êìæïíôïìôïê êëæïî

 éèæì çïæïè çèæïð

­¿´»­  êðæï êïæîôïë

­¿¬·­º·»¼  çèæïì

­¿¬·­º§  çîæïç

­½»²¿®·±  îðæïí

ÍÝØËÔÌÆ  ëíæèôîî

 ëêæîï ëéæç ëèæè

 ëçæïè êðæîð êïæîí

 êêæîôîì êçæîî éðæïí

 éïæïðôïç éîæïì éíæí
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É¿®¼ù­  îçæë ëîæè

 ëíæïî êëæîë

©¿¬»®  ííæîí

©»»µ­  ïçæîð

©»·¹¸·²¹  èíæïî

É»²¼§  çèæïéôîð

©·´¼  çíæîì

©·´´­  ìæîì ëæíôê

©±²¼»®·²¹  éëæë

©±®¼  îèæî íèæïê

 ìéæïè êðæç êèæï êçæé

 éîæîî èçæïç

©±®µ  èæîì ïðæîë

 ïïæîôíôé ïçæî íìæïî

 íëæçôïèôîî íêæî íéæï

 ìîæëôïì ìíæì ììæïê

 ëêæîî éìæïôç éêæïëô

 îï ééæç éèæîï

©±®µó·²ó°®±¹®»­­
 ïðæîï

©±®µó°®±¼«½¬  ëéæï

©±®µ»¼  ëæïê êæîë

 éæí íìæé

©±®µ·²¹  ïíæïð

 îìæîí íìæéôïç

©±®µ­  éðæïç

©±®µ«°  ìèæîí

©±®´¼  îéæïï

©®·¬·²¹  ìçæïê èîæéôè

©®·¬¬»²  íçæî ééæïéô

 îí éèæî

©®±²¹  ïðæé èîæïê

Ç

§»¿®­  ëæïïôîí êæç éæç

 ïçæîï íðæîï ííæïè

 íìæì íèæïè ëèæïí

 êïæîð êîæìôèôïð êêæè

 èìæîë çìæïî

Ç±®µ  èæìôç ìçæîð

 ëîæïç ëíæëôïçôîð

 ëëæîë ëéæïê ëèæîë

 êðæë êêæîî êéæîôïëô

 ïèôîë êèæïð éçæïôïðô

 îì èðæê èïæïêôïé

 èçæïî çîæí çìæïé

 çëæïî çêæî çéæïê

Ç±®µù­  éïæïì

ÖËÔ×ßÒ Þ×Ê×ÒÍ ª­ò ÝËÎÌ×Í ÝßØßÔÔÑÒÛÎ ÎÑÙÛÎÍô ÖÎò
ÞÎ×ßÒ Óò ÑùÝÑÒÒÛÔÔô ÛÍÏË×ÎÛ ×²¼»¨æ ª»®·º·»¼òòÇ±®µù­

Ñ®¿²¹» Ô»¹¿´
èððóîéëóéççï
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UNITED STA'I'ES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

WEST PALlvl BFACII DIVISION

CASE NO. 9:15-cv-81298-IC'(M/Matthewtnan

JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of
the ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins,

Plaintiff,

vs.

CURTIS CAI-IALLONER ROGERS, JR., as
former guardian, ei al,

Defendants.

CLO DEI"ENDANTS'ROPOSED VOIIl DIRE OUESTIONS

Defendants, Brian M, O'onnell, Ashley N. Crispin, and Ciklin Lubitz & O'onnell

("CLO Defendants" ), by and through their undersigned counsel, in accordance with this Cotnt's

Order Setting Trial Date [DE 51] submit the following proposed voir dire questions.

I. Are you familiar with the following individuals or entities?

a. The Plaintiffs representative, Julian Bivins?
b. Oliver Wilson Bivins, who died in 2015?
c. Mr. Bivins'idow, Lorna Bivins?
d. The law firm in West Palm Beach, Ciklin, Lubitz & O'onnell?
e. Attorneys Brian O'onnell or Ashley Crispin Ackal who worlc at the Ciklin,

Lubitz k, O'onnell law firm?
f. Attorney Keith Stein, an attorney who works in New York?
g. The Beys, Stein, Mobargha and Berland, LLP law firm in New York?
h. The lawyers in thc Courtroom: Rachel Studley, Brandon Hechtman, Jeffrey

Blaker, Alexandra Schultz, or Ron Denman?

2. This case involves a guardianship. Are you familiar with Stephen Kelly or Curtis Rogers,
professional guardians?

3. Have any of you ever been involved in a court proceeding where a person has been
determined to be mentally disabled? If so, please tell us about thai.
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4. Have any of you or anyone you know ever been appointed the legal guardian of a
mentally disabled or incapacitated person? If so, tell us about that,

5. This case involves claims that attorneys did not do their job properly. Have you or
anyone close to you been represented by an attorney in which you felt dissatisfied about
how the attorneys handled the lawsuit? If so, tell us about that.

6. Any of you have friends or family who are lawyers? Who? Who employs? What type
of law? Does he/she ever discuss his/her job?

7. Anyone have experience with paying legal fees, either hourly or under a contingency
agreement. If under a contingency agreement, did you have an understanding as to
whether the attorney had the risk of loss if not successful in the lawsuit? What is your
experience with that?

8. Does anyone have a belief that lawyers earn too much money7

9. Anyone have any negative or bad feelings about attorneys generally. If so, please tell us
about that?

10. Do you, or does anyone close to you, have any Ioiowledge, training, education or
experience in the following areas:

a. Real Estate Sales,
b. Real Estate Brokerage,
c. Property Appraisal,
d. Mortgages,
e. Leases,
f. Building Maintenance.

11.Have you ever acted as a tmstee of a nust or held a position where you owed a fiduciary
duty? Tell us about that.

12. Have you ever been appointed as a Personal Representative of an Estate? Will that
experience influence you one way or the other towards or against the Estate in this case?

13.Has anyone here served on a jury in a civil or criminal case? If so, tell us about that.
Have you served as a foreperson?

14. Has anyone here ever been involved in a lawsuit as either a plaintiff or as a defendant? If
so, please describe the lawsuit and whether you felt you were treated fairly.

15.This case involves a claim involving claims over property of the estate of a person who is

now deceased. Have any of you been involved in any type of dispute over wills, trusts or

property of a person who has died. If so, please tell us about that.
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16. Do you have any feelings one way or the other about someone who already has a lot of
money suing for more money?

17. In this case, you are going to be asked to award the Plaintiff money. Docs anyone have
any reservations in rendering a verdict in favor of the Defendants if the Plaintiff fails to
prove that any Defendant was negligent?

18. Does anyone have any thoughts on whether any of the Defendants must have done
something wrong just because they have been sued? If so, tell us about that.

19. In this case, thc Plaintiff is claiming millions of dollars in damages. Does the fact that
Plaintiff is claiming millions of dollars in damages impress upon you that the Plaintiff
deserves millions of dollars?

20. Does the fact that the Plaintiff is claiming millions of dollars lead you to have any
feelings whatsoever that he deserves at least some money?

21. Do you believe that, just because someone files a lawsuit, that person should recover
something? Tell us about that.

22. In this case, the Defendants have contended that the claims being made by the Plaintiff
are barred because ihe claims being made were previously settled. If the Defendants
prove their case, do you believe this will be too harsh a result?

23. Is anyone familiar with the phrase "blood is thicker than water", meaning we justify
choosing family bonds over anything else. Do you agree with that phrase? What are
your thoughts?

24. Does anyone believe that a biological child should have greater rights under the law than
an adopted child? Please tell us your thoughts.

25. Do you have any concerns that your emotions may inlluencc you in considering the
amount of money if any that should be awarded in this case?

26. Does anyone feel any concern that they would give the benefit of the doubt to an
individual over an attorney? Please explain.

27. Do you have any outside commitments such as family or business which would prevent
you from serving fairly and impartially as a juror in this case and devoting your full
attention to the dispute between the parties in this case?

28, Is there anything about your baclcground experience, training, and beliefs that might
impact your ability to be a fair and impartial juror in this case?

29. Is there anything you prefer to discuss in private?
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30. Is there anything we have not asked you that you think we should lmow?

31. Can you think of anything in your own life that reminds you of this case? What is it and
how does it remind you?

32. You all know the statue of lady justice, right? What do you notice about her? The scales
and that she is blindfolded, right? Why is she blindfolded? Justice is unbiased, no matter
rich or poor, likable or unlikable. Do you believe justice should be blind?

Respectfully submitted,

I sl Rrtrhrl.ftvdlev

Rachel Studley, Esquu:e (0578088)
RStudlcygrWickcrStmth corn
Brandon J. I-lechuuan, Esquit.e (88652)
B He chtman(rr Wicker Snuth, corn
WICI(ER SlvIITH O'ARA McCOY & FORD, P.A.
2800 Ponce de Leon Boulevard Sutte 800
Coral Gables, FL 33134
Telephone (305) 448-3939
Facsnnile: (305) 441-1745
Attorneys for Brian M. O'onnell, Ashley N. Cttspm,
and Ctkim Lubrtz & O'onnell
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and conect copy of the foregoing was served on counsel
for the Plaintiff via email according to the below seivicc hst on June 30, 2017 and then a true and
correct copy of the foregoing was filed with the Clerk of Court usmg the CM/ECF system on July 7,
2017, and the foregoing document is bemg sen ed ttus day on all counsel or parnes of recoid on the
Service List below, either via transmission of Notices of Flectronic Fihng genetated by CM/ECF or
in some other authouzed manner for those counsel or patties ivho are not authorized to receive
Notices of Elccttoiuc Fituig.

/r/Rit~hrl Stur//fv

Rachel Studley, Fsquire

SERVICE LIST

J. Ronald Denman, Fsqune
The Bleakley Bavol Law Firm
15170North Florida Avenue

Tampa, FL 33613
Telephone: (813) 221-3759
Facsurule: (813) 221-3198
rdentuanCcbblealdevbavol, corn

Jeffrey A. Blaker, Esquire
Conroy, Sunberg, Ganon, i&evans, Abel, Lun ey, Morrow Br Schcfer, P.A.
1801 Centreparlt Dnve East, ff200
West Pahn Beach, FL 33401
Telephone; (561) 697-8088
Facsimile.
aschultz(Rconiovstmbetg.corn, earandaRconrovsnnbetg.corn

Wendy J. Stem, Esquue
Bonner IGetnan Trebach dr Crociata, LLP
1233 20th Street NW 8th Floor
Washington, DC 20036
Telephone: (202) 712-7000
Facsitinle: (202) 712-7100
wstetnCcBbonnetldernan.corn
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APPENDIX A 

(Facts Issues from the Pretrial Stipulation Compared to Trial Testimony) 

1. Whether Defendants properly sought to assert that Oliver Sr. had a legal or equitable 
interest in 67th and Portland Place and whether they met a reasonable standard of care in 
pursuing that interest for Oliver Sr. 
Defendants filed petitions on behalf of the Guardian. In the Florida Probate Court, Defendants 
filed a petition seeking a ruling that the divorce was invalid and the Ward was entitled to his 
share of Lorna’s Estate.  

Q And then, so, in connection with this petition here, essentially what you were seeking was to 
have the Court in Florida not give credit to the Texas divorce decree so that the parties could be 
deemed in Florida married at the time of Lorna's death in February 2011; is that right? 

A It was an -- it was an intestacy claim. So the claim was Oliver Bivins, Sr. is a 50 percent 
beneficiary with Oliver, Jr. as the rightful spouse, asking not to give full faith and 
credit to that divorce that we've talked about in 2010 and saying that it was, in essence, void. 

Q Okay. If what you were asking the Florida court to do was deem Oliver and Lorna married on 
the date of her  death, right? 

A For the purposes of inheritance, yes. 

Q And in this case, Lorna died without a will, correct? 

[...] 

Q Okay. So what you were seeking, then, in the petition was essentially to get the other half of 
808 and one half of the Scribner mansion, other half of 330, and one half of the London 
apartment, correct? 

A That was the request. 

[...] 

Q And then as a result of the settlement, what happened was that Oliver got the entire amount of 
808 and the entire amount of 330 but gave up the entire amount of the Scribner mansion and the 
London apartment. That's what you all negotiated for him, correct? 

A I disagree. 

Q In what regard to you disagree? Did he not waive any interest in the one-half that you were 
claiming to the Scribner mansion? 

A Exactly. In essence, you're talking about a claim to something. So it's not something that you 
have. You can't -- in essence, you can't give up and you can't trade something that you don't own. 
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Q Okay. 

A So you have a lawsuit that makes allegations, but you actually would have to go and win that 
lawsuit all the way through to an appeal to actually win. 

Q Okay. 

A So it's a claim. It's not that you own it; you're sort of trading around. It's, you know, we've 
made this claim, and during a settlement, you know, evaluating whether or not, you know, what 
is the best deal we can make for the Ward, given the facts and circumstances surrounding the 
divorce and the litigation that's ongoing. 

Q Okay. As a result of this settlement, you gave up the Ward's -- you, the attorneys, the guardian, 
the negotiating gave up the Ward's claim to one-half of the Scribner mansion, correct? 
A The claim. 

Q Okay. And you gave up one-half of the claim to the London apartment, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And you obtained one-half of the 808 Lexington building, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And one-half of the 330 Ocean, correct? 

A Right. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 24, 2016, p. 90 lines 11-25; p. 93-94 lines 23-2; p. 94-96 
lines 21-7) 

Q Okay. Did you make a determination of who was Lorna's heirs, or after she died, was that a 
determination ever made? 

A Well, the Court, the probate court, made that determination in connection with the Estate of 
Lorna Bivins. 
And to my knowledge, her sole heir -- she died without a will; that's been covered -- was Oliver, 
Jr. 
(Testimony of Brian O’Connell, July 26, 2017, p. 83 lines 20-25) 

Q There was other litigation with Lorna's estate that was resolved through the New York 
settlement agreement, right? 

A Yes. 
The primary action that was pending was -- it's called a petition to determine beneficiaries. And 
the guardian, Mr. Rogers, filed this in Lorna's estate, essentially saying even though they were 
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supposedly divorced in Texas, there are a lot of issues with how that divorce came about. My 
understanding is that Lorna at the time was incompetent and in a nursing home. So there are 
issues about the validity of that divorce decree. 
So the petition was filed in Lorna's estate to ask the Florida probate judge to essentially not 
honor the Texas divorce and treat them as still being married. And the effect of that would have 
been to essentially unwind a lot of what had happened with respect to the buildings, as well as 
give Mr. Bivins, the guardianship, an opportunity to collect more money from Lorna's estate, 
spousal rights, because they'd still be married. So that could potentially be some serious money. 
And that was -- that was given up in exchange for receiving the value from the two buildings. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp 96-97 lines 21-17) 

Q What was Julian Bivins' position with regard to the petition to determine beneficiaries? 

A Mr. Denman said in court on behalf of his client, Julian, that it was a pipe dream. 

Q And what was the result of that action? 

A The result of that action, in my opinion, was that that was the club necessary to club Lorna's 
estate into giving up one-half of 808 Lexington and one-half of 330 South Ocean. It was the 
threat of that action that was filed that achieved the settlement agreement where those properties 
were obtained. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 p. 198 lines 16-25) 

2. Whether the Defendants should have taken reasonable measures to prevent the 
Sovereign Bank Mortgage on 808 Lexington from going into default. 
It is not the responsibility of Defendants to make payments on the Ward’s assets. The Guardian 
is responsible for paying the Ward’s bills. The Guardian had an agreement with Oliver Jr. 
wherein Oliver Jr. would manage 808 Lexington, collect the rents, and pay the mortgage. The 
Guardian was not aware the mortgage had not been paid until he was notified of the default. 
Additionally, Defendant Stein was hired after the mortgage was already in default so he could 
not have prevented it.  

Q Well, did you advise or instruct the guardian to pay the Sovereign mortgage?  

A No. By the time I was involved, the Sovereign was in default and had been accelerated. And 
under New York law, in the absence of writing in the agreement of mortgage to the contrary, 
there is no right to cure or reinstate a defaulted accelerated mortgage. The mortgage company 
would not have accepted any payments at that point. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 77 lines 16-23) 

Q Whose responsibility was it? 

A We had an agreement with Oliver, Jr. and Deborah Kuhnel. Oliver, Jr. lived blocks from this 
place. He owned 50 percent of this through his mother's estate, and he used to look after this, and 
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I would send him e-mails asking if certain things have been done, such as paying the mortgage, 
and I was assured these things were being done. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 42 lines 11-18) 

Q Okay. And you had a verbal agreement with him, you're 
telling us, to take care of the -- take care of your Ward's 50 percent interest in the commercial 
building at 808? 

A Correct, because there's also a 50 percent interest in the house here, and I was to take care of 
that, and they were to take care of the New York. It balanced out. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 44 lines 8-13) 

Q So I'm clear, as we sit here today, other than, as you've told us, your communications with 
your clients, Mr. Kelly or Mr. Rogers, you're unaware that any rents were collected based upon 
the efforts of Ciklin Lubitz during the time that you were attorneys for the Ward prior to the time 
the property was sold, correct? 

MS. STUDLEY: Objection, mischaracterization. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 

THE WITNESS: The problem with the question – and I'm not trying to be difficult -- is I'm an 
attorney. I represent a guardian. The guardian is the one who stands in the shoes of the ward. The 
guardian collects rent in this particular situation. For example, the guardian pays bills. 
So I would not have the opportunity to collect rent. That would be something my guardian would 
do. 
So my answer to you would most likely be no, because I don't really recall doing that, but it 
would most likely always be no, because I don't do those kinds of functions. That's what my 
guardians do. I render advice to my guardians. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 86-87 lines 12-5) 

A Let's see here. I know for a fact that when I had learned that the mortgage had been accelerated 
and that there were other problems that -- with an agreement that my client had previously made 
prior to my tenure as his lawyer with Oliver, Jr. about an agreement that he had to pay the 
expenses on 330, and that Oliver, Jr. would pay the expenses associated with 808. And I found 
out that agreement was not working. 
I drafted a petition, and I don't remember exactly what the title of it was, but it was something 
along the lines of please, Court, allow my client to do whatever it takes to deal with this property 
in 808, including filing a partition action, which would lead to an eventual sale, so that we could 
deal with the mortgage and then also file an accounting action so we could seek remedy against 
Oliver, Jr. for whatever he didn't pay and, frankly, have the guardian make up what, you know, 
he didn't pay with respect to 808 and what may be owed on 330. 
So that's what we did. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 189 lines 4-21) 

A And I think it was an acceptable and appropriate vehicle 
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to try to address the problem that was having, which was the mortgage issue. And not only that, 
but my guardian having a partner that wasn't living up to a deal and that he couldn't work with. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 198 lines 18-22) 

A Because Mr. Rogers, before Mr. O'Connell and I came on on his behalf, had made an 
agreement with Oliver, Jr., in his capacity as personal representative of the Lorna estate, that Mr. 
Rogers, given the fact that he was in litigation with Julian Bivins and did not have the money as 
of yet to take care of 330 Ocean Boulevard and 808 Lexington, he made a deal with him that 
Oliver, Jr. would maintain the 808 Lexington property and that he would maintain the 330 
property, which he did. 
At some point, that agreement came to a head where Mr. Rogers found out that Oliver, Jr. wasn't 
keeping up his end of the bargain. Mr. Rogers was taking care of 330, but Oliver, Jr. was not 
taking care of 808. And so there were issues there. It also came to light that there was a mortgage 
that had been accelerated. And so at this point, there was an over $380,000 obligation between 
the estate and the guardianship that needed to be dealt with. 
Also, there was a question about what was going on with Oliver, Jr. in his maintaining the 
building. Who was he paying, how much was he paying, and we needed to figure out who owed 
who what. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 24, 2017, pp. 173-74 lines 11-7) 

Q You mentioned that 808 Lexington was co-owned between Oliver, Sr.'s guardianship and 
Lorna's estate, correct? 

A Yes, that's true. 

Q At some point do you know whether there was a mortgage -- first of all, do you know whether 
there was a mortgage on that property? 

A Yes, there was. 

Q Do you know what happened to that mortgage? 

A I do. There was, long before Mr. O'Connell and Ms. Crispin were involved, there was an 
agreement, a verbal agreement that was put in place between Mr. Rogers and Oliver II, who was 
running his mom's estate, and Oliver II would essentially handle everything with respect to 808 
Lexington, including paying expenses and handling the mortgage. 
Turned out he didn't do that. The mortgage then went into default, and that had to be dealt with, 
and that was an issue for a considerable period of time with respect to how to deal with that and 
how to hold somebody responsible for that. 

Q Do you know how the guardianship went about dealing with the default on the 808 mortgage? 

A Sure. 
The guardianship filed a partition action in New York. A partition action is a way to force the 
sale of a piece of property that's co-owned by people when they're not, say, getting along, or one 
wants to sell and one doesn't. And so the partition action was filed to force a sale, which would 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 415-1   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/25/2017   Page 5 of 36



have resolved all issues with respect to the building. You pay off the mortgage out of the sales 
proceeds, and that would be the end of it. So that was one thing that was done. 
The problem that the guardianship had was that it wouldn't have made sense to cure the 
mortgage default in any way. My understanding is that it was likely that the entire mortgage 
would have to have been paid. There wasn't money to do that inside of the guardianship. Even 
attempting to make payments wouldn't have worked, because there wasn't sufficient money in 
the guardianship to maintain an adequate reserve for the care of Mr. Bivins, which should be the 
most important consideration. And in any event, I don't believe it ever would have made sense to 
both pay the guardianship's share of the mortgage as well as Lorna's estate's share of the 
mortgage. 
So there was essentially no practical or reasonable or sensible way to cure the mortgage problem. 

Q Did they -- did that partition action also include an accounting? 

A It did. 
Oftentimes when a partition action is done, as part of that, you're going to ask the judge 
overseeing the partition action to figure out from the proceeds who gets what. 
So in a commercial building, for example, you'd say, well, that owner took more share of the 
rents, you might say and I paid more the expenses. So the accounting part of the partition action, 
which happens at the end after the property is sold, the judge would essentially attempt to 
balance out the account so everybody gets what they should get based on what happened prior to 
the sale. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp 90-93 lines 23-2) 

3. Whether the Defendants should have taken measures to prevent default interest, 
attorney’s fees and additional expenses to accrue against Oliver Sr.’s assets. 
Plaintiff’s theory of breach is contradictory because any measures taken by the attorneys to 
prevent default interest or additional expenses to accrue would have resulted in more attorneys’ 
fees accruing. Furthermore, the attorneys filed a petition in the Guardianship Court for 
permission to file a partition action in order to sell the property and satisfy the mortgage, sought 
refinancing terms in order to pay off the mortgage, sought forbearance of a potential foreclosure 
action, and then ultimately sold the property and paid off the mortgage. The Ward not have the 
ability to pay his half of the Sovereign mortgage, however regardless of the Ward’s ability to 
pay, Lorna’s estate did not have the funds to cover the other half, as demonstrated by the 
testimony of Deborah Kuhnel below. Therefore, even if Oliver Sr. could contribute half, the 
mortgage nonetheless could not have been cured. 

Q Okay. But you made no payments on the mortgage, right? 

A That is correct. I did not have the money. 

Q So you had no money to make any payments, or you just didn't have the money in the bank to 
make the payment of the entire balance? 
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A You said to cure the mortgage. I did not have the money 
to cure the mortgage. 

Q And what is your understanding of "cure the mortgage," so we're on the same page? 

A Pay it off. 

Q Okay. And if you could cure the mortgage just by catching up two months of deficient 
mortgage payments, would you have been able to do that? 

MS. STUDLEY: Your Honor, it assumes facts not in evidence. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 

THE WITNESS: If I could have paid two months' rent 
and then had 400 or some odd thousand dollars paid off with just two months rent, I probably 
would have done it, but that was not an option. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017 pp. 32-33 lines 10-4) 

Q. When Sovereign Bank wanted their money - -  

A. Correct. 

Q. - - okay, and then you just testified you called Rogers, correct, or communicated with Mr. 
Rogers, right? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You wanted him to pay half of what the bank was owed or all of it? 

A. There was a sum certain in the letter of default that arrived. 

Q. Okay.  And that sum, did you want him to pay half of it or all of it? 

A. If we could both come up with the assets, half and half, to stop the train, I would have been 
thrilled to death. 

Q. Right.  And you would have - - half and half.  That’s my answer. 

A. Correct. 

Q. But the Estate of Lorna Bivins that you were working on at Donna Levine’s office - - or 
Donna Levine’s office did not have half of it, correct? 

A. Not in ready cash, correct. 
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Q. Right, right.  it had assets, but it didn’t have the cash - - 

A. Correct. 

Q. - - to do it right? 

A. Good. 
(Testimony of Deborah Kuhnel, July 19, 2017, pp. 124-25 lines 19-18). 

Q. And so you understood, ma’am, that when you got this August 8, 2012, letter, they had to 
pay, meaning the Estate of Lorna Bivins and Oliver, Sr., had to pay the entire amount due and 
owing of $376,448.07 at that point, right? 

A. Certainly looks like it to me. 

Q. Okay.  And the Estate of Lorna Bivins didn’t have the cash.  It may have had assets.  It didn’t 
have the cash to pay that, did it, 50 percent of that? 

A. Certainly not. 

Q. Okay.  And certainly not, you’ve just testified, that the Estate of Lorna Bivins didn’t have its 
ability to pay 50 percent of whatever would have satisfied the bank prior to that, correct? 

A. At that date. 

Q. Correct. 

A. The Tracy letter. 

Q. The July 26 of, like, less than two weeks before this, right? 

A. Exactly. 
(Testimony of Deborah Kuhnel, July 19, 2017, pp. 128-29 lines 9-2). 

A Let's see here. I know for a fact that when I had learned that the mortgage had been accelerated 
and that there were other problems that -- with an agreement that my client had previously made 
prior to my tenure as his lawyer with Oliver, Jr. about an agreement that he had to pay the 
expenses on 330, and that Oliver, Jr. would pay the expenses associated with 808. And I found 
out that agreement was not working. 
I drafted a petition, and I don't remember exactly what the title of it was, but it was something 
along the lines of please, Court, allow my client to do whatever it takes to deal with this property 
in 808, including filing a partition action, which would lead to an eventual sale, so that we could 
deal with the mortgage and then also file an accounting action so we could seek remedy against 
Oliver, Jr. for whatever he didn't pay and, frankly, have the guardian make up what, you know, 
he didn't pay with respect to 808 and what may be owed on 330. 
So that's what we did. 
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(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 189 lines 4-21) 

Q Okay. Did you ever contact the bank and advise them I'm gonna file an immediate 
receivership, an ex parte action in New York, to gather up all the rents and pay you, please give 
us a little time, we'll make sure we bring this current; did you ever try to do that? 

A Okay. Two problems. One, I'm not admitted in New York, so I would never call a bank and 
say something like that. But, two, I can't call a bank when they've accelerated a mortgage, when I 
don't have the money, meaning my guardian, and the estate doesn't have the money to pay it 
either. 
Neither party had the money. So I'm calling the bank to tell them I'm gonna do what? There's 
nothing that I can tell them that I'm going to do to satisfy what is the obligation, which is a 
complete acceleration of the entire principal and interest balance on the mortgage over $350,000. 
So, no, I wouldn't do that, because I wouldn't think it was prudent. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, pp. 194-95 lines 24-15) 

THE WITNESS: Your question assumes that that's the right course of action. Your question 
assumes that if I called the bank, I would have miraculously been able to achieve some result for 
the guardian. 
What I did was I wanted to do something tangible. I wanted to get the Court to approve by 
guardian to be able to pay off this mortgage, and so that's what I did. I filed the petition to allow 
that to occur and to retain competent counsel to do it, and that's what I did. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 197 lines 3-11) 

Q Do you know how the guardianship went about dealing with the default on the 808 mortgage? 

A Sure. 
The guardianship filed a partition action in New York. A partition action is a way to force the 
sale of a piece of property that's co-owned by people when they're not, say, getting along, or one 
wants to sell and one doesn't. And so the partition action was filed to force a sale, which would 
have resolved all issues with respect to the building. You pay off the mortgage out of the sales 
proceeds, and that would be the end of it. So that was one thing that was done. 
The problem that the guardianship had was that it wouldn't have made sense to cure the 
mortgage default in any way. My understanding is that it was likely that the entire mortgage 
would have to have been paid. There wasn't money to do that inside of the guardianship. Even 
attempting to make payments wouldn't have worked, because there wasn't sufficient money in 
the guardianship to maintain an adequate reserve for the care of Mr. Bivins, which should be the 
most important consideration. And in any event, I don't believe it ever would have made sense to 
both pay the guardianship's share of the mortgage as well as Lorna's estate's share of the 
mortgage. 
So there was essentially no practical or reasonable or sensible way to cure the mortgage problem. 

Q Did they -- did that partition action also include an accounting? 

A It did. 
Oftentimes when a partition action is done, as part of that, you're going to ask the judge 
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overseeing the partition action to figure out from the proceeds who gets what. 
So in a commercial building, for example, you'd say, well, that owner took more share of the 
rents, you might say and I paid more the expenses. So the accounting part of the partition action, 
which happens at the end after the property is sold, the judge would essentially attempt to 
balance out the account so everybody gets what they should get based on what happened prior to 
the sale. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp 91-93 lines 16-2) 

Was there any indication in the records you reviewed when analyzing the Oliver Bivins 
guardianship that the attorneys' motivations were directly related to incurring fees? 

A No, I saw nothing that would indicate that. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp 192-93 lines 23-2) 

4. Whether the Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. by failing to take reasonable 
and timely measures to return him to his Texas home. 
The Guardian, not the defendants, had the authority to determine the residence of the Ward. In 
the beginning of the guardianship, Mr. Rogers, did not think it was in the Ward’s best interest to 
be moved to Texas and the Court monitor found no reason to send the Ward to Texas. After the 
Global Settlement, Mr. Kelly, transported the Ward to Texas in an air ambulance. The delay in 
this transport was due to the facility not having a bed for him, and when a bed was provided the 
Ward was transported.  

Q Julian in Florida -- you were retained -- excuse me. You 
were retained, you were retained to represent the guardian in connection with an action that 
Julian brought to bring his father back to Texas, correct? 

A That's right. 

Q Okay. And that was a contentious litigation, correct? 

A It was. It went all the way to the appellate court. 

Q Okay. And, as a matter of fact, as part of that litigation, Julian brought a petition to discharge 
Mr. Rogers, correct? 

A I don't know the timing, but he definitely did. 

Q And that was also contentiously litigated by your firm, correct? 

A Yes, it was. 

Q Okay. And meanwhile, all this time your firm is billing time to the Ward for preventing Julian 
from succeeding on that petition and having his father transferred back to Texas, correct? 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 415-1   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/25/2017   Page 10 of
 36



A Your client didn't have standing, which the Fourth District Court of Appeals agreed. 

Q Okay. And – 

A So we were successful in that litigation, and so we were awarded fees. Mr. Bivins remained in 
Florida for many reasons. One, because the guardian, which we heard about earlier, he had the 
authority to determine the Ward's residence. He determined that he should stay in Florida, so he 
stayed in Florida. 
You then obtained a court monitor to determine whether he should stay in Florida, because you 
weren't – you weren't satisfied with that, and the court monitor said there was no reason to move 
Mr. Bivins back to Texas, so Mr. Bivins remained in Florida. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, pp. 256-57 lines 9-24) 

Q And if you could tell the jury, you know, what happened insofar as getting Oliver Bivins back 
to Texas. 

A Well, the son, you know, for a long time wanted the father to come back to Texas. That 
encompassed a global settlement that he would return. But I had stipulations he'd have a geriatric 
care manager in Texas, 24-hour private duty, be in the best facility in Amarillo, and that's what 
we did. 
Had to transport him. Had to transport him by air ambulance. 
That was the safest means to transport him, and we did that. 

Q Was there an issue of getting a bed at one of the facilities there? 

A Yeah. The facility, the Childers Place in Amarillo, didn't have a bed right away, so we had him 
on a waiting list. 

Q Per the global settlement, was that where he was to go? 

A Correct. 

Q Was there some delay because of the bed hold issue? 

A Right. We were waiting for a bed. 
(Testimony of Stephen Kelly, p. 289-90 lines 20-11) 

A The dates -- I believe that those dates are correct, Mr. Denman. But as to the reasons, that was, 
of course, as Mr. Kelly explained in terms of arranging for his proper placement, and the facility 
of choice did not have a bed available, hence there was a delay. 
(Testimony of Brian O’Connell, July 25, 2017, p. 85 lines 5-9) 

A Well, with regard to your question, there's some problems. When you say "we", the guardian 
made the determination as to what was in the best interest of Oliver, Sr. in terms of where to 
reside, and that was actually upheld on appeal and upheld after what's called a court monitor that 
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we've heard about before, which is someone appointed by the guardianship court to investigate 
that issue. 
(Testimony of Brian O’Connell, July 25, 2017, p. 89 lines 15-21) 

A The guardian was given total control to make the decision on where my father would live. 
(Testimony of Julian Bivins, July 25, 2017 p. 157 lines 4-5) 

Q Okay. Who was the only person who could move -- make the decision to move your dad back 
to Texas, as far as you understood? 

A Curtis Rogers. 
(Testimony of Julian Bivins, July 25, 2017 p. 158 lines 5-8) 

Q Very well, thank you. 
You've been re-called to the stand today talking about going to Oliver Bivins, Sr. to Florida, 
Texas, going back and forth. You would agree with me that Mr. Stein had nothing to do about 
where Oliver Bivins, Sr. would live; is 
that correct? 

A Absolutely correct. 

Q Okay. And, as a matter of fact, in all fairness here, Ms. Crispin and Mr. O'Connell had nothing 
to do with where Oliver Bivins, Sr. was gonna live, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q Okay. The decisions you made regarding where Oliver Bivins, Sr. should live, okay, were 
based upon your experience as a professional guardian, correct? 

A Yes. 
Q Okay. Input that you had from court monitors, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And your assessment of the totality of the circumstances, if I can use that phrase; is that fair? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And so these were decisions that you made, 
correct? 

A Yes. 

Q With the approval of the Court, obviously, correct? 

A Correct. 
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Q Okay. Nothing to do with the attorneys? 

A That's correct. 

 (Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 26, 2017, p. 54-55 lines 1-2) 

Q And within this document, there's been a lot of talk about you getting your father back to 
Texas. And you were here; Mr. Kelly was here. Within paragraph 19, it was agreed to that the 
guardian -- this is the guardian who's going to arrange the transfer, meaning Mr. Kelly, of your 
father back to Texas, right? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. The attorneys don't arrange that; the guardian does that, right? 

A Right. 
(Testimony of Julian Bivins, July 26, 2017, p. 97 lines 11-20) 

Q And who determines where a ward will reside? 

A That would be determined by the guardianship judge, with deference to the guardian. 
Normally if the guardian is arranging the affairs of their ward and it seems appropriate -- well, let 
me take a step back. 
There's an initial plan that the guardian files with the Court, where the guardian explains to the 
judge exactly what they're going to do with the ward and their finances, and then there's an 
annual report that's filed, as well, that essentially explains where the ward is living, how they're 
doing. 
The judge will review these documents; and as long as the guardian seems to be doing things that 
are appropriate and there are no issues, the judge will go along with what the guardian wants. If 
the judge sees an issue, he may investigate and become involved in terms of where the ward 
should be living and what the living arrangements should be. 

(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 p. 77 lines 1-17) 

5. Whether the Defendants are entitled to attorneys’ fees for actions taken which harmed 
or provided no benefit to Oliver Sr. 

6. Whether the actions of the Defendants for which they sought compensation from Oliver 
Sr. provided any improvement to the care or treatment, or living conditions of Oliver Sr. 

7. Whether the actions of the Defendants for which they sought compensation from Oliver 
Sr. provided any financial benefit to the estate of Oliver Sr.
These issues have already been adjudicated by the Florida Guardianship Court. The 
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Guardianship Court determines an attorneys’ fee entitlement based on the standard that the 
attorneys’ action benefitted the ward. As such this Court does not have subject matter 
jurisdiction over this claim due to collateral estoppel, res judicata, and the Rooker-Feldman
doctrine.   

“Collateral estoppel, also known as estoppel by judgment, serves as a bar to relitigation of an 
issue which has already been determined by a valid judgment.” Stogniew v. McQueen, 656 So. 
2d 917, 919 (Fla. 1995). The res judicata defense requires satisfying five conditions: "(1) 
identity of the thing sued for; (2) identity of the cause of action; (3) identity of the persons and 
parties to the action; (4) identity of the quality [or capacity] of the persons for or against whom 
the claim is made; and (5) the original claim was disposed of on the merits." Kaplan v. Kaplan, 
624 Fed.Appx. 680, 682 (11th Cir. 2015). This doctrine "applies to all matters actually raised and 
determined as well as to all other matters which could properly have been raised and determined 
in the prior action, whether they were or not." ICC Chemical Corp. v. Freeman, 640 So. 2d 92, 
93 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1994). Lastly, the Eleventh Circuit has set forth four criteria that must be 
satisfied for the Rooker-Feldman Doctrine to apply: (1) the plaintiff in federal court is the same 
as the loser in state court; (2) the prior state court ruling was a final or conclusive judgment on 
the merits; (3) the plaintiff had a reasonable opportunity to raise its federal claims in the state 
court; (4) the state court either adjudicated the issue the federal court is considering or the issue 
was inextricably intertwined with the state court's judgment. Kozich v. Deibert, 15-61386-CIV, 
2015 WL 12533077, at *3 (S.D. Fla. Oct. 20, 2015) (finding that the Rooker Feldman doctrine 
had been met when “Plaintiff had a reasonable opportunity to – and did – raise many of the same 
claims and defenses in the state court eviction action that he asserts in the above-styled action.”). 

A The Ward's assets, after a court order and court approval, after I've proved up that I've 
benefited the ward, yes, then the assets of the ward are utilized to pay my fees. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 89 lines 3-5) 

A You're talking about the fee statute. Very important that we talk about that, because 744.108 is 
the fee statute. It's how lawyers get paid. 
So you're trying to ask me about a duty to the ward when talking about how lawyers get paid. So 
I can't blend the two. 
But I agree with you, that's how you get paid. If you want to get paid, the proof to the Court is 
did you benefit the ward through your services to the guardian. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 126 lines 3-11) 

A I don't -- I'm not saying that at all. 
What I'm trying to say is the standard in which you get paid is did you provide a benefit to the 
ward. That's how you get paid. Okay? That's the criteria for that. 
When you're talking about what is your, in essence, what is your duties, what is your fiduciary 
duty to a ward, that's not laid out in 744.108. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 126 lines 16-22) 

A I billed Mr. Rogers or Mr. Kelly for my services and then sought them to be paid from the 
Ward, and they were paid pursuant to the Court's review of it and a court order. I testified under 
oath to the Court so that the Court could determine whether it was in the best interests of the 
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Ward. 
And after I testified and Mr. O'Connell testified and the experts testified and you objected, the 
Court found that it was, it was to be paid from the assets of the Ward. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, pp. 156-57 lines 22-4) 

Q Okay. And for all the litigation that you would perform on~-- to pursue your fees, you would 
also be able to bill that time to the Ward for collecting those fees, right? 

A Right, under the same statute you just showed me, 744.108, yes. 

Q Right. So you can go out and hire experts, and the Ward 
pays for them, right? 

A That's correct, if the Court approves it. 

Q And – 

A Sometimes they don't, but if they do. 

Q Okay. And you can go out and take depositions and bill the Ward for the depositions in 
connection with that, right? 

A Bill the guardian, ask the Court, get court approval, then payment from the Ward. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 222-23 lines 15-3)  

A That the Court approved after hearing evidence about whether or not it was in the best interest 
of the Ward, and awarded them to the law firm for representing our clients under 744.108, and 
after hearing your objections and your client saying that they were unreasonable, awarded 
anyway. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 238 lines 25-7) 

Q Okay. So when you have an evidentiary hearing on fees, 
tell the jury, please, what that entails. 

A It entails primarily, even if there's an objecting party, it doesn't really matter, the Court looks 
at the fees, every single entry that is made by every single timekeeper and determines whether, 
one, the timekeeper is charging a rate that's appropriate, and, two, whether the hours that they 
spend are appropriate, and has the ability to cut the hours down to even zero if they so feel that 
it's inappropriate. 
But not only that, they have to look to determine whether the services that were provided, by 
looking at the actual time entries, were for the benefit of the Ward. 
And so they make those determinations by looking at the actual time entries, and questions are 
asked, if there are any, about, well, what were you doing, why were you doing it, you know, 
those kinds of things. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 24, 2017, pp. 221-22 lines 20-10) 
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Q Okay. And the Court made a determination that the attorneys had done a good job for Oliver, 
Sr.; did the Court not? 

A They found that we were working in the best interests of the Ward and that we did a very good 
job. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 24, 2017, p. 225 lines 3-7) 

Q Okay. But there was no benefit achieved to the Ward from September 17th, 2013, until it 
finally closed and the deed was transferred on December 16th, 2014, correct? 

A No, because the Court heard our fee petition, actually it's an exhibit here, and determined that 
it was a benefit to the Ward to have achieved that settlement. 
(Testimony of Brian O’Connell, July 25, 2017, p. 23 lines 13-18) 

Q You billed time, significant time to litigating efforts to keep Oliver, Sr. in Florida, correct? 

A There was time that was billed to -- about half on the guardianship -- guardian client, excuse 
me, under these various headings, and that was certainly one heading. And then ultimately those 
fees were presented to the guardianship court for approval, and many times you objected to those 
fees, but the judge considered, the guardianship judge considered those arguments and decided 
what fees should be paid. 
(Testimony of Brian O’Connell, July 25, 2017, p. 91 lines 5-13) 

Q What's the predicate for approval of fees? 

A Essentially the judge will determine, first of all, is your rate appropriate, what you're charging 
per hour; is the amount of time that you spent appropriate for the tasks that were being done; but 
then, most importantly, did you provide a benefit to the ward. The Court will not the approve 
typically attorney fees if the Court doesn't see any benefit to the ward. So if the Court approves 
the fees, the Court would implicitly then be finding that there was a benefit to the ward. 

Q Do you know whether that happened in this case? 

A I believe it did. I believe there were several fee orders that were issued by the Court. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp 104 lines 3-15) 

8. Whether the Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. by failing to seek an 
immediate discharge of Rogers as Guardian. 
No evidence was presented on this issue. 

9. Whether the Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. by entering into an agreement 
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to obtain a contingency fee rather than an hourly fee for seeking to establish Oliver Sr.’s 
equitable or legal right to pre-divorce property. 
The Guardian chose to enter into a reduced contingency fee agreement with Defendants because 
the Ward did not have the cash available to pay their reduced hourly rates. The Court approved 
the contingency agreement, percentage, and awarded Defendants the appropriate amount of fees.  

Q And did you also believe they had a fiduciary duty to 
you? 

A I had to work out contingency agreements, because there was no money to pay them. So I 
don't know what you mean by a fiduciary agreement. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 18 lines 12-17) 

Q And you understand -- as a matter of fact, when you brought the action in the probate court to 
get an equitable interest in the properties, you provided a contingency fee relationship with your 
attorneys, correct? 

A Correct, approved by the courts. 

Q Okay. But that's what you sought to do, correct? 

A Actually, we had no money. We didn't have enough money to pursue that. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, pp. 144-45 lines 20-2) 

Q So in the year -- the years 2012 and 2013, were you 
dealing with issues in Texas? 

A Yes. 

Q And were you dealing with issues in New York? 

A Yes. 

Q And did you have the money to pay for all of those 
issues? 

A No. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 232 lines 11-18) 

A Exactly, based on a positive recovery. 
And, again, this contingency fee agreement, albeit between Mr. Rogers and my firm, it was 
Court approved. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 132 lines 19-21) 
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10. Whether the Defendants failed to meet their professional standard of care in 
performing due diligence in connection with the New York Settlement. 
There is no evidence that Defendants failed to meet their standard of care in performing due 
diligence and valuing the properties in the New York Settlement. Defendants obtained formal 
written broker’s opinions from Eastern Consolidated, one of the largest brokerage firms in New 
York, on the values of the New York Properties in order to value the settlement. Additionally, 
the broker’s opinion on 808 Lexington was higher than the appraisal obtained by Plaintiff, and 
the property sold for more as well.  

Q Well, you weren't sure of the property involving -- let's start with 808 Lexington. You weren't 
sure of the value of 808 Lexington, were you? 

A Well, we -- we had a broker's opinion of value from Eastern Consolidated, one of the largest 
commercial real estate brokerage firms in New York, that had been provided to us months before 
this hearing, wherein they determined that the value of the property was between four-and-a-half 
million and six and a half million. And we also had an appraisal which you obtained, which -- 
from a licensed appraiser, which valued the property at approximately 4.3 million. So we did 
know -- we had that information available to us at that time. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 135 lines 13-24) 

Q Okay. And what was the value of the appraisal that Julian Bivins got through his lawyer for 
808? 

A It was 4,317,000. Am I close? 

Q Okay. So can -- now, I used another term of art there really quick, "fair market value". What 
does that mean, can you tell the members of the jury? 

A Well, fair market value is the value at which a willing buyer and a willing seller would agree 
to transact a purchase and sale. 

Q A willing buyer, right? 

A A willing buyer. 

Q Did Mr. Lieberman bring willing buyers to the table after the approval of the New York 
settlement agreement? 

A Yes. 

Q And what were those willing buyers willing to pay for 808? 

A A range of between five and a half million dollars up to $6.1 million. 

Q So the appraisal that Julian got was wrong? Is that right? 
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A I guess one could say it was wrong. It was shy by at least $1.2 million. 

Q Appraisals aren't bulletproof; they can be wrong? 

A Correct. That's precisely why I had testified earlier that, in my business, we frequently don't 
rely on appraisals, other than in a very technical sense, when they're required by a regulated bank 
or even a nonregulated lender who wants to put that document in their file but isn't really relying 
on the value that's being provided by the appraiser. 

Q And Mr. Lieberman, he works for Eastern Consolidated; is that right? 

A He did at that time. 

Q Okay. He worked at Eastern Consolidated at the time. Do you have an understanding of what 
Eastern Consolidated is? 

A Eastern Consolidated is one of the largest commercial real estate brokerage firms in New 
York. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, pp. 189-90 lines 5-11) 

Q Okay. Now, the decision to sell, is that a decision under the Florida guardianship law that's 
made by attorneys, or is it made by the professional guardian? 

A Well, it's really made by the guardianship judge about who has the authority to sell, if you 
have the authority to sell the property, whether it should be sold. All you're really doing is 
recommending to the guardianship judge what you think should take place and why.  

Q Okay. And if the guardianship judge, based upon your experience in the state of Florida, based 
upon your review of the file and all the documentation that you reviewed, if the guardianship 
judge felt that he needed a formal appraisal as opposed to a broker's opinion of value, he would 
have asked for it, correct? 

MR. DENMAN: Objection, Your Honor; calls for speculation. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. And, in fact, in the transcript he said he didn't need one. That's what the 
judge said. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 p. 113 lines 7-25) 

Q Did you have an opportunity to evaluate that settlement agreement? 

A I did. And what I did was I looked at the – the movement of the property, saw that the claims 
were being released, and, most importantly, I read the transcript of the hearing wherein the 
judge, during an extensive hearing, asked everybody involved in the case what they wanted and 
why, and everybody had an opportunity to explain what their position was on the New York 
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settlement agreement. 
And you can see from the transcript -- I don't know if the jury's had access to it, but you can see 
in the transcript the analysis that the judge goes through, essentially saying getting certainty is 
almost always going to be better than litigation was sort of how the judge made his 
determination. 

Q What do you mean getting certainty is always better than having litigation? 

A What the guardianship had were claims against Lorna's estate that would require either 
pending lawsuits to be continuously maintained and funded and dealt with. So that would be the 
uncertainty of litigation. Versus the certainty that the New York settlement agreement gave to 
the guardianship, which was you'll get 50  percent of 808 Lexington and 50 percent of 330 South 
Ocean that you didn't previously own. 
And the settlement agreement is what did that. And the judge was, from looking at the transcripts 
and his reasoning, seemed to be persuaded that getting certainty in terms of approximately $3 
million worth of value from these properties was better than the alternative of continuing to 
litigate. 

Q Is there some particular concern with certainty when you're dealing with a 93-year-old ward 
with dementia? 

A Well, sure. 
Anytime you're involved in litigation, you've gotta consider what does it cost to maintain the 
lawsuit and how long is it going to take to resolve. So this was an opportunity to resolve the 
matter right now with certainty with somebody who may not live that much longer, as opposed 
to leave him in an uncertain position without the benefit of the additional money coming into the 
guardianship estate. 

(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp 93-95 lines 20-10) 

11. Whether the Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. by representing to the Court 
that he had insufficient funds for living expenses to pay for hourly attorneys’ fees. 
No evidence was presented that the Ward had sufficient funds to pay for hourly fees. To the 
contrary, the evidence in the record shows the Ward had insufficient funds to pay for hourly fees. 

Q And did you also believe they had a fiduciary duty to 
you? 

A I had to work out contingency agreements, because there was no money to pay them. So I 
don't know what you mean by a fiduciary agreement. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 18 lines 12-17) 

Q And you understand -- as a matter of fact, when you brought the action in the probate court to 
get an equitable interest in the properties, you provided a contingency fee relationship with your 
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attorneys, correct? 

A Correct, approved by the courts. 

Q Okay. But that's what you sought to do, correct? 

A Actually, we had no money. We didn't have enough money to pursue that. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, pp. 144-45 lines 20-2) 

Q So in the year -- the years 2012 and 2013, were you dealing with issues in Texas? 

A Yes. 

Q And were you dealing with issues in New York? 

A Yes. 

Q And did you have the money to pay for all of those 
issues? 

A No. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 232 lines 11-18) 

A Exactly, based on a positive recovery. 
And, again, this contingency fee agreement, albeit between Mr. Rogers and my firm, it was 
Court approved. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 132 lines 19-21) 

12. Whether the Defendants breached their standard of care to Oliver Sr. by failing to take 
appropriate measures in New York to collect rents to maintain the mortgage and other 
expenses on property in which Oliver Sr. had a legal or equitable interest. 
It is not the responsibility of Defendants to make payments on the Ward’s assets or collect rents 
on the assets. The Guardian is responsible for paying the Ward’s bills and collecting rents. The 
Guardian had an agreement with Oliver Jr. wherein Oliver Jr. would manage 808 Lexington, 
collect the rents, and pay the mortgage. The Guardian was not aware the mortgage had not been 
paid until he was notified of the default. Mr. Rogers testified that he relied on Oliver Jr. to collect 
rents and handle the management of 808 and that he did not make decisions regarding the rent 
and leases for 808 Lexington units based on advice of counsel. 

Q Whose responsibility was it? 

A We had an agreement with Oliver, Jr. and Deborah Kuhnel. Oliver, Jr. lived blocks from this 
place. He owned 50 percent of this through his mother’s estate, and he used to look after this, 
and I would send him e-mails asking if certain things have been done, such as paying the 
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mortgage, and I was assured these things were being done. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 42 lines 11-18) 

Q Okay. And you had a verbal agreement with him, you’re 
telling us, to take care of the – take care of your Ward’s 50 percent interest in the commercial 
building at 808? 

A Correct, because there’s also a 50 percent interest in the house here, and I was to take care of 
that, and they were to take care of the New York. It balanced out. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 44 lines 8-13) 

Q. Okay.  With regard to not following up on the lease or obtaining rents on the property, you 
were doing this with the advice of counsel, correct? 

MS. STUDLEY: Your Honor, objection. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 

THE WITNESS: No. 

BY MR. DENMAN: 
Q. You were doing this on your own? 
A. Not following up? 

Q. Not obtaining any rents on the third and fourth floor apartment or renewing the lease on the 
second floor apartment. 

A. No, I was not doing that on the basis of what counsel told me. 

[...] 

Q. Why did you not follow up and collect rents? 

A. Because I had an agreement that this was - - that was Oliver Jr.’s responsibility, and I took 
responsibility for the property in Florida. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 47-48 lines 11-12). 

A I did collect rent from Oliver Bivins, Jr., through his attorney, Donna Levine, for the period of 
time of August through November of 2014, because the check was made out to the guardianship 
and was tendered to my law firm. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 85 lines 11-14) 

Q So I'm clear, as we sit here today, other than, as you've told us, your communications with 
your clients, Mr. Kelly or Mr. Rogers, you're unaware that any rents were collected based upon 
the efforts of Ciklin Lubitz during the time that you were attorneys for the Ward prior to the time 
the property was sold, correct? 
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MS. STUDLEY: Objection, mischaracterization. 

THE COURT: Overruled. 

A The problem with the question – and I'm not trying to be difficult -- is I'm an attorney. I 
represent a guardian. The guardian is the one who stands in the shoes of the ward. The guardian 
collects rent in this particular situation. For example, the guardian pays bills. 
So I would not have the opportunity to collect rent. That would be something my guardian would 
do. 
So my answer to you would most likely be no, because I don't really recall doing that, but it 
would most likely always be no, because I don't do those kin’s of functions. That's what my 
guardians do. I render advice to my guardians. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, pp. 86-87 lines 12-5) 

A Well, I mean, I guess it's the way you look at it. I mean, you know, the claim was made by 
myself and you, on behalf of your client, that we were entitled to have the rents all the way back 
to August of 2013. That was the claim that we made against them, and luckily both of us were 
successful and all the rent was collected. 
So we absolutely made the claim, despite whether or not the actual deed had been transferred, 
that we deserved that rent. We got it back. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, pp.106-7 lines 21-4) 

Q Okay. You represented to the Court in September 2013, that in connection -- if the Court could 
approve the transaction, that the guardian would have 100 percent ownership of 808 Lexington 
and would start receiving in excess of 12 to $15,000 per month from the rental income that 
Oliver II was retaining, correct? 

A That was the expectation, yes. I don't know exactly what I said, but certainly that was the 
expectation. So, yes, I'm sure I did. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 109 lines 7-15) 

THE WITNESS: If you say represented to the judge, I've got Oliver, Jr. and his agents that I 
have to deal with, and my client can't help if they do something that he doesn't want that want 
meeting with his expectation. The only thing he can try to do is try to resolve that matter, and if 
he 
can't resolve that matter, frankly, he has to get involved in litigation. And that's -- it's not 
representation, it's -- yes, it was the expectation. And unfortunately it wasn't met, but it wasn't 
because of my guardian. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 250-51 lines 22-5) 

A I've spent significant time at the end of 2014 and 2015 dealing that issue that resolved itself in 
a court-ordered payment by Oliver, Jr. to make up for those rents that he took. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 253 lines 9-12) 
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13. Whether Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. by failing to hire attorneys in 
New York with appropriate experience. 
The Guardian was in charge of choosing and hiring attorneys’ in New York. The Defendants did 
not retain nor were they responsible for retaining any New York attorneys in this matter. As 
demonstrated in Curtis Rogers’ testimony, Keith Stein is an experienced attorney:  

Q And you understand from Mr. Stein's background, as it was represented to you, is that he has 
extensive background in capitalization and refinancing, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And you understand that his main expertise in law would be real estate and financing, correct? 
Or let me -- that's what – specialized in. That's his area of practice would be real estate and 
corporate, right? 

A I believe so. 
(Testimony of Curtis Rogers, July 19, 2017, p. 163 lines 11-19) 

14. Whether the Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. to obtain commercially 
reasonable and available financing to refinance the Beachton mortgage. 
The Defendants were not under any obligation to refinance the 808 Lexington property. The 
Guardian received the refinancing offers and chose to sell the property rather than refinance it.  

But if we owned the building outright and weren't contending with the fact that 50 percent of the 
building were owned by the Estate of Lorna Bivins, but if we owned it, if the guardianship 
owned the building outright, and we were able to refinance it with enough additional cash flow 
after paying off the mortgage, we would have been able to renovate the building and rent it out 
presumably at market. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 142 lines 10-16) 

Q But instead of getting loans to take it out at 465, 470, 500, you went out and sought loans 
upwards up to a million 5, correct? 

A Those were the numbers I was asked to get by the guardian to get quotes on. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 167 lines 4-8) 

Q Now, as far as some of the items that would require court approval, did you ever seek court 
approval to actually allow for the refinancing of the 808 property? 

A No. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 188 lines 1-4) 

Q There was quite a bit of discussion about a 
requirement to refinance the property. There's not actually a term in the New York settlement 
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agreement that says that you have to refinance 808 Lexington, is there? 

A No, there is not. 

Q So, in fact, when the Court approved the New York settlement agreement, it didn't actually 
approve a requirement to refinance the property; isn't that right? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. So, again -- and there's not actually any court order saying that you have to refinance 
the property on any particular terms? 

A No. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 198 lines 12-24) 

Q Whose decision was it to refinance or not to refinance? 

A It would be the guardian, with court approval. 

Q Right. 
Why didn't the guardian if you know, refinance the Beachton mortgage? 

A Julian objected to each and every one of the term sheets proposed. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 24, 2017, p. 208 lines 4-10) 

Q And what did you want to do insofar as the property, if anything? 

A The property in New York at the 808? I wanted to sell it. I wanted to sell it right away. 
(Testimony of Stephen Kelly, July 24, 2017 pp. 286-87 lines 24-2) 

15. Whether the Defendants breached their duty of loyalty to Oliver Sr. by seeking 
excessive refinancing to cover attorneys’ fees as opposed to an amount equivalent to the 
outstanding balance of the Beachton Mortgage. 
There is no evidence that the Defendants were under any obligation to refinance the 808 
Lexington property. Additionally, Defendants sought refinancing information to determine if it 
was a good action to take on behalf of the ward. Ultimately the guardian decided to sell the 
property rather than refinance it.  

A Well, my understanding was that that 150 was to go into the management trust, but would 
ultimately be paid by the trust to Donna Levine. I mean, there was a huge discussion in the 
context of the settlement agreement that counsel to the Estate of Lorna Bivins was owed 
$150,000. 

Q So then that was what was provided under the settlement agreement is that the Ward would 
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pay an additional $150,000 – 

A That was one of the things in the settlement agreement. 

Q So that's 465 and 150,’but you were seeking upwards of a million 5; is that correct? 

A And as I explained earlier, we were also seeking enough money to be able to renovate the 
building, bring it to market and create proper liquidity out of it, as well as contingent funds for 
the support of the Ward. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 169 9-24) 

16. Whether the Defendants should have undertaken efforts to seek equitable distribution 
of property owned by Oliver Sr. and Lorna identified in the Final Decree of Divorce. 
No evidence regarding the equitable distribution of the properties was presented.  

17. Whether the Defendants failed to timely and appropriately seek to enforce the New 
York Settlement Agreement. 
The Defendants sought to enforce the New York Settlement. 

A Again, the communications that I have with my client I'm not permitted to discuss. So as it 
relates to items that I've done, I filed a petition to compel compliance of Oliver 
Bivins, Jr. with respect to the New York settlement agreement. I authored that, and I signed, and 
I filed it with the Court. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 86 lines 7-11) 

Q Okay. But the guardianship never got a hundred percent ownership of 808 Lexington until the 
sale over 15 months later, correct? 

A No. But the reason for that is because the approval of the New York settlement -- excuse me -- 
was in September of 2013. Pursuant to its terms -- and I don't have it in front of me, but I am 
very familiar with it, and it provided for court approval. Not only Florida court approval but any 
other court approval that was going to be necessary, which required a New York ancillary 
guardianship. And what that really means is that Curtis Rogers, who is the guardian, had to go up 
to New York, and he had to establish an ancillary guardianship up there, which he attempted to 
do. 
The agreement said until that time that he got that ancillary guardianship established, he couldn't 
actually accept the deed and hold property, because he's a Florida 
guardian, not a New York resident. So we did that. 
We then had another -- but this is important, because we then had another difficulty, which was 
that we had a successor guardian come in, Steve Kelly. He came in the April-May 2014 
timeframe. So you then have another successor guardian who has to go through the same 
process. At that time, luckily the process in New York had changed, and it was just a registration 
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process, and we were able to do that quickly. 
Then Mr. Kelly wanted to sell the property, and so the transfer occurred through there. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, pp. 95-96 lines 13-18) 

Q But actually the deeds were not transferred, and 100 percent ownership of those properties 
were not effected until the time of the closing in December of 2014, correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. And that's when the deeds were ultimately transferred as part of that transaction, 
correct? 

A That's right, due to the problems that, again, Ms. Crispin testified to before in terms of needing 
the New York guardianship, the ancillary guardianship in New York to be established, to take 
the title, to approve the settlement, and then there were the disputes that were ongoing with the 
counsel for Oliver, Jr. 

Q Okay. 

A About the deed transfer. 
(Testimony of Brian O’Connell, July 25, 2017 p. 21 lines 1-19) 
Q Explain to the jury why things such as that take a bit of time, particularly given the 
circumstances that were present here. 

A Once again, normally when Lorna's estate agrees to turn over its half, it doesn't happen, I think 
ultimately what was determined was that they needed to put in place a New York guardianship to 
receive the one-half of 808. And my understanding is that that took a considerable amount of 
time. They had hired one lawyer to do the work, and that lawyer didn't do it properly. I think 
they went to another lawyer to do this procedure, which, again, everything takes time. 
And I think ultimately what happened was that New York passed a new law allowing the transfer 
to take place without the guardianship, so ultimately they were able to facilitate the deal. Just 
there were delays like crazy, but it did happen. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 p. 112 lines 16-6) 

18. Whether the Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. by failing to maximize the 
value of Oliver Sr.’s assets by improving or renting 808 Lexington or 330 Ocean Boulevard 
at market value. 
Defendants did not have the authority to make decisions regarding renovation and renting of the 
properties on the Ward’s behalf. The Guardian chose not to renovate 808 Lexington because it 
required time and money that the Ward did not have.  

Long-term ownership of that property for this guardianship was a problematic concept. The 
property was in severely delapidated state, would have required extensive amounts of cash in 
order to renovate the property to bring it to rentable standards in all -- in all of its rentable space. 
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It would have been absentee ownership, because the guardian was in Florida, not in New York. I 
certainly was not -- I'm not a property manager and was not retained to be a property manager. 
So the answer is I was a proponent of having ownership either reside solely in the guardianship's 
hands so that a liquidity event could be consummated with respect to that property to -- to create 
monies available for the benefit of the Ward. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 132 lines 2-15) 

Q Which is exactly why you said that it would be utterly foolish not to perform some simple 
deferred maintenance and lease the two empty apartments, correct? 

A Well, the simple deferred maintenance would have required probably tens of thousands of 
dollars to put those two apartments into liveable condition. 
Mr. Denman, if you had seen those apartments, you couldn't imagine the condition they were in. 
They had no plumbing, they had no appliances, they had no flooring, they had cracked windows, 
there's a staircase in the building that one could barely get up. I don't even know that it would 
have passed code under its condition. 
So I -- I'm not -- as I said, I'm not a property manager. I don't know exactly what it would have 
cost to fully renovate the building in order to rent those two apartments out. But if we owned the 
building outright and weren't contending with the fact that 50 percent of the building were owned 
by the Estate of Lorna Bivins, but if we owned it, if the guardianship owned the building 
outright, and we were able to refinance it with enough additional cash flow after paying off the 
mortgage, we would have been able to renovate the building and rent it out presumably at 
market. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, pp. 141-42 lines 20-16) 

Q Okay. And the deferred maintenance that you're referring to, as we sit here today, do you 
know how much the deferred maintenance would have been to put in to rent those units for 5100 
per month? 

A I see what it says over here, 50 to a hundred thousand dollars. 

 [...] 

Q Okay. So let me direct you to page 94, line 15. At that date, were you asked this question 
under oath, and did you give this answer? 

"Question: So you believe in its current condition, you could actually get for the third and fourth 
floor apartments in their current conditions, with 50 to $100,000 in deferred maintenance, you 
could get up to $5100 rent per month on those?" 
And would you read your answer on line 22. 

A Yes, my answer is, yes, these are conservative numbers. Fifty to a hundred thousand, if you 
multiply – 

Q Sir, my question – 
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A -- 50 times two, it is a hundred thousand.  
(Testimony of Lipa Lieberman, July 20, 2017, pp. 11-14 lines 17-5) 

19. Whether the Defendants breached their duty of loyalty to Oliver Sr. by permitting the 
Guardian to enter into an excessive and unnecessary exclusive listing agreement. 
The Guardian chose to enter into the listing agreement with Lipa Lieberman at Eastern 
Consolidated, the commission was a standard rate that did not require Court approval. However, 
the Court did actually approve the listing agreement and the commission. 

Q Did you actually seek court approval to hire Mr. -- Eastern Consolidated and Lipa Lieberman? 

A As part of the order to sell the property, it was approved. 

Q And you actually saw an order approving the commission that Mr. Lipa Lieberman was paid; 
isn't that right? 

A Yes. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 187 lines 5-11) 

Q Okay. And, Mr. Lieberman, you understand that the Court approved your commission 
retention and payment in this matter, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And you also understand that the Court could have undone or modified your agreement, 
correct? 

A At any time. 
(Testimony of Lipa Lieberman, July 20, 2017, p. 59 lines 8-14) 

Q Okay. And, let's see, you had tried in June. As a matter of fact, that's why the exclusive listing 
agreement has the June date on it. It wasn't actually signed in June, but it had the June date on it, 
because you'd been trying to get an exclusive signed, but it wasn't being signed, right? 

A Well, it's not that it wasn't being signed. I was always told that it would have to be, you know, 
approved by the Court, so . . . 
(Testimony of Lipa Lieberman, July 20, 2017, p. 61 lines 12-19) 

Q Is this the petition that you said that everyone was advised and knew that Eastern Consolidated 
had entered into an exclusive listing agreement with the guardian for 6 percent? 

A I said -- exactly what it says here is exactly what I said, Kelly is hiring Eastern Consolidated. 

Q Kelly is hiring Eastern Consolidated, a commercial real estate firm, located in New York City, 
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to market the real property and accept contracts, subject to court approval, for the sale of the 
property at the highest and best fair market value to the highest bidder, right? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Where – 
MR. DENMAN: And, please, if you could make that a 
bit smaller so we can see the whole document? 
BY MR. DENMAN: 
Q The document nowhere in here says that this is going to 
be an exclusive listing agreement for Eastern Consolidated, does it? 

A It doesn't say that, but, I mean, it's very clear that Eastern Consolidated is being contemplated 
by Kelly to be 
hired. 

Q It doesn't say that he's going to be getting a 6 percent 
commission, does it? 

A Well, it doesn't say that, but it doesn't need to. The guardian is permitted under the 
guardianship law to hire real estate agents to list properties at standard rates, as long as it's a 
standard rate. And 6 percent would certainly be a standard rate, and so there was no need to 
really put that in there. It would need to be in there if it was more than a standard rate. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p.140-41 lines 17-21) 

Q Okay. You would agree with me, well, the first paragraph up at the top talks about Mr. 
Lieberman's commission that he would get for the sale, right? 

A Exactly. It was court approved. His 300,000, or his 6 percent, is court approved. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 24, 2017, p. 51 lines 16-20) 

Q When you were asked about the hearing that ultimately approved the brokerage agreement for 
Eastern Consolidated, there was a lot made about an agreement being signed two days before the 
hearing, and then you mentioned that the court can confirm an agreement. 
Can you explain what that means to the jury. 

A Yes. As I indicated earlier, there's a list of about 20 factors that require court approval before 
the guardian can undertake these; signing contracts, selling real estate, things of that nature: And 
the Guardianship Code says that the guardian is supposed to get permission ahead of time or can 
ask the Court to confirm the action after the fact. Both are permissible under the Guardianship 
Code. 

Q And does the Court necessarily have to confirm the action? 

A If the Court doesn't confirm the action in some way, then there could be an issue. 
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Q And it may not -- then the contract wouldn't go forward, right? 

A That's right. 
Oh, I see what you're saying. Right, then the contract would be void. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp. 196-97 lines 10-6) 

20. Whether the Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. by misrepresenting to the 
Court that the Oliver Bivins Management Trust (the “Trust”) was refusing to pay the 
Ward’s medical and living expenses in order to obtain approval of the New York 
Settlement and to sell 808 Lexington. 
No evidence was presented regarding a misrepresentation that the Oliver Bivins Management 
Trust was not paying the Ward’s medical and living expenses.  

21. Whether the Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. by misrepresenting to the 
Court that 808 Lexington and 67th were of equal value. 
Plaintiff offers no proof that Mr. Stein or any of the CLO Defendants misrepresented that 808 
Lexington and 67th Street were of equal value. First, the testimony provided by Keith Stein was 
not given to persuade the Court to enter an Order approving the New York Settlement; it was 
given after the settlement had already been approved. Second, Mr. Stein did not make any 
misrepresentation, his testimony is as follows: 

Q What was the value. Didn't you agree that on that date you believed it was worth roughly 
equivalent value to 808. That's what I asked. 

A So my belief on that day was that 808 Lexington Avenue is worth between four and a half and 
five and a half million dollars if a hundred percent owned by the guardianship, and that based on 
the broker's opinion of value that had been provided by Eastern Consolidated on 39 East 67th 
Street of between 7 and 9 million, that if we put the mid-point of 8 million, and we assumed we, 
at best, could achieve a 50 percent ownership of that property, that would equate to 4 million. 
Therefore, I was comparing, in my answer to the judge there, 4 million on 67th Street, to four 
and a half to five and a half million on 808 Lexington. 

Q And do you remember when you were sworn under oath and you said in your transcript of 
your testimony, September 17th, 2013, referring to page 16, line 14, and you said: And the 
townhouse, the East 67th Street property, is probably roughly equivalent to value of the 808 
Lexington property. 
So you think it was a good exchange or a good trade, correct? That's what you testified to under 
oath, then, correct? 

A Yes. But it was -- first of all, within context it was understood that value to us would mean 50 
percent of the value of 67th Street, not a hundred percent, because we were never -- we would, at 
best, never been able to achieve more than 50 percent of the value of 67th Street. Remember that 
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unless the divorce was unwound, Oliver, Sr. had absolutely no rights to any value to 67th Street. 
He didn't own it. He hadn't owned it since 1950 -- 1961. He had had zero interest in East 67th 
Street since 1961. 
So -- 

Q Okay. Your testimony, you would agree with me, looking at the transcript, under oath was, 
page 16, line 15: And the townhouse, the East 67th Street property, is probably roughly 
equivalent to value of 808 Lexington property? 
That's what you testified under oath then. 

MR. BLAKER: Your Honor, this is the third time in about three minutes. 

THE COURT: Yes, you can explain why you said that. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. And the answer I just gave was the explanation, but I'll give it again. 
In the context of that hearing, what was being considered -- and, by the way, this hearing was not 
the hearing to approve the settlement. This was a fee hearing. 

BY MR. DENMAN: 
Q So that changes it; your testimony is different under oath? 

A No, I'm just pointing that out. I'm not saying it's different. I'm just pointing it out. I was under 
oath, and I was testifying to the best of my ability, knowledge and truthfulness. But in the 
context of that hearing, what was being compared in terms of relative values was how much is 
808 Lexington worth, and the answer is four and a half to five and a half million dollars, a 
hundred percent of which would be owned by the guardianship. So let's pick the midpoint and 
say that's $5 million of value that would be owned by the guardianship. 
And East 67th Street was considered to be worth 7 and 9 million by an experienced commercial 
real estate broker in Manhattan who delivered an opinion of value, and his opinion was 7 to 9 
million for that building. So if you pick the midpoint of 8, and we, at best, if we were able to 
unravel the divorce could have laid claim to 50 percent of that 8 million, that's a $4 million 
number. 
So I'm comparing in this testimony 4 million on the one hand to four and a half to 5 million on 
the other hand. 

Q Okay. 

A And to me, in my mind, in Manhattan real estate, given everything else that would have been 
resolved by virtue of completing this settlement agreement, was a good compromise and result. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, p. 144-47 lines 14-13) 

Q Okay. The morning, what was the morning session that you were in court for? What was that? 

A The morning session was for the approval of the actual transaction. 

Q So anything you said in the afternoon was not the predicate for the Court to approve the New 
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York settlement agreement; is that right? 

A No, the New York settlement agreement had been approved I think by, you know, 10:00 a.m. 
or 10:15, whatever the timing was, and then we broke, and then we started another hearing on 
other matters, which is what I was testifying to in the transcript that you're referring to. 
(Testimony of Keith Stein, July 18, 2017, pp. 195-96 lines 22-8) 

22. Whether Defendants breached their duty to Oliver Sr. by pursuing litigation after the 
death of Oliver Sr. 
The Guardians chose to contest the validity of the Ward’s will. 

Q And so the petitions on January 15th, 2016, February 5th, 2016, and August 23rd, 2016, were 
filed almost a year after the Ward passed away, correct? 

A But like I said, I mean, the disputes between the guardian -- the guardians, Mr. Rogers, Mr. 
Kelly, and your client, Mr. Bivins, and the various law firms involved, they continue on to this 
day. That's what I'm trying to say. 
Unfortunately, a discharge hasn't been able to be obtained because of those objections, and the 
fees will continue on until such time as there's a discharge. And hopefully, maybe we can resolve 
some things someday, and we've tried before, and I hope that we can. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 24, 2017, pp. 99-100 lines 23-3) 

Q And, as a matter of fact, as part of your fees, you're actually seeking fees, your own fees, in 
connection with petitioning the probate court to revoke the will, right? 

A I filed that -- remember, when you say "you", I represent somebody. It's like there's an empty 
seat here that we don't keep talking about. I have my guardian, that's my client. And my client is 
seeking to remove Julian Bivins as personal representative, and he's also seeking to invalidate the 
will, because he believes it's invalid. 

Q Okay. And the petition to invalidate the will is not bought -- brought on behalf of anyone in 
the Bivins family, right? 

A No, it's brought on behalf of the men that worked on his behalf for many years. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 24, 2017, p. lines -) 

23. Whether the Defendants misrepresented to the Court the benefit to Oliver Sr. from the 
New York Settlement and the sale of 808 in order to obtain payment of their attorneys’ 
fees. 
Plaintiff admitted that the New York Settlement was a net benefit to the Ward and Plaintiff has 
not presented any evidence of any misrepresentation to the Guardianship Court regarding the 
benefit of the New York Settlement to Oliver Sr.  
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Q And in the New York settlement, as part of the New York settlement, you would agree that 
you represented to the Court that this was great for the Ward, because he would start receiving 
next month all of the rental income that Oliver, Jr. was receiving, correct? 

A That was the expectation, absolutely. And Ms. Levine actually chimed in on that, and she 
represented Oliver, Jr. as personal representative, and she also stated that that would be what 
would happen. So it certainly was the expectation, yes. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin, July 20, 2017, p. 106 lines 6-15) 

Q Okay. And the Court heard argument, and all the attorneys got a chance to talk, and the Court 
considered the situation; is that correct? 

A Considered Julian's objection. 

Q But Julian said, or Mr. Denman said on Julian's behalf, did he not, that this settlement was a 
net positive to Oliver, Sr.; is that correct? 

A On many occasions. 

Q Correct. 
He said it more than one time. He said it multiple times, that this settlement was a net positive to 
Oliver, Sr., correct? 

A That's right, because it was. 
(Testimony of Ashley Crispin p. 203-04 lines 19-6) 

Q Explain to the jury, please, the extent of that litigation that was pending that the New York 
settlement intended to resolve. 

A Sure. 
There were a number of competing actions between the guardianship and Lorna's estate. 
Attached to the New York settlement agreement is a whole separate page of all the different 
cases that are pending that were going to be resolved by the settlement agreement. Might be 12 
of them, maybe 15. It covers the entire page. 
The most important one was the release and withdrawal of the petition to determine 
beneficiaries; whereby, if that claim had been pursued, then the guardianship would have had 
some rights to Lorna's estate. And so that was one of the main things that was given up in the 
New York settlement agreement. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp 109-9 lines 23-13) 

Q Okay. And as we were discussing, Mr. Skatoff, that's your opinion based upon your 
experience, based upon your review of the documentation and based upon all the facts and 
circumstances of which you are aware, is that that New York settlement was a good idea and 
prudent? 
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A Yes. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp. 111 lines 7-12) 

Q Did you have an opportunity to evaluate that settlement agreement? 

A I did. And what I did was I looked at the – the movement of the property, saw that the claims 
were being released, and, most importantly, I read the transcript of the hearing wherein the 
judge, during an extensive hearing, asked everybody involved in the case what they wanted and 
why, and everybody had an opportunity to explain what their position was on the New York 
settlement agreement. 
And you can see from the transcript -- I don't know if the jury's had access to it, but you can see 
in the transcript the analysis that the judge goes through, essentially saying getting certainty is 
almost always going to be better than litigation was sort of how the judge made his 
determination. 

Q What do you mean getting certainty is always better than having litigation? 

A What the guardianship had were claims against Lorna's estate that would require either 
pending lawsuits to be continuously maintained and funded and dealt with. So that would be the 
uncertainty of litigation. Versus the certainty that the New York settlement agreement gave to 
the guardianship, which was you'll get 50  percent of 808 Lexington and 50 percent of 330 South 
Ocean that you didn't previously own. 
And the settlement agreement is what did that. And the judge was, from looking at the transcripts 
and his reasoning, seemed to be persuaded that getting certainty in terms of approximately $3 
million worth of value from these properties was better than the alternative of continuing to 
litigate. 

Q Is there some particular concern with certainty when you're dealing with a 93-year-old ward 
with dementia? 

A Well, sure. 
Anytime you're involved in litigation, you've gotta consider what does it cost to maintain the 
lawsuit and how long is it going to take to resolve. So this was an opportunity to resolve the 
matter right now with certainty with somebody who may not live that much longer, as opposed 
to leave him in an uncertain position without the benefit of the additional money coming into the 
guardianship estate. 

(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp 93-95 lines 20-10) 

Was there any indication in the records you reviewed when analyzing the Oliver Bivins 
guardianship that the attorneys' motivations were directly related to incurring fees? 

A No, I saw nothing that would indicate that. 
(Testimony of Jeffrey Skatoff, July 27, 2017 pp 192-93 lines 23-2) 
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24. Whether the Defendants breached their duty of loyalty to Oliver Sr. by improperly 
retaining proceeds of the sale of 808 Lexington. 
This issue has already been adjudicated by the Florida Guardianship Court and the Fourth 
District Court of Appeal in Florida in Bivins v. Guardianship of Bivins, 42 Fla. L. Weekly D1053 
(Fla. 4th DCA May 10, 2017). As such this Court does not have subject matter jurisdiction over 
this claim due to collateral estoppel, res judicata, and the Rooker-Feldman doctrine.  

“Collateral estoppel, also known as estoppel by judgment, serves as a bar to relitigation of an 
issue which has already been determined by a valid judgment.” Stogniew v. McQueen, 656 So. 
2d 917, 919 (Fla. 1995). The res judicata as a defense requires satisfying five conditions: "(1) 
identity of the thing sued for; (2) identity of the cause of action; (3) identity of the persons and 
parties to the action; (4) identity of the quality [or capacity] of the persons for or against whom 
the claim is made; and (5) the original claim was disposed of on the merits." Kaplan v. Kaplan, 
624 Fed.Appx. 680, 682 (11th Cir. 2015).  This doctrine "applies to all matters actually raised 
and determined as well as to all other matters which could properly have been raised and 
determined in the prior action, whether they were or not." ICC Chemical Corp. v. Freeman, 640 
So. 2d 92, 93 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1994). Accordingly, the Eleventh Circuit has set forth four criteria 
that must be satisfied for the Rooker-Feldman Doctrine to apply: (1) the plaintiff in federal court 
is the same as the loser in state court; (2) the prior state court ruling was a final or conclusive 
judgment on the merits; (3) the plaintiff had a reasonable opportunity to raise its federal claims in 
the state court; (4) the state court either adjudicated the issue the federal court is considering or 
the issue was inextricably intertwined with the state court's judgment. Kozich v. Deibert, 15-
61386-CIV, 2015 WL 12533077, at *3 (S.D. Fla. Oct. 20, 2015) (finding that the Rooker 
Feldman doctrine had been met when “Plaintiff had a reasonable opportunity to – and did – raise 
many of the same claims and defenses in the state court eviction action that he asserts in the 
above-styled action.”). 

A Again, what happened was that the judge listened to both sides as to what this holdback should 
be, how much it should be, and found that we were correct that under the law, a certain amount 
could be held back, and, yes, that another amount was to be transferred to the trust. And the 
judge, so there's completeness, the judge did rule that Mr. Stein could retain his $72,000, but 
then the appellate court said that should be transferred. 
So just so there's a whole story told. 
(Testimony of Brian O’Connell, July 25, 2017, p. 84 lines 2-9) 
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 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
 SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION 
 

 Case No. 9:15-cv-81298-KAM/Matthewman 
 

JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal 
Representative of the ancillary Estate 
of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
 
v. 
 
CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR., 
as former guardian,  et. al, 
 
  Defendants. 
__________________________________________/ 
 

DEFENDANTS' RENEWED MOTION FOR JUDGMENT AS A MATTER OF LAW 
AND FOR NEW TRIAL, AND ALTERNATIVE MOTION FOR REMITTITUR 

 
 Defendants, Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell, and attorneys Ashley N. Crispin and Brian M. 

O'Connell ("Defendants"), renew their motion for judgment as a matter of law pursuant to Fed. R. 

Civ. P. 50 and move for a new trial or remittitur under Fed. R. Civ. P. 59, and state:  

 INTRODUCTION & OUTLINE OF DEFECTS IN PLAINTIFF'S PROOF 

 Defendants renew their motion for judgment as a matter of law because Plaintiff failed to 

present competent proof that Defendants committed legal malpractice or breached a fiduciary duty 

to Oliver Bivins, Sr. (the "Ward").  Plaintiff failed to present the jury with any expert testimony.  

That alone is fatal to the claims in this case and, by itself, should result in entry of judgment as a 

matter of law for Defendants under Rule 50.   

 While Plaintiff disclosed an expert on some of the issues – which expert was stricken – 

Plaintiff had no expert to testify about numerous critical elements of duty, causation and damages 

with regard to the Guardian's settlement of thirteen litigated matters.  For example, Plaintiff had 

no expert to testify that "but-for" some breach of duty by Defendants, the Ward would have 

received a more favorable outcome at the conclusion of the pending complex litigation and appeals 
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in Texas, New York and Florida.1 At the risk of oversimplification, absent expert testimony on that 

"case-within-a-case" issue, Plaintiff's claims all fail as a matter of law. 

 At most, Plaintiff tried to prove that the value of one property involved in the New York 

litigation was substantially higher than the broker's opinion relied upon by the Guardian, as a result 

of Defendants' alleged failure to obtain an MAI appraisal. Again, this case is about far more than 

just getting an MAI appraisal.  But on just that narrow issue, Plaintiff's claims fail on all fronts.  

First, as to liability, there was no expert testimony that the standard of care in the relevant legal 

community required an MAI appraisal.  The uncontroverted evidence from all three of the 

Guardian's lawyers and both experts was that using a broker's opinion does not fall below the 

standard of care. There is no expert testimony that a lawyer representing a Guardian or a Ward 

must obtain an MAI appraisal, rather than rely on a broker's opinion. 

 Second, as to causation, there is no proof that an appraisal obtained on or before May 8, 

2013, the date of the settlement conference, would have shown a fair market value higher than the 

broker's opinion.  Proof of causation in this case would have required Plaintiff to show, at a 

minimum, that an MAI appraisal would have been different than the broker's opinion.  (And, 

beyond that, Plaintiff still would have needed to prove the Guardian would have obtained a better 

net outcome if he was aware of a higher market value at the time of the settlement.) 

 Third, as to damages, there is no way to sustain an award of any damages, let alone $16.4 

million. There is no competent evidence as to the value of the 67th Street property in May 2013, 

other than the broker's opinion. Plaintiff failed to call an expert on value; relying solely on a sale 

nearly 18 months after the valuation date. That sale price – by itself and without the testimony of 

an expert– is not competent evidence of value.  Moreover, the damages awarded in this case are 

so grossly excessive the Court would have to order a new trial or a remittitur if the claims had been 

proven. 

                                                 
1 The multi-facteted New York settlement included the dismissal of an appeal by the Ward's other 
son, Oliver Bivins, Jr.  The appeal challenged a settlement between Julian Bivins and the Guardian 
over ownership of the Ward's oil, gas and mineral interests, valued at $20 million. The Florida 
Petition challenged the full faith and credit to be given to a Texas divorce decree and whether the 
Ward could receive an intestate share of his former wife's Florida estate.  The jury needed expert 
testimony (perhaps multiple experts from different states) on these issues.  
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 The jury was not free to speculate on the standard of care, without expert testimony.  The 

question is not whether it might be better to get an appraisal, but whether the standard of care in 

the relevant legal community required one.  The jury was not free to speculate on the outcome of 

any one issue – the Texas appellate proceedings; the New York partition action; or the Petition to 

Determine Beneficiaries in Florida – let alone the overall net outcome of this complex litigation. 

Without expert testimony as to each case, and expert testimony as to the overall net result to the 

Ward, there is no support for any verdict in favor of Plaintiff.  The jury also was not free to 

speculate on damages. The verdict amount is more than double the amount "computed" by the 

Plaintiff's damages/math witness, and presupposes complete victory – the best possible outcome 

for the Ward on every issue in every case. 2  

This motion addresses the legal and factual defects of Plaintiff's case which were first 

addressed when the Court excluded Plaintiff's expert witness, and were raised again at the close of 

all evidence. The Court reserved ruling, and Defendants timely renew their Rule 50 motion for 

judgment as a matter of law.  For brevity, clarity and judicial economy, Defendants combine in 

this Motion an alternate request under Rule 59 for a new trial or remittitur. 

LIABILITY ISSUES 

A. Plaintiff has not put forth ANY expert testimony on the duty owed or proof of a 
deviation from that standard of care. 

 
 Once Plaintiff's expert was stricken, both of Plaintiff's claims for professional negligence 

and breach of fiduciary duty failed as a matter of law. The Court reserved ruling on the motion for 

judgment as a matter of law before the verdict, but now should enter judgment in favor of 

Defendants. In a legal malpractice or breach of fiduciary duty case, each issue implicating a 

professional duty or exercise of professional judgment requires expert testimony. Plaintiff's counts 

for malpractice and breach of fiduciary duty are discussed below. 

1. Malpractice             

                                                 
2 The jury invented a damages number far beyond anything supported by the record evidence. 
Even a complete victory on the Florida Petition would have yielded only a 50% interest in the 67th 
Street property, net of mortgage debt and estate obligations under section 733.707.  
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The two claims at issue in this case are breach of fiduciary duty and legal malpractice 

concerning the discrete duties owed to the Ward by attorneys for the professional guardians.  The 

underlying litigation involved a complex guardianship, with multiple litigated matters in three 

different states, and issues concerning the care of the 90-year old Ward.  The applicable duty and 

standard of care for a professional guardian’s counsel in this situation are far outside the common 

knowledge of a jury. Without expert testimony, a lay jury can only speculate as to whether an 

attorney's actions constituted negligence. Willage v. Law Offices of Wallace & Breslow, P. A., 415 

So. 2d 767, 768 (Fla. 3d DCA 1982)3. "Our review of Florida case law indicates that a legal 

malpractice plaintiff must present expert testimony to establish the appropriate standard of care 

(and breach thereof) unless the lawyer's lack of care and skill is so obvious4 that the trier of fact 

can resolve the issue as a matter of common knowledge." Evans v. McDonald, 313 Fed. Appx. 

256, 258 (11th Cir. 2009)(applying Fla. Law) (emphasis added). But, as here, "when the facts of 

the case are such that the duty owed and the standard of care are not common knowledge then an 

expert opinion is necessary to establish a breach." Id. As such, the professional negligence claims 

against Defendants fail as a matter of law for absence of expert testimony on the standard of care. 

2. Breach of Fiduciary Duty 

"[C]ourts usually end up analyzing both claims for breach of fiduciary duty and malpractice 

under the rubric of a malpractice claim." Brenner v. Miller, 09-60235-CIV, 2009 WL 1393420, at 

*2 (S.D. Fla. May 18, 2009). When the "essential thrust" of the breach of fiduciary duty claim is 

one of legal malpractice the case is evaluated from the lens of legal malpractice. Jackson v. 

BellSouth Telecommunications, 00-7558-CIV, 2002 WL 34382750, at *4–5 (S.D. Fla. Nov. 26, 

2002)(Marra, J.).  

                                                 
3 Substantive Florida law applies in this diversity action. Caster v. Hennessey, 781 F.2d 1569, 1570 
(11th Cir. 1986). 
 
4 This case does not involve an obvious neglect of duty, as in Anderson v. Steven R. Andrews, P.A., 
692 So. 2d 237, 242 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997)(failure to file notice of appearance); Suritz v. Kelner, 
155 So. 2d 831, 834 (Fla. 3d DCA 1963)(directing client not to answer on penalty of dismissal); 
Galloway v. Law Offices of Merkle, Bright & Sullivan, P.A., 596 So. 2d 1205 (Fla. 4th DCA 
1992)(failure to file within statute of limitations). 
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In this case, Plaintiff's claims for legal malpractice and breach of fiduciary duty are 

identical. A claim by a client against an attorney for breach of fiduciary duties is a claim for legal 

malpractice. See 4 Ronald E. Mallen and Jeffrey M. Smith, LEGAL MALPRACTICE § 15:2 (2017 

ed.)(“a fiduciary breach is legal malpractice, because it concerns the representation of a client and 

involves the fundamental aspects of an attorney-client relationship”). As with negligence-based 

legal malpractice claims, expert evidence is required to establish the appropriate fiduciary duties 

owed by the attorneys unless such duties are a matter of common knowledge5. Id. § 34:20 at 1170-

71 ("Just as the standard of care usually is beyond common knowledge, so are the often 

sophisticated issues concerning confidentiality and loyalty."). 

Moreover, Plaintiff must also prove the case within a case – "but for" the settlement, the 

Ward would have achieved a better result. The duties and issues raised by Plaintiff in the Pretrial 

Stipulation6 are beyond the understanding of a lay jury. Accordingly, Florida law requires Plaintiff 

to introduce expert testimony to meet its burden of proof in assisting the jury in coming to a 

conclusion. Evans, 313 Fed. Appx. at 258. Likewise, expert testimony is required on the standard 

for the duty owed by an attorney for breach of a fiduciary duty. The predicate of the breach of 

fiduciary duty claim is the attorney's duty owed as a lawyer for the guardian, therefore, the 

fiduciary duty owed is one of professional care and competence. Supra 4 LEGAL MALPRACTICE § 

15:2 at 644-45. To that end, Plaintiff's breach of fiduciary duty claims here fails, because it relies 

on all of the same allegations as Plaintiff's malpractice claim. (Am. Compl. ¶¶ 100-105; 110-113; 

127-133; 136-141 [DE 18]). See e.g. 4 LEGAL MALPRACTICE § 37:124 (sophisticated issues of 

breach of fiduciary duty like standard of care are beyond common knowledge requiring an expert); 

Id. at § 37:126 (“In some contexts, expert testimony truly is essential. Expert testimony is 

mandatory if the attorney purports to be a legal specialist or practiced in a legal specialty. Without 

expert testimony to establish the standard of care, there would be no basis for evaluating whether 

the attorney's conduct comported to the standard.”); Id. at § 37:135 (“In most respects, the rules 

                                                 
5 Mallen’s authoritative treatise on attorney liability for malpractice and breach of fiduciary duty 
relies upon the same standard of law as Florida according to Evans discussed above. 
 
6 See Appendix A, comparing Plaintiff’s issues of fact for the jury in the Pretrial Stipulation with 
the actual testimony at trial. 
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concerning establishing a fiduciary breach parallel those concerning negligence. Expert testimony 

usually is necessary to establish the “standard of conduct,” which determines the fiduciary 

obligations and whether there was a deviation therefrom.”). Accord Floyd v. Hefner, 556 F. Supp. 

2d 617, 643 (S.D. Tex. 2008)(“Expert testimony is also generally required to establish a fiduciary 

breach where the issues of confidentiality, loyalty in the context of conflicting interests or adverse 

representation or causation and damages are beyond common knowledge.”)(Texas and Florida law 

are in accord). 

The issue of whether expert testimony is required to prove a breach of fiduciary duty when 

the attorney is acting in a professional capacity was resolved by the 11th Circuit, applying Georgia 

Law, in OFS Fitel, LLC v. Epstein, Becker & Green, P.C., 549 F.3d 1344 (11th Cir. 2008). In that 

case, the 11th Circuit explained that the failure to provide expert testimony on Plaintiff's 

negligence claim was case dispositive because the breach of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment 

claims incorporated the allegations of legal malpractice without adding any independent factual 

allegations. Id. at 1357, n. 8. Accord  Marciano v. Kraner, 10 A.3d 572, 577, 578 (Conn. App. Ct. 

2011)(“a plaintiff cannot avoid his burden to present expert testimony to articulate the contours of 

that relationship by styling his cause of action as one for breach of fiduciary duty.”). In sum, the 

governing treatise on this topic and numerous other jurisdictions agree, expert testimony in cases 

involving a specialist attorney7 requires expert testimony on breach of fiduciary duty. 

3. Appraisal 

 Insofar as Plaintiff's claims are partly based upon the alleged failure to obtain an MAI 

appraisal on the 67th Street property, there was no expert testimony on liability to prove the 

standard of care in the relevant legal community required an appraisal.  Instead, the uncontroverted 

evidence established that the use of a broker's opinion met the standard of care, and that 

Defendants' counseled the guardian based upon the broker's opinions of value. Every witness and 

both experts testified it was appropriate to rely on a broker's opinion of value.8 Plaintiff failed to 

                                                 
7 Plaintiff needed an expert with “expertise to be able to say how an attorney for a guardian's 
supposed to act in all these broad contexts, which we have in this case.” (T. Vol. 8, 32:4-8) 
 
8   In the guardianship case, Judge Colin said no appraisal was needed. (T8:113) That was 
confirmed by Defendants' expert, Skatoff.  Attorney Stein testified he prefers broker opinions 
which are better than appraisals. (T2:95). Robbins (Stein's expert) testified: "when I had a 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 415   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/25/2017   Page 6 of 23



 

 

7 

meet his burden to establish through expert testimony the standard of care in this guardianship 

matter required an MAI appraisal, not a broker's opinion of value. Likewise, there was no expert 

testimony that counsel for a ward's professional guardian was required to obtain an MAI appraisal, 

as opposed to a broker's opinion of value in connection with Manhattan real estate. Further, the 

absence of an appraisal does not substitute for the necessary expert testimony on multi-state/multi-

issue litigation 

4. Summary 

While there is no doubt Defendants owed some professional duty of care to the Ward, it is 

incumbent on Plaintiff to prove exactly what that standard of care requires. Here, the New York 

settlement that involved the Lexington and 67th Street properties also concerned the legal interplay 

of the settlement of 13 litigated matters as well as the guardian’s decision-making as to the best 

interest of the Ward. Plaintiff had to present expert testimony of the standard of care and the breach 

of that standard for every issue. Otherwise, it is legally impossible for the jury to find malpractice 

or breach of fiduciary duty.9 

In Plaintiff's case, there was no expert testimony of any kind as to the standard of care or 

Defendants' breach of that standard, as attorneys for a guardian, handling numerous litigated 

matters or representing the guardian in a complex settlement. Importantly, one of the largest issues 

was the appeal by Oliver, Jr. of the Texas settlement creating a multi-million dollar trust for the 

benefit of the Ward. The NY Settlement required a dismissal of that appeal.  Thus, expert testimony 

was needed to view the settlement of Lexington and 67th Street not in isolation, but from an overall 

totality of the various cases. 

Plaintiff failed to offer any expert testimony, in part, as a result of the Court striking his 

chosen expert. Nonetheless, even if that expert had testified, the expert's pretrial, court-ordered 

disclosure did not cover every issue on which expert testimony was required, including all 

causation and damages issues necessary to sustain the verdict.  Absent expert testimony on any 

                                                 
guardianship and we sold real property, we used a broker price opinion, and that seems to be the 
common practice." (T8:249) 
9   Cronan v. Iwon, 972 A.2d 172, 175 (R.I. 2009)(absent expert evidence to explain the appropriate 
standard of conduct owed by attorneys and guardians ad litem to an incapacitated ward, summary 
judgment was properly granted on plaintiffs' claim for breach of fiduciary duty). 
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element of the standard of care, the verdict must be vacated and judgment entered as a matter of 

law in favor of Defendants. 

The testimony adduced and the Pretrial Stipulation in this case show the underlying duty 

and causation issues are multi-faceted and far too complex for a lay jury to decide on their own.  

"Without expert testimony, a lay jury could only speculate as to whether an attorney's conscious 

decision not to call a purported witness constituted negligence, where in the attorney's opinion, the 

witness on cross examination could have given testimony damaging to plaintiff's case."  Willage, 

415 So. 2d at 768.  

"When the matter remains one of pure speculation or conjecture, or the probabilities are at 

best evenly balanced, it becomes the duty of the court to direct a verdict in favor of the defendant."  

FDIC v. Icard, Merril, Cullis, Timm, Furen & Ginsburg, P.A., No. 8:11-CV-2831-T-33MAP; 13 

WL 4402968 at *5 (M.D. Fla. Aug. 15, 2013).  

 Accordingly, Plaintiff similarly failed to meet his overall burden to establish through expert 

testimony the standard of care in this guardianship matter with regard to the settlement of thirteen 

litigated matters in the New York settlement, with particular regard to the difficulties inherent in 

mounting a successful full faith and credit challenge of a divorce, and vis a vis the needs of a ninety 

five year old ward. 

 It is not within the province of a jury to create or define the standard of care without expert 

testimony, nor can the jury ignore unrebutted expert testimony on the standard of care. Plaintiff's 

lawyer cannot merely allege what a lawyer is supposed to do; he must prove it.  Because Plaintiff 

failed to prove the relevant standard of care required an appraisal, the verdict cannot stand and 

judgment as matter of law must be entered in favor of Defendants. 

CAUSATION ISSUES 

B. Plaintiff did not prove how the "case-within-the-case" would have turned out but-
for Defendants' alleged breaches. 

 If there were an appraisal showing 67th Street was worth $22.5 million, or any number 

higher than the broker's opinion relied upon by guardian, Plaintiff still would have to establish 

causation. Such causation would require proof there would have been some outcome more 

favorable to the Ward than provided by the New York settlement. 
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 In Keramati v. Schackow, 553 So. 2d 741, 742 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989), a former client of a 

law firm alleged she entered into a settlement in an amount substantially less than her claims were 

worth, because the attorneys forced her to take the settlement or would "no longer represent her, 

and it would be too expensive to continue the litigation."  Id. at 743.  In such a case, the former 

client may sue, but must prove at trial both (i) breach of duty and (ii) had the suit been properly 

handled, the client could have recovered "substantially greater damages than the settlement 

amount." Id. at 746. 

 There is no evidence that the guardianship would have recovered substantially more than 

the New York settlement achieved if there have been an appraisal. In fact, a failure to settle coupled 

with the risk of losing the twenty million dollar trust from the Texas settlement was an 

unacceptable risk to the Ward. No one testified a more favorable settlement would have been made 

if Defendants had a $22.5 million appraisal. 

 Likewise, and fatally deficient to the claim here, there is no proof the Ward would have 

prevailed in the underlying litigation especially with regard to the full faith and credit challenge to 

the Texas divorce and achieved a net result (after fees and costs) better than the New York 

settlement.  For litigation-related malpractice such as negligently settling a case, this is what is 

often-referred to as the "case-within-a-case." In a malpractice or fiduciary duty case such as this, 

Plaintiff must prove by a preponderance of evidence he would have won the underlying case.  

Keramati, 553 So. 2d at 742. No such evidence was presented. 

 Here, that would not only require expert testimony that an MAI appraisal was the standard 

of care, but also would require a real estate appraiser testifying to the MAI appraised value of both 

properties on the date of the settlement conference.  In addition, the net results of the thirteen 

litigated matters would also have to be analyzed by a qualified expert.  Only by comparing the 

expected net result of the litigation, as determined by an expert lawyer and appraiser, with the 

actual value received from the settlement, could one compute any damages in this case.  Because 

there is insufficient evidence of damages, the award must be vacated and judgment entered in favor 

of Defendants or, alternatively, a new trial would be warranted at least on damages, if not on all 

issues. 
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 Specifically, Plaintiff must present evidence, which affords a reasonable basis for the 

conclusion that it is more likely than not that the conduct of the defendant was a substantial factor 

in bringing about the result. Gooding v. Univ. Hosp. Bldg., Inc., 445 So. 2d 1015, 1018 (Fla. 1984) 

“A mere possibility of such causation is not enough; and when the matter remains one of pure 

speculation or conjecture, or the probabilities are at best evenly balanced, it becomes the duty of 

the court to direct a verdict for the defendant.” Id. Expert opinions based on sheer speculation and 

facts or inference not supported by the evidence should be rejected by the trial court in considering 

a motion for directed verdict. Proto, 788 So. 2d at 395.  

 The plaintiff must “demonstrate[ ] that there is an amount of damages which [he] would 

have recovered but for the attorney's negligence.” Olmsted v. Emmanuel, 783 So. 2d 1122, 1125 

(Fla. 1st DCA 2001) (citing Sure Snap Corp. v. Baena, 705 So. 2d 46, 49 (Fla. 3d DCA 1997)). 

Thus, in a case such as this, the plaintiff has to prove that he “would have prevailed on the 

underlying action but for the attorney's negligence.” Id.  “Under the ‘trial within a trial’ standard 

of proving proximate cause, the jury necessarily has to determine whether the client would have 

prevailed in the underlying action, [...], before determining whether the client would prevail in the 

malpractice action.” Tarleton v. Arnstein & Lehr, 719 So. 2d 325, 330 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998). “In 

Florida, unless the fact-finder is presented with evidence which will enable it to 

determine damages for lost profits with a reasonable degree of certainty, rather than by means 

of speculation and conjecture, the claimant may not recover such damages.” Resolution Trust 

Corp. v. Stroock & Stroock & Lavan, 853 F. Supp. 1422, 1426 (S.D. Fla. 1994) (citing Himes v. 

Brown & Co. Sec. Corp., 518 So. 2d 937, 938 (Fla. 3d DCA 1987)). Plaintiff’s burden to prove 

the case within the case is clearly provided for in the law. 

 Consequently, Plaintiff is required to prove the Petition to Determine Beneficiaries would 

have succeeded and the Florida probate court would not have given full faith and credit to the 

Texas divorce. Therefore, Plaintiff had to prove, by a certain amount of money and with a 

reasonable degree of legal certainty that the Ward would have been better off by continuing to 

pursue the Petition to Determine Beneficiaries than he was after the New York Settlement. There 

is no evidence of this. To the contrary, the hearing transcript dated October 26, 2012, in evidence 
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as [CLO Ex. 64 (68:23-69:1)], evidences Plaintiff’s beliefs that the Petition was without merit and 

that the Plaintiff believed the divorce was valid and should be given full faith and credit.  

  Plaintiff has not introduced any evidence that the jury could rely on to decide the 

outcomes of the underlying cases, which were supposedly handled negligently. In order to prevail 

on his theory that the Guardian should not have foregone the Ward’s claims to Lorna’s property 

via the Petition to Determine Beneficiaries, Plaintiff was required to prove that the action would 

have been successful and netted a better result for the Ward. No substantial or component evidence 

was presented on this point. 

 Plaintiff has not proven that the Ward would have prevailed in that proceeding. 

Additionally, Plaintiff has not accounted for how long or how much that litigation would have cost 

the Ward in order to determine if he would have been better off not entering into the New York 

Settlement. The guardianship Court however did consider this though in approving the New York 

Settlement and finding it in the ward’s best interest. Plainly, the jury has no evidence to base a 

finding that the Ward would have obtained a greater amount and what that amount would have 

been. Plaintiff’s damages are purely speculative and accordingly cannot be recovered.  

 Plaintiff's counsel acknowledged the claim was not easy to win, and never presented 

evidence of the likelihood of success on the merits.  In closing, he stated:  "And they told you this 

wasn't the easiest claim. But what did they do? Well, let's think about it. Do I fight this? Do I give 

my client the justice he deserves and fight this and get the true value, or do I just sell him out and 

I take the quick settlement? Because, you know what, I'll get some money to him, and then I'll get 

attorney's fees."  (9:28)  

 Even if the Ward's interests were sold out for a quick settlement, which is completely 

untrue, Plaintiff still had to prove what the Ward would have received-if the case proceeded to 

final judgment (i.e., the result but-for the settlement). There is a complete absence of any relevant 

evidence on this point.  Indeed, what evidence there is in the record is directly to the contrary.10 

                                                 
10   Skatoff testified Defendants' conduct neither fell below the standard of care for guardianship 
attorney in the community nor constituted a breach of fiduciary duty. (T8:104-07) Skatoff 
concluded Defendants were faced with "actions coming at the guardianship from every direction, 
from Lorna's estate, from Julian" and asserted a "very difficult position" with the petition to 
determine beneficiaries to set aside the divorce, filed on behalf of the guardians. (T8:105-06) 
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There is no evidentiary basis upon which a reasonable jury could conclude the Guardian, on behalf 

of the Ward, would have prevailed on the merits of any of the thirteen pieces of litigation. 

 Accordingly, because there were multiple pending claims and issues, Plaintiff's expert not 

only needed to opine that the Texas divorce would not be given full faith and credit in Florida, but 

also needed to opine the overall net outcome, including prevailing on the appeal of the twenty 

million dollar ($20,000,000) Texas settlement, would have been more favorable.  

C. Plaintiff failed to prove what an MAI Appraisal would have shown. 

As to causation, there is also no proof that an MAI appraisal obtained on or before May 8, 

2013, the date of the settlement conference, would have shown a fair market value estimate higher 

than the broker's opinion of value that is the sole valuation in evidence.  Plaintiff not only failed 

to prove breach of a duty, Plaintiff failed to prove causation. Plaintiff failed to prove that an MAI 

appraisal would have led to a different outcome. Separate and apart from failing to prove liability 

for the alleged failure to obtain an appraisal, Plaintiff failed to demonstrate causation from any 

such failure. The jury had no idea what an appraisal have looked like in May 2013 if Defendants 

had obtained one.  Unless there is competent substantial evidence in the record that an appraisal 

obtained in May 2013 would show the value of 67th Street at $22.5 million, there is no causation.  

For example, if an appraisal in May 2013 had shown an estimated fair market value of $7 

to $9 million, the same as the broker's opinion,11 the failure to obtain that appraisal caused no 

damage.  For Plaintiff to succeed on any claim based on Defendants not having an appraisal at the 

time of the settlement, Plaintiff was required to introduce into evidence an MAI appraisal dated as 

of May 2013 or, at a minimum, testimony from a qualified expert witness that an appraisal would 

have shown the $22.5 million "valuation" Plaintiff argued to the jury. 

The issue is not what the 67th Street property sold for eighteen months after the settlement 

conference; the issue is what a May 2013 appraisal would actually have shown.  In the ultimate of 

ironies, given Plaintiff’s vociferous arguments for such an appraisal, no appraisal was presented 

by Julian Bivins when the guardianship court approved the New York settlement and no such 

                                                 
11   Defendants note that there was an appraisal on the Lexington property as of the settlement 
approval hearing in September 2013. That appraisal, obtained by Julian Bivins and his then-
personal counsel, Mr. Denman, valued Lexington at $4.4 million. (T7:90) That value is consistent 
with, and actually slightly below, the low-end of the broker's opinion range of $4.5 to $6.5 million. 
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appraisal was presented by Plaintiff at this trial. Absent that critical evidence, the verdict cannot 

stand and judgment must be entered for Defendants. 

 

 

 

DAMAGES ISSUES 

A. There is no logical link from duty to causation to damages in this case. 

Florida law requires Plaintiff to "demonstrate[ ] that there is an amount of damages which 

[he] would have recovered but for the attorney's negligence." Olmsted v. Emmanuel, 783 So. 2d 

1122, 1125 (Fla. 1st DCA 2001) (citing Sure Snap Corp. v. Baena, 705 So. 2d 46, 49 (Fla. 3d DCA 

1997)).  "In Florida, unless the fact-finder is presented with evidence which will enable it to 

determine damages for lost profits with a reasonable degree of certainty, rather than by means of 

speculation and conjecture, the claimant may not recover such damages." Resolution Trust Corp. 

v. Stroock & Stroock & Lavan, 853 F. Supp. 1422, 1426 (S.D. Fla. 1994) (citing Himes v. Brown 

& Co. Sec. Corp., 518 So. 2d 937, 938 (Fla. 3d DCA 1987)). Without expert testimony that 

properly analyzed the entire New York settlement and all of its numerous permutations, this vital 

legal link cannot be established. Without that vital expert testimony any award of damages is total 

speculation. Thus, judgment should be entered for Defendants. 

B. Plaintiff did not prove the fair market value of 67th Street at the time of the New York 
settlement. 

The $16.4 million damages award in the verdict is not supported by competent evidence.   

Most importantly, the damages fail as a matter of law because Plaintiff did not prove the value of 

67th Street property on May 7 and 8, 2013 (the two-day settlement conference and May 8, 2013 

the date the New York Settlement Term Sheet was signed).  The only evidence of the property's 

value at that time is the broker's opinion – $7 to $9 million. 

Plaintiff could have called a competent expert witness to testify there was no significant 

increase in New York real estate prices over those 17 months, but did not.12  Plaintiff presented no 

                                                 
12   If Plaintiff had called an MAI appraiser, that expert could not rely upon a sale which did not 
exist in May 2013 as the basis for the valuation as of May 2013. The New York broker, Lipa 
Lieberman, explained "an appraiser will look at previous sales to try to determine what the present 
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expert testimony, nor any competent evidence of value.  By itself, a sale, which closed on October 

28, 2014 – nearly 18 months later –, is not competent evidence of the value in May 2013.  Zipper 

v. Affordable Homes, Inc., 461 So. 2d 988 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984)("The measure of damages is the 

difference between the price the buyer agreed to pay for the property and the fair market value on 

the date of the breach," not the price on the date the property was sold to another party.").  

Lieberman, the broker who gave the broker's opinion, testified property values had been 

"soaring" from 2012 to 2015. (T4:44) Plaintiff's witness, Sharp, was not a real estate appraiser nor 

competent to render any valuation opinion. She was only permitted to testify as to “math.” (T. Vol. 

1, 84:9-89:17) Sharp confirmed it was "absolutely correct" the numbers she used in her "damages" 

chart for the four different properties were not "values as of the New York settlement."13 (T7:200-

01) Indeed, she admitted the "numbers" she plugged in were just "hypothetical future" numbers 

because "there was no solid evidence of exact values for each of the properties." (Id.) Damages 

must be based upon a solid foundation, not mere guesswork. Damages cannot be established here 

by a witness doing math. 

 Absent an appraisal or competent testimony of the fair market value of 67th Street as of 

May 2013, the verdict cannot stand. Under Florida law, a valuation must be computed as of the 

appropriate date. Parisi v. Miranda, 15 So. 3d 816 (Fla. 4th DCA 2009)(verdict reversed where 

jury received no evidence of value on the valuation date; therefore, the jury's verdict was contrary 

to the manifest weight of the evidence); Morgan Stanley & Co. v. Coleman (Parent) Holdings Inc., 

955 So. 2d 1124, 1131 (Fla. 4th DCA), rev. den’d, 973 So. 2d 1120 (Fla. 2007)(reversing and 

remanding for entry of a directed verdict when plaintiff failed to present evidence of value on the 

                                                 
value of that property is."  (T4:35)  Thus, no legitimate MAI appraiser would have relied upon the 
$22.5 million sale nearly 18 months after the relevant date. 
 
13   Although she was not competent to conduct real estate market research, Sharp agreed that 
property values were steadily increasing during the relevant time. (T7:172-73) That means there 
is no competent evidence the $22.5 sale price from October 2014 is the fair market value as of 
May 2013 (or even September 2013 at the approval hearing).  Without proof of a number, the 
damages verdict cannot stand. 
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operative date: plaintiff "was not entitled to have the jury speculate as to the value of the stock on 

the date of sale. Rather, it was required to prove the stock's value on that date.").14     

Similar to the instant case, in Parisi, the shareholders' agreement provided that if a 

shareholder was terminated, the terminated shareholder was required to sell his shares to the 

corporation at a price determined by the market value of all of the corporation's “tangible assets” 

plus “2 times net annual earnings” of the corporation. It was undisputed that Miranda was 

terminated on August 31, 2006. At trial, Miranda's expert valued Miranda's shares of stock as of 

December 31, 2006, because he used the 2006 tax return to plug numbers into the valuation 

formula. During deliberations, the jury asked what date it should use to value Miranda's shares. 

The trial court concluded that the shareholders' agreement contemplated using the date of 

termination to value the shares and instructed the jury to use the August 31, 2006 termination date. 

The jury received no evidence regarding the value of the shares on August 31, 2006. Therefore, 

the jury's verdict was contrary to the manifest weight of the evidence since the jury assigned a 

value to the shares identical to the December 31, 2006 value proffered by Miranda's expert. Parisi 

v. Miranda, 15 So. 3d 816, 817-18 (Fla. 4th DCA 2009). 

C. The jury's verdict is grossly excessive; Judgment should be entered for Defendants 
based upon the lack of proof. Alternatively, there should be a remittitur or new trial. 

 In diversity cases, Florida law determines whether a jury award is excessive, while federal 

law governs the procedural question of whether a new trial or remittitur is warranted if the damages 

are found to be excessive. Slip-N-Slide Records, Inc. v. TVT Records, LLC, 05-21113-CIV, 2007 

WL 3232274, at *9 (S.D. Fla. Oct. 31, 2007)(citing Roboserve, Ltd. v. Tom's Foods, Inc., 940 F.2d 

1441, 1446 (11th Cir.1991)).  

 It is well-settled under Florida law that damages must be proved with reasonable certainty. 

Zinn v. United States, 835 F. Supp. 2d 1280, 1328 (S.D. Fla. 2011) (citing Nebula Glass Intern., 

Inc. v. Reichhold, Inc., 454 F.3d 1203, 1213 (11th Cir.2006)); W.W. Gay Mech. Contractor, Inc. 

v. Wharfside Two, Ltd., 545 So. 2d 1348, 1350–51 (Fla.1989). As such, a damage award must be 

                                                 
14   The court rejected plaintiff's argument it should, at the least, be given a new trial to prove 
damages – "plaintiff is not entitled to a second 'bite at the apple' when there has been no proof at 
trial concerning the correct measure of damages." Id. at 1131; see also, Teca, Inc. v. WM-TAB, 
Inc., 726 So. 2d 828, 830 (Fla. 4th DCA 1999) (remanding for entry of defense judgment because 
there was no proof at trial of the correct measure of damages). 
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based on substantial evidence, not speculation. Jeffrey O. v. City of Boca Raton, 511 F. Supp. 2d 

1339, 1360 (S.D. Fla. 2007) (citing Keener v. Sizzler Family Steak Houses, 597 F.2d 453, 457 (5th 

Cir.1979)).  

 The damages awarded in this case are grossly excessive because they are based upon the 

$22.5 million sale on October 28, 2014, not the fair market value of 67th Street in early May 2013 

when the New York Settlement was reached. Also, they ignore not only the two and half million 

dollar mortgage, but Florida law, which would reduce any inheritance by the Ward for fifty (50%) 

percent of the Lorna estate’s taxes, claims, costs of administration and other obligations. Florida 

Statute 733.707.  

 Overall, the damages are grossly excessive because they exceed the number computed by 

Sharp, Plaintiff's math witness. In her "computations," Sharp attempted to reflect what dollar 

amount it would take to achieve an equal distribution of assets between the Ward and Lorna's 

estate. Nevertheless, despite Sharp’s objectives, there is no competent evidence as to the value of 

the 67th Street property in May 2013, other than the broker's opinion of value. Plaintiff’s valuation 

issue, which purposely ignores the net effect of the numerous financial issues resolved in the New 

York settlement, was whether two properties involved in one aspect of the settlement were of 

roughly equal value, net of mortgages, and they were roughly equal according to the broker's 

opinion. Thus, even under Plaintiff’s improperly narrow factual analysis, there are no recoverable 

damages.  Plaintiff failed to call a competent expert to testify on value, relying solely on a sale 

nearly eighteen (18) months after the applicable valuation date. The sale price – by itself and 

without the testimony of an expert– is not competent evidence of value. Moreover, the damages 

awarded in this case are so grossly excessive the Court would have to order a new trial or a 

remittitur even if the claims had been proven, as the verdict assumes one hundred percent success 

of the recovery of one hundred (100%) per cent of the 67th Street property through the denial of 

full faith and credit, where the best case result was a fifty (50%) percent intestate share less a pro 

rata share of the Lorna Bivins estate claims, taxes, obligations and expenses of administration 

pursuant to Florida Statute 733.707 and less a pro rata share of a two and half million dollar 

mortgage while “crediting” Defendants with a six million one hundred thousand unaccepted offer 
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for the 808 Lexington Property (22.5 million 67th Street sales price less 6.1 million 808 Lexington 

offer equal 16.4 million.)   

1. Maximum Damages Improperly Valuing 67th Street at $22.5 Million. 

  Bottom line, even assuming 67th Street was worth $22.5 million, Sharp's maximum 

damages equaled $5,940,509: 

 

 

 OLIVER BIVINS SR.  ESTATE OF LORNA BIVINS 

Property 808 Lexington 330 S. Ocean 39 E. 67th St. Portland 

Estimated "value"  9,750,000 1,205,304 22,500,000 1,205,304 

Less: Mortgages/liens (652,229) 0 (2,500,000) 0 

Net Value   9,097,771 1,205,304 20,000,000 1,205,304 

  Total Value Received 10,303,075 21,205,304 

              Mid-Point 15,754,190 

Difference to equalize 5,451,115  

Plus "Other Damages": 
Commission Expense 

 
300,000 

 

Lost Rental Expense 273,154  

Excess Interest 171,640  

Less: Received in 
settlement with Julian 

(255,000)  

Subtotal     $489,795 

MAX. DAMAGE 5,940,909 Per Kara Sharp 

 The above numbers come straight from Sharp's testimony and the demonstrative chart she 

used while testifying. (T7:166-75) Despite her conclusion, even as improper as it is, the jury 

awarded $16.4 million – nearly three times the maximum damages under Plaintiff's flawed theory. 

 The jury's verdict can only be explained as they took the difference between (A) the value 

of $6.1 million which Defendants advised the probate court was the highest offer for Lexington 
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received as of a September 2013 hearing without further marketing of the property, and (B) the 

$22.5 sales price for 67th Street.  But in reaching that number, the jury inexplicably ignored (i) the 

$2.5 million mortgage on the 67th Street property; and (ii) that Plaintiff's best case was an 

inheritance from the Lorna Bivins estate  of 50% less a pro rata share of estate obligations, not sole 

ownership of 100% of 67th Street.  (There is no expert testimony in this record that any law suit 

would have vested the Ward with 100% of 67th Street.)  Sharp's computation does not make those 

same two mistakes as the jury, and it yields only $5.9 million. 

2.  Analysis of Maximum Damages If Properly Rely on Broker's Opinions. 

 Because there is no evidence to support the $22.5 million number, there should be no 

damages at all. As the guardianship court acknowledged that the benefit of settlement of multiple 

litigated matters is not subject to a precise formula. (CLO Ex. 30, 35:16-40:3) Even if the jury 

believed there should be an absolute true-up, Plaintiff's best case is nowhere close to the amount 

of the verdict. 

 The only competent record evidence of values are the two broker's opinions by Lieberman.  

If one uses the mid-points of the ranges set forth in the broker opinions, that would yield only a 

maximum damages award of $815,910 as shown in the following chart: 

Property 808 Lexington 330 S. Ocean 39 E. 67th St. Portland 

Estimated value  5,500,000 1,205,304 8,000,000 1,205,304 

Less: Mortgages/liens  (652,229) 0  (2,500,000) 0 

Net Value   4,847,771 1,205,304 5,500,000 1,205,304 

  Total Value Received 6,053,075 6,705,304 

              Mid-Point 6,379,190 

Difference to equalize 326,115 Per Lipa’s Opinions, solely 
related to Petition to Determine 

Beneficiaries 

Plus: "Other Damages" 489,795  

MAX. DAMAGES 815,910 Per Lipa's Opinions, any and 
all damages possible 
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 "In order to shock the sense of justice of the judicial mind the verdict must be so excessive 

or so inadequate so as to at least imply an inference that the verdict evinces or carries an implication 

of passion or prejudice, corruption, partiality, improper influences, or the like." Slip-n-Slide 

Records,, 2007 WL 3232274, at*9; Markland v. Norfolk Dredging Co., 772 F. Supp. 1241, 1242 

(M.D. Fla. 1991) ("A jury award is not to be set aside or a new trial ordered unless the award is so 

exorbitant as to shock the judicial conscience or indicate bias, passion, prejudice, or other improper 

motive on the part of the jury.").  

 In Martinez v. Brinks, 410 F. Supp. 2d 1202, 1215 (S.D. Fla. 2004), a case involving 

malicious prosecution brought by a courier against a secure cash handling company, a jury 

awarded lost wages of $1,260,000 when, even under the courier's method of determining lost 

wages, the courier would have only earned $644,800. The court found this award, which was 

double the maximum amount supported by the evidence, was "grossly excessive," and ordered a 

new trial. 

 As a general rule, "a remittitur order reducing a jury's award to the outer limit of the proof 

is the appropriate remedy where the jury's damage award exceeds the amount established by the 

evidence." Rodriguez v. Farm Stores Grocery, Inc., 518 F.3d 1259, 1266 (11th Cir. 2008) (citing 

Goldstein v. Manhattan Indus., Inc., 758 F.2d 1435, 1448 (11th Cir. 1985)); see also Frederick v. 

Kirby Tankships, Inc., 205 F.3d 1277, 1284 (11th Cir. 2000) ("The rule in this circuit states that 

where a jury's determination of liability was not the product of undue passion or prejudice, we can 

order a remittitur to the maximum award the evidence can support."). 

 In Rodriguez, a case involving the violation of the FLSA overtime provision, the court 

instructed the jury that if they found the defendants violated the provision, it must award payback 

damages in the amount of unpaid overtime. 518 F. 3d at 1265.   Remittitur was granted when, even 

viewing the evidence in the light most favorable to appellee, the jury awarded damages nearly 

twice the amount the evidence supported.   If the jury's damages verdict far exceed the maximum 

amount that could have been awarded based on the evidence and the instructions, it must be 

vacated for new trial or remitted to a number the evidence supports: 

we cannot "permit damage speculation where the formula for calculation is 
articulable and definable. Flexibility beyond the range of the evidence will not be 
tolerated." 
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Id. at 1268 (citing Jamison Co. v. Westvaco Corp., 526 F.2d 922, 936 (5th Cir.1976)). 

 In Frederick, the appellant argued that the district court erred in not granting its motion for 

remittitur, or alternatively, a new trial on damages only, due to the jury's excessive award for 

maintenance, cure, and unearned wages. 205 F.3d at 1283. The appellant specifically argued that 

the evidence presented at trial supported a maximum award of only $107,947.43, well below the 

jury's award of $525,069. The Eleventh Circuit agreed the maximum damages number calculated 

by the plaintiff-appellee's expert was the outer limit of the damages award.  Id.; see also, Deakle 

v. John E. Graham & Sons, 756 F. 2d 821, 834 (11th Cir. 1985) (remitting damages to maximum 

possible award reasonably supported by the record evidence). 

 CONCLUSION 

 Plaintiffs failed to prove breach of the standard of care or any fiduciary duty by expert 

testimony, failed to prove causation, and failed to prove damages. This Court should enter 

judgment as a matter of law for Defendants. Alternatively, and at a minimum, this grossly 

excessive verdict should be remitted to a number no greater than $815,795; or the Court should 

grant a new trial. 

 WHEREFORE, Defendants request entry of judgment as a matter of law under Rule 50, in 

their favor and against Plaintiff; alternatively remittitur or a new trial under Rule 59; and an award 

of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs pursuant to law, including sections 744.108 and 768.89 of 

the Florida Statutes. 

 Respectfully submitted,

s/ L. Louis Mrachek                              
L. Louis Mrachek (Florida Bar No. 182880) 
lmrachek@mrachek-law.com 
mchandler@mrachek-law.com 
Alan B. Rose (Florida Bar No. 961825) 
arose@mrachek-law.com 
Mrachek, Fitzgerald, Rose, Konopka,  
Thomas & Weiss, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
Telephone: (561) 655-2250 
Fax: (561) 655-5537 

 s/Rachel Studley________________ 
Rachel Studley, Esquire (0578088) 
Rstudley@WickerSmith.com  
Brandon J. Hechtman, Esquire (88652) 
Bhechtman@wickersmith.com  
WICKER SMITH O'HARA McCOY & 
FORD, P.A. 
515 N. Flagler Dr. Suite 1600 
West Palm Beach, FL  33401 
Phone: (561) 689-3800 
Fax: (561) 689-9206 
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Attorneys for Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell 
 
 
 

Attorneys for Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. 
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 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that on August 25, 2017, I electronically filed the foregoing document 

with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF.  I also certify that the foregoing document is being 

served this day on all counsel of record or pro se parties identified on the attached Service List 

via transmission of Notices of Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF, or in some other 

authorized manner for those counsel or parties who are not authorized to receive Notices of 

Electronic Filing. 

     s/ L. Louis Mrachek                                
     L. Louis Mrachek, Esq. 
     Florida Bar No. 182880 
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SERVICE LIST 

J. Ronald Denman, Esquire 
The Bleakley Bavol Law Firm 
15170 North Florida Avenue 
Tampa, FL  33613 
Telephone: (813) 221-3759 
Facsimile: (813) 221-3198 
rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 
 
Jeffrey A. Blaker, Esquire 
Conroy, Simberg, Ganon, Krevans, Abel, Lurvey, Morrow & Schefer, P.A. 
1801 Centrepark Drive East, #200 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
Telephone: (561) 697-8088  
aschultz@conroysimberg.com, earanda@conroysimberg.com 
 
Wendy J. Stein, Esquire 
Bonner Kiernan Trebach & Crociata, LLP 
1233 20th Street NW 
8th Floor 
Washington, DC 20036 
Telephone: (202) 712-7000 
Facsimile: (202) 712-7100 
wstein@bonnerkiernan.com 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR PALM 

BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

IN RE: GUARDIANSHIP OF: GUARDIANSHIP DIVISION 

OLIVER BMNS, FILE NO: 502011GA000006XXXXSB 

Incapacitated, 

/ 
ORDER ON MOTION F O R COURT APPROVAL OF SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

AND MUTUAL RELEASE 

THIS CAUSE coming before the Court on the Motion for Court Approval of Settlement 

Agreement and Mutual Release, the Court having heard argument of counsel, and being otherwise 

fully advised, it is thereupon 

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED as follows: 
1, The Motion for Court Approval of Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release is 

DONE AND ORDERED in Delray Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida on the f~l day 

of S^Pf , 2 0 1 ^ 

MARTIN H. COLIN 
Circuit Judge 

Copies returned: 
Brian M. O'Connell, Esq., 515 N . Flagler Dr., 20th Floor, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
Ronald Denman, Esq., 1000 Brickell Ave., Suite 600, Miami, FL 33131 
Ronda D.Gluck, Esq., 980 N . Federal Highway, #402, Boca Raton, FL 33432 
Donna P. Levine, Esq., 324 Datura St., #145, West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
Keith Stein, Esq., 405 Lexington Ave., 7 , h Floor, New York, NY 10174 
Mark N . Axinn, Esq., 845 Third Ave., New York, NY 10022 
Edward Kuhnel, 49 West Lake Stable Rd., Tuxedo Park, NY 10987 
Peter G. Goodman, Esq., 250 Park Avenue, Suite 1900, New York, NY 10177 • EXHIBIT 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 416-1   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/25/2017   Page 1 of 21



Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM Document 18-1 Entered on FLSD Docket 01/08/2016 Page 2 of 21 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE 

THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE (this "Agreement") 
is made this day of July, 2013, by and among Curtis C. Rogers (the "Guardian"), as 
Guardian of the person and property of Oliver Bivins, Sr. ("Oliver Sr.^),-01iver Bivins, in his 
individual capacity ("Oliver Jr."), Oliver Jr., as the Personal Representative of the Estate of 
Lorna Bivins (the "Estate"), and Beachton Tuxedo LLC ("BTLLC") (collectively, the 
'Tarties"), 

WHEREAS, various disputes and litigations exist and are pending in the States of Florida 
and New York, by and among the Parties, including each of the cases described in Exhibit A 
annexed hereto (collectively, the "Cases"), which disputes and cases pertain to, inter alia, 
matters related to the guardianship of Oliver Sr, and certain of its properties, and matters related 
to the property of the Estate and the probate thereof, including without limitation, certain real 
estate owned by and/or asserted to be owned by Oliver, Sr, and the Estate in the States of Florida 
and New York, and in London, England; 

WHEREAS, the Parties, without acknowledging the existence of any liability or 
wrongdoing, believe it is in their mutual interests to enter into this Agreement to resolve, settle 
and compromise the claims and counterclaims filed in the Cases and the certain other matters of 
dispute (the "Settlement"), in order to avoid the further expense and inconvenience of litigation 
pursuant to the terms set forth herein; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants contained herein, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals, Each of the foregoing recitals is incorporated herein as if fully 
set forth below. 

2. Court Approvals and Closing, The Guardian, Oliver Jr., and the Estate (collectively, the 
"Petitioners") hereby agree that, no later than ten (10) business days following the execution by 
all Paities of this Agreement, they will collectively and acting in good faith petition the Circuit 
Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida, Guardianship 
Division and Probate Division (the "Florida Court"), within ten (10) business days of any 
Parties' written notice of any other court whose approval may be needed, the Petitioners will 
collectively and acting in good faith petition each other court whose approval of this Settlement 
may be required, for approval of this Settlement and the terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement. Each of the actions and transactions set forth in this Agreement, with the exception 
of the payment of the Mortgage Debt as required by Section 3(F), shall be closed within ten (10) 
business days of the date upon which all such approvals have been received from the Florida 
Court and each such other court (the "Closing Date"). 

3. Property Transfers/Obligations Related to Transfers/Releases, 

(A) 808 Lexington Avenue. The Estate, acting by and through Oliver Jr., as personal 
representative, or acting through his successor or agent or its other appropriate representative, 

Bivins/Settlemenl Agnil/2013-07-10 
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shall transfer to the Guardian, for the benefit of Oliver Sr„ any and all of its right, title and 
interest in and to that certain parcel of real estate known as 808 Lexington Avenue, New York, 
New York, also known as Block 1397, Lot 16 on the Tax Map of New York County ("808 
Lexington"), such that the Guardian shall, as a result of such transfer (the "808 Conveyance"), 
own 100% fee simple title to 808 Lexington. The 808 Conveyance shall be accomplished by a 
bargain and sale without covenants deed in substantially the form annexed hereto as Exhibit B, 
The Estate and Oliver Jr, hereby agree that neither the Estate nor Oliver Jr. will further 
encumber, or cause to be encumbered, 808 Lexington prior to the Closing Date with any lien or 
encumbrance unless such lien or encumbrance is permitted by the Guardian in writing, it being 
understood that (i) the lien of any unpaid real estate taxes and related charges and (ii) the 
mortgage described in subparagraph 3(F) below are hereby deemed to be permitted by the 
Guardian. The Estate shall immediately remedy any failure on its part to comply with the 
foregoing obligation, With respect to the 808 Conveyance, except as provided below: (i) the 
Guardian shall pay all New York State and New York City real estate transfer taxes associated 
with such transfer, (ii) there shall be no adjustment of real estate or related taxes, and (iii) the 
Guardian shall pay all recording and/or title insurance charges relating thereto. The Estate shall 
be responsible for satisfying the real estate taxes and related charges through May 8, 201.3, The 
Estate and the Guardian shall each be responsible for half of the real estate taxes and related 
charges from May 9, 2013 through 11:59PM of the date immediately prior to the Closing Date. 
As of the Closing Date the Guardian shall be responsible for the real estate taxes and related 
charges, Any property tax payments for 808 Lexington that are past-due on the Closing Date 
shall be immediately paid in full (including any interest and/or penalties) to the New York City 
Department of Finance by the Guardian and the Estate, as apportioned, The Estate shall within 
ten (10) days of the Closing Date, (x) provide to the Guardian any and all documents relating to 
808 Lexington, including but not limited to documents relating to the day to day management of 
808 Lexington and documents related to any tenancy or leasehold interest, and (y) transfer to the 
Guardian any security deposit or other monies held with regard to, or on behalf of, any 808 
Lexington tenant and any utility deposits. 

(B) 330 Ocean Boulevard. The Estate, acting by and through Oliver Jr., as personal 
representative, or acting through his successor or agent or its other appropriate representative, 
shall transfer to the Guardian, for the benefit of Oliver Sr. (the "330 OB Conveyance"), any and 
all right, title and interest in and to that certain real estate known as Unit 5A, 330 Ocean 
Boulevard, Palm Beach, Florida ("330 OB"), Such transfer shall be evidenced by deed in such 
form as may be reasonably required by the Guardian in order to convey to the Guardian 100% of 
the Estate's interest in 330 OB. As a result of the 330 OB Conveyance, the Guardian shall own 
100% fee simple title to 330 OB. The Estate and Oliver Jr, hereby agree that neither the Estate 
nor Oliver Jr. will further encumber, or cause to be encumbered, 330 OB prior to the Closing 
Date with any lien or encumbrance unless such lien or encumbrance is permitted by the Guardian 
in writing, it being understood that (i) the lien of any unpaid real estate taxes and related charges 
and (ii) any mortgage affecting 330 OB as of the date hereof are hereby deemed to be permitted 
by the Guardian, The Estate shall immediately remedy any failure on its part to comply with the 
foregoing obligation. With respect to the 330 OB Conveyance, except as provided below: (i) the 
Guardian shall pay all real estate transfer taxes associated with such transfer, (ii) there shall be 
no adjustment of real estate or related taxes, and (iii) the Guardian shall pay all recording and/or 

Bivins/Settlemenl Agmt/2013-07-10 
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title insurance charges relating thereto, The Guardian shall be responsible for satisfying the real 
estate taxes and related charges on 330 OB from and after the date hereof. 

(C) 39 East 67th Street. The Guardian, acting on behalf of Oliver Sr., shall 
waive and/or relinquish, and hereby waives and relinquishes, in favor of the Estate, any and all 
right, title and interest in and to that certain real estate known as 39 E, 67th Street, New York, 
New York, also known as Block 1382, Lot 28 on the Tax Map of New York County ("39E67"). 
I f deemed necessary by the Estate, and upon prior written request from the Estate to .the 
Guardian, the Guardian shall evidence such transfer of Oliver Sr.'s interest, i f any, in 39E67 to 
the Estate by delivery of a deed in such form as may be reasonably required by the Estate and/or 
by delivery of such other documents as requested by the Estate in order to convey marketable fee 
simple title to 39E67 to the Estate, The Guardian shall execute and deliver such deed to the 
Estate within five (5) business days following the giving of such written request. The Guardian 
and Oliver Sr, hereby agree that neither Guardian nor Oliver Sr. will further encumber, or cause 
to be encumbered, 39E67 prior "to the "Closing Date'with any lien or encumbrance "unless' "such" 
lien or encumbrance is permitted by the Estate in writing, it being understood that (i) the lien of 
any unpaid real estate taxes and related charges and (ii) the mortgage affecting 39E67 as of the 
date hereof are hereby deemed to be permitted by the Estate. The Guardian shall immediately 
remedy any failure on its part to comply with the foregoing obligation. The Estate shall pay all 
transfer taxes, title charges and recording fees associated with such transfer. The Estate shall be 
liable for all expenses, maintenance costs and any other liabilities associated with 39B67. 

(D) 82 Portland Place. The Guardian, acting on behalf of Oliver Sr., shall transfer 
and/or relinquish, and hereby waives and relinquishes, to the Estate, any and all right, title and 
interest in and to the leasehold interest in that certain residential apartment known as Flat V, 82 
Portland Place, London, England ("82 Portland"). If deemed necessary by the Estate, and upon 
prior written request from the Estate to the Guardian, the Guardian shall evidence such transfer 
of Oliver Sr.'s interest, i f any, in 82 Portland to the Estate by delivery, of such instruments in 
such forms as may be reasonably required by the Estate. The Guardian shall execute and deliver 
such instruments to the Estate within five (5) business days following the giving of such written 
request. The Guardian and Oliver Sr. hereby agree that neither the Guardian nor Oliver Sr. will 
encumber 82 Portland prior to the Closing Date with any lien or encumbrance unless such lien or 
encumbrance is permitted by the Estate in writing, it being understood that (i) the lien of any 
unpaid real estate taxes and related charges, (ii) the existing ground lease, and (iii) any mortgage 
affecting 82 Portland as of the date hereof are hereby deemed to be permitted by the Estate, The 
Guardian shall immediately remedy any failure on its part to comply with the foregoing 
obligation. The Estate shall pay all taxes associated with such transfer. The Estate shall be 
liable for all expenses, maintenance costs and any other liabilities associated with 82 Portland. 

(E) Cash Payment, The Guardian, acting on behalf of Oliver Sr., will pay to the 
Estate the amount of $150,000 in cash, which payment shall be made to the IOLTA account of 
Levine & Susaneck, P. A, Such payment will be made by the Guardian within thirty (30) days of 
the Closing Date or upon the sale of 808 Lexington, whichever is first in time. 

Bivins/Settleraent Agmt/2013-07-10 
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(F) Mortgage on 808 Lexington. As of the Closing Date, the Guardian on behalf of 
Oliver Sr., shall become the sole obligor of those certain mortgage notes (the "808 Notes") and 
all amounts due and owing thereunder (including but not limited to all principal, accrued interest, 
fees and expenses, including legal fees and disbursements (the "Mortgage Debt") that are 
secured by, among other things, a consolidation, extension, and modification agreement dated 
November 19,2001, and those certain mortgages in the aggregate principal sum of $850,000 that 
create a lien on 808 Lexington (the "808 Mortgages"). The 808 Notes and 808 Mortgages are 
held by BTLLC pursuant to those certain assignment documents dated October 5, 2012 made by 
Sovereign Bank, N.A. f/k/a Sovereign Bank, successor-by-merger to Independence Community 
Bank, as Assignor, to Beachton Tuxedo LLC, as Assignee, including that certain Assignment of 
Mortgage (the "Assignment") recorded in the Office of the City Register of New York County 
on October 31, 2012 as CRFN 2012000429258 (the 808 Notes, the 808 Mortgages, and the 
Assignment are collectively referred to herein as, the "Mortgage Loan"). The Guardian shall 
pay the Mortgage Debt in full, on or before August 31, 2013 (the "Forbearance Expiration 
Date"), it being understood, agreed, and acknowledged by the Parties that BTLLC or its 
predecessors) previously accelerated the entire principal amount of the Mortgage Loan; 
provided, however, that to the extent the amount of such total payment owing on the Mortgage 
Debt exceeds $465,000 as of June 30, 2013, such excess amount shall be subtracted from the 
$150,000 due and payable under (E) above (but shall not be deducted from the Mortgage Debt 
payable by the Guardian to BTLLC). All interest on the Mortgage Debt accruing after June 30, 
2013, and on or before the date the Mortgage Debt is paid in full, shall be payable 50% by the 
Estate and 50% by the Guardian. Except in the event of a default hereunder by the Guardian, the 
Estate, or Oliver Jr., BTLLC hereby agrees to continue to forebear from taking action based on 
the failure to make payments as required under the Mortgage Loan, including foreclosure (the 
"Forbearance"), until the Forbearance Expiration Date. Notwithstanding anything contained in 
this Agreement to the contrary (other than the Forbearance), the terms of the 808 Note and the 
808 Mortgage shall remain in full-force and effect, and BTLLC shall have all the rights and 
remedies contained in the documents evidencing the Mortgage Loan, until such time as the 
Mortgage Debt is paid in full. The Parties agree to execute a stand-alone mortgage assumption 
agreement (and accompanying affidavits) for recording with the New York County Clerk, in a 
form reasonably acceptable to the parties, to memorialize the Guardian's assumption of 
mortgagor's obligations under the Mortgage Loan. 

(G) Attorneys Fees and Costs. The Parties acknowledge and agree that there are 
attorneys fees and costs due Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell ("Ciklin Lubitz") and Bill T, 
Smith, P.A, pursuant to the fee agreement approved by the Florida Court on November 30,2012 
and the positive result or recovery attained by this Agreement. The Parties further acknowledge 
and agree that such attorneys' fees and costs shall be satisfied from 808 Lexington and 330 OB 
in accordance with the Compromised Settlement Agreement approved by the Texas Court on 
March 13,2013 and the Florida Court on April 1,2013. 

(H) Guardianship of Lorna Bivins, Ciklin Lubitz is holding $41,973.03 in its Trust 
account, The Parties agree that the funds shall be utilized to partially satisfy compensation 
obligations incurred in the Guardianship of Lorna Bivins, Case No. 502011GA000007XXXXSB, 
From such funds the following payments shall be made: Steve Kelly, Legal Management 
Services, Inc. in the amount of $6,500; Ciklin Lubitz Marten's & O'Connell in the amount 
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$11,000.00; Hark Yon et al in the amount of $22,473.03; Lavalle, Brown & Ronan in the amount 
of $2,000, The Parties acknowledge the above payments are being made as "partial" payments, 

(I) Stipulation and Dismissal, On the Closing Date, the Par-ties will collectively (i) 
execute all stipulations of dismissal and other pleadings necessary and appropriate to voluntarily 
dismiss, with prejudice, all of the Cases (described on Exhibit A attached hereto) and any other 
claims by or among any of the Parties against one another, including without limitation all 
appeals, and as otherwise related to the foregoing described properties and ownership matters, 
excepting only the excluded claims as described on Exhibit A; (ii) file with the appropriate 
courts all such stipulations of dismissal and other documents and pleadings required to effectuate 
such dismissals, and (iii) take all steps reasonably necessary to effectuate all of the foregoing as 
soon as reasonably practicable, 

(J) Releases, 

(i) Subject to the performance in full by each of (a) Oliver Jr., acting 
individually and as personal representative on behalf of the Estate, and (b) BTLLC, of their " 
respective promises and covenants herein, the failure of which shall void this paragraph (J)(i), 
the Guardian, acting on behalf of Oliver Sr. and each and all of Oliver, Sr.'s past, present and 
future heirs, successors, predecessors, assigns, advisors, attorneys, representatives and agents 
(collectively including the Guardian, the "Oliver Sr. Persons"), hereby release, acquit, and 
forever discharge Oliver Jr., individually, and each and all of his respective past and present 
heirs, successors, predecessors, assigns, advisors, attorneys, representatives and agents 
(collectively including Oliver Jr., the "Oliver Jr. Persons"), the Estate and each and all of its 
respective past, present and future heirs, successors, predecessors, assigns, advisors, attorneys, 
representatives and agents (collectively including the Estate, the "Estate Persons"), and BTLLC 
and each and all of its respective past, present and future heirs, successors, predecessors, assigns, 
advisors, attorneys, representatives and agents (collectively including BTLLC, the "BTLLC 
Persons"), from any and all claims, counterclaims, demands, causes of actions, liabilities, 
contracts, agreements, promises, obligations or defenses of any kind whatsoever, whether known 
or unknown, related to or arising out of the matters described herein and in the Cases, which any 
of the Oliver Sr. Persons have or may have against any or all of the Oliver Jr, Persons, the Estate 
Persons, the BTLLC Persons, occurring from the beginning of the world to the date of this 
Agreement, and the Oliver Sr, Persons further agree that this Agreement may be pleaded and 
shall serve as a full defense to any action, suit or other proceeding covered by the terms of this 
Agreement which is or may be initiated, prosecuted or maintained, it being agreed and 
understood, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the obligations of this Agreement 
remain in full force and effect as an agreement of the Parties and as an Order of the Florida Court 
upon the Florida Court's approval hereof. 

(ii) Subject to the performance in full by each of (a) the Guardian, acting on 
behalf of Oliver Sr., (b) the Estate, and (c) BTLLC, of their respective promises and covenants 
herein, the failure of which shall void this paragraph (J)(ii), the Oliver Jr, Persons hereby release, 
acquit, and forever discharge the Oliver Sr. Persons, the Estate Persons, and the BTLLC Persons, 
from any and all claims, counterclaims, demands, causes of actions, liabilities, contracts, 
agreements, promises, obligations or defenses of any kind whatsoever, whether known or 
unknown, related to or arising out of the matters described herein and in the Cases, which any of 
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the Oliver Jr. Persons have or may have against any or all of the Oliver Sr. Persons, the Estate 
Persons, or the BTLLC Persons, occurring from the beginning of the world to the date of this 
Agreement, and the Oliver Jr. Persons further agree that this Agreement may be pleaded and 
shall serve as a full defense to any action, suit or other proceeding covered by the terms of this 
Agreement which is or may be initiated, prosecuted or maintained, it being agreed and 
understood, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the obligations of this Agreement 
remain in full force and effect as an agreement of the Parties and as an Order of the Florida Court 
upon the Florida Court's approval hereof, 

(iii) Subject to the performance in full by each of (a) the Guardian, acting on 
behalf of Oliver Sr., (b) Oliver Jr., acting individually, and (c) BTLLC, of their respective 
promises and covenants herein, the failure of which shall void this paragraph (J)(iii), the Estate 
Persons hereby release, acquit, and forever discharge the Oliver Sr. Persons, the Oliver Jr. 
Persons, and the BTLLC Persons, from any and all claims, counterclaims, demands, causes of 
actions, liabilities, contracts, agreements, promises, obligations or defenses of any kind 
whatsoever, whether known or unknown, related to or arising out of the matters described herein 
and in the Cases, which any of the Estate Persons have of may have against any or all'of the' 
Oliver Sr. Persons, the Oliver Jr, Persons, or the BTLLC Persons, occurring from the beginning 
of the world to the date of this Agreement, and the Estate Persons further agree that this 
Agreement may be pleaded and shall serve as a full defense to any action, suit or other 
proceeding covered by the terms of this Agreement which is or may be initiated, prosecuted or 
maintained, it being agreed and understood, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
obligations of this Agreement remain in full force and effect as an agreement of the Parties and 
as an Order of the Florida Court upon the Florida Court's approval hereof. 

(iv) Subject to the performance in full by each of (a) the Guardian, acting on 
behalf of Oliver Sr., (b) Oliver Jr., acting individually, and (c) Oliver Jr., acting on behalf of the 
Estate, of their respective promises and covenants herein, the failure of which shall void this 
paragraph (J)(iv), the BTLLC Persons, hereby release, acquit, and forever discharge the Oliver 
Sr, Persons from any and all claims, counterclaims, demands, causes of actions, liabilities, 
contracts, agreements, promises, obligations or defenses of any kind whatsoever, whether known 
or unknown, related to or arising out of the matters described herein and in the Cases, which any 
of the BTLLC Persons have or may have against the Oliver Sr. Persons occurring from the 
beginning of the world to the date of this Agreement, and the BTLLC Persons further agree that 
this Agreement may be pleaded and shall serve as a full defense to any action, suit or other 
proceeding covered by .the terms of this Agreement which is or may be initiated, prosecuted or 
maintained, it being agreed and understood, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
obligations of this Agreement remain in full force and effect as an agreement of the Parties, 

(v) Nothing in any of the foregoing releases shall be construed to release any 
of the Parties from their obligations as set forth in this Agreement or shall release any claims 
specifically excluded on Exhibit A. 

4, Enforcement of Obligations, The Parties understand and agree that notwithstanding any 
contrary terms in this Agreement, in the event any party fails to comply with any of the party's 
obligations as set forth in Sections 2 and 3 of this Agreement, the party to whom the obligation is 
owed shall have the right to enforce the terms set forth therein, and the legal fees and costs 
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incurred by the aggrieved party in enforcing such terras shall be paid by the Party found to be in 
breach of such terms. 

5 • No Admission of Liability. The Parties understand and agree that this Agreement is only 
a compromise in settlement of disputed claims and matters and shall not be construed as an 
admission of liability or wrongdoing by any party. 

6. Waiver of Interim and Pinal Report. Oliver Jr. hereby waives any and all objections to 
any interim or final report prepared or to be prepared and submitted by the Guardian to the 
Florida Court, including without limitation any accounting, plan, discharge, compensation and 
expenses of the Guardian, attorneys fees and costs. The Guardian hereby waives any and all 
objections to any interim or final report prepared or to be prepared and submitted by Oliver Jr. as 
the Personal Representative of the Estate to the Florida Court, including without limitation any 
accounting, plan, discharge, compensation and expenses of the Personal Representative, 
attorneys fees and costs. 

7. • Continued Guardianship, The Parties hereby agree that •none shall object, in any manner, 
to Curtis C, Rogers' continued service as the Guardian at least until the consummation in full of 
this Settlement or the appointment of the Successor Guardian as contemplated in the 
Compromised Settlement Agreement, whichever occurs first. 

8. Authority, Each Party executing this Agreement hereby represents and warrants that it 
has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement, Each individual executing this 
Agreement on behalf of an entity Party hereby represents and warrants that he or she has the full 
power and authority to so execute this Agreement, 

9. No Assignment. Each Party represents and wan-ants that it is the lawful owner of all 
claims being released by such Party and has not assigned any released claim or portions thereof 
to any other person or entity. In the event that a Party shall have assigned, sold, transferred, or 
otherwise disposed of any claim or other matter herein released, such Party shall hold harmless 
and indemnify the other Parties to this Agreement from and against any loss, cost, claim or 
expense, including but not limited to all costs related to the defense of any action, including 
attorneys' fees, based upon, arising from, or incurred as a result of any such claim or matter. 

10. Confidentiality, The terms of this Agreement shall remain confidential, and none of the 
Parties shall disclose such terms to any third party (other than a Party's affiliates, officers, 
directors, employees, shareholders, partners, members, managers, attorneys, accountants, 
auditors, or governmental agencies), except as may be required by law or fiduciary duty. In the 
event any of the Parties shall receive a subpoena, discovery request or other legal process 
seeking the production or disclosure of this Agreement or the terms of the Agreement, such party 
promptly shall notify the other Parties to enable them to seek a protective order, However, no 
Party shall be precluded by this provision from complying with any such subpoena, discovery 
request or other legal process seeking production or disclosure of this Agreement unless ordered 
by a court of competent jurisdiction not to comply, Any failure to keep the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement confidential shall be a default, entitling the non-defaulting Party to the default 
remedies set forth in this Agreement or otherwise permitted by law. 

Bivtas/SeHlement Agml/2013-07-10 
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11 • Understanding and Counsel, The Parties further represent and warrant that: 

(A) They, have read and understand the terms of this Agreement. 

(B) They have been represented by counsel with respect to this Agreement and all 
matters covered by and relating to it, 

(C) They have entered into this Agreement for reasons of their own and not based 
upon any representation of any other person other than those set forth herein. 

12. Legal Fees and Costs. Except as provided herein, each of the Parties shall pay its own 
respective costs and attorneys' fees. 

13. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement with respect to the 
subject matter addressed herein and supersedes any prior written and/or verbal agreement 
between the Parties, including the Memorandum of Understanding among the Parties, dated May 
8,.201-3; but excluding the -808 Notes and the- 808-Mortgages, and-any -other-agreement by, 
between, or among BTLLC, the Estate, and/or Oliver Jr. dated on or after May 7,2013, 

14. Amendments. This Agreement may not be orally modified, This Agreement may only be 
modified in a writing signed by all of the Parties. 

15. Illegality or Unenforceability of Provisions. In the event any one or more of the 
provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction in whole or ; in part to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement, A 
reviewing court also shall have the authority to amend or "blue pencil" this Agreement so as to 
make it fully valid and enforceable. 

16. Successors. Assigns and Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall be binding on, 
inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, each of the Parties, and each of their respective 
personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. 

17. Headings. All headings and captions in this Agreement are for convenience only and 
shall not be inteipreted to enlarge or restrict the provisions of the Agreement, 

18. Waiver and' Modification. The failure of a Party to insist, in any one or more instances, 
upon the strict performance of any of the covenants of this Agreement, or to exercise any option 
herein contained, shall not be construed as a waiver, or a relinquishment for the future, of such 
covenant or option, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and effect. 

19. Further Necessary Actions. To the extent that any document or action is reasonably 
required to be executed or taken by any Party to effectuate the purposes of this Settlement 
Agreement, the Party will execute and deliver such document or documents to the requesting 
Party or take such action or actions at the request of the requesting Party. 

20. Florida Law. The Parties understand and agree that this Agreement shall be construed 
and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida, without giving effect to 
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principles of conflicts of law that would require the application of the law of any other 
jurisdiction; and provided, however, that except as to the location of the realty where specific 
enforcement is sought, the law of such jurisdiction shall govern. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
the laws of the State of New York shall govern and control all controversies arising out of this 
Agreement which may relate to New York State, including but not limited to 808 Lexington, 
39E67, the 808 Notes, the 808 Mortgages, the Mortgage Loan, and the Mortgage Debt 
(collectively, the "New York Matters"). 

21. Construction of Settlement Agreement. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is 
the product of negotiations by Parties represented by counsel of their choice and that the 
language of this Agreement shall not be presumptively construed either in favor or against any of 
the Parties but shall be given a reasonable interpretation. 

22, Notices. Any notices that the Parties may wish to serve upon each other pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be served by hand, facsimile, email, or overnight courier service as follows: 

TO THE GUARDIAN: 
Curtis C. Rogers 
710 First Avenue South 
Lake Worth, FL 33460 
Email: rogersdna@gmail.com 

"With a copy to: 
Brian M, O'Connell, Esq. 
Ashley N. Crispin, Esq. 
Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell 
515 N. Flagler Dr., 20"' Floor 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
Facsimile: 561-833-4209 
Email: boconnell@ciklinlubitz.com 

acrispin@ciklinlubitz.com 

And to: 
Keith B. Stein, Esq. 
Roy C. Justice, Esq, 
Beys Stein Morbargha & Berland LLP 
405 Lexington Avenue, 7 l h Floor 
New York, NY 10174 
Facsimile: 646-755-3599 
Email: kstein@beysstein.com 

ijustice@beysstein.com 

TO OLIVER BIVINS, JR.: 
Oliver Bivins, Jr. 
39 E. 67 th St. 
New York, NY 10065 
Email: o.bivins.ii@gmail.com 

With a copy to: 
Donna P, Levine, Esq. 
Levine & Susaneck, P.A. 
324 Datura Street, Suite 145 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
Facsimile: 561-820-8099 
Email: dlevinelaw@aol,cora 

And to: 

Bivins/Settloracnl Agmt/2013-07-10 
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Mark N. Axinn, Esq, 
Brill & Meisel 
845 Third Avenue 
New York, NY 10022 
Email: markaxinn@hotmail,com 

TO BEACHTON TUXEDO LLC: 
Edward Kulmel 
49 West Lake Stable Road 
Tuxedo Park, NY 10987 
Facsimile: N/A 
Email; edward.kuhnel@grnail,com 

With a cony to: 
Peter G, Goodman, Esq. 
Benjamin Gorelick, Esq. 
Smith, Gambrell & Russell, LLP 
250 Park Avenue, Suite 1900 
New York, NY 10177 
Facsimile: 212-907-9865 
Email: pgoodman@srglaw.comi 
bgorelick@sgrlaw, com 

23, Counterparts and Electronic Signature, This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which is deemed to be an original hereof, and all of which shall be 
considered one and the same document as if all Parties had executed a single original document. 
This Agreement may be executed in Portable Document Format and each signature thereto shall 
be and constitute an original signature, again as if all Parties had executed a single original 
document. 

24, Continuing Jurisdiction. The Florida Court shall retain continuing jurisdiction over the 
Petitioners and enforcement of this Agreement (with respect to the Petitioners only) until all 
property transfers and monetary payments required by this Agreement have been made. During 
such period and except with respect to the New York Matters, any disputes or controversies 
arising with respect to the interpretation, enforcement or implementation of this Agreement shall 
be resolved by motion to the Florida Court. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, all 
disputes and/or controversies arising out of the New York Matters at any time shall be resolved 
in the New York courts, and the Parties hereby submit to the jurisdiction of such courts for such 
purpose. 

25, Survival. All of the representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement 
shall survive the performance by the Parties of their obligations hereunder. 

- Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank - Signatures Appear on Next Page -

10 
Bivins/Settlement Agmt/20I3-07-I0 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 416-1   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/25/2017   Page 11 of
 21



Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM Document 18-1 Entered on FLSD Docket 01/08/2016 Page 12 of 21 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and delivered this Agreement as of 
the date first set forth above. 

•As Gmr4i^0f'pjiv^rpi]/im, Sr.. 

OliveriSivjiis, Jr. 
Individually, i 
of the Estate c 

j ibrna-Bivins 

Individually, and as Persom^Ji^resgitMivk 
of the Estate of \ •• *' \ Is • 

' t /• '. '.' 
'•:•/. • • } . 

Bivins/Sefllemem Agmt/2013-07-10 
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Ctirt.es C, Rogers 
' As Guardian-for Oliver B'svins, Sr. 

Beachton Tuxedo LLC 

| R y : _ _ ^ ^ 
Name:' 

• Individually, and 'asPersona!Reprewtitaiivt : 
••afiiisiuitale-a/- .}•, 

• "• ••• Exnipyj-'A'. -• . :- . . • • ';.- • 
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EXHIBIT A 

CASES TO BE DISMISSED AND/OR OBJECTIONS TO BE WAIVED 

1. Dismissed - Petition to Determine Beneficiaries, In Re: Estate of Lorna Bivins, 
Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, Palm Beach County, Florida, Probate 
Division, File No. 502011CP001130XXXXMB. 

2. Dismissed - Curtis Rogers, as Guardian of Oliver Bivins, Sr, v. Oliver Bivins, as 
Personal Representative of the Estate of Lorna Bivins Complaint, 
502013CA006086XXXXMB/AJ excepting COUNT 3- DECLARATORY ACTION 
- TAXES and any claim by the Guardian for contribution, or otherwise, relating to 
potential or current income tax liabilities for the period of time predating January 1, 
2011 of Oliver Sr, the Guardian and/or the Estate. 

3. Waiver - The Estate and/or Oliver Jr.'s objections to Guardian Compensation and 
Expenses and the-Guardian's Attorney's Fees and Costs, including butnot limited to-
Ciklin Lubitz, Bill T. Smith, P. A., and Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland LLP, and any 
report of the Guardian, including but not limited to any Plans, Accountings, Petition 
for Discharge, In Re: Guardianship of Oliver Bivins, Circuit Court of the Fifteenth 
Judicial Circuit, Palm Beach County, Florida, Guardianship Division, File No. 
502011GA000006XXXXSB, 

4. Dismissed - Petition to Order Personal Representative of the Estate of Lorna Bivins to 
Disgorge Chase Account Funds In Re: Guardianship of Oliver Bivins, Circuit Court 
of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, Palm Beach County, Florida, Guardianship Division, 
File No. 502011GA000006XXXXSB. 

5. Dismissed - Petition to Order Oliver Bivins, I I to Disgorge Chase Account Funds In 
Re: Guardianship of Oliver Bivins, Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, 
Palm Beach County, Florida, Guardianship Division, File No. 
502011GA000006XXXXSB. 

6. Dismissed - Petition to Order Personal Representative of the Estate of Lorna Bivins to 
Disgorge Chase Account Funds In Re: Guardianship of Lorna Bivins, Circuit Court 
of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, Palm Be.ach County, Florida, Guardianship Division, 
File No. 502011GA000007XXXXSB. 

7. Dismissed - Petition to Order Oliver Bivins, I I to Disgorge Chase Account Funds In 
Re; Guardianship of Lorna Bivins, Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, 
Palm Beach County, Florida, Guardianship Division, File No. 
02011GA000007XXXXSB. 

8. Dismissed - Curtis C. Rogers, as Guardian of Oliver Bivins, Sr, v. Oliver Bivins, as 
Personal Representative of the Estate of Lorna Bivins, Oliver Bivins, individually, 
and Beachton Tuxedo LLC, Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of New 
York, Index No. 650242/2013. 

12 
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9. Dismissed- Partition Action- Oliver Bivins, as Personal Representative of the Estate 
of Lorna vs. Curtis Rogers, as Guardian of Oliver Bivins, File No: 
502013CP000632XXXXSB. 

10. Dismissed- Appeal by Oliver Bivins, individually and Personal Representative of the 
Lorna Bivins vs. the Guardianship of Oliver Bivins, Case No: 4D13-1363. 

11. Waiver- The Estate and/or Oliver Jr.'s objections to Stephen Kelly, Emergency 
Temporary Guardian of Lorna Bivins and Oliver Bivins, Petition for Discharge, Final 
Accounting and any other report, plan, pleading or paper filed by Mr. Kelly. 

12. Dismissed - Casey Ciklin v. The Estate of Lorna Bivins, collection of Lorna Bivins 
Guardianship Attorneys' fees and costs, Circuit Civil Court, Palm Beach County, 
Florida, File No. 2011CC011689XXXXMB. 

13. Dismissed- Steven Kelly v, Estate of Lorna Bivins, collection of ETG compensation 
• and expenses in Lorna Bivins Guardianship.Palm-BeachGounty-Gircuit' Court,'Case ••¬

No, 20I1CC011688XXXXXMB. 

Biviiis/Settlcmenr Agmt/2013-07-10 
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EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF DEED  

808 Lexington Avenue 

Bivins/Settlemcnt Agml/2013-07-10 
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NY - 1005 Bargain and Sale Deed, with Covenant against Grantors Acts-Individual or 
Corporation (Single Sheet) 

CONSULT YOUR LAWYER BEFORE SIGNING THIS INSTRUMENT - THIS 
INSTRUMENT SHOULD BE USED BY LAWYERS ONLY, 

THIS INDENTURE, made as of the day of , 2013 

BETWEEN 

Oliver Bivins as Executor of the Estate of Lorna Bivins a/k/a Lorna M. Bivins, c/o Mark N. 
Axinn, Esq., Brill & Meisel, 845 Third Avenue, New York, NY 10022, and Curtis C. Rogers, as 
Guardian of the person and property of Oliver Bivins a/k/a Oliver Bivins, III , c/o Beys Stein 
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, The Chrysler Building, 405 Lexington Avenue, 7 f l . , New York, 
NY 10174, 

parties of the first part, and 

Curtis C. Rogers, as Guardian of the person and property of Oliver Bivins, c/o Beys Stein 
Mobargha & Berland, LLP, The Chrysler Building, 405 Lexington Avenue, 7 t h fl., New York, 
NY 10174, 

party of the second pail, 

WITNESSETH, that the party of the first part, in consideration of Ten and no/100 ($10.00) 
Dollars paid by the party of the second part, does hereby grant and release unto the party of the 
second part, the heirs or successors and assigns of the party of the second part forever, 

A L L that certain plot, piece or parcel of land, with the buildings and improvements thereon 
erected, situate, lying and being in the City, County and State of New York described as follows: 
808 Lexington Avenue, New York, NY, Block 1397, Lot 16 on the Tax Map of New York 
County, and more fully described on Schedule A annexed hereto and made part hereof. 

BEING the same premises previously conveyed by deed dated December 27,1988 from Wilson 
Furnished Leasing, Inc., as grantor, to Lorna Bivens a/k/a Lorna M. Bivens and Oliver Bivens, 
II I , collectively as grantee, and recorded on January 9, 1989 in Reel 1518, Page 623. 

TOGETHER with all right, title and interest, if any, of the party of the first part in and to any 
streets and roads abutting the above described premises to the center lines thereof; 

TOGETHER with the appurtenances and all the estate rights of the party of the first part in and 
to said premises; TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the premises herein granted unto the party of the 
second part, the heirs or successors and assigns of the party of the second part forever, 

AND the party of the first part covenants that the party of the first part has not done or suffered 
anything whereby the said premises have been encumbered in any way whatever, except as 
aforesaid. 
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AND the party of the first part, in compliance with Section 13 of the Lien Law, covenants that 
the party of the first part will receive the consideration for this conveyance and will hold the 
right to receive such consideration as a trust fund to be applied first for the purpose of paying the 
cost of the improvement and will apply the same first to the payment of the cost of the 
improvement before using any part of the total of the same for any other purpose, The word 
"party" shall be construed as i f it read "parties" whenever the sense of this indenture so requires. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the party of the first part has duly executed this deed 
the day and year first above written. 

Oliver Bivins as Executor of the Estate of Lorna 
Bivins 

Curtis C. Rogers, as Guardian of the person and 
property of Oliver Bivins 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
) ss, j 

COUNTY OF NEW YORK) 

On the t day of , 2013 before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Curtis C. 
Rogers, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
individual(s) whose name(s) is (are) subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument, the individual(s), or the person upon behalf of which the 
individual(s) acted, executed the instrument, 

Notary Public 

STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
) SS.I 

COUNTY OF NEW YORK) 

On the day of , 2013 before me, the undersigned, personally appeared Oliver Bivens, 
personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the 
individual(s) whose name(s) is (are) subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to 
me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their capacity(ies), and that by bis/her/their 
signature(s) on the instrument, the individual(s), or the person upon behalf of which the 
individual(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

Notary Public 
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RECORD AND RETURN TO; 

Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP 
The Chrysler Building 

405 Lexington Avenue-7U' f l . 
New York, NY 10174 

Attn: Keith B. Stein, Esq. 

PROPERTY ADDRESS & TAX MAP DESIGNATION 

808 Lexington Avenue, New York, NY 
Block: 1397 

Lot: 16 
County: New York 
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SCHEDULEA 

BEGINNING at a point on the westerly side of Lexington Avenue distant forty feet five 
inches northerly from the corner formed by the intersection of the westerly side of 
Lexington Avenue and the northerly side of 62nd Street; running thence WESTERLY 
parallel with 62 n d Street and part of the distance through a party wall eighty feet; thence 
NORTHERLY parallel with Lexington Avenue twenty feet; thence EASTERLY parallel 
with 62 n d Street, and part of the distance through a party wall eighty feet to the westerly 
side of Lexington Avenue and thence SOUTHERLY along the westerly side of 
Lexington Avenue twenty feet to the point or place of BEGINNING. 

Said premises being known as and by the street number 808 Lexington Avenue, 

The said premises are being sold and are being conveyed subject to Party-wall 
Agreement, recorded in Liber 3672 of Conveyances, at page 367, 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 416-1   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/25/2017   Page 21 of
 21



Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM Document 158-5 Entered on FLSD Docket 10/25/2016 Page 1 of 4 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
IN AND FOR PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

PROBATE/GUARDIANSHIP DIVISION " I Y M 

CASE NO. 502011GA000006XXXXSB 

IN RE: GUARDIANSHIP OF 
OLIVER BIVINS, 

Incapacitated. 
/ 

ORDER ON HYBRID/CONTINGENCES FEE PORTION OF APPLICATION  
OF ATTORNEYS FOR WARD FOR FEES AND COSTS 

THIS CAUSE came before the Court on the Application of Ciklin, Lubitz & 

O'Connell and Bill T. Smith, Jr. PA, for attorney fees and costs for representing the 

Ward pursuant to that certain Representation Agreement dated November 30,2012, 

which was approved by Order on Petition for Authorization to Pursue Petition to 

Determine Beneficiaries and for the Guardian to Enter Into a Hybrid Fee Agreement 
dated November 30,2012. 

Opposition to this fee request came from Julian Bivins, son of the Ward. 

This matter was very well tried by the lawyers. 

Based upon the testimony and evidence presented, the Court makes the following 

findings of facts and conclusions of law. 

1. There is no dispute that the Ciklin, Lubitz law firm and Bill T. Smith, Jr., PA. law 

firm and the Guardian, Curtis Rogers, entered into a Representation Agreement 

dated November 30,2012, which was approved by the Court on even date, that 
contained the following pertinent provisions: 

a. The lawyers shall bill for legal services performed for the Guardian at a 

reduced hourly rate. 

b. In addition to the foregoing, the Guardian agrees to pay the lawyers for any 

recovery obtained from the litigation and adversary matters relating to any 

I EXHIBIT 

I e> 
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and all interest that the Ward may have in any property of the Loma Bivins 

estate.• 

2. At the hearing on this matter, the lawyers showed that the legal services 

performed relating to the Lorna Bivins estate was coded in billing numbers 501 

and 514. 

3. By separate orders, the parties agreed to the amount of hourly fees to be paid 

pursuant to the Representation Agreement for matters 501 and 514, as well as all 

other hourly fees. 

4. Left to decide in this order is the contingency fee recovery. 

5. Both the attorneys for the Guardian and the attorney for Julian Bivins agreed that 

( the Ward received from the Loma Bivins estate two parcels of property, 

commonly referred to as the 330 South Ocean Blvd. Palm Beach, Florida 

property and the 808 Lexington Avenue New York, New York property. 

6. The primary area of dispute were 

(1) the value of the property recovered. 

(2) the value of any set offs or debits, i f any, to the Ward. 

(3) the reasonableness of the fee sought, in general. 

7. Upon carefully considering the valuation testimony of the witnesses and the 

exhibits relating thereto, the Court finds that the 50% value of the 333 South 

Ocean Blvd property recovered is $602,652.00 and the 50% value of the 808 

Lexington Avenue property recovered is $2,600,000.00 for a gross amount of 

$3,202,652.00 less $232,500.00 which is 50% of the mortgage, leaving a net' 

2 
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50% ownership value of $2,970,152.00, as of September 13, 2013. 

8. To achieve this benefit to the Ward, the parties entered into a Comprehensive 

Settlement Agreement which was approved by Court order dated September 17, 

2013. The next issue is one of set off or debits to the recovery of the Ward as the 

result of this settlement. It was evident that the Guardian made a cash payment to 

Oliver Jr's lawyer of $150,000,00 as a material part of this settlement. Disputed 

was whether there should also be a $130,000.00 set off for a purported transfer 

tax imposed by New York taxing authorities. I f this tax is assessed, the Court 

finds that the amount of the assessment is an appropriate setoff. Julian Bivins' 

expert claimed the tax would be about $130,000.00. The Guardian in a letter 

claimed the tax would be about $70,000.00. The disposition of this particular 

dispute will be that once it is determined whether, and i f so, the amount of 

transfer tax actually paid by the Guardian, there shall be a fee adjustment made to 

counsel. So for calculation purposes, the Court is using $280,000.00 as a set off 

on.the above mentioned recovery for a net sum of $2,690,152.00 to which the 

contingency fee shall apply. I f the transfer tax is less, the lawyers are entitled to 

12% of the reduced amount. 

9. The last issue in whether there should be a further fee. reduction on the theory that 

the total amount of fees, that is, both hourly and contingency fees are 

unreasonable for this Ward to pay. 

10. This Court finds that a guardianship case is an equitable matter and the focus is 

always on the best interest of the Ward. In this case, the Ward's best interests 
were extremely well considered by the work and efforts of his lawyers. 

11. As a result, the Court declines to make any further fee reduction, and thus the 

contingency fee will be paid on a recovery amount of $2,690,152.00, subject to 

the transfer tax matter. 
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12. As such, the fee awarded pursuant to the Representation Agi'eement is as 
follows; 

(1) 18% of $900,000.00 = $162,000.00 

(2) 15% of 1 million = $150,000.00 

(3) 12% of $690,152.00 = $82,818.24 

for a total of $394,818.24, which shall be paid by the Guardian for funds 

available of the Ward. 

13. The Court reserves jurisdiction to enforce the Order. 

DONE AND ORDERED in chambers, at Delray Beach, Palm Beach 

Copies furnished: 
Brian M. O'Connell, Esquire 
515 North Flagler Drive, 20fh Floor 
West Palm Beach, Fl. 33401 

Ronald Denman, Esquire 
1000 Brickell Avenue, Suite 600 
Miami, FL 33131 

Donna P. Levine, Esquire 
324 Datura Street, Suite 145 
West Palm Beach, Fl. 33401 

Ronda D. Gluck, Esquire 
980 North Federal Highway, Suite 402 
Boca Raton, Fl. 33432 

County, Florida this 23 day of May, 2014. 

MARTINH. COLIN ^ 2 ^ ^ ^ 
Circuit Court Judge r ¥ $0* 

4 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR 
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

IN RE: GUARDIANSHIP OF: GUARDIANSHIP DIVISION 

OLIVER BIVINS, FILE NO: 502011GA000006XXXXSB 

Incapacitated. 
/ 

AGREED ORDER ON PETITIONS FOR PAYMENT OF ATTORNEY'S F E E S  
AND COSTS B Y T H E LAW FIRM OF CI KLIN LUBITZ MARTENS &  
O'CONNELL, B I L L T. SMITH, JR. P.A., AND A G R E E D AWARD OF  

ATTORNEY'S F E E S AND COSTS TO PERLMAN, BAJANDAS. Y E V O L I & 

ALBRIGHT, P.L. 

THIS CAUSE coming before the Court on various pending fee petitions filed by 

the law firm of Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell and Bill T. Smith, Jr., P.A., the Court 

having heard argument of counsel, all parties being in agreement, and the- Court being 

otherwise fully advised, it is thereupon 

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED as follows: 

1. As to Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell: 

a. For all attorney's fees incurred through May 6, 2014, and for costs 

sought in the petitions filed September 10, 2013, October 23, 2013, October 30, 

2013, and May 6, 2014, for all matters billed hourly for the representation of 

Curtis Rogers, as Guardian, and for services and costs awardable pursuant to 

Florida Statute §744.108 - Fees awarded in the amount of $370,000.00; Costs 

awarded in the amount of $ ~fH} £~7/. TO 

2. As to Bill T. Smith, Jr., P.A.: 

a. For all attorney's fees incurred through May 6,2014, and for costs 

sought in the petitions filed May 15, 2013, July 2, 2013, and October 11, 2013, 

EXHIBIT 

Exhibit 24 
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for all matters billed hourly for the representation of Curtis Rogers, as Guardian, 

and for services awardable pursuant to Florida Statute §744.108 - Fees awarded 

in the amount of $116,000.00; Costs awarded in the amount of $ / f J f i t f Z . g ? 

3. As to Perlman, Bajandas, Yevoli & Albright P.L.: 

a. For all attorney's fees and costs incurred through May 6,2014, for 

any services relating to the representation of Julian Bivins, with regard to Oliver 

Bivins, Sr., and for services awardable pursuant to Florida Statute §744.108 -

Fees awarded in the amount of $374,213.72; Costs awarded in the amount of 

$59,076.87. 

4. The attorney's fee and cost awards above shall be paid as follows: 

a. First from the Oliver Bivins Management Trust ("Trust"); should 

the Trust fail, for any reason, to make full payment of the awards in 1 - 3 above, 

within thirty (30) days of demand for same, then next from: 

(i) The refinance or sale of 808 Lexington Ave., New York, 

New York; and 

(ii) Despite the provisions in number 4 above, at any time from 

any other assets of the guardianship. 

5. No party to this agreed order is waiving any claims or defenses that may 

be proper with regard to the hybrid contingency portion of the fees sought by Ciklin 

Lubitz Martens & O'Connell and/or Bill T. Smith, Jr., P.A. 

6. The award of the above attorney's fees and costs shall have the effect of a 
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recordable lien and/or judgment against the guardianship and its assets. 

DONE AND ORDERED in Delray Beach, Palm. Beach County, Florida on the 

___j_dayof faMj ,2014. * f ) 

Copies returned: 
Brian M, O'Connell, Esq., 515 N. Flagler Dr., 20th Floor, West Palm Beach, F L 33401 
service@ciklinlubitz.com - slobdeU@cildinlubitz.corn 
Ronald Denman, Esq., 1000 Brickell Ave., Suite 600, Miami, F L 33131 
ridenman@pbvalaw.com-eservicemia@pbyalaw.com — acarmenate@pbvalaw.com: 
Ronda D.Gluek, Esq., 980 N. Federal Highway, #402, Boca Raton, F L 33432 
attomeys@bocaattomev.com 
Donna P. Levine, Esq., 3003 S. Congress Ave., Suite 1A, Palm Springs, F L 33461 
Levine.susaneck@gmail.com 

MARTIN H. COLIN 
Circuit Judge 
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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR 
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

IN RE: GUARDIANSHIP OF: GUARDIANSHIP DIVISION 

OLIVER BIVINS, FILE NO: 502011GA000006XXXXSB 

Incapacitated. 
/ 

ORDER ON GLOBAL SETTLEMENT 

THIS CAUSE coming before the Court on all adversary matters currently pending 

in this, matter and the Petition for Authorization to Sell Ward's Real Property Located at 

808 Lexington Ave., New York, New York, dated May 2, 2014, the Court having heard 

argument of counsel, having made a ruling on the settlement ("settlement") of these 

matters, and being otherwise fully advised, it is thereupon 

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED as follows: 

As to real property located at 808 Lexington Ave., New York, New York (<(808)y) 

1. 808 is currently titled in the Estate of Lorna Bivins ("Estate") and Oliver 

Bivins, Sr. ("the Ward") 50/50 as-tenants injoommonv 

2, The law firm of Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell is currently holding, 

in escrow, a fully executed deed for the transfer of ownership of 808 from Oliver Bivins, 

a/k/a Oliver Bivins, Jr. as Personal Representative of the Estate of Lorna Bivins a/k/a 

Lorna M. Bivins, and Stephen M. Kelly (the "Guardian"), as successor limited guardian 

of the person and property of Oliver Bivins, a/k/a Oliver Bivins, Sr., (a/k/a Oliver Bivins, 

IU in connection with the deed on 808, (sometimes referred to herein as the "Ward"), 

parties of the first part, to Stephen M. Kelly, as successor limited guardian of the person 

and property of the Ward, party of the second part, and will hold the deed until fiirther 

S 

EXHIBIT 
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order of this Court, or as determined hy the Parties. A true and correct copy of the fully 

executed deed is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 

3, The Guardian shall obtain an estoppel/payoff letter from Beachton 

Tuxedo, LLC, the holder of the only mortgage on 808, on or before October 31, 2014. 

The Guardian shall attempt to negotiate a reduction of the amount reported or claimed by 

Beachton Tuxedo, LLC as due to them pursuant to the mortgage. 

4, Julian Bivins ("Julian") is authorized to purchase 808 "As Is" for Five 

Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00) under the following terms, conditions and limited 

contingency: 

a. On or before October 6,2014, Julian shall deposit, by wire transfer 

to the law firm of Ciklm Lubitz Martens & O'Connell (Florida counsel for the 

Guardian and the Ward, and the '̂ Escrow Agent" for purposes of holding the 

Deposit Amount), One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) (the "Deposit Amount"), 

which shall be held by the Escrow Agent in a non-interest bearing account, as a 

good faith deposit toward the purchase of 808; 

b. No later than 11:59 pm on November 19,2014, Julian shall obtain, 

and provide to the Guardian, in writing from a lender of Julian's choice, a 

commitment for a loan in the amount of Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00), for 

the purchase of 808 ("Financing Commitment"); 

c. • The closing of the purchase by Julian of 808 will take place on or 

before December 16, 2014, and there shall be no extension to this date for any 

reason, 
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d. TIME SHALL BE OF THE ESSENCE with respect to each of the 

dates stated in sections 5.8,5.h and 5.c above. 

e. I f Julian has deposited the Deposit Amount and obtained and 

delivered the Financing Commitment as required by Sections 5,a and 5,b above, 

and a closing does not take place on or before December 16,2014, Julian forfeits 

his One Million Dollar ($1,000,000.00) deposit to the Guardian on behalf of the 

Ward, unless the lender Is the reason he cannot close ("Lender Failure"), in which 

case the Deposit Amount shall be returned by the Escrow Agent to Julian; and in 

any event, Julian's right to purchase 808 is terminated, and any contract, 

agreement, or otherwise by and between the Guardian and Julian, is deemed null 

and void and of no further force or effect; 

f. Further, i f Julian does not comply with the deposit of the Deposit 

Amount and/or the obtaining of the Financing Commitment on a timely basis, 

then Julian forfeits all right to purchase 808, and any contract, agreement, or 

otherwise, is deemed null and void and of no fiirther force or effect; 

g. Julian's right to purchase 808 and any contract or agreement for 

such purchase of 808 is not assignable by Julian, except to an entity owned solely 

by Julian; 

h. For the purposes of any sale to Julian, as provided herein, the 

purchase of 808 and the taking of title thereto by Julian to 808 is "As Is" and in its 

then existing condition, with all wear and tear and deterioration from the date of 

this Order until the closing accepted by Julian, and without any contingencies 
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with respect to the condition of 808, or any governmental liens or impositions 

against 808, or its tenants, or any other aspect of 808, or otherwise; 

i . A contract to purchase 808 will contain the terms of this order, and 

will be initially prepared by Mian's counsel and submitted to counsel for the 

Guardian, and shall be executed hy both the Guardian and Julian on or before 

October 6, 2014, If the contract is not prepared,'or otherwise fully executed, on 

or before October 6, 2014, this order shall continue to govern the obligations of 

the parties, however the parties shall be required to execute the contract as soon as 

practicably possible after October 6,2014 

j . I f the Deposit Amount and/or the Financing Commitment and/or 

the closing provisions are not met, as specified in this order, then the Guardian is 

authorized to immediately sell 808 to the highest of three third party bidders, for 

an amount of at least 'Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00) without any 

participation "by Julian, or any further approval of the court, and Julian shall be 

deemed to have waived any rights, objections, or otherwise to any sale by the 

Guardian to any third party, so long as, in connection with the sale, the Guardian, 

its agents, and its counsel comply with their fiduciary duties to the Ward as 

provided for by Florida Law. • 

6. With respect to the sale of 808, whether to Julian for Five Million Dollars 

($5,000,000.00) or to a third party for that amount or greater, through Eastern 

Consolidated Properties, Inc., a New York real estate broker, acting through its sales 

agent, Lipa Lieberman ("Lieberman"), will be the exclusive broker for any sale 
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effectuated by the Guardian, and will be paid a commission at a rate of 6% of the 

purchase price, unless another broker is involved in any sale to a third party, in which 

case the 6% shall be split with a participating broker. In no event shall real estate 

commissions exceed 6%. 

7. This order shall operate as authorization for the Guardian to execute any 

documents, deeds, or the like to finalize the sale of 808, whether to Julian or to a third 

party buyer. 

8, At the closing of 808 - the following shall be paid from the proceeds of 

the sale: 

a. $150,000.00 to Ciklin Luhitz Martens & O'Connell, as Escrow 

., /' Agent with regard to any monies due to Levine & Susaneck pursuant to 

( 

Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release, pending further Court Order; 

b. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement to Julian Bivins, pursuant to 

Order dated May 23,2014 awarding fees and costs to Perlman Bajandas Yevoli & 

Albright PX. ("PBYA") in the amount of $374,213,72 in attorney's fees, and 

$59,076.87 in costs, which amounts have been paid by Julian Bivins to PBYA; 

c. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement, pursuant to Order dated 

May. 23., 2014 awarding fees and costs to Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, in 

the amount of $444,571.90; 

d. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement, pursuant to Order dated 

May 23, 2014 awarding fees and costs to Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, in 

, the amount of $19,087.50; 

( 
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e. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement, pursuant to Order dated 

May 23, 2014 awarding fees and costs to Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, in 

the amount of $394,818,24; 

f. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement, pursuant to Order dated 

May 23, 2014, awarding fees and costs to Bill T. Smith, P.A., in the amount of 

$128,843.89. 

g. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement to the law firm of Beys 

Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP pursuant to a court order entered on (last year).. 

h. Guardian fees, pursuant to order dated May 23, 2014, (and 

outstanding amounts) awarding fees and cost to Stephen Kelly, Guardian, in the 

, f amounts of $19,087.30 and $22,990.88; and 

( 

i . Payment of any other court order awarding attorney's fees and 

costs and/or guardian's fee and expenses entered as of date of closing on sale of 

808. 

9. An additional $125,000.00 will be withheld by the Escrow Agent from the 

closing proceeds, to be utilized for guardianship administration expenses, subject to court 

approval, provided the sale of 330 does not occur first and a holdback of $125,000 from 

the proceeds of that sale has not occurred. 

10, After payment and holdback of a. - h. and 9. above, the remaining balance 

will be transferred to the Oliver Bivins Management Trust in Amarillo, Texas, 

As to real property located at 330 South Ocean Blvd., Palm Beach, Florida ("330") 
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11. Within thirty (30) days of the Ward's relocation to Childers Place in 

Amarillo, Texas, Julian shall have the right to make a written election to purchase 330 for 

the price of One Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand ($1,150,000.00) Dollars. The 

Ward's relocation date shall be evidenced by any written communication from the 

Guardian to Julian, and copied to his counsel of record, stating that the Ward is situated 

in Texas. 

12. I f Julian determines that he will purchase 330 for One Million One 

Hundred Fifty Thousand ($1,150,000.00) Dollars, within the thirty (30) day period he 

will notify Brian M. O'Connell, Esq., of Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell via e-mail, 

atboconnell@cildihlubitz.com and acrispin@ciklinlubitz.com, in writing, of his intention 

, ( to purchase 330 as described above. 

( 

13. A fully executed contract to purchase will be submitted by Julian with the 

election and shall reflect these terms: 

a. 330 will be purchased, in cash and "as is", without any warranties, 

contingencies, or representations as to condition. Julian shall have the right to 

inspect the premises within ten (10) days of the Ward residing in Texas, but such 

inspection period shall not extend his option to purchase period; 

b. Closing must occur on or before forty-five (45) days from the date 

of the election. No extensions shall he granted, except as to any issue regarding 

title and closing that is not the result of any action or inaction on the part of 

Julian; 

. ( 
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14. This order shall operate as authorization for the Guardian to execute any 

documents, deeds, or the like to finalize the sale of 330, whether to Julian or to a third 

party buyer, 

15. I f any of the above referenced terms for the purchase of 330 are not met, 

Julian will have waived any rights, objections, or otherwise to any sale by the Guardian 

to a third party, so long as, in connection with the sale, the Guardian, its agents, and its 

counsel comply with their fiduciary duties to the Ward as provided for by Florida Law, 

and the Guardian may immediately sell to a third party for fair market value without 

further order of the court. 

16. I f not otherwise paid from the closing proceeds of 808, the following shall 

be paid from the closing proceeds of 330: 

a. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement to Julian Bivins, pursuant to 

Order dated May 23,2014 awarding fees and costs to Perlman Bajandas Yevoli & 

Albright P.L. ("PBYA") in the amount of $374,213,72 in attorney's fees, and 

$59,076.87 in costs, which amounts have been paid by Julian Bivins to PBYA; 

b. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement, pursuant to Order dated 

May 23, 2014 awarding fees and costs to Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, in 

the amount of $19,087.50; 

* c. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement, pursuant to Order dated 

' May 23, 2014 awarding fees and costs to Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, in 

the amount of $394,818.24; 

/ 

(" 
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d. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement, pursuant to Order dated 

May 23, 2014, awarding fees and costs to Bill T. Smith, P.A., in the amount of 

$128,843.89. 

e. Attorney fees and cost reimbursement to the law firm of Beys 

Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP pursuant to a court order entered on (last year), 

f. Guardian fees, pursuant to order dated May 23, 2014, (arid 

outstanding amounts) awarding fees and cost to Stephen Kelly, Guardian, in the 

amount of $19,087.30 and $22,990.88; 

g. Payment of any other court order awarding attorney's fees and 

costs and/or guardian's fee and expenses entered as of date of closing on sale of 

330. 
( 

17. Provided 330 closes before 808, An additional $125,000.00 will be 

withheld by the Escrow Agent from the closing proceeds, to be utilized for guardianship 

administration expenses, subject to court approval. I f 808 closes first, and $125,000 was 

held back from the sale proceeds of 808, this holdback provision shall not apply. 

18. After payment and holdback of 16. a. - g. and 17. above, if applicable, the 

remaining balance will be transferred to the Oliver Bivins Management Trust in 

Amarillo, Texas. If such payments were already made from the proceeds of the sale of 

808, the proceeds from the sale of 330 will be transferred to the Oliver Bivins 

Management Trust in Amarillq, Texas. 

. ( 

(" 
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19. The Guardian shall forthwith, but in no event later than 10 days from the 

date of this Order, change the residence of the Ward from Florida to Amarillo, Texas and 

Julian consents-to-same. 

a. This Order shall authorize the Guardian to change the residence of 

the Ward from Florida to Amarillo, Texas without further petition, action or court 

approval; 

b. The Florida Guardian shall initiate proceedings in Potter County, 

Amarillo, Texas for the appointment of a third party professional guardian of the 

person (or the equivalent of same pursuant to Texas statutes) (the "Texas 

Guardian of Person") and a professional guardian shall always remain in. that 

,'• position; 

( 

c. The guardianship of the property of the Ward will remain in 

Florida until further order of this Court and the Florida Guardian shall continue to 

serve as the guardian of the property of the Ward until discharged by the Florida 

Court; 

d. The Ward will initially reside at Childers Place located in 

Amarillo, Texas. Once moved to Childers Place, i f the Texas Guardian of Person 

(or Florida Guardian, i f a Texas Guardian of Person has not yet been appointed) 

shall determine that the Ward should be moved, the Ward may be moved to any 

other suitable facility agreed to by Julian and the Texas Guardian of Person (or 

Florida Guardian, i f a Texas Guardian of Person has not yet been appointed); 

( 
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e. The Florida Guardian, and/or the Texas Guardian of Person, at 

such guardian's sole discretion, will establish nursing care, i.e, Certified Nursing 

Assistants, or similar qualified professionals, for24 hours 7 days a week to care 

for the Ward in Texas and put into place any other care plan or employ any other 

professional reasonable to effectuate the Ward's transition and stabilization in 

Texas, any such care plan shall continue unless, and until, further court order is 

obtained; 

f. The Ward will he transported to Texas by suitable method of 

transport selected by the. Florida Guardian in concert with his physician(s) and 

with whatever medical equipment determined by the Florida Guardian and his 

/'' physician(s) is reasonably available to ensure the safe transport of fhe Ward; 

g. The cost and payment for the Florida Guardian to initiate any 

petition or motion in the Florida court to implement guardianship proceedings in 

Texas, and any costs in Texas for the implementation of a guardianship, 

including, but not limited to court costs and attorney's fees and costs will be 

promptly paid by the trustee of the Oliver Bivins Management Trust. If, due to 

the failure of the Oliver Bivins Management Trust, to advance, or pay for such 

expenses, or the expenses of the Ward's transport to, or care in Texas, the Florida 

Guardian shall seek court approval to pay for same from the holdback amount 

from the proceeds of the 808 or 330 sale, whichever, the case, or for authorization 

to hold back further proceeds from the sale of 808 or 330. 

( 
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General Provisions 

20. All pending adversary matters between the Guardian and Julian will be 

dismissed or withdrawn with prejudice, except as to the motion to enforee-Oliver II to 

comply with settlement with respect to rent proceeds, and other aspects which pertain to 

his permission to allow Beachton to use premises, as it affects the payment of fhe 

$150,000 to the Estate of Lorna Bivins, and a cot off againct amounts owod to Beachton 

21, The settlement, and all provisions of this order, are subject to the 

jurisdiction of this Court and this Court will retain jurisdiction until all the terms and 

conditions of this settlement have been met and this Court shall always retain jurisdiction 

and authority to enforce this settlement and order as well as any previous orders entered 

by this Court. 

22. Julian Bivins and Stephen Kelly, as Guardian of Oliver Bivins, Sr., shall 

exchange mutual general releases of all claims that existed on or before September 19, 

23, All parties agree that time is of the essence in complying with all 

provisions of the contractus) to purchase and all provisions thereto, the settlement and this 

order. 

DONE AND ORDERED in Delray Beach; Palm Beach County, Florida on the 

2014. 

MARTIN H. COLIN 
Circuit Judge 

(' 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

 
Case No. 9:15-cv-81298-KAM/Matthewman 

 
 
JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal 
Representative of the ancillary Estate 
of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 
v. 
 
BRIAN M. O'CONNELL, ASHLEY 
N. CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ & 
O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, 
BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & 
BERLAND, LLP and LAW 
OFFICES OF KEITH B. STEIN, 
PLLC, n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, 
 

Defendants. 
__________________________________________/ 
 

DEFENDANTS', CIKLIN LUBITZ & O'CONNELL, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL, 
AND ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, MOTION FOR ENTRY OF FINAL 

JUDGMENT ON AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES OF COLLATERAL 
ESTOPPEL/RES JUDICATA AND RELEASE 

 
Defendants, Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell ("CLO"), Brian M. O'Connell ("O'Connell"), and 

Ashley N. Crispin ("Crispin") (collectively "Defendants"), move for final judgment on their 

affirmative defenses of collateral estoppel/res judicata and release. 

I. INTRODUCTION. 

This civil action was tried to the jury from July 17 - 20 and 24 - 28, 2017.  On July 28, 

2017, the jury entered a catastrophic verdict in the amount of $16.4 million against Crispin and 
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O'Connell.  CLO was not on the verdict form.  However, CLO is vicariously liable for the 

conduct of Crispin and O'Connell. 

During the course of the trial on July 27, 2017, the Court indicated to the parties that the 

issues of collateral estoppel/res judicata and release would be decided by the Court, after the jury 

verdict was rendered.  No party objected to that procedure.1  T. 8:281-82.2 

II. COLLATERAL ESTOPPEL/RES JUDICATA. 

Before trial, Defendants, plus Defendant, Stephen M. Kelly, as Successor Guardian 

("Kelly"), filed their Motion for Final Summary Judgment on the issues of collateral estoppel/res 

judicata (DE 227).  That motion was fully briefed3 and Defendants adopt herein the arguments 

made in the motion.  The Court granted final summary judgment as to Kelly, but denied it as to 

Defendants. 

A. The Elements of Collateral Estoppel/Res Judicata. 

As this Court previously has noted: 

Under Florida law,4 collateral estoppel will preclude relitigation of an issue when 
the (1) the identical issue; (2) has been fully litigated; (3) by the same parties or 
their privies and (4) a final decision has been rendered by a court of competent 
jurisdiction.  See Wingard v. Emerald Venture Florida LLC, 438 F.3d 1288, 1293 
(11th Cir. 2006); Quinn v. Monroe County, 330 F.3d 1320, 1329 (11th Cir. 2003).  

                                                 
1    The Court indicated that it could deal with these issues by way of a Rule 50 motion.  
Accordingly, this Motion is filed pursuant to Rule 50 or as a request for the Court to rule on the 
non-jury aspects of this civil action. 

2    Trial Transcript shall be "T. vol:page." 
 

3   Plaintiff's Response to Motion for Final Summary Judgment (DE 258); Defendants' Reply in 
Support of Motion for Final Summary Judgment (DE 274). 

4   The Court also noted that "[I]n a diversity case, the Court applies Florida law.  See Pendergast 
v. Sprint Nextel Corp., 592 F.3d 1119, 1132-33 (11th Cir. 2010); Royal Ins. Co. of America v. 
Whitaker Contracting Corp., 242 F.3d 1035, 1040 (11th Cir. 2001)." 
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Under res judicata, a final judgment issued by a court of competent jurisdiction bars 
a subsequent suit between the same parties based upon the same cause of action.  
Felder v. State, Dept. of Management Services, Div. of Retirement, 993 So. 2d 1031, 
1034 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 2008).  Res judicata precludes consideration not only of 
issues that were raised but also of issues that could have been raised, but were not 
raised in the prior case.  Fla. DOT v. Juliano, 801 So. 2d 101, 105 (Fla. 2001).  
The doctrine of res judicata applies under Florida law when the following 
conditions are present: "(1) identity of the thing sued for; (2) identity of the cause 
of action; (3) identity of persons and parties to the action; and (4) identity of quality 
in persons for or against whom claim is made."  Brown v. R.J. Reynolds Tobacco 
Co., 611 F.3d 1324, 1332 (11th Cir. 2010) (citing Fla. Bar v. Rodriguez, 959 So. 
2d 150, 158 (Fla. 2007)); Bloch v. Home Mortgage, No. 14-cv-80464, 2014 WL 
12580434, at * 1 (S.D. Fla. July 23, 2014). 

 
B. The Court Orders Giving Rise to Collateral Estoppel/Res Judicata. 

The Court orders giving rise to collateral estoppel/res judicata include the following: 

1. Order on Motion for Court Approval of Settlement Agreement and Mutual 

Release, dated September 17, 2013 (DE 18-1), (Attached as Exhibit "A") (the "New York 

Settlement Agreement.").  That order has attached to it the Settlement Agreement and Mutual 

Release. 

2. Order on Hybrid/Contingences Fee Portion of Application of Attorneys for 

Ward for Fees and Costs, dated May 23, 2014 (DE 158-5), (Attached as Exhibit "B"). 

3. Agreed Order on Petitions for Payment of Attorney's Fees and Costs by the 

Law Firm of Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Bill T. Smith, Jr., P.A., and Agreed Award of 

Attorney's Fees and Costs to Perlman, Bajandas, Yevoli & Albright, P.L., dated May 23, 2014 (DE 

228-24); (Attached as Exhibit "C"). 

4. Order Approving Global Settlement Agreement, dated March 19, 2015 (DE 

158-9), (Attached as Exhibit "D") ("Global Settlement Agreement").  The Order includes the 

terms of the Global Settlement Agreement. 
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Each of the orders above resulted from a settlement, but that is of no consequence when 

considering the application of Florida preclusion doctrines.  That is so because it is the law of 

Florida that when a settlement becomes approved by a court order, it becomes a final judgment in 

all respects as to issue preclusion doctrines.  Lee v. State Farm Mutual Ins. Co., 303 So. 2d 349, 

350 (Fla. 3d DCA 1974); Baron v. Provencial, 908 So. 2d 526, 527 (Fla. 4th DCA 2005); Kaplan 

v. Kaplan, 624 Fed.Appx 680, 682 (11th Cir. 2015).5 

C. The Effect of the Settlement and Attorney Fee Orders. 

The effect of the settlements and court orders approving those settlements is simple.  They 

establish that all of Julian's complaints for legal malpractice and breach of fiduciary duty are 

precluded by the doctrines of collateral estoppel/res judicata.  The court-approved settlement 

agreements fall into one of two categories: (a) the Global Settlement Agreement which Julian 

entered into and the court approved and (b) the New York Settlement Agreement to which Julian 

objected, the court approved and Julian never appealed.  

By those orders the guardianship court concluded that the settlements were in the best 

interest of the Ward and those orders are now final and non-appealable.  For example, by the order 

of September 17, 2013, the guardianship court approved the New York Settlement Agreement.  

Paragraph 16 of that Agreement provides that is binding on the heirs, successors and personal 

representatives of the parties.  One of those parties was the guardian standing in the shoes of the 

                                                 
5   Thus the instant case is distinguished from Keramati v. Schackow, 553 So. 2d 741 (Fla. 5th 
DCA 1989).  The court in that case addressed the issue of collateral estoppel in the context of a 
settlement that was not approved by a court order and thus had not become a final judgment for 
purposes of issue preclusion law. 
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Ward.  (Defendants in this case were the guardian's attorneys.)  Under Florida law, that 

agreement is now binding on Plaintiff as the Ward's personal representative.  Plaintiff is the 

personal representative of a party to the order, the Ward.  Thus the Ward's estate is bound to the 

order, as was the Ward himself, through his guardian.  See Kensington Associates v. Moss, 426 

So. 2d 1076, 1078 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983) and Davis v. Evans, 132 So. 2d 476, 481-82 (Fla. 1st DCA 

1961).  Plaintiff now alleges that the terms of the settlement were not fair to his father's (the 

Ward's) estate because, for example, according to Plaintiff one piece of property (67th Street) of 

the four properties involved in the settlement was undervalued.  

However, those settlement agreements were either approved by and advocated for by 

Julian, or they were approved over his objection after he had the full opportunity to be heard.  At 

the time he did so he was the nominated personal representative under his father's last known will, 

for the entire period of his father's guardianship.  Equally important, Julian was the sole 

beneficiary of his father's estate under that will.6 

Further, the orders are effective to bar Julian's claims because in each of the orders, 

attorneys' fees were approved to be paid to the Ciklin law firm on account of the work performed 

by its lawyers, O'Connell and Crispin.  If any party to those agreements and orders wished to 

challenge those fees on the grounds of legal malpractice or breach of fiduciary duty, they should 

have done so during the proceeding and, having not done so, they are barred by the doctrine of res 

                                                 
6   As the son and sole beneficiary, Julian Bivins was a "next of kin" as defined by Fla. Stat. ' 
744.102(14).  A next of kin is entitled generally to notice of the guardianship proceedings and the 
opportunity to be heard.  In fact, Julian received notice and participated in the guardianship 
proceedings, after entering an appearance as an "interested person" under Florida law knowing 
that he was the nominated executor and sole beneficiary of the Ward's last known will. 
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judicata.  The Order on Motion for Court Approval of Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release 

provided for attorneys' fees in paragraphs 3(g) and (h).  The Order on Hybrid/Contingences Fee 

Portion of Application of Attorneys for Ward for Fees and Costs provided for the payments of fees 

in paragraphs 11 and 12.  Importantly, that order in paragraph 10 held that "[I]n this case, the 

ward's best interests were extremely well considered by the work and efforts of his lawyers [i.e., 

the Ciklin law firm]."  The Agreed Order on Petitions for Payment of Attorney's Fees and Costs 

by the Law Firm of Ciklin Lubitz Martens & O'Connell, Bill T. Smith, Jr., P.A., and Agreed Award 

of Attorney's Fees and Costs to Perlman, Bajandas, Yevoli & Albright, P.L., dated May 23, 2014, 

provided for the payment of attorneys' fees to the Ciklin law firm in paragraph 1.  Finally, the 

Order Approving Global Settlement Agreement, dated March 19, 2015, provided for the payment 

of attorneys' fees to the Ciklin law firm in paragraph 8(c), (d), and (e). 

If one were a party to the proceeding, as was Julian, in which the Ciklin law firm was 

awarded fees, then one was under an obligation to assert claims of malpractice and breach of 

fiduciary duty in opposition to the award of such fees.  By way of an analogy, according to well-

established bankruptcy law, when an application that approves an award of attorneys' fees becomes 

a final, non-appealable order, as a matter of law, any parties who could have objected to the 

application on grounds of malpractice, negligence, breach of fiduciary duty or malfeasance of any 

kind on the part of the lawyers, are precluded from doing so because of the doctrine of res judicata.  

Legal malpractice and a breach of fiduciary duty are obviously grounds that could and should be 

considered by a court in awarding attorneys' fees and, if those grounds are not asserted by parties 

to the proceeding in opposition to the award, then those parties are barred by the doctrine of res 

judicata from attempting to re-litigate the fee award by asserting wrongs on the part of the 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 416   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/25/2017   Page 6 of 19



 

 

 
7 

attorneys.  Capitol Hill Grp. v. Pillsbury, Winthrop, Shaw, Pittman, LLC, 569 F.3d 485, 493 (D.C. 

Cir. 2009)(approving of the district court and bankruptcy court determinations that Capitol 

Hill "could have pursued claims against Shaw Pittman regarding the adequacy of its representation 

... at the bankruptcy fee hearings but that it failed to do so and would therefore be barred from later 

asserting claims based on Shaw Pittman's representation by the doctrine of res judicata"); 

Iannochino v. Rokolakis (In re Iannochino), 242 F.3d 36, 47 (1st Cir. 2001) (noting that, during 

the fee application proceedings, "[a] bankruptcy court . . . makes an implied 'finding of quality and 

value' in the professional services provided . . . during the bankruptcy," and affirming summary 

judgment of the malpractice claims on res judicata grounds); Osherow v. Ernst & Young, LLP (In 

re Intelogic Trace, Inc.), 200 F.3d 382, 387-88 (5th Cir. 2000)(affirming summary judgment on 

the malpractice claims, and noting that "an award of fees for professionals . . . employed by a 

bankruptcy estate represents a determination of 'the nature, the extent, and the value of such 

services,' the same services that were at issue in the trustee's malpractice complaint.  Because those 

issues could have been raised at the fee petition proceedings, they were barred by res judicata, 

which "bars claims that should have been litigated in a previous proceeding"). 

As the bankruptcy court cases indicate, when a guardianship court judge enters an order 

regarding the amount of attorneys' fees to be paid to lawyers providing service to the guardianship, 

that award of fees must necessarily include an implied "finding of quality and value" in the 

professional services provided during the course of the guardianship.  There could be no doubt 

that any interested party in the guardianship proceedings could have objected to the amount of the 

fees awarded and such objection could have been based upon an alleged legal malpractice or 

breach of fiduciary duty.  Julian did not object, although he had every right to do so, and he is 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 416   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/25/2017   Page 7 of 19



 

 

 
8 

bound by the doctrine of res judicata through the court's explicit finding that the conduct of the 

Ciklin law firm was in the best interest of the Ward.  Thus, both the settlements and the attorneys' 

fees were approved by the guardianship court, barring by res judicata Plaintiff's claims. 

D. The Same Issues Were Litigated in the Guardianship Proceedings Leading to 
the Cited Court Orders as Were Litigated in This Legal Malpractice Case. 

 
There is no dispute that Plaintiff, through his attorney, Mr. Denman, raised the same issues 

in opposition to the guardianship court orders as he raised in this malpractice action.  For example, 

as to the failure to obtain MAI appraisals, upon which the jury predicated its malpractice verdict, 

Mr. Denman, Plaintiff's attorney (then and now), where he unsuccessfully argued on Julian's behalf 

that the New York Settlement Agreement should not be approved and made an order of the court, 

made the following arguments to the guardianship court: 

MR. DENMAN: He [Julian] is a proper party because all this comes back to is the 
amount of attorney's fees that are being paid and the amount of payoffs being made 
between what we call the collusion of parties in order to have this go away. Rogers 
[the first guardian] is staying in power so he can payoff of his friends, to the 
expense of Julian. He's made it clear he could care less what happens to Julian. He 
wants to take care of all these expenses. What we seek to prove is that while maybe 
a benefit to the ward out of this, we still haven't received the appropriate -- we've 
been requesting -- what are the valuations? How is the settlement made? Look at 
the amount of attorney's fees. 

 
DE 395 (CLO Def Ex 35/11:15–12:3) (emphasis added). 
 

MR. DENMAN: … within -- by August 30. So we object to certain aspects of it 
because if this were a commercial closing, we would have done -- any attorney 
would do a considerable amount of due diligence to understand the valuation. 

 
DE 395 (CLO Def Ex 35/62:19–23) (emphasis added). 
 

MR. DENMAN: Your Honor, what all comes into play here is the fact that -- the 
next thing is, there is four properties. There has been no appraisals that we've seen 
on the four properties. We just got last week -- there was a letter from a realtor as 
to her opinion on the two New York properties. I still don't have anything on 
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London. Rogers has never gone over there. He's never sent anything over there as 
to full appraisal. We don't have the background on that. We still don't even have an 
appraisal on 330. So we're doing an exchange of all these properties, supposedly in 
settlement of -- I'm not exactly sure which claim is being settled here, but then what 
we – 

 
DE 395 (CLO Def Ex 35/68:23-69:12) (emphasis added). 
 

MR. DENMAN: I think we should at least have an appraisal, not just one realtor's 
opinion, but an appraisal. 
 
THE COURT: I don't care where that – first of all, this doesn't even have a value. 

 
DE 395 (CLO Def Ex 35/120:11-15) (emphasis added). 
 

Thus, in the guardianship proceedings, Plaintiff litigated and lost his objection that there 

were no MAI appraisals.  He is not permitted a second bite at the apple.  Carson v. Gibson, 638 

So. 2d 79, 81 (Fla. 2d DCA 1994) ("the estoppel in this case arises from the fact that Carson chose 

to litigate as affirmative defenses the same issues that he now wishes to litigate as a malpractice 

cause of action. Estoppel by judgment or collateral estoppel applies when the identical parties wish 

to relitigate issues that were actually litigated as necessary and material issues in a prior action.")7. 

E. There Is Privity Between Julian as Personal Representative of the Estate of 
Oliver Wilson Bivins and Julian as the Nominated Personal Representative 
and the Sole Beneficiary of the Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins. 

 
This Court denied the Ciklin law firm's motion for summary judgment on the grounds of 

res judicata "for the simple reason that the Defendants' attorneys were not parties or in privity with 

                                                 
7   This case holds that while the malpractice claim was not barred by res judicata because the 
parties were not identical in the charging lien dispute, the later malpractice claim would be barred 
by collateral estoppel. That is so because the same issues that were presented in opposition to the 
attorney's charging lien were alleged to be the basis of the later legal malpractice case. 
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any party before the guardianship court" (DE 296, p. 6).  The Court cited Keramati v. Schackow, 

553 So. 2d 741 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989).8  

In Keramti, a minor child, Keramati, and his parents sued Dr. Richardson and Monroe 

Memorial Hospital for medical malpractice.  That case was settled.  Then Keramati and his 

parents sued for legal malpractice the lawyers (Schackow and McGalliard) that represented them 

in the medical malpractice case.  The court held that the doctrine of res judicata could not applied 

because "the defendants in the prior suit were Dr. Richardson and the hospital.  In this case, the 

defendants are Schackow and McGalliard." 

That is a far cry from the case at hand in which Julian during the guardianship proceedings 

was (1) the nominated personal representative of his father's estate; (2) the sole beneficiary of the 

estate; (3) an "interested party" and "next of kin" who actively participated in the guardianship 

proceedings; and (4) one who either approved or objected to the settlements at issue.  Now Julian 

as personal representative of his father's estate brings this malpractice action against Defendants, 

claiming that during the guardianship proceedings the estate was not in privity with the guardian's 

attorneys.  Julian is wrong.  As discussed below, Defendants were either parties before the 

guardianship court or in privity with a party before the guardianship court or both. 

1. Defendants as parties. 

 When examining the attorneys' fees orders in section II.B. above, it is apparent that the 

                                                 
8   The court also observed that the Keramati court held that in the context of a settlement 
agreement "the adequacy of the amount settled for was not litigated."  Id. at 744.  That was true 
in Keramati because that case did not involve a court-approved settlement.  However, once and 
if a settlement becomes approved by a court, it becomes a final order subject to the doctrine of res 
judicata as discussed in section II(B) above. 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 416   Entered on FLSD Docket 08/25/2017   Page 10 of 19



 

 

 
11 

Defendants were some of the moving parties pursuant to written petitions under Florida Statues 

744.108 in seeking those orders.  Defendants asked the court to authorize them to be paid fees for 

the legal services they rendered to the guardian.  The court awarded the requested fees.  Thus, 

even if limited to those proceedings alone, which encompass all of Plaintiff's alleged wrongful acts 

of the Defendants, Defendants were "parties … before the guardianship court."  Further, under 

the Florida Guardianship Law (chapter 744) attorneys for a guardian play an essential role in the 

entire guardianship administration process and as this very case demonstrates are effectively 

parties before the guardianship court. Defendants in privity with a party to the guardianship.  

It is irrefutable that Defendants were in privity with the professional guardians for the 

Ward. (Orders [DE 132, 167, and 296]) It is also clear that those same guardians were parties to 

the guardianship. Thus, Defendants were in privity with a party to the guardianship. 

F. Florida Law is Well Established That, By Any Test, Julian, as a Nominated 
Personal Representative, the Sole Beneficiary of the Estate, the Next of Kin, 
and an Interested Person in the Guardianship Proceedings is in Privity in This 
Legal Malpractice Case, Where He is the Personal Representative of the 
Ward's Estate and the Plaintiff. 

 
The law on this issue is as follows: 
 
As to the identity of the persons and parties to the action, in the first case, they sued 
individually, and in this case they sued in their capacity as trustees.  'The term 
'parties' has frequently been given a much broader coverage than merely embracing 
parties to the record of an action [.]'  Seaboard Coast Line R.R. Co. v. Indus. 
Contracting Co., 260 So. 2d 860, 863 (Fla. 4th DCA 1972).  As the supreme court 
explained later, '[f]or one to be in privity with one who is a party to a lawsuit or for 
one to have been virtually represented by one who is party to a lawsuit, one must 
have an interest in the action such that she will be bound by the final judgment as 
if she were a party.'  Stogniew v. McQueen, 656 So. 2d 917, 920 (Fla.1995) (citing 
Se. Fid. Ins. Co. v. Rice, 515 So. 2d 240 (Fla. 4th DCA 1987)).  The children, as 
trustees, fit within that broad definition.  While the children also added their 
father's corporation as a defendant because it was an asset of the void trust, it too 
can be considered a party for res judicata purposes. 
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Jasser v. Saadeh, 103 So. 3d 982, 985 (Fla. 4th DCA 2012).  The concept of privity is dispositive 

here: 

'privity' refers to a cluster of relationships ... under which the preclusive effects of 
a judgment extend beyond a party to the original action and apply to persons having 
specified relationships to that party....'  Restatement (Second) of Judgments: ch. 1, 
Scope.  'One party may be said to be a privy of another whenever there is a mutual 
or successive relationship to the same right.'  Osburn v. Stickel, 187 So. 2d 89, 
91B92 (Fla. 3d DCA 1966); see also EEOC v. Pemco Aeroplex, Inc., 383 F.3d 1280, 
1286 (11th Cir.2004) (''Privity' is a flexible legal term, comprising several different 
types of relationships and generally applying when a person, although not a party, 
has his interests adequately represented by someone with the same interests who is 
a party.').  The existence of a virtual representation relationship is based on 'closely 
aligned' interests of a party and a person who is not a formal party.  Stogniew, 656 
So. 2d at 920 (quoting AerojetBGen. Corp. v. Askew, 511 F.2d 710, 719 (5th 
Cir.1975)); see also Pemco, 383 F.3d at 1287 (setting forth "four factors [used] in 
determining whether there is virtual representation: whether there was 'participation 
in the first litigation, apparent consent to be bound, apparent tactical maneuvering, 
[and] close relationships between the parties and nonparties.'' 

 
Cook v. State, 921 So. 2d 631, 635 (Fla. 2d DCA 2005). 

It is well settled that even though a party in a subsequent suit was not a named party 
in a prior suit, such party is bound by the prior judgment if he participated in the 
first proceeding or was represented by a party to that proceeding.  In McGregor v. 
Provident Trust Co. of Philadelphia, 1935, 119 Fla. 718, 162 So. 323, our Supreme 
Court stated: 

 
'There can be no question but that, in order for a person or 
corporation to be brought within the estoppel of the rule of 
res adjudicata, it is not necessary for him to have been a 
formal record party.  His conduct may have been such as to 
give him the status of a party in actuality, and in such event 
the courts will not withhold from him the application of the 
rule because of the technical objection that he was not a party 
on the record.  See . . . Plumb v. Crane, 123 U.S. 560, 8 
S.Ct. 216, 31 L.Ed. 268 . . ..' 
 

Kline v. Heyman, 309 So. 2d 242, 244-45 (Fla. 2d DCA 1975). 
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In its broadest sense, privity is defined as "mutual or successive relationships to the 
same right of property, or such an identification of interest of one person with 
another as to represent the same legal right."  Black's Law Dictionary 1079 (5th 
ed. 1979).  One not a party to a suit is in privity with one who is where his interest 
in the action was such that he will be bound by the final judgment as if he were a 
party.  Id. 

 
Southeastern Fidelity Ins. Co. v. Rice, 515 So. 2d 240 (1987)(going on to discuss collateral 
estoppel). 
 

A couple of additional points should be made.   

First, Plaintiff's case for malpractice and breach of fiduciary duty is based on finding privity 

between the Ward and the Ciklin law firm through the concept of "intended third-party 

beneficiary."  Before Saadeh v. Connors, 166 So. 3d 959 (Fla. 4th DCA 2015), the lack of privity 

between Julian Bivins and the Ciklin law firm would have foreclosed this action.  However, now 

that there is a duty of care owed by the attorney for the guardian to the Ward, it must follow that 

Defendants were in privity with the Ward, i.e., the central party to the entire guardianship, and that 

privity carries over to the Ward's estate, thereby barring Plaintiff's claims.  The privity declared 

by the Saadeh court must flow both ways.  If the Ward is in privity with Defendants, Defendants 

must be in privity with the Ward's estate. 

Further, defendant guardian Kelly was granted summary judgment in this case.  He 

undisputedly had a fiduciary duty to the Ward.  If the defendant guardian, who owed a direct duty 

to the Ward, was entitled to summary judgment, then likewise the guardian's lawyers, who only 

owed an indirect third-party beneficiary duty to the Ward, must be protected by the very same 

doctrines of collateral estoppel and res judicata that protected the guardian. 
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Finally, during the trial, the Court allowed statements by the now deceased Ward, to be 

admitted into evidence over hearsay objection under the business record exception finding that the 

Ward was a necessary part of the guardianship entity.  (T. 740-41) If the deceased Ward is a 

necessary component of the guardianship entity, then the attorneys for the guardianship, i.e. 

Defendants, are likewise a necessary component of the guardianship entity.  

Specifically, there are four essential components to the guardianship: (1) the Court; (2) the 

ward; (3) the court-appointed guardian; and (4) the guardian's required attorney.  There are other 

non-essential persons involved in a guardianship, but a guardianship cannot exist without counsel 

for the guardian.  "Every guardian […] shall be represented by an attorney admitted to practice in 

Florida."  See Fla. Prob. R. 5.030(a).  Thus, there is privity between the guardian's attorneys and 

the guardianship as they are bound by the guardianship court's decisions effecting the guardian.  

Jasser v. Saadeh, 103 So. 3d 982, 985 (Fla. 4th DCA 2012) ("The term 'parties' has frequently 

been given a much broader coverage than merely embracing parties to the record of an action [.]"   

As the Supreme Court explained, "[f]or one to be in privity with one who is a party to a 

lawsuit or for one to have been virtually represented by one who is party to a lawsuit, one must 

have an interest in the action such that she will be bound by the final judgment as if she were a 

party.")(quoting Seaboard Coast Line R.R. Co. v. Indus. Contracting Co., 260 So. 2d 860, 863 

(Fla. 4th DCA 1972)).  Here there is no doubt that the estate is bound to the orders, even though 

the estate was not a named party in the guardianship proceedings. 

III. RELEASE. 

Plaintiff has released all of his claims in this case.  The following documents and evidence 

were admitted into evidence during the trial, which establish the defense of release.  First, on 
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September 17, 2013, the New York Settlement Agreement was entered into and ordered by the 

Court (Pl. Ex. 78).  Second, in the afternoon of September 19, 2014, the Court heard and entered 

onto the record the terms of the Global Settlement that included mutual releases (CLO Def. Ex. 8, 

p. 39 lines 15-20).  Third, Oliver Bivins, Sr. died on March 2, 2015 (Pl. Ex. 112).  Fourth, after 

the death of his father, Julian, the nominated executor of Oliver, Sr.'s will (Pl. Ex. 45), moved to 

compel entry of the Order on Global Settlement on March 16, 2015 (CLO Def. Ex. 129).  Fifth, 

on March 19, 2015 the Court entered the Order on Global Settlement (Pl. Ex. 113).  Sixth, before 

trial, the parties stipulated as follows: "The terms of the Global Settlement Agreement entered into 

between the Guardian, its attorneys, and Julian Bivins on September 19, 2014 was read into the 

court record to document the settlement on September 19, 2014" (DE 318, ' 5, ¶ 13) (emphasis 

added).  Seventh, at trial, Stephen Kelly, the Successor Guardian, testified that the mutual release 

was part of a "total global settlement" that released "myself, Julian [and] the attorneys" (T. 5:289).  

Under Florida Statue section 733.601, the actions of Julian after the death of his father bind 

the estate.  As this Court already has ruled, relation back under section 733.601 applies after the 

death of the testator, Oliver, Sr. (DE 296, p. 8).  After the death of his father, Julian moved to 

compel entry of an order approving the Global Settlement.  That Order was entered March 19, 

2015.  The release approved by that Order includes all of the issues raised as facts to be resolved 

by the jury outlined in the Pretrial Stipulation because each of those issues predate March 16, 2015 

(DE 318, §6).  Further, the release includes all of the issues stemming from the New York 

Settlement Agreement, which was the focus of the trial, because the New York Settlement was 

approved more than a year before the Global Settlement was entered on March 19, 2015 and 17 

days after the Ward's death.  Accordingly, Plaintiff's claims all fail because the Estate by operation 
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of section 733.601 released the Guardians and their attorneys from any claims arising out of the 

guardianship prior to the date of the Order on Global Settlement, March 19, 2015. 

The releases at issue are part of court-approved settlements.  As such, they are favored by 

the courts and should be enforced when possible.  Blunt v. Tripp Scott, P.A., 962 So. 2d 987, 989 

(Fla 4th DCA 2007; Mazzoni Farms, Inc. v. E.I. DuPont De Nemours and Co., 761 So. 2d 306, 

314 (Fla. 2000)("Generally, Florida courts enforce general releases to further the policy of 

encouraging settlements."); Hanson v. Maxfield, 23 So. 3d 736, 739 (Fla. 1st DCA 

2009)("Settlements are highly favored and will be enforced whenever possible."); Hernandez v. 

Gil, 958 So. 2d 390, 391 (Fla. 3d DCA 2007)("As reiterated in numerous court decisions, '[t]he 

public policy of the State of Florida ... highly favors settlement agreement among parties and will 

seek to enforce them whenever possible.'"). 

IV. CONCLUSION. 

In this case, both the application of the doctrines of collateral estoppel/res judicata and the 

doctrine of release turn on the issue of privity.  Over the course of time and during the trial the 

record has developed to a point where it is clear that Julian, as next of kin, an interested party, the 

sole beneficiary, and the nominated personal representative of the Ward is in privity with Julian as 

personal representative of the Ward's estate, its sole beneficiary, and the Defendants in this action. 

In fact, Julian as Plaintiff stipulated in the Pretrial Stipulation that the attorneys were parties to the 

Global Settlement Agreement which Julian moved to compel entry of after his father's (the Ward's) 

death.   

The doctrine of privity is not confined to "merely embracing parties to the record."  

Instead, one must have an interest in the action such that he will be bound by the final judgment.  
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Julian, as the nominated representative of the estate and its sole beneficiary is bound to the final 

orders of the guardianship court, just as the estate is bound to those orders. 

Further, there is a mutual or successive relationship to the same right between Julian as the 

nominated personal representative and the sole beneficiary and Julian as the appointed personal 

representative, the sole beneficiary, and the Plaintiff in this action.  Julian as the sole beneficiary, 

nominated personal representative, and next of kin adequately represented himself in the 

guardianship proceedings and had the same interest as he does now that he is the actual personal 

representative of the estate and its sole beneficiary.  Julian's interests are closely aligned in the 

guardianship proceedings and this malpractice action. 

Accordingly, final judgment should be entered in favor of Defendants on their affirmative 

defenses of collateral estoppel/res judicata and release. 

 
Dated: August 25, 2017 Respectfully submitted, 
 

s/ L. Louis Mrachek                              
L. Louis Mrachek (Florida Bar No. 182880) 
lmrachek@mrachek-law.com 
mchandler@mrachek-law.com 
Alan B. Rose (Florida Bar No. 961825) 
arose@mrachek-law.com 
Mrachek, Fitzgerald, Rose, Konopka,  
Thomas & Weiss, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 
Telephone:(561) 655-2250| Fax: (561) 655-5537 
Attorneys for Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell 
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Rachel Studley, Esquire (0578088) 
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Brandon J. Hechtman, Esquire (88652) 
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Phone: (561) 689-3800 
Fax: (561) 689-9206 
Attorneys for Ashley N. Crispin, Brian M. 
O'Connell, and Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA  

WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION 
 

CASE NO.: 15-81298-CV-MARRA-MATTHEWMAN 
                                                   
 
JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative   
of the ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 
 Plaintiff,        
 
vs. 
 
CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR.,  
as former guardian, STEPHEN M. KELLY, 
as successor guardian, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL,  
ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ & 
O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, 
BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP 
f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP, 
and LAW OFFICES OF KEITH B. STEIN, PLLC,  
n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, 
 
 Defendants. 
 
     / 
 

PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL AS TO STEIN DEFENDANTS 
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Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of Oliver 

Wilson Bivins (“the Estate”), by and through undersigned counsel, and pursuant to Federal Rule 

of Civil Procedure 59, hereby files its Motion for New Trial as to only Keith Stein, Beys Liston 

Mobargha & Berland, LLP f/k/a Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP, and Law Office of Keith 

B. Stein, PLLC n/k/a Stein Law, PLLC (collectively, the “Stein Defendants”) and in support 

thereof provides the following Memorandum of Law. 

MEMORANDUM OF LAW 

I. Legal Standard 

Rule 59, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, provides that “[t]he court may, on motion, 

grant a new trial on all or some of the issues ... after a jury trial, for any reason for which a new 

trial has heretofore been granted in an action at law in federal court.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 59(a). “The 

motion for a new trial ... may raise questions of law arising out of alleged substantial errors in 

admission or rejection of evidence or instructions to the jury.” Montgomery Ward & Co. v. 

Duncan, 311 U.S. 243, 251 (1940). As far as the motion for a new trial, the trial judge can 

grant a new trial if he believes the verdict is contrary to the weight of the evidence.  Id.  “A judge 

should grant a motion for a new trial when ‘the verdict is against the clear weight of the evidence 

or will result in a miscarriage of justice, even though there may be substantial evidence which 

would prevent the direction of a verdict.’” Lipphardt v. Durango Steakhouse of Brandon, Inc., 

267 F.3d 1183, 1186 (11th Cir. 2001) (quoting Hewitt v. B.F. Goodrich Co., 732 F.2d 1554, 

1556 (11th Cir. 1984)). The decision as to whether to grant a new trial is committed to the 

discretion of the trial judge. Lambert v. Fulton County. Ga., 253 F.3d 588, 595 (11th Cir. 2001). 

Prior to assessing the evidence, we must consider the standard of harmless error to be 

applied in a civil case. In Conway v. Chemical Leaman Tank Lines, 525 F.2d 927, 929 n. 3 (5th 

Cir.1976), the Fifth Circuit ruled that in civil cases courts should apply the same standard as 

announced in Kotteakos v. United States, 328 U.S. 750, 66 S.Ct. 1239, 90 L.Ed. 1557 (1946), a 

criminal case. In that case, the Supreme Court wrote that if a court 

is sure that the error did not influence the jury, or had but very slight effect, the 
verdict and the judgment should stand, except perhaps where the departure is 
from a constitutional norm or a specific command of Congress.... But if one 
cannot say, with fair assurance, after pondering all that happened without 
stripping the erroneous action from the whole, that the judgment was not 
substantially swayed by the error, it is impossible to conclude that substantial 
rights were not affected. [Emphasis added]. 
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 Id. at 764–65, 66 S.Ct. at 1248 (footnote omitted) (citation omitted); See e.g., Aetna Cas. & Sur. 

Co. v. Gosdin, 803 F.2d 1153, 1160 (11th Cir. 1986).  To answer the foregoing question, the 

Eleventh Circuit looks to a number of factors, including the number of errors, the closeness of 

the factual disputes (i.e., the strength of the evidence on the issues affected by the error), and the 

prejudicial effect of the evidence at issue, whether counsel intentionally elicited the evidence, 

whether counsel focused on the evidence during the trial, and whether any cautionary or limiting 

instructions were given.  Gosdin, 803 F.2d at 1160; Nettles v. Electroluz Motor AB, 784 F.2d 

1574, 1581 (11th Cir. 1986); U.S. Steel, LLC v. Tieco, Inc. 261 F.3d 1275, 1288 (11th Cir. 

2001) (improper admission of state judicial opinion required a new trial where opinion was used 

by one of the parties “throughout the trial” to help establish disputed facts and counsel told the 

jury in closing argument “to use the opinion to make credibility determinations”). 

II. Striking the Testimony of Irwin Gilbert Based on Lack of Qualification Constitutes 
an Abuse of Discretion. 
 

A. The Court’s July 26, 2017 Order. 

On July 26, 2017, this Court entered an order striking the testimony of the Estate’s 

expert, Irwin Gilbert (hereinafter “Gilbert”).  Specifically, the Order provided: 

The Court finds that Mr. Gilbert does not have the qualifications by way of 
knowledge, education, training or experience to be able to provide testimony as an 
expert witness relative to the appropriate standard of care to which an attorney 
representing a professional guardian of an incapacitated ward would be required 
to adhere. [DE 374]. 
 
The Estate contends that the exclusion of Gilbert’s testimony was made in error.  

Specifically, the Order is overbroad in its exclusion of Gilbert’s testimony because the Order 

only addresses Gilbert’s qualification to opine on the issue of the appropriate professional 

standard of care.  The Order, however, is silent as to Gilbert’s qualification to opine on the issue 

of fiduciary duty, which the Estate established during the Daubert hearing.  Accordingly, Gilbert 

should have been, at the very least, permitted to testify on the issue of fiduciary duty. 

Additionally, the Estate urges the Court for entry of an Order granting a new trial as to its 

finding that Gilbert did not possess the requisite qualification to opine on the appropriate 

standard of care concerning the conduct of the Defendants.  The Estate contends that the Order 
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applied an overly-narrow standard to the qualifications required of an expert to be permitted to 

testify in the 11th Circuit.   

B. Legal Authority Concerning Expert Qualification. 

The qualification standard for expert testimony is “not stringent,” and “so long as the 

expert is minimally qualified, objections to the level of the expert’s expertise [go] to credibility 

and weight, not admissibility.”  Banta Properties, Inc. v. Arch Specialty Ins. Co., 2011 WL 

7118542 (S.D. Fla. Dec. 21, 2011) (quoting Hendrix v. Evenflo Co., 225 F.R.D. 568, 585 (N.D. 

Fla. 2009)).  “An expert is not necessarily unqualified simply because [his] experience does not 

precisely match the matter at hand,” so long as the expert is “minimally qualified…” Kirksey v. 

Schindler Elevator Corp., 101 Fed. R. Evid Serv. 600, 2016 WL 5213928, at *6 (S.D. Ala. 

2016). Where an expert does have congruent experience, “[n]othing in this amendment is 

intended to suggest that experience alone ... may not provide a sufficient foundation for expert 

testimony.” Fed. R. Evid. 702 Advisory Committee's note (2000 amends). 

Determining whether a witness is qualified to testify as an expert “requires the trial court 

to examine the credentials of the proposed expert in light of the subject matter of the proposed 

testimony.” Jack v. Glaxo Wellcome, Inc., 239 F.Supp.2d 1308, 1314–16 (N.D.Ga.2002). 

Rushing v. Kansas City S. Ry. Co., 185 F.3d 496, 507 n. 10 (5th Cir.1999); see also Martinez v. 

Altec Indus., Inc., 2005 WL 1862677, *3 (M.D. Fla. 2005) (quoting Rushing, 185 F.3d at 507 

(“As long as some reasonable indication of qualifications is adduced, ... qualifications become an 

issue for the trier of fact rather than for the court in its gate-keeping capacity.”), superseded by 

rule on other grounds as recognized in Mathis v. Exxon Corp., 302 F.3d 448, 459 n. 16 (5th 

Cir.2002)); Falic v. Legg Mason Wood Walker, Inc., 03-80377-CIV, 2005 WL 5955704, at *1 

(S.D. Fla. Jan. 10, 2005), *8 (S.D. Fla. Jan. 6, 2005) (Court does not exclude expert testimony 

merely because his testimony may be based primarily on his professional experience as a 

litigator.); Anderson v. State, ____ So. 3d ____, 2017 WL 930924 (Fla. March 9, 2017) (expert 

not required to be “certified” in a particular subspecialty in order to offer expert testimony.); 

Valentin v. New York City, No. 94 CV 391 (CLP), 1997 WL 33323099, at *25 (E.D.N.Y. Sept. 9, 

1997) (“The fact that a proposed expert may not have the exact qualifications to fit the case does 

not mean the expert's testimony is automatically inadmissible.”). 

“Courts should resolve doubts regarding the usefulness of an expert's testimony in favor 

of admissibility.” Lord v. Nissan Motor Co., 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 25409, at *13, No. 03-3218 
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(D.Minn. Dec. 13, 2004) (citing Clark v. Hendrick, 150 F.3d 912, 915 (8th Cir. 1998)). “In 

borderline questions, it is more appropriate for a judge to admit the evidence than to exclude it 

from the fact finder because ‘[v]igorous cross-examination, presentation of contrary evidence, 

and careful instruction on the burden of proof are the traditional and appropriate means of 

attacking shaky but admissible evidence.’” Tolliver v. Naor, 2001 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 18267, at 

*7, No. 99-0586 (E.D. La. Nov. 1, 2001) (quoting Daubert v. Merrell Dow Pharm., Inc., 509 

U.S. at 596 (1993)).  

C. The Estate Established Irwin Gilbert’s Qualification to Provide Expert Testimony on the 
Issues of Fiduciary Duty and Professional Negligence. 
 
Gilbert is a pre-eminent attorney with over 35 years of experience with vast experience in 

legal malpractice and fiduciary duty cases, who published on the issue of fiduciary duties and 

who was instrumental in the formulation of the legal precedent establishing the legal duties in the 

case at hand. (July 25, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. VI, [DE 390 at 263:18-25]).  During the 

Court’s Daubert hearing, the Estate elicited the following testimony from Gilbert establishing his 

qualification to opine on the issues of fiduciary duty and professional malpractice: 

a. Perhaps not coincidentally, the issue of whether or not an attorney for a guardian 
actually owes that duty to the ward was a matter that I litigated and that involves the 
Saadeh cases, which I believe have been cited in your proceedings, and, in fact, made 
new law in the Fourth District Court of Appeals, making it clear that, in fact, an 
attorney... owes the same duty to the ward. It's not merely a duty of care, but there's a 
duty of loyalty, and a lawyer has to apply skill and must act in the best interest of the 
ward. (Id. at 264:9-17.) 

b. Well, I suppose there are different ways to go about practicing law. The way I go 
about practicing law involves mastering a subject. And so in some law firms, an 
attorney may have 30 or 40 or 50 files. I believe I have eight, perhaps 10 active cases 
at one time, and it's sometimes even fewer than those […] 

  
I've litigated numerous will contest cases in Florida and in New York, cases that 
involve, in Florida what we refer to as the Carpenter factors. I've litigated to establish 
guardianships over objection. That would be in the Annie Owens White guardianship. 
I've represented the guardianship in that case for more than five years. I represent the 
professional guardian in the McFarlane guardianship, and have done so, I think, for 
more than four years. (Id. at 265:4-25.) 
 

c. We were initially engaged by Mr. Saadeh because he was unhappy with his court-
appointed lawyer in an involuntary guardianship proceeding, and he was induced to 
sign what was labeled as a revocable trust, which, in fact, was an irrevocable trust, 
because it wasn't revocable by him. We had to litigate against opposition to substitute 
for his court-appointed lawyer. We had to litigate to reinstitute the guardianship 
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proceedings, which technically had been concluded with a purported settlement order. 
We had to convince the Court to retreat from that order [...] 
 
We were successful in getting summary judgment. Then had to litigate to get the 
property that had been taken from the ward back to him and then discovered that a 
substantial -- in the six figures -- legal fees were taken out of the trust to pay the 
lawyers that were fighting to maintain the trust. We had to litigate to recover those 
attorney's fees. In so doing, we had to master the subject matter, again, of what is for 
the benefit of the ward and for the benefit of the ward's guardianship estate […] 
 
We had to master that subject in order to recover Mr. Saadeh's fees. And then these 
matters were all brought on appeal to the Fourth DCA. And, again, we had to drill 
even deeper into the subject matter and into the controlling law in order to see the 
trial judge's orders sustained. (Id. at 267:2-268:17.) 
 

d. Q. Now, in -- in these efforts by you to put forth the arguments of your client all the 
way to the Fourth District Court of Appeals, with whom did the Fourth District Court 
of Appeals agree; with you, or with the probate estate specialist? 
 
A. Well, in this instance, they adopted the legal arguments that we advanced in our 
briefs in both appeals. (Id. at 269:2-8.) 

 
e. Q. Would you explain to the Court the Saadeh case that set forth the duty of lawyers 

in terms of whether they must act in the best interest of the ward, and it's in privity 
with the ward. Would you explain that ruling. 
 
A. Well, that was Saadeh versus Connors. In that case, we filed a suit for damages 
against the attorneys that we say were responsible for causing Mr. Saadeh to incur 
significant legal fees attempting to end the guardianship and have the trust declared 
void ab initio, as well as to recover his property. The initial defendant, Connors, was 
the lawyer hired to draft the trust. This trust, as I said before, was labeled a revocable 
trust but was, in fact, irrevocable. We also sued the guardian, whose name was 
Deborah Barfield, and we sued the guardian's attorney, whose name was Collette 
Meyer. Ms. Meyer made a motion for summary judgment, arguing the absence of a 
duty to the ward, arguing that the ward was required to engage his own counsel under 
the guardianship statute, had to be represented independently, and arguing that, in 
fact, they were adverse toward one another, and so no duty could be owed. But we 
argued to the Court that since a guardian's primary duty was to benefit the ward and 
that the guardian owed a fiduciary duty to the ward, the attorney for the guardian 
likewise owed the same duties to the ward. In their decision, the Fourth DCA pointed 
out that the ward might, in fact, be the primary intended beneficiary of the services of 
the attorney and held that that was sufficient for privity purposes. And that was the 
first such decision reported in a Florida District Court of Appeals relating to the duty 
owed by a attorney for the guardian of a ward to the ward. (Id. at 269:22-271:3.) 
 

f. Q. Would you tell the Court your involvement in the Annie Owens White case. 
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A. Ms. White suffers from very significant psychiatric problems and was acting in a 
very self-destructive, in fact, endangering her own life when she didn't take her 
medication. She needed a guardian. I was asked by the Legal Aid Society to represent 
Ms. White's sister, Catherine McGrath, and to obtain or to have a petition filed that 
would result in the creation of a guardianship, and I did that. Soon after, an attorney 
appeared seeking to have Ms. White declared restored to capacity, and so we had a 
fully litigated guardianship case with respect to whether or not the guardianship 
would be maintained. (Id. at 271:4-17.) 
 

g. Q. And how long have you been attorney for Catherine McGrath as guardian? 
 
A. I believe it's more than five years. I continue to represent the guardian. I assist the 
guardian in the preparation of the annual plan. In this case, I assist the guardian in the 
preparation of her annual report. Ms. White's sister, Catherine McGrath, is a 
wonderful lady, devoted to her sister, but I don't believe she was able to continue 
school past the seventh grade, so she needs some assistance, and we assist her every 
year. We routinely appear in the guardianship court for authorization for 
disbursements on her behalf. And, likewise, in the McFarlane case, I've been involved 
in that case more than four years and routinely appear in that Court in various 
petitions for authorization for the guardian. (Id. at 271:18-272:8.) 
 

h. Q. Are you currently litigating a case Haas versus Nacenyager (phonetic)?[…] 
 
A. This is one of the current legal malpractice cases that we're actively litigating. 
And, of course, at issue in the case is the attorney's duty to a client and whether it was 
breached. 
 
Q. Have you served on any Florida Bar grievance committees for any length of time? 

A. I served a full term on the 15th District grievance committee and served one year 
as chair. I also have served on I think a total now of eight or nine years on the Florida 
Client Security Fund and have been co-chair and then chair of that committee. That 
committee deals with attorney dishonesty and an attorney's failure to render valuable 
service and reimburses clients that are the victim of dishonest lawyers.  
 
Q. Have you litigated breach of fiduciary duty cases for both plaintiffs and 
defendants?  
 
A. I have, and that would be throughout the time I'm practicing law. (Id. at 273:15-
274:11.) 
 

i. Q. For the reasons you have just explained to the Court based upon your involvement 
as an attorney in the various matters we've discussed, is that why -- do you -- is that 
why you feel your practice does, indeed, involve complex probate and guardian 
litigation in both Florida and New York? 
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A. Yes. (Id. at 274:25-275:5.) 
 

j. I have been involved in numerous guardianship cases, disputed will cases, disputed 
trust cases over the course of those 35 years. I did not commit to memory the names 
of all of the cases, nor did I go back and try to make a search of files with respect to 
the identity of those cases. (Id. at 286:7-11.) 
 

k. A. I have litigated countless lawsuits involving New York real estate transactions, the 
title to property, the partition of property, and, in fact, have litigated whether or not a 
divisible marital interest remained in New York property.  
 

l. Q Okay. But observer is not participants, and you were not the individual that was 
engaged in the refinancing of it, although you may have observed and looked into it, 
correct? Is that a fair statement? 
 
A. Well, I had to make sure that the terms of the settlement were met and that the 
property would be free and clear of liens or any residual claim of interest by the other 
party. But other than that, I -- I don't do real estate transactions, but as a trial lawyer I 
sometimes have to clean up the mess that's created from one. (Id. at 308:10-19.) 
 

Defendants challenged Gilbert’s qualification contending that he was not qualified to 

render an expert opinion in the matter because Gilbert: (1) had not “represented a ward of Oliver 

Wilson Bivins, Sr.’s age with his mental or physical conditions” (Id. at 311:22-312:2); (2) had 

not advised a guardian as to how to balance the a ward’s property interests in relation to the 

interests of their physical well-being (Id.); had not “finished a guardianship” (Id. at 312:21-25); 

that he was not familiar with the relevant standards of care in the community (no evidence was 

adduced during the Daubert hearing in support of this proposition) (Id. at 312-3-12); and that he 

was not a New York real estate attorney. 

Defendants’ position, adopted by the Order excluding his testimony, is not consistent 

with 11th Circuit law on the issue of qualification. Federal law requires merely that the proponent 

of the expert testimony establish the expert as “minimally qualified” as the qualification relates 

to the general subject of the proposed testimony.  Banta Properties, Inc. v. Arch Specialty Ins. 

Co., 2011 WL 7118542 (S.D. Fla. Dec. 21, 2011).  Defendants were successful in narrowing the 

range of permissible qualifications to an attorney specializing in representing professional 

guardians overseeing guardianships of the person and the property simultaneously involving 

elderly, dementia-diagnosed wards from the beginning of the proceeding through the end of the 
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guardianship proceeding.1  Yet, these various items of specialization do not bear on the issues of 

an attorney’s negligence or an attorney’s fiduciary duty. 

As a result of Defendants’ argument at the Daubert hearing, the Order excluding 

Gilbert’s testimony provides that he was unqualified to opine on the standard of care of “an 

attorney representing a professional guardian of an incapacitated ward.” (emphasis supplied) 

[DE 374].  Though the distinction between professional guardians and non-professional 

guardians was the subject of extensive argument by Defendants’ counsel, at no point has there 

been any indication as to why this is a meaningful difference insofar as qualification to testify is 

concerned regarding the professional and fiduciary duties of the attorney.  An attorney’s duty of 

care, as it relates to services provided on behalf of an incapacitated ward2 does not change 

depending on the qualifications of the guardian overseeing the ward.  In fact, there is no Florida 

or 11th Circuit law standing for the proposition that an attorney’s duty of care to a third party 

beneficiary of any kind is diminished based on the status of the client in privity with the attorney.   

Moreover, the professional negligence at issue in the case relates to inadequate due 

diligence concerning property values and conflicts of interest.  The opinions on these issues 

offered by Gilbert fall squarely within the gambit of his expertise as a lawyer with over 35 years 

of experience in litigating cases, settling those cases, performing due diligence associated with 

settlements, representing various parties with fiduciary obligations and representing third parties 

to whom he owed fiduciary obligations.  An individual with experience predominantly 

representing guardians would not actually have the broad legal knowledge and experience of 

Gilbert who has practiced extensively in the areas of legal malpractice and fiduciary duty, who 

happens to have the added bonus of experience representing guardians.  It appears illogical to 

narrowly construe Daubert to consider an individual with experience only in representing 

guardians to be in a better position to opine on the actual subject matter of the instant lawsuit, 

than one with vast knowledge derived from representing clients and litigation issues involving 
                                                 
1 It is worth noting that the guardianship in question was not concluded because at the time of the 
trial, no guardian had been discharged. 
2 Irwin Gilbert is not only qualified to render an opinion concerning the standard of care and duty 
attorneys and guardians owe to a ward, he was lead counsel in the case that established Florida 
precedent on the issue. Gilbert was directly involved in the litigation and appeals of the Saadeh 
cases which actually define the standard of care owed by attorneys to incompetent wards in the 
State of Florida. Saadeh v. Connors, 166 So. 3d 959, 961 (Fla. 4th DCA 2015).  
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fiduciary matters, malpractice matters (on both sides of the table), real estate transactions, trust 

issues, and other practice areas as established by Gilbert’s testimony.  In short, any purported 

gaps asserted by the Defendants to exist in Gilbert’s experience due to the lack of him being 

essentially recognized as a specialist dedicated solely to representing guardians, does not and 

should not bear on the opinions reached by Gilbert concerning fiduciary duty or professional 

malpractice.  At most, such assertions should be the subject of cross-examination by the 

Defendants to attempt to impeach the weight that the jury gives to Gilbert’s testimony. 

Similarly, Defendants misplace their focus on Gilbert’s lack of publication with a specific 

section regarding “fiduciary duties that guardians owe to wards.” (July 25, 2017 Trial Transcript 

Vol. VI, [DE 390 at 290:2-5].)  First, Defendants’ inquiry does not actually address the fiduciary 

duty at issue in the case – an attorney’s fiduciary duty to an incapacitated ward.  Second, and 

more importantly, Gilbert provided unrebutted testimony that “[t]here are not two different 

worlds of fiduciary duty; there is only one.” Id. at 290:2-13.3 

Accordingly, the Order concerning Gilbert’s qualification to testify on the issues of 

professional negligence and fiduciary duties did not properly apply 11th Circuit law by failing to 

analyze the qualification of the expert in relation to the opinions actually proffered.  The Order 

relies improperly on an analytical scheme put forth by Defendants which demands that the expert 

have experience representing a guardian in a virtually identical situation and with specific 

experience concerning every possible issue in the case. 

D. The Court Did Not Apply the Same Qualification Standard to Defendant Keith Stein’s 
Expert Edward Robbins. 
 
The Court did not exclude the testimony of Defendant, Keith Stein’s (hereinafter “Stein”) 

expert, Edward S. Robbins (hereinafter “Robbins”), permitting his expert to testify unrebutted as 

to professional negligence and breach of fiduciary duty.  Robbins’ testimony concerning Stein’s 

                                                 
3  “A personal representative is a fiduciary who shall observe the standards of care applicable to 
trustees.” § 733.602(1), Fla. Stat. (2014); see also § 733.609(1), Fla. Stat. (2014) (“A personal 
representative's fiduciary duty is the same as the fiduciary duty of a trustee of an express trust, 
and a personal representative is liable to interested persons for damage or loss resulting from the 
breach of this duty.”); State v. Lahurd, 632 So.2d 1101, 1104 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994) (“The 
personal representative, like a trustee, is a fiduciary in handling the estate for the beneficiaries. 
As such, he or she is to observe the standard of care in dealing with the estate as a prudent trustee 
exercises in dealing with property of the trust.”) (citations omitted). A trustee is required to seek 
only reasonable fees for his or her services and the trustee's agents. See §§ 736.0105(1), (2)(b); 
736.0801; 736.0802(1), (7)(b), (8), Fla. Stat. (2014). 
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fiduciary duties and standards of care was permitted at trial despite his testimony on voir dire 

that he had virtually no recent experience in representing guardians, and to the extent he had any 

recent guardianship experience, it was significantly less guardianship experience than Gilbert: 

Q. And you have only done one guardianship case down here but otherwise have 
essentially represented guardianships at closings, meaning you've done the real 
estate as whether it's any entity that you're doing the closing for, right? 
 
A. Correct. And I represented a ward in a matter in Dade County, as well. 
 
Q. You've authored no articles in guardianship matters, correct? 
 
A. I have not. (July 27, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. VIII [DE 392 at 218:24-219-
7].) 
 
The Court’s exclusion of Gilbert’s testimony on qualification grounds and its allowance 

of the less qualified opinion from Robbins resulted in a defense verdict for Stein given the more 

technical nature of his negligence and breaches of fiduciary duty.  This outcome resulted from 

the Estate’s inability to challenge the acts of Stein concerning due diligence and fiduciary duty.   

Further, Stein’s conduct was unfairly bolstered by his unrebutted expert. This ruling constitutes 

an error during the course of the trial adversely affecting the Estate’s “substantial rights.” Ad-

Vantage Tel. Directory Consultants, Inc. v. GTE Directories Corp., 37 F.3d 1460, 1465 (11th 

Cir. 1994).  Based on the Court’s rulings on the parties’ experts, a new trial is warranted.   

III. Abuse of Discretion to Exclude of the 67th Street Deeds from Evidence. 

On July 19, 2017, this Court ruled that the Estate would not be permitted to enter into 

evidence Plaintiff’s Proposed Exhibit 40, which was a composite of certified deeds for the 67th 

Street property reflecting Oliver Wilson Bivins, Sr.’s ownership of the property prior to his 

marriage to Lorna Bivins.  The Court ruled as follows regarding the 67th Street deeds based upon 

a request by Defendants for imposition of a Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 37 Sanction4 for failure to 

timely disclose: 

THE COURT: Okay. But -- all right. Well, whether or not you're going to be able 
to use it as impeachment of their experts' opinions, I'll deal with that later, but I'm 
not going to let you use it in your case in chief. (July 19, 2017 Trial Transcript 
Vol. III [DE 387 at 190:14-17].) 

 

                                                 
4 (Id. at 176:1-5.) 
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At the time of the Court’s ruling and thereafter, Defendants had “opened the door” to the 

introduction of the evidence by attempting to take advantage of its exclusion.  Defendants, 

throughout the course of the trial, relied upon the exclusion of evidence of Oliver Bivins’ 

ownership of the 67th Street property to create a false impression that Oliver Bivins never owned 

the property, which is not permissible in the 11th Circuit.  Further, the Court’s exclusion of the 

67th Street deeds was predicated upon a misapplication of Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 37.  Accordingly, 

a new trial is warranted. 

A. Defendants Were Improperly Permitted to Take Advantage of the Exclusion of the 67th 
Street Deeds from Evidence to Create a False Impression in the Minds of the Jury. 
 
If a party “opens the door” to a particular line of inquiry by making certain statements, 

then the other party may be allowed to offer rebuttal evidence to contradict those statements. See, 

e.g., Wood v. Morbark Industries, Inc., 70 F.3d 1201, 1208 (11th Cir. 1995) (by offering 

testimony that its wood chipper had the safest length chute possible, defendant opened door for 

impeachment such that plaintiff should have been allowed to inquire why defendant modified 

that design after plaintiff's accident); United States v. Jacoby, 955 F.2d 1527, 1540 (11th 

Cir.1992) (where defendant testified at length about statements in magazine article that 

government had not been allowed to admit in its case-in-chief, defendant opened door to cross-

examination about that article to refute or discredit defendant's direct testimony). The use of 

otherwise inadmissible evidence is permissible if it promotes the goal of truth-seeking by 

preventing a party from perverting the evidentiary rules “into a license to use perjury by way of a 

defense…” James v. Illinois, 493 U.S. 307, 313, 110 S. Ct. 648, 652, 107 L. Ed. 2d 676 (1990). 

In this case, Defendants, in their opening statements, represented to the jury that Oliver 

Wilson Bivins, Sr. never had an interest in the 67th Street property: 

a. Studley 
 

i. The 67th Street property was owned by Lorna, and the 808 property was 
owned by Oliver and Lorna. (July 18, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. II [DE 
386 at 34:19-25].) 

 
ii. The 67th Street property, that is only Lorna's property. That is a key point 

that you will see in this case. That is Lorna's property only, and it will 
always be found to be only Lorna's property. (Id. at 36:14-17.) 

 
iii. The only thing that Lorna has is 67th, which was always in her name. (Id. 

at 42:10-11.) 
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b. Blaker 

 
iv. Julian wants 67th Street. It's not his. It's not his father's. (Id. at 71:11-14.) 
 
Defendants’ representation to the jury that Oliver Wilson Bivins, Sr. did not own the 67th 

Street property was a knowing misrepresentation of the ownership of the property.  It is clear that 

Defendants had reviewed the deed evidence from their Joint Motions in Limine which provided: 

In particular, it appears the Plaintiff is seeking to introduce a document, a title 
report, which was first produced May 31, 2017 and was ordered by the Plaintiff 
on May 16, 2017. This document was not timely produced and should not be 
admitted, particularly since no party or witness was able to review the same and 
provide information about the document before the close of discovery in this 
action. [DE 310]. 

 
Given Defendants’ knowledge of the deed evidence and their success in excluding the deeds on 

the basis of non-disclosure, the testimony and argument put forth by Defendants concerning the 

ownership of 67th Street was improper.  Further, Defendants took improper advantage of this 

ruling throughout the trial.  (See e.g. July 19, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. III [DE 387 at 171:6-

22]; July 27, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. VIII [DE 392 at 153:25-154:6]; July 28, 2017 Trial 

Transcript Vol. IX [DE 393 at 52:7-12].)  

The facts of the instant case mirror, Wood v. Morbark Industries, Inc., wherein the trial 

court granted defendant's motion in limine to exclude evidence of post-accident remedial changes 

to a wood chipper. 70 F.3d at 1208. Although defendant's cross-examination left an impression 

that no remedial modifications were done to the wood chipper, the trial court would not allow 

any contrary evidence. Id. The Court of Appeals, reversed the judgment, holding that the 

defendant took unfair advantage of the in limine ruling, and opened the door for rebuttal and 

impeachment testimony, thereby substantially affecting the rights of the Plaintiff. Id. 

B. The Court Incorrectly Applied Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 37. 
 
Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 37(c)(1) provides: “If a party fails to provide information or identify 

a witness as required by Rule 26(a) or (e), the party is not allowed to use that information or 

witness to supply evidence on a motion, at a hearing, or at a trial, unless the failure was 

substantially justified or is harmless.” (emphasis supplied). 

Here, Defendants conceded that the Estate did not obtain possession of the deed evidence 

until May 16, 2017. ([DE 310] and July 19, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. III [DE 387 at 177:1-18].) 
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Defendants also admit that the Estate produced to Defendants the evidence in question on May 

31, 2016. Id.  Accordingly, the Court did not properly apply Rule 37, which only contemplates 

exclusion of evidence on the basis of violations of Rule 26(a) or (e).  The Estate did not violate 

Rule 26(a) because at the time of its Rule 26 Disclosures, it was not in possession or control of 

the evidence.  The Estate did not violate Rule 26(e) because it timely (within two weeks) 

supplemented its disclosure once it obtained the deed evidence. 

Further, the Court conceded when assessing the issue, “I'm not saying that you 

necessarily were not diligent in discovering this…” (Id. at 188:1-189:14.)  Thus, the Court’s 

Rule 37 sanction was inappropriate because the Court acknowledged that the delay in production 

of the document was substantially justified. The Estate established substantial justification 

because the Estate, during the discovery period, had no reason to believe that the title of 67th 

Street would be at issue in light of the unrebutted testimony of Julian Bivins. (Id. at 178:1-13.) 

Additionally, the Rule 37 sanction is improper because the public record of the deed was 

equally available to the Defendants from another source. S.E.C. v. Samuel H. Sloan & Co., 369 

F.Supp. 994, 995–96 (S.D.N.Y.1973) (Ward, D.J.) (“It is well established that discovery need 

not be required of documents of public record which are equally accessible to all parties.”).  

Accordingly, to the extent the Estate did not have substantial justification for the delay in 

obtaining the deeds and producing them, the ready availability of the public records renders any 

failure harmless as contemplated by Rule 37. 

The Court’s exclusion of the 67th Street deeds constitutes an error during the course of the 

trial adversely affecting the Estate’s “substantial rights.” The exclusion of the deeds was based 

on an improper application of Rule 37 and resulted in the creation of a false impression regarding 

the ownership of the 67th Street property in the minds of the jury.  The exclusion of this evidence 

may have resulted in a defense verdict on behalf of Stein because it did not allow the Estate to 

establish Stein’s negligence in his negotiation of the New York Settlement.  Thus, a new trial is 

warranted as outlined above.   
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IV. Substantial Error to Allow Prior Acts of Julian Bivins. 

A. Defendants’ Counsel’s Characterization of Improper Acts of Julian Bivins. 

On June 22, 2017, the Estate filed a Motion in Limine to Exclude Reference to Improper 

Character Evidence as to Julian Bivins and Julian Bivins’ Acts in his Individual Capacity 

(“Motion in Limine”) [DE 313].  On July 14, 2017, this Court entered an Order [DE 358] 

denying without prejudice the Motion in Limine.  The Order further provided that “[a]cts of 

Julian Bivins may be mentioned.  However, any evidence that falls under the rubric of ‘character 

evidence’ should not be mentioned unless the Court permits it after the evidence is proffered 

outside the presence of the jury.”  Id.  The Estate reasserted the underlying arguments in the 

Motion in Limine at trial on July 17, 2017 [DE 385 at 52-75].  As to the issue of character-type 

evidence regarding Julian Bivins, individually, the Court ruled that: 

If they’re going to attempt to argue or present in front of the jury any bad 
character-type evidence, if that’s I think what you called it, they can’t do it until 
they get my permission to do it outside the presence of the jury.  So they need to 
come to me and say we want to present this, Judge, to the jury, either in opening 
or by way of evidence, and this is why we think we – this is why we think it’s 
relevant and it should be presented, and I’ll listen and decide whether it can or 
cannot.  But they’re not going to be able to do it, just stand up in opening 
tomorrow and say Mr. Bivins, you know, beat his wife or whatever.  [DE 385 at 
52:24-25 and 53:1-10]. 

 
Indeed, the Court asked Defendants’ counsel on at least four occasions what the actions 

that occurred prior to Mr. Bivins having a guardian appointed for him had to do with the 

allegations of malpractice and breach of fiduciary duty. [DE 385 at 61-74].  The Court 

specifically questioned “[a]gain, I’m trying to understand from the defense perspective, what 

does – what does the initial reasons have to do with the alleged malpractice here, other than 

that’s how you – other than that’s how the guardianship got started, what does the malpractice 

have to do with what happened before to create the guardianship?”  [DE 385 at 73:24-25 and 

74:1-4].   

Counsel for Stein represented to the Court that he had “no intent in getting up in opening, 

or getting up in the case in chief and, you know, saying Julian was, you know, a parade of 

horribles.” [DE 385 at 69:7-9].  He further assured the Court that “[n]o one is suggesting that Mr. 

Bivins, Julian Bivins, committed any crime.  No one is suggesting that Mr. Bivins committed 
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any fraud.  No one is suggesting that Mr. Bivins, okay, is, you know, quote/unquote unclean 

hands and isn’t entitled to any equitable kind of relief.”  [DE 385 at 70:5-9].   

Notwithstanding the Court’s earlier ruling, the Court then went on to state that it was “not 

going to put any limits on the attorneys for opening statements, and then I’m going to try and 

figure out what’s at issue here. And then when the evidence is presented you can raise your 

objection.”  [DE 385 at 80:5-8].  Upon reflection, the next day before opening statements, the 

Court requested Defendants’ counsel, in describing the history of the case and how it all got 

started, “to phrase the description in terms of there were transactions that took place that caused 

concern about the competency of Mr. Bivins, which led to the petition, without saying there were 

allegations of wrongdoing by Mr. Julian Bivins?” [DE 386 at 3:7-12].  Defense counsel agreed to 

phrase the history in that way.  Id. at 3:13-19. Yet, immediately in opening statements, counsel 

for the CLO Defendants made the following statements about Mr. Julian Bivins: 

This is a case about the greed of Julian Bivins.  In November of 2010, Julian 
Bivins improperly took very valuable oil and mineral rights from his father related 
to property in Texas. [DE 386 at 33:10-14]. 
 

The Estate objected to the foregoing improper comments by defense counsel regarding Julian 

Bivin’s character, which objection was overruled [DE 386 at 33:15-20].   

Counsel for Defendants continued to characterize Julian Bivins as being “greedy” and 

having committed improper acts in relation to his father’s property with the following statements 

during opening: 

This is where the greed starts. November 12th, 2010, there are documents signed, 
powers of attorney, transfers of property.  Texas, Oliver Wilson Bivins, Sr., 
transfers his property to Julian Bivins.  [DE 386 at 37:2-5]. 
 
What’s going on is the guardian get authorization to go ahead and file suit in 
Texas to try to get these properties back that Julian now has.  Id. at 39:16-18. 
 
He’s got litigation going on Texas over the property that was improperly taken by 
Julian here back in November 2010.  Id. at 40:11-12. 
 
So this is part of the greed.  Julian Bivins takes the property for $5 million.  
That’s 808 Lexington.  So what’s going on here with the settlement, this property 
goes to Julian, 5 million.  He turns around after saying that and sells it for 9.75 
million.   Id. at 45:9-13. 
 
And the Julian says, I’ll take it for five, and he goes and sells it for 9.75.  The 
evidence will show that this is greed.  Id. at 51:10-12. 
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In addition to objecting to defense counsel’s improper remarks about the character of Julian 

Bivins, the Estate also moved for a mistrial after the opening statement of the CLO Defendants’ 

counsel.  [DE 386 at 52:17-23].  The Court denied the motion even before counsel for the Estate 

could state the basis for which he was seeking a mistrial.  Id. 

Despite the Court’s earlier ruling requesting counsel, in describing the history of the case, 

to avoid saying there were allegations of wrongdoing by Mr. Julian Bivins, counsel for the Stein 

Defendants began his opening statement by describing Julian Bivins as Cain from the biblical 

story of Cain and Abel, who can’t accept what his step-brother has [DE 386 at 60:15-23].  

Counsel for the Stein Defendants proceeded to then tell the jury that “[w]hat happens then is 

Julian Bivins starts getting transferred from his father lots of stuff, 400,000 acres of gas rights, 

400,000 acres of mineral rights, 400,000 acres of oil rights in the middle of Texas. . . . Julian gets 

what’s known as a power of attorney.  . . . . A power of attorney . . . . basically means that I get 

whatever you get, and I can do with it whatever I want…”  Id. at 62:17-63:3;  “you have to 

understand that Julian Bivins wants what’s Oliver’s, and that, what the story of this case is, Cain 

and Abel”  Id. at 63:17-19; “[w]hat the evidence is gonna show is that Cain wants what’s Abel’s, 

and he can’t get it from him, and so he’s just looking at these lawyers.”  Id.  at 74:14-16.   

The Court permitted Defendants’ counsel to question Mr. Julian Bivins on the stand 

about the transfers to him from his father that occurred prior to the establishment of the 

guardianship of his father [DE 390 at 227-228]. 

Q:  You had, in November of 2010, you had a mineral deed that was drafted, a 
warranty deed or a gift deed, and a power of attorney? 
A:  I think that’s correct. 
Q:  And the deal was that you going to give your dad $700,000, and in return, he 
was going to sell you a hundred percent of the Texas minerals, reserving a 25 
percent nonparticipating royalty for his lifetime, and then he was going to give 
you certain properties described in the gift deed? 
A:  I was going to pay him 700,000 for the purchase side of that transaction. 
Q:  And there was – but there was – well, you never gave him the $700,000, true? 
A:  No, I didn’t. 

Defense counsel further questioned Mr. Bivins regarding a corrective deed he signed on behalf 

of his father after the guardianship proceeding had commenced without his father’s consent.  

[DE 390 at 240-242].  Defendants’ counsel then proceeded to advise the jury of the factual 
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allegations made against Julian Bivins in the Texas proceedings brought by his father’s guardian 

to invalidate the transfers of property to Julian Bivins from his father.   Id. at 257-259. 

B. Estate’s Substantial Rights Affected by Improper Characterizations of Julian Bivins. 

The denial of the Estate’s Motion in Limine to exclude references to improper character 

evidence as to Julian Bivins allowed Defendants’ counsel to freely mischaracterize Julian Bivins 

in opening statements and question Mr. Julian Bivins on the stand about the transfers to him 

from his father that occurred prior to the establishment of the guardianship and the Texas lawsuit 

[DE 390 at 227-229 and 257-259].  This was a substantial error which swayed a judgment in 

favor of Stein and adversely affected the Estate’s substantial rights. 

Evidence of prior bad acts is improper character evidence under Fed. R. Evid. 404.  The 

testimony elicited from Julian Bivins suggesting he improperly influenced his father in 

connection with the transfer of his assets and failed to pay adequate consideration for the 

properties is clearly a “wrong or other act” under the plain language of Fed. R. Evid. 404.  Courts 

look at how much of an effect did the improperly admitted or excluded evidence have on the 

verdict.  Peat, Inc. v. Vanguard Research, Inc., 378 F.3d 1154, 1161 (11th Cir. 2004).   

In this case, the evidence of the transactions between Julian Bivins and his father unfairly 

prejudiced the Estate based upon the factors set forth in Aetna Cas. & Sur. Co. v. Gosdin, 803 

F.2d 1153, 1160 (11th Cir. 1986).  It is clear from defense counsels’ opening statement that 

Defendants clearly intended to present improper character evidence to the jury.  In fact, there 

were at least four references to Mr. Bivins being “greedy” in the opening statements and several 

references to the fact the transfers were “improper.”  Although the Court ruled that Defendants 

required the Court’s permission before Defendants could argue or present in front of the jury any 

bad character-type evidence regarding Julian Bivins, defense counsel elicited such evidence in 

the presence of the jury without any instructions from the Court to ignore the prejudicial 

evidence.  As such, the Estate’s substantial rights were affected and the judgment in favor of 

Stein could have been easily been swayed by the impermissible evidence. 

V. Estate Entitled to Communications with Stein. 

A. Communications with Stein Prior to October 2012. 

Stein testified that he was not involved in the guardianship case until October, 2012.  [DE 

386 at 79:25-80:2].  Yet, Crispin provided conflicting testimony that her firm had 

communications with him earlier than that time.  [DE 388 at 178:2-8].  Indeed, based upon 
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Ciklin Lubitz’s billing statements (Exs. 58 and 186 at 11, 13, and 101), Mr. Stein was actually 

communicating with Mr. O’Connell and Ms. Crispin as early as July 16, July 26, July 30 and 

July 31, 2012. Id. Ms. Crispin confirmed that the billing statements accurately reflected 

communications she had with Stein on July 16, July 26, July 30, and July 31, 2012.  [DE 389 at 

111-113].  When Ms. Crispin was asked as to the substance of those communications, counsel 

objected on the basis of attorney/client privilege. Id. at 114:25-115:4. The Court erred in 

sustaining the objection and not requiring Ms. Crispin to testify as to the purpose of these 

communications.  If Mr. Stein had not yet been retained by Rogers and/or Ciklin Lubitz until 

October, 2012 as testified, then those communications would not be the subject of any privilege.  

It is also clear from the testimony of Ms. Crispin that she or her firm had the following 

communications with Mr. Stein prior to October, 2012:  (1) communication on July 31, 2012 to 

which was attached an engagement letter from Mr. Stein in connection with the Bivins matter 

(Id. at 128:23-129:7); (2) communications on July 30, 2012 from Mr. Stein regarding fee 

language (Id. at 129:18-24); (3) exchange of information with Mr. Stein on July 26, 2012 

regarding the New York buildings (Id. at 130:15-24); (4) e-mails on July 30, 2012 with Mr. Stein 

regarding the Bivins guardianship (Id. at 131:10-20); (5) several e-mails with Mr. Stein on 

August 30, 2012, regarding the Bivins matter (Id. at 131:21-132:4); (6) exchanges with Mr. Stein 

on August 24, 2012 (Id. at 132:5-7); (7) communications with Mr. Stein on September 18, 2012 

(Id. at 132:22-25); (8) six separate communications with Mr. Stein on August 7, 2012 (Id. at 

134:18-23); (9) six e-mails from Mr. Stein on July 17, 2012 (Id. at 135:6-10); (10) four separate 

phone communications with Mr. Stein on August 15, 2012 regarding Bivins (Id. at 135:15-18); 

(11) copied on e-mails from Mr. Stein on July 16, 2012 and July 19, 2012 (Id. at 136:11-21); and 

(12) e-mails with Mr. Stein on July 19, 2012 (Id. at 137:2-5).  All of the foregoing 

communications referenced above were included on a privilege log that Ciklin Lubitz produced 

to the Estate in response to the Estate’s request to produce and the communications identified 

therein were not produced to the Estate on the basis of privilege.  [DE 389 at 126].   

The Court should have required Crispin to testify as to the substance of these 

communication based upon Stein’s position at trial that he was not counsel for Ciklin Lubitz or 

the guardian prior to October, 2012. As such, the Estate is entitled to a new trial because it was 

denied the ability to introduce evidence concerning those communications which would have 
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implicated negligence and breaches of fiduciary duty on the part of Stein in the default of the 808 

Lexington Mortgage and other possible issues during that timeframe. 

B. Denial of Discovery Motions Seeking Communications and Documents for Which 
Defendants Claimed Attorney-Client Privilege. 

Additionally, the Estate is entitled to a new trial on the basis that it was denied the ability 

to obtain communications between the guardians and counsel retained by the guardians for the 

benefit of the Ward.  The Estate filed multiple motions to compel seeking the foregoing 

communications.  See [DE 112, 113, 116, 117, and 118].5  Magistrate Judge William 

Matthewman entered Omnibus Orders on Discovery Motions on September 9, 2016, and 

September 16, 2016 denying the Estate’s motions.  See [DE 132 and 137].  This Court affirmed 

Judge Matthewman’s September 9, 2016, and September 16, 2016, Orders as to the attorney-

client privilege issue.  See [DE 167]. 

The Estate also filed multiple motions to compel deposition responses [DE 205, 209, 

210] and a motion to reopen discovery and renew motions to compel [DE 201].  On April 27, 

2017, Magistrate Judge Matthewman entered an “Omnibus Order on Discovery Motions,” which 

denied all of the Motions to Compel. See [DE 280]. The Magistrate Judge, without reviewing the 

purported work product, ruled that with respect to information sought which constitutes fact 

work-product, the Estate did not establish a substantial need for the information or establish that 

the Estate cannot, without undue hardship, obtain the substantial equivalent of the information by 

other means.  See April 27, 2017 Omnibus Order [DE 280] at pg. 9.  This Court affirmed 

Magistrate Judge Matthewman’s April 27, 2017 Order.  See [DE 319]. 

It is important to note that Fla. Stat. § 90.50216 only applies to the attorney-client 

privilege and not to work product privilege.  As such, the line of cases following Tripp v. 

Salkovitz, 919 So.2d 716, 718-719 (Fla. 2d DCA 2006) are controlling and provide that the 

“privilege belongs to the Estate as the Ward’s successor in interest.” In In re Fundamental Long 

Term Care, Inc., 489 B.R. 451 (M.D. Fla. 2013), the former counsel to a subsidiary in 

                                                 
5 The Estate maintains and re-asserts the issues it raised in its motions concerning attorney-client 
and work product privileges. 
6 The Estate maintains and re-asserts its United States and Florida constitutional challenge to Fla. 
Stat. 90.5021 on due process grounds on the basis that the statute unfairly deprives a class 
(incapacitated wards) equal access to courts.  The Estate also maintains and re-asserts that Fla. 
Stat.§ 90.5021 does not apply in federal diversity cases because it is procedural as opposed to 
substantive. 
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bankruptcy could not use the work product doctrine to deny the bankruptcy trustee, who was 

now the successor to the bankrupt subsidiary, access to litigation files.  Florida law does not 

permit an attorney to refuse to turn over files to a client willing to pay for them.  Id. at 473-474. 

As discussed in In re Fundamental Long Term Care, Inc., although some courts have held that 

the work product privilege is held by both the client and the attorney, and either can assert the 

privilege, none of those decisions involve an attorney invoking the work product doctrine to 

refuse turning over his or her files to a client, the Ward (and the Estate standing in the shoes of 

the deceased Ward).  Id. at 474.  An attorney cannot withhold documents against their former 

client based upon the work product privilege.  Id.  

 Moreover, the work product doctrine seeks to protect against work product generated in 

the pending litigation and not disclosure of work product generated in a previous case.  In re 

Fundamental Long Term Care, Inc., 489 B.R. at 475-476.  The Estate was not seeking work 

product generated in this litigation, but rather, it sought the Defendant attorneys’ files arising out 

of the guardianship proceedings. See Id.   

 At a minimum, the Court should have conducted an in camera review.  See generally 

Bridgewater v. Carnival Corp., 286 F.R.D. 636 (S.D. Fla. 2011)(citations omitted) (which 

indicates that affidavits as to underlying basis for the asserted privilege and in camera document 

review are typically necessary to determine the actual application of any claimed work product 

privilege).  Thus, the Court should have, first and foremost, determined whether the withheld 

information was, in fact, privileged work product made in anticipation of litigation. See generally 

Maplewood Partners, L.P. v. Indian Harbor Ins. Co., 295 F.R.D. 550 (S.D. Fla. 2013).  Without 

the Court’s examination of such alleged work product for a determination of its character, the 

Estate was practically foreclosed from meaningfully challenging Defendants’ work product 

claims, in particular, claims that the communications between Stein and Ciklin Lubitz prior to 

October 2012 somehow constituted work product.   

WHEREFORE based upon the above, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of 

the ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, respectfully requests this Court grant Plaintiff’s 

motion for new trial and such other relief as this Court deems just and proper.   
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RULE 7.1 CERTIFICATION 

Pursuant to Local Rule 7.1, undersigned counsel attempted to confer in good faith with 

counsel for Stein Defendants; however, the undersigned was informed the Stein Defendants’ 

office was closed due to Hurricane Irma.  The undersigned then advised, via email, counsel for 

Stein Defendants of the intent to file this motion given the closure of their office.    

 

Dated: September 8, 2017  
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ J. Ronald Denman                                   . 
THE BLEAKLEY BAVOL LAW FIRM 
J. Ronald Denman, Esquire 
Florida Bar No.  863475 
15170 North Florida Avenue 
Tampa, FL  33613 
Telephone: (813) 221-3759 
Facsimile: (813) 221-3198 
E-mail: rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 
Counsel for the Plaintiff 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was filed with the Clerk of 
Court using the CM/ECF system on September 8, 2017, and the foregoing document is being 
served this day on all counsel or parties of record, as noted below, either via transmission of 
Notices of Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner for those 
counsel or parties who are not authorized to receive Notices of Electronic Filing: 

 

/s/ J. Ronald Denman                                .                          
Attorney 

 

Rachel Studley, Esq. &  
Brandon J. Hechtman, Esq. 
Wicker Smith O’Hara McCoy & Ford, P.A. 
Northbridge Centre 
515 N. Flagler Drive 
West Palm Beach, FL 33486 
RStudley@wickersmith.com 
BHechtman@wickersmith.com 

Jeffrey A. Blaker, Esq. 
Alexandra J. Schultz, Esq. 
Conroy, Simberg & Ganon 
1801 Centrepark Drive East, Suite 200 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
eservicewbp@conroysimberg.com 
jblaker@conroysimberg.com 
kmelby@conroysimberg.com 
aschultz@conroysimberg.com 
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Alan B. Rose, Esq. 
L. Louis Mrachek, Esq. 
MRACHEK, FITZGERALD, ROSE, 
KONOPKA, THOMAS & WEISS, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
lmrachek@mrachek-law.com 
arose@mrachek-law.com 
mchandler@mrachek-law.com 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA  

WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION 
 

CASE NO.: 15-81298-CV-MARRA-MATTHEWMAN 
                                                   
 
JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative   
of the ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 
 Plaintiff,        
 
vs. 
 
CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR.,  
as former guardian, STEPHEN M. KELLY, 
as successor guardian, BRIAN M. O'CONNELL,  
ASHLEY N. CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ & 
O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN, 
BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP 
f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP, 
and LAW OFFICES OF KEITH B. STEIN, PLLC,  
n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, 
 
 Defendants. 
 
     / 
 

PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL AS TO STEIN DEFENDANTS 
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Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of Oliver 

Wilson Bivins (“the Estate”), by and through undersigned counsel, and pursuant to Federal Rule 

of Civil Procedure 59, hereby files its Motion for New Trial as to only Keith Stein, Beys Liston 

Mobargha & Berland, LLP f/k/a Beys Stein Mobargha & Berland, LLP, and Law Office of Keith 

B. Stein, PLLC n/k/a Stein Law, PLLC (collectively, the “Stein Defendants”) and in support 

thereof provides the following Memorandum of Law. 

MEMORANDUM OF LAW 

I. Legal Standard 

Rule 59, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, provides that “[t]he court may, on motion, 

grant a new trial on all or some of the issues ... after a jury trial, for any reason for which a new 

trial has heretofore been granted in an action at law in federal court.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 59(a). “The 

motion for a new trial ... may raise questions of law arising out of alleged substantial errors in 

admission or rejection of evidence or instructions to the jury.” Montgomery Ward & Co. v. 

Duncan, 311 U.S. 243, 251 (1940). As far as the motion for a new trial, the trial judge can 

grant a new trial if he believes the verdict is contrary to the weight of the evidence.  Id.  “A judge 

should grant a motion for a new trial when ‘the verdict is against the clear weight of the evidence 

or will result in a miscarriage of justice, even though there may be substantial evidence which 

would prevent the direction of a verdict.’” Lipphardt v. Durango Steakhouse of Brandon, Inc., 

267 F.3d 1183, 1186 (11th Cir. 2001) (quoting Hewitt v. B.F. Goodrich Co., 732 F.2d 1554, 

1556 (11th Cir. 1984)). The decision as to whether to grant a new trial is committed to the 

discretion of the trial judge. Lambert v. Fulton County. Ga., 253 F.3d 588, 595 (11th Cir. 2001). 

Prior to assessing the evidence, we must consider the standard of harmless error to be 

applied in a civil case. In Conway v. Chemical Leaman Tank Lines, 525 F.2d 927, 929 n. 3 (5th 

Cir.1976), the Fifth Circuit ruled that in civil cases courts should apply the same standard as 

announced in Kotteakos v. United States, 328 U.S. 750, 66 S.Ct. 1239, 90 L.Ed. 1557 (1946), a 

criminal case. In that case, the Supreme Court wrote that if a court 

is sure that the error did not influence the jury, or had but very slight effect, the 
verdict and the judgment should stand, except perhaps where the departure is 
from a constitutional norm or a specific command of Congress.... But if one 
cannot say, with fair assurance, after pondering all that happened without 
stripping the erroneous action from the whole, that the judgment was not 
substantially swayed by the error, it is impossible to conclude that substantial 
rights were not affected. [Emphasis added]. 
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 Id. at 764–65, 66 S.Ct. at 1248 (footnote omitted) (citation omitted); See e.g., Aetna Cas. & Sur. 

Co. v. Gosdin, 803 F.2d 1153, 1160 (11th Cir. 1986).  To answer the foregoing question, the 

Eleventh Circuit looks to a number of factors, including the number of errors, the closeness of 

the factual disputes (i.e., the strength of the evidence on the issues affected by the error), and the 

prejudicial effect of the evidence at issue, whether counsel intentionally elicited the evidence, 

whether counsel focused on the evidence during the trial, and whether any cautionary or limiting 

instructions were given.  Gosdin, 803 F.2d at 1160; Nettles v. Electroluz Motor AB, 784 F.2d 

1574, 1581 (11th Cir. 1986); U.S. Steel, LLC v. Tieco, Inc. 261 F.3d 1275, 1288 (11th Cir. 

2001) (improper admission of state judicial opinion required a new trial where opinion was used 

by one of the parties “throughout the trial” to help establish disputed facts and counsel told the 

jury in closing argument “to use the opinion to make credibility determinations”). 

II. Striking the Testimony of Irwin Gilbert Based on Lack of Qualification Constitutes 
an Abuse of Discretion. 
 

A. The Court’s July 26, 2017 Order. 

On July 26, 2017, this Court entered an order striking the testimony of the Estate’s 

expert, Irwin Gilbert (hereinafter “Gilbert”).  Specifically, the Order provided: 

The Court finds that Mr. Gilbert does not have the qualifications by way of 
knowledge, education, training or experience to be able to provide testimony as an 
expert witness relative to the appropriate standard of care to which an attorney 
representing a professional guardian of an incapacitated ward would be required 
to adhere. [DE 374]. 
 
The Estate contends that the exclusion of Gilbert’s testimony was made in error.  

Specifically, the Order is overbroad in its exclusion of Gilbert’s testimony because the Order 

only addresses Gilbert’s qualification to opine on the issue of the appropriate professional 

standard of care.  The Order, however, is silent as to Gilbert’s qualification to opine on the issue 

of fiduciary duty, which the Estate established during the Daubert hearing.  Accordingly, Gilbert 

should have been, at the very least, permitted to testify on the issue of fiduciary duty. 

Additionally, the Estate urges the Court for entry of an Order granting a new trial as to its 

finding that Gilbert did not possess the requisite qualification to opine on the appropriate 

standard of care concerning the conduct of the Defendants.  The Estate contends that the Order 
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applied an overly-narrow standard to the qualifications required of an expert to be permitted to 

testify in the 11th Circuit.   

B. Legal Authority Concerning Expert Qualification. 

The qualification standard for expert testimony is “not stringent,” and “so long as the 

expert is minimally qualified, objections to the level of the expert’s expertise [go] to credibility 

and weight, not admissibility.”  Banta Properties, Inc. v. Arch Specialty Ins. Co., 2011 WL 

7118542 (S.D. Fla. Dec. 21, 2011) (quoting Hendrix v. Evenflo Co., 225 F.R.D. 568, 585 (N.D. 

Fla. 2009)).  “An expert is not necessarily unqualified simply because [his] experience does not 

precisely match the matter at hand,” so long as the expert is “minimally qualified…” Kirksey v. 

Schindler Elevator Corp., 101 Fed. R. Evid Serv. 600, 2016 WL 5213928, at *6 (S.D. Ala. 

2016). Where an expert does have congruent experience, “[n]othing in this amendment is 

intended to suggest that experience alone ... may not provide a sufficient foundation for expert 

testimony.” Fed. R. Evid. 702 Advisory Committee's note (2000 amends). 

Determining whether a witness is qualified to testify as an expert “requires the trial court 

to examine the credentials of the proposed expert in light of the subject matter of the proposed 

testimony.” Jack v. Glaxo Wellcome, Inc., 239 F.Supp.2d 1308, 1314–16 (N.D.Ga.2002). 

Rushing v. Kansas City S. Ry. Co., 185 F.3d 496, 507 n. 10 (5th Cir.1999); see also Martinez v. 

Altec Indus., Inc., 2005 WL 1862677, *3 (M.D. Fla. 2005) (quoting Rushing, 185 F.3d at 507 

(“As long as some reasonable indication of qualifications is adduced, ... qualifications become an 

issue for the trier of fact rather than for the court in its gate-keeping capacity.”), superseded by 

rule on other grounds as recognized in Mathis v. Exxon Corp., 302 F.3d 448, 459 n. 16 (5th 

Cir.2002)); Falic v. Legg Mason Wood Walker, Inc., 03-80377-CIV, 2005 WL 5955704, at *1 

(S.D. Fla. Jan. 10, 2005), *8 (S.D. Fla. Jan. 6, 2005) (Court does not exclude expert testimony 

merely because his testimony may be based primarily on his professional experience as a 

litigator.); Anderson v. State, ____ So. 3d ____, 2017 WL 930924 (Fla. March 9, 2017) (expert 

not required to be “certified” in a particular subspecialty in order to offer expert testimony.); 

Valentin v. New York City, No. 94 CV 391 (CLP), 1997 WL 33323099, at *25 (E.D.N.Y. Sept. 9, 

1997) (“The fact that a proposed expert may not have the exact qualifications to fit the case does 

not mean the expert's testimony is automatically inadmissible.”). 

“Courts should resolve doubts regarding the usefulness of an expert's testimony in favor 

of admissibility.” Lord v. Nissan Motor Co., 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 25409, at *13, No. 03-3218 
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(D.Minn. Dec. 13, 2004) (citing Clark v. Hendrick, 150 F.3d 912, 915 (8th Cir. 1998)). “In 

borderline questions, it is more appropriate for a judge to admit the evidence than to exclude it 

from the fact finder because ‘[v]igorous cross-examination, presentation of contrary evidence, 

and careful instruction on the burden of proof are the traditional and appropriate means of 

attacking shaky but admissible evidence.’” Tolliver v. Naor, 2001 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 18267, at 

*7, No. 99-0586 (E.D. La. Nov. 1, 2001) (quoting Daubert v. Merrell Dow Pharm., Inc., 509 

U.S. at 596 (1993)).  

C. The Estate Established Irwin Gilbert’s Qualification to Provide Expert Testimony on the 
Issues of Fiduciary Duty and Professional Negligence. 
 
Gilbert is a pre-eminent attorney with over 35 years of experience with vast experience in 

legal malpractice and fiduciary duty cases, who published on the issue of fiduciary duties and 

who was instrumental in the formulation of the legal precedent establishing the legal duties in the 

case at hand. (July 25, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. VI, [DE 390 at 263:18-25]).  During the 

Court’s Daubert hearing, the Estate elicited the following testimony from Gilbert establishing his 

qualification to opine on the issues of fiduciary duty and professional malpractice: 

a. Perhaps not coincidentally, the issue of whether or not an attorney for a guardian 
actually owes that duty to the ward was a matter that I litigated and that involves the 
Saadeh cases, which I believe have been cited in your proceedings, and, in fact, made 
new law in the Fourth District Court of Appeals, making it clear that, in fact, an 
attorney... owes the same duty to the ward. It's not merely a duty of care, but there's a 
duty of loyalty, and a lawyer has to apply skill and must act in the best interest of the 
ward. (Id. at 264:9-17.) 

b. Well, I suppose there are different ways to go about practicing law. The way I go 
about practicing law involves mastering a subject. And so in some law firms, an 
attorney may have 30 or 40 or 50 files. I believe I have eight, perhaps 10 active cases 
at one time, and it's sometimes even fewer than those […] 

  
I've litigated numerous will contest cases in Florida and in New York, cases that 
involve, in Florida what we refer to as the Carpenter factors. I've litigated to establish 
guardianships over objection. That would be in the Annie Owens White guardianship. 
I've represented the guardianship in that case for more than five years. I represent the 
professional guardian in the McFarlane guardianship, and have done so, I think, for 
more than four years. (Id. at 265:4-25.) 
 

c. We were initially engaged by Mr. Saadeh because he was unhappy with his court-
appointed lawyer in an involuntary guardianship proceeding, and he was induced to 
sign what was labeled as a revocable trust, which, in fact, was an irrevocable trust, 
because it wasn't revocable by him. We had to litigate against opposition to substitute 
for his court-appointed lawyer. We had to litigate to reinstitute the guardianship 
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proceedings, which technically had been concluded with a purported settlement order. 
We had to convince the Court to retreat from that order [...] 
 
We were successful in getting summary judgment. Then had to litigate to get the 
property that had been taken from the ward back to him and then discovered that a 
substantial -- in the six figures -- legal fees were taken out of the trust to pay the 
lawyers that were fighting to maintain the trust. We had to litigate to recover those 
attorney's fees. In so doing, we had to master the subject matter, again, of what is for 
the benefit of the ward and for the benefit of the ward's guardianship estate […] 
 
We had to master that subject in order to recover Mr. Saadeh's fees. And then these 
matters were all brought on appeal to the Fourth DCA. And, again, we had to drill 
even deeper into the subject matter and into the controlling law in order to see the 
trial judge's orders sustained. (Id. at 267:2-268:17.) 
 

d. Q. Now, in -- in these efforts by you to put forth the arguments of your client all the 
way to the Fourth District Court of Appeals, with whom did the Fourth District Court 
of Appeals agree; with you, or with the probate estate specialist? 
 
A. Well, in this instance, they adopted the legal arguments that we advanced in our 
briefs in both appeals. (Id. at 269:2-8.) 

 
e. Q. Would you explain to the Court the Saadeh case that set forth the duty of lawyers 

in terms of whether they must act in the best interest of the ward, and it's in privity 
with the ward. Would you explain that ruling. 
 
A. Well, that was Saadeh versus Connors. In that case, we filed a suit for damages 
against the attorneys that we say were responsible for causing Mr. Saadeh to incur 
significant legal fees attempting to end the guardianship and have the trust declared 
void ab initio, as well as to recover his property. The initial defendant, Connors, was 
the lawyer hired to draft the trust. This trust, as I said before, was labeled a revocable 
trust but was, in fact, irrevocable. We also sued the guardian, whose name was 
Deborah Barfield, and we sued the guardian's attorney, whose name was Collette 
Meyer. Ms. Meyer made a motion for summary judgment, arguing the absence of a 
duty to the ward, arguing that the ward was required to engage his own counsel under 
the guardianship statute, had to be represented independently, and arguing that, in 
fact, they were adverse toward one another, and so no duty could be owed. But we 
argued to the Court that since a guardian's primary duty was to benefit the ward and 
that the guardian owed a fiduciary duty to the ward, the attorney for the guardian 
likewise owed the same duties to the ward. In their decision, the Fourth DCA pointed 
out that the ward might, in fact, be the primary intended beneficiary of the services of 
the attorney and held that that was sufficient for privity purposes. And that was the 
first such decision reported in a Florida District Court of Appeals relating to the duty 
owed by a attorney for the guardian of a ward to the ward. (Id. at 269:22-271:3.) 
 

f. Q. Would you tell the Court your involvement in the Annie Owens White case. 
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A. Ms. White suffers from very significant psychiatric problems and was acting in a 
very self-destructive, in fact, endangering her own life when she didn't take her 
medication. She needed a guardian. I was asked by the Legal Aid Society to represent 
Ms. White's sister, Catherine McGrath, and to obtain or to have a petition filed that 
would result in the creation of a guardianship, and I did that. Soon after, an attorney 
appeared seeking to have Ms. White declared restored to capacity, and so we had a 
fully litigated guardianship case with respect to whether or not the guardianship 
would be maintained. (Id. at 271:4-17.) 
 

g. Q. And how long have you been attorney for Catherine McGrath as guardian? 
 
A. I believe it's more than five years. I continue to represent the guardian. I assist the 
guardian in the preparation of the annual plan. In this case, I assist the guardian in the 
preparation of her annual report. Ms. White's sister, Catherine McGrath, is a 
wonderful lady, devoted to her sister, but I don't believe she was able to continue 
school past the seventh grade, so she needs some assistance, and we assist her every 
year. We routinely appear in the guardianship court for authorization for 
disbursements on her behalf. And, likewise, in the McFarlane case, I've been involved 
in that case more than four years and routinely appear in that Court in various 
petitions for authorization for the guardian. (Id. at 271:18-272:8.) 
 

h. Q. Are you currently litigating a case Haas versus Nacenyager (phonetic)?[…] 
 
A. This is one of the current legal malpractice cases that we're actively litigating. 
And, of course, at issue in the case is the attorney's duty to a client and whether it was 
breached. 
 
Q. Have you served on any Florida Bar grievance committees for any length of time? 

A. I served a full term on the 15th District grievance committee and served one year 
as chair. I also have served on I think a total now of eight or nine years on the Florida 
Client Security Fund and have been co-chair and then chair of that committee. That 
committee deals with attorney dishonesty and an attorney's failure to render valuable 
service and reimburses clients that are the victim of dishonest lawyers.  
 
Q. Have you litigated breach of fiduciary duty cases for both plaintiffs and 
defendants?  
 
A. I have, and that would be throughout the time I'm practicing law. (Id. at 273:15-
274:11.) 
 

i. Q. For the reasons you have just explained to the Court based upon your involvement 
as an attorney in the various matters we've discussed, is that why -- do you -- is that 
why you feel your practice does, indeed, involve complex probate and guardian 
litigation in both Florida and New York? 
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A. Yes. (Id. at 274:25-275:5.) 
 

j. I have been involved in numerous guardianship cases, disputed will cases, disputed 
trust cases over the course of those 35 years. I did not commit to memory the names 
of all of the cases, nor did I go back and try to make a search of files with respect to 
the identity of those cases. (Id. at 286:7-11.) 
 

k. A. I have litigated countless lawsuits involving New York real estate transactions, the 
title to property, the partition of property, and, in fact, have litigated whether or not a 
divisible marital interest remained in New York property.  
 

l. Q Okay. But observer is not participants, and you were not the individual that was 
engaged in the refinancing of it, although you may have observed and looked into it, 
correct? Is that a fair statement? 
 
A. Well, I had to make sure that the terms of the settlement were met and that the 
property would be free and clear of liens or any residual claim of interest by the other 
party. But other than that, I -- I don't do real estate transactions, but as a trial lawyer I 
sometimes have to clean up the mess that's created from one. (Id. at 308:10-19.) 
 

Defendants challenged Gilbert’s qualification contending that he was not qualified to 

render an expert opinion in the matter because Gilbert: (1) had not “represented a ward of Oliver 

Wilson Bivins, Sr.’s age with his mental or physical conditions” (Id. at 311:22-312:2); (2) had 

not advised a guardian as to how to balance the a ward’s property interests in relation to the 

interests of their physical well-being (Id.); had not “finished a guardianship” (Id. at 312:21-25); 

that he was not familiar with the relevant standards of care in the community (no evidence was 

adduced during the Daubert hearing in support of this proposition) (Id. at 312-3-12); and that he 

was not a New York real estate attorney. 

Defendants’ position, adopted by the Order excluding his testimony, is not consistent 

with 11th Circuit law on the issue of qualification. Federal law requires merely that the proponent 

of the expert testimony establish the expert as “minimally qualified” as the qualification relates 

to the general subject of the proposed testimony.  Banta Properties, Inc. v. Arch Specialty Ins. 

Co., 2011 WL 7118542 (S.D. Fla. Dec. 21, 2011).  Defendants were successful in narrowing the 

range of permissible qualifications to an attorney specializing in representing professional 

guardians overseeing guardianships of the person and the property simultaneously involving 

elderly, dementia-diagnosed wards from the beginning of the proceeding through the end of the 
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guardianship proceeding.1  Yet, these various items of specialization do not bear on the issues of 

an attorney’s negligence or an attorney’s fiduciary duty. 

As a result of Defendants’ argument at the Daubert hearing, the Order excluding 

Gilbert’s testimony provides that he was unqualified to opine on the standard of care of “an 

attorney representing a professional guardian of an incapacitated ward.” (emphasis supplied) 

[DE 374].  Though the distinction between professional guardians and non-professional 

guardians was the subject of extensive argument by Defendants’ counsel, at no point has there 

been any indication as to why this is a meaningful difference insofar as qualification to testify is 

concerned regarding the professional and fiduciary duties of the attorney.  An attorney’s duty of 

care, as it relates to services provided on behalf of an incapacitated ward2 does not change 

depending on the qualifications of the guardian overseeing the ward.  In fact, there is no Florida 

or 11th Circuit law standing for the proposition that an attorney’s duty of care to a third party 

beneficiary of any kind is diminished based on the status of the client in privity with the attorney.   

Moreover, the professional negligence at issue in the case relates to inadequate due 

diligence concerning property values and conflicts of interest.  The opinions on these issues 

offered by Gilbert fall squarely within the gambit of his expertise as a lawyer with over 35 years 

of experience in litigating cases, settling those cases, performing due diligence associated with 

settlements, representing various parties with fiduciary obligations and representing third parties 

to whom he owed fiduciary obligations.  An individual with experience predominantly 

representing guardians would not actually have the broad legal knowledge and experience of 

Gilbert who has practiced extensively in the areas of legal malpractice and fiduciary duty, who 

happens to have the added bonus of experience representing guardians.  It appears illogical to 

narrowly construe Daubert to consider an individual with experience only in representing 

guardians to be in a better position to opine on the actual subject matter of the instant lawsuit, 

than one with vast knowledge derived from representing clients and litigation issues involving 
                                                 
1 It is worth noting that the guardianship in question was not concluded because at the time of the 
trial, no guardian had been discharged. 
2 Irwin Gilbert is not only qualified to render an opinion concerning the standard of care and duty 
attorneys and guardians owe to a ward, he was lead counsel in the case that established Florida 
precedent on the issue. Gilbert was directly involved in the litigation and appeals of the Saadeh 
cases which actually define the standard of care owed by attorneys to incompetent wards in the 
State of Florida. Saadeh v. Connors, 166 So. 3d 959, 961 (Fla. 4th DCA 2015).  
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fiduciary matters, malpractice matters (on both sides of the table), real estate transactions, trust 

issues, and other practice areas as established by Gilbert’s testimony.  In short, any purported 

gaps asserted by the Defendants to exist in Gilbert’s experience due to the lack of him being 

essentially recognized as a specialist dedicated solely to representing guardians, does not and 

should not bear on the opinions reached by Gilbert concerning fiduciary duty or professional 

malpractice.  At most, such assertions should be the subject of cross-examination by the 

Defendants to attempt to impeach the weight that the jury gives to Gilbert’s testimony. 

Similarly, Defendants misplace their focus on Gilbert’s lack of publication with a specific 

section regarding “fiduciary duties that guardians owe to wards.” (July 25, 2017 Trial Transcript 

Vol. VI, [DE 390 at 290:2-5].)  First, Defendants’ inquiry does not actually address the fiduciary 

duty at issue in the case – an attorney’s fiduciary duty to an incapacitated ward.  Second, and 

more importantly, Gilbert provided unrebutted testimony that “[t]here are not two different 

worlds of fiduciary duty; there is only one.” Id. at 290:2-13.3 

Accordingly, the Order concerning Gilbert’s qualification to testify on the issues of 

professional negligence and fiduciary duties did not properly apply 11th Circuit law by failing to 

analyze the qualification of the expert in relation to the opinions actually proffered.  The Order 

relies improperly on an analytical scheme put forth by Defendants which demands that the expert 

have experience representing a guardian in a virtually identical situation and with specific 

experience concerning every possible issue in the case. 

D. The Court Did Not Apply the Same Qualification Standard to Defendant Keith Stein’s 
Expert Edward Robbins. 
 
The Court did not exclude the testimony of Defendant, Keith Stein’s (hereinafter “Stein”) 

expert, Edward S. Robbins (hereinafter “Robbins”), permitting his expert to testify unrebutted as 

to professional negligence and breach of fiduciary duty.  Robbins’ testimony concerning Stein’s 

                                                 
3  “A personal representative is a fiduciary who shall observe the standards of care applicable to 
trustees.” § 733.602(1), Fla. Stat. (2014); see also § 733.609(1), Fla. Stat. (2014) (“A personal 
representative's fiduciary duty is the same as the fiduciary duty of a trustee of an express trust, 
and a personal representative is liable to interested persons for damage or loss resulting from the 
breach of this duty.”); State v. Lahurd, 632 So.2d 1101, 1104 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994) (“The 
personal representative, like a trustee, is a fiduciary in handling the estate for the beneficiaries. 
As such, he or she is to observe the standard of care in dealing with the estate as a prudent trustee 
exercises in dealing with property of the trust.”) (citations omitted). A trustee is required to seek 
only reasonable fees for his or her services and the trustee's agents. See §§ 736.0105(1), (2)(b); 
736.0801; 736.0802(1), (7)(b), (8), Fla. Stat. (2014). 
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fiduciary duties and standards of care was permitted at trial despite his testimony on voir dire 

that he had virtually no recent experience in representing guardians, and to the extent he had any 

recent guardianship experience, it was significantly less guardianship experience than Gilbert: 

Q. And you have only done one guardianship case down here but otherwise have 
essentially represented guardianships at closings, meaning you've done the real 
estate as whether it's any entity that you're doing the closing for, right? 
 
A. Correct. And I represented a ward in a matter in Dade County, as well. 
 
Q. You've authored no articles in guardianship matters, correct? 
 
A. I have not. (July 27, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. VIII [DE 392 at 218:24-219-
7].) 
 
The Court’s exclusion of Gilbert’s testimony on qualification grounds and its allowance 

of the less qualified opinion from Robbins resulted in a defense verdict for Stein given the more 

technical nature of his negligence and breaches of fiduciary duty.  This outcome resulted from 

the Estate’s inability to challenge the acts of Stein concerning due diligence and fiduciary duty.   

Further, Stein’s conduct was unfairly bolstered by his unrebutted expert. This ruling constitutes 

an error during the course of the trial adversely affecting the Estate’s “substantial rights.” Ad-

Vantage Tel. Directory Consultants, Inc. v. GTE Directories Corp., 37 F.3d 1460, 1465 (11th 

Cir. 1994).  Based on the Court’s rulings on the parties’ experts, a new trial is warranted.   

III. Abuse of Discretion to Exclude of the 67th Street Deeds from Evidence. 

On July 19, 2017, this Court ruled that the Estate would not be permitted to enter into 

evidence Plaintiff’s Proposed Exhibit 40, which was a composite of certified deeds for the 67th 

Street property reflecting Oliver Wilson Bivins, Sr.’s ownership of the property prior to his 

marriage to Lorna Bivins.  The Court ruled as follows regarding the 67th Street deeds based upon 

a request by Defendants for imposition of a Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 37 Sanction4 for failure to 

timely disclose: 

THE COURT: Okay. But -- all right. Well, whether or not you're going to be able 
to use it as impeachment of their experts' opinions, I'll deal with that later, but I'm 
not going to let you use it in your case in chief. (July 19, 2017 Trial Transcript 
Vol. III [DE 387 at 190:14-17].) 

 

                                                 
4 (Id. at 176:1-5.) 
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At the time of the Court’s ruling and thereafter, Defendants had “opened the door” to the 

introduction of the evidence by attempting to take advantage of its exclusion.  Defendants, 

throughout the course of the trial, relied upon the exclusion of evidence of Oliver Bivins’ 

ownership of the 67th Street property to create a false impression that Oliver Bivins never owned 

the property, which is not permissible in the 11th Circuit.  Further, the Court’s exclusion of the 

67th Street deeds was predicated upon a misapplication of Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 37.  Accordingly, 

a new trial is warranted. 

A. Defendants Were Improperly Permitted to Take Advantage of the Exclusion of the 67th 
Street Deeds from Evidence to Create a False Impression in the Minds of the Jury. 
 
If a party “opens the door” to a particular line of inquiry by making certain statements, 

then the other party may be allowed to offer rebuttal evidence to contradict those statements. See, 

e.g., Wood v. Morbark Industries, Inc., 70 F.3d 1201, 1208 (11th Cir. 1995) (by offering 

testimony that its wood chipper had the safest length chute possible, defendant opened door for 

impeachment such that plaintiff should have been allowed to inquire why defendant modified 

that design after plaintiff's accident); United States v. Jacoby, 955 F.2d 1527, 1540 (11th 

Cir.1992) (where defendant testified at length about statements in magazine article that 

government had not been allowed to admit in its case-in-chief, defendant opened door to cross-

examination about that article to refute or discredit defendant's direct testimony). The use of 

otherwise inadmissible evidence is permissible if it promotes the goal of truth-seeking by 

preventing a party from perverting the evidentiary rules “into a license to use perjury by way of a 

defense…” James v. Illinois, 493 U.S. 307, 313, 110 S. Ct. 648, 652, 107 L. Ed. 2d 676 (1990). 

In this case, Defendants, in their opening statements, represented to the jury that Oliver 

Wilson Bivins, Sr. never had an interest in the 67th Street property: 

a. Studley 
 

i. The 67th Street property was owned by Lorna, and the 808 property was 
owned by Oliver and Lorna. (July 18, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. II [DE 
386 at 34:19-25].) 

 
ii. The 67th Street property, that is only Lorna's property. That is a key point 

that you will see in this case. That is Lorna's property only, and it will 
always be found to be only Lorna's property. (Id. at 36:14-17.) 

 
iii. The only thing that Lorna has is 67th, which was always in her name. (Id. 

at 42:10-11.) 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 419   Entered on FLSD Docket 09/08/2017   Page 12 of 23



12 
 

 
b. Blaker 

 
iv. Julian wants 67th Street. It's not his. It's not his father's. (Id. at 71:11-14.) 
 
Defendants’ representation to the jury that Oliver Wilson Bivins, Sr. did not own the 67th 

Street property was a knowing misrepresentation of the ownership of the property.  It is clear that 

Defendants had reviewed the deed evidence from their Joint Motions in Limine which provided: 

In particular, it appears the Plaintiff is seeking to introduce a document, a title 
report, which was first produced May 31, 2017 and was ordered by the Plaintiff 
on May 16, 2017. This document was not timely produced and should not be 
admitted, particularly since no party or witness was able to review the same and 
provide information about the document before the close of discovery in this 
action. [DE 310]. 

 
Given Defendants’ knowledge of the deed evidence and their success in excluding the deeds on 

the basis of non-disclosure, the testimony and argument put forth by Defendants concerning the 

ownership of 67th Street was improper.  Further, Defendants took improper advantage of this 

ruling throughout the trial.  (See e.g. July 19, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. III [DE 387 at 171:6-

22]; July 27, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. VIII [DE 392 at 153:25-154:6]; July 28, 2017 Trial 

Transcript Vol. IX [DE 393 at 52:7-12].)  

The facts of the instant case mirror, Wood v. Morbark Industries, Inc., wherein the trial 

court granted defendant's motion in limine to exclude evidence of post-accident remedial changes 

to a wood chipper. 70 F.3d at 1208. Although defendant's cross-examination left an impression 

that no remedial modifications were done to the wood chipper, the trial court would not allow 

any contrary evidence. Id. The Court of Appeals, reversed the judgment, holding that the 

defendant took unfair advantage of the in limine ruling, and opened the door for rebuttal and 

impeachment testimony, thereby substantially affecting the rights of the Plaintiff. Id. 

B. The Court Incorrectly Applied Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 37. 
 
Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 37(c)(1) provides: “If a party fails to provide information or identify 

a witness as required by Rule 26(a) or (e), the party is not allowed to use that information or 

witness to supply evidence on a motion, at a hearing, or at a trial, unless the failure was 

substantially justified or is harmless.” (emphasis supplied). 

Here, Defendants conceded that the Estate did not obtain possession of the deed evidence 

until May 16, 2017. ([DE 310] and July 19, 2017 Trial Transcript Vol. III [DE 387 at 177:1-18].) 
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Defendants also admit that the Estate produced to Defendants the evidence in question on May 

31, 2016. Id.  Accordingly, the Court did not properly apply Rule 37, which only contemplates 

exclusion of evidence on the basis of violations of Rule 26(a) or (e).  The Estate did not violate 

Rule 26(a) because at the time of its Rule 26 Disclosures, it was not in possession or control of 

the evidence.  The Estate did not violate Rule 26(e) because it timely (within two weeks) 

supplemented its disclosure once it obtained the deed evidence. 

Further, the Court conceded when assessing the issue, “I'm not saying that you 

necessarily were not diligent in discovering this…” (Id. at 188:1-189:14.)  Thus, the Court’s 

Rule 37 sanction was inappropriate because the Court acknowledged that the delay in production 

of the document was substantially justified. The Estate established substantial justification 

because the Estate, during the discovery period, had no reason to believe that the title of 67th 

Street would be at issue in light of the unrebutted testimony of Julian Bivins. (Id. at 178:1-13.) 

Additionally, the Rule 37 sanction is improper because the public record of the deed was 

equally available to the Defendants from another source. S.E.C. v. Samuel H. Sloan & Co., 369 

F.Supp. 994, 995–96 (S.D.N.Y.1973) (Ward, D.J.) (“It is well established that discovery need 

not be required of documents of public record which are equally accessible to all parties.”).  

Accordingly, to the extent the Estate did not have substantial justification for the delay in 

obtaining the deeds and producing them, the ready availability of the public records renders any 

failure harmless as contemplated by Rule 37. 

The Court’s exclusion of the 67th Street deeds constitutes an error during the course of the 

trial adversely affecting the Estate’s “substantial rights.” The exclusion of the deeds was based 

on an improper application of Rule 37 and resulted in the creation of a false impression regarding 

the ownership of the 67th Street property in the minds of the jury.  The exclusion of this evidence 

may have resulted in a defense verdict on behalf of Stein because it did not allow the Estate to 

establish Stein’s negligence in his negotiation of the New York Settlement.  Thus, a new trial is 

warranted as outlined above.   
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IV. Substantial Error to Allow Prior Acts of Julian Bivins. 

A. Defendants’ Counsel’s Characterization of Improper Acts of Julian Bivins. 

On June 22, 2017, the Estate filed a Motion in Limine to Exclude Reference to Improper 

Character Evidence as to Julian Bivins and Julian Bivins’ Acts in his Individual Capacity 

(“Motion in Limine”) [DE 313].  On July 14, 2017, this Court entered an Order [DE 358] 

denying without prejudice the Motion in Limine.  The Order further provided that “[a]cts of 

Julian Bivins may be mentioned.  However, any evidence that falls under the rubric of ‘character 

evidence’ should not be mentioned unless the Court permits it after the evidence is proffered 

outside the presence of the jury.”  Id.  The Estate reasserted the underlying arguments in the 

Motion in Limine at trial on July 17, 2017 [DE 385 at 52-75].  As to the issue of character-type 

evidence regarding Julian Bivins, individually, the Court ruled that: 

If they’re going to attempt to argue or present in front of the jury any bad 
character-type evidence, if that’s I think what you called it, they can’t do it until 
they get my permission to do it outside the presence of the jury.  So they need to 
come to me and say we want to present this, Judge, to the jury, either in opening 
or by way of evidence, and this is why we think we – this is why we think it’s 
relevant and it should be presented, and I’ll listen and decide whether it can or 
cannot.  But they’re not going to be able to do it, just stand up in opening 
tomorrow and say Mr. Bivins, you know, beat his wife or whatever.  [DE 385 at 
52:24-25 and 53:1-10]. 

 
Indeed, the Court asked Defendants’ counsel on at least four occasions what the actions 

that occurred prior to Mr. Bivins having a guardian appointed for him had to do with the 

allegations of malpractice and breach of fiduciary duty. [DE 385 at 61-74].  The Court 

specifically questioned “[a]gain, I’m trying to understand from the defense perspective, what 

does – what does the initial reasons have to do with the alleged malpractice here, other than 

that’s how you – other than that’s how the guardianship got started, what does the malpractice 

have to do with what happened before to create the guardianship?”  [DE 385 at 73:24-25 and 

74:1-4].   

Counsel for Stein represented to the Court that he had “no intent in getting up in opening, 

or getting up in the case in chief and, you know, saying Julian was, you know, a parade of 

horribles.” [DE 385 at 69:7-9].  He further assured the Court that “[n]o one is suggesting that Mr. 

Bivins, Julian Bivins, committed any crime.  No one is suggesting that Mr. Bivins committed 
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any fraud.  No one is suggesting that Mr. Bivins, okay, is, you know, quote/unquote unclean 

hands and isn’t entitled to any equitable kind of relief.”  [DE 385 at 70:5-9].   

Notwithstanding the Court’s earlier ruling, the Court then went on to state that it was “not 

going to put any limits on the attorneys for opening statements, and then I’m going to try and 

figure out what’s at issue here. And then when the evidence is presented you can raise your 

objection.”  [DE 385 at 80:5-8].  Upon reflection, the next day before opening statements, the 

Court requested Defendants’ counsel, in describing the history of the case and how it all got 

started, “to phrase the description in terms of there were transactions that took place that caused 

concern about the competency of Mr. Bivins, which led to the petition, without saying there were 

allegations of wrongdoing by Mr. Julian Bivins?” [DE 386 at 3:7-12].  Defense counsel agreed to 

phrase the history in that way.  Id. at 3:13-19. Yet, immediately in opening statements, counsel 

for the CLO Defendants made the following statements about Mr. Julian Bivins: 

This is a case about the greed of Julian Bivins.  In November of 2010, Julian 
Bivins improperly took very valuable oil and mineral rights from his father related 
to property in Texas. [DE 386 at 33:10-14]. 
 

The Estate objected to the foregoing improper comments by defense counsel regarding Julian 

Bivin’s character, which objection was overruled [DE 386 at 33:15-20].   

Counsel for Defendants continued to characterize Julian Bivins as being “greedy” and 

having committed improper acts in relation to his father’s property with the following statements 

during opening: 

This is where the greed starts. November 12th, 2010, there are documents signed, 
powers of attorney, transfers of property.  Texas, Oliver Wilson Bivins, Sr., 
transfers his property to Julian Bivins.  [DE 386 at 37:2-5]. 
 
What’s going on is the guardian get authorization to go ahead and file suit in 
Texas to try to get these properties back that Julian now has.  Id. at 39:16-18. 
 
He’s got litigation going on Texas over the property that was improperly taken by 
Julian here back in November 2010.  Id. at 40:11-12. 
 
So this is part of the greed.  Julian Bivins takes the property for $5 million.  
That’s 808 Lexington.  So what’s going on here with the settlement, this property 
goes to Julian, 5 million.  He turns around after saying that and sells it for 9.75 
million.   Id. at 45:9-13. 
 
And the Julian says, I’ll take it for five, and he goes and sells it for 9.75.  The 
evidence will show that this is greed.  Id. at 51:10-12. 
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In addition to objecting to defense counsel’s improper remarks about the character of Julian 

Bivins, the Estate also moved for a mistrial after the opening statement of the CLO Defendants’ 

counsel.  [DE 386 at 52:17-23].  The Court denied the motion even before counsel for the Estate 

could state the basis for which he was seeking a mistrial.  Id. 

Despite the Court’s earlier ruling requesting counsel, in describing the history of the case, 

to avoid saying there were allegations of wrongdoing by Mr. Julian Bivins, counsel for the Stein 

Defendants began his opening statement by describing Julian Bivins as Cain from the biblical 

story of Cain and Abel, who can’t accept what his step-brother has [DE 386 at 60:15-23].  

Counsel for the Stein Defendants proceeded to then tell the jury that “[w]hat happens then is 

Julian Bivins starts getting transferred from his father lots of stuff, 400,000 acres of gas rights, 

400,000 acres of mineral rights, 400,000 acres of oil rights in the middle of Texas. . . . Julian gets 

what’s known as a power of attorney.  . . . . A power of attorney . . . . basically means that I get 

whatever you get, and I can do with it whatever I want…”  Id. at 62:17-63:3;  “you have to 

understand that Julian Bivins wants what’s Oliver’s, and that, what the story of this case is, Cain 

and Abel”  Id. at 63:17-19; “[w]hat the evidence is gonna show is that Cain wants what’s Abel’s, 

and he can’t get it from him, and so he’s just looking at these lawyers.”  Id.  at 74:14-16.   

The Court permitted Defendants’ counsel to question Mr. Julian Bivins on the stand 

about the transfers to him from his father that occurred prior to the establishment of the 

guardianship of his father [DE 390 at 227-228]. 

Q:  You had, in November of 2010, you had a mineral deed that was drafted, a 
warranty deed or a gift deed, and a power of attorney? 
A:  I think that’s correct. 
Q:  And the deal was that you going to give your dad $700,000, and in return, he 
was going to sell you a hundred percent of the Texas minerals, reserving a 25 
percent nonparticipating royalty for his lifetime, and then he was going to give 
you certain properties described in the gift deed? 
A:  I was going to pay him 700,000 for the purchase side of that transaction. 
Q:  And there was – but there was – well, you never gave him the $700,000, true? 
A:  No, I didn’t. 

Defense counsel further questioned Mr. Bivins regarding a corrective deed he signed on behalf 

of his father after the guardianship proceeding had commenced without his father’s consent.  

[DE 390 at 240-242].  Defendants’ counsel then proceeded to advise the jury of the factual 
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allegations made against Julian Bivins in the Texas proceedings brought by his father’s guardian 

to invalidate the transfers of property to Julian Bivins from his father.   Id. at 257-259. 

B. Estate’s Substantial Rights Affected by Improper Characterizations of Julian Bivins. 

The denial of the Estate’s Motion in Limine to exclude references to improper character 

evidence as to Julian Bivins allowed Defendants’ counsel to freely mischaracterize Julian Bivins 

in opening statements and question Mr. Julian Bivins on the stand about the transfers to him 

from his father that occurred prior to the establishment of the guardianship and the Texas lawsuit 

[DE 390 at 227-229 and 257-259].  This was a substantial error which swayed a judgment in 

favor of Stein and adversely affected the Estate’s substantial rights. 

Evidence of prior bad acts is improper character evidence under Fed. R. Evid. 404.  The 

testimony elicited from Julian Bivins suggesting he improperly influenced his father in 

connection with the transfer of his assets and failed to pay adequate consideration for the 

properties is clearly a “wrong or other act” under the plain language of Fed. R. Evid. 404.  Courts 

look at how much of an effect did the improperly admitted or excluded evidence have on the 

verdict.  Peat, Inc. v. Vanguard Research, Inc., 378 F.3d 1154, 1161 (11th Cir. 2004).   

In this case, the evidence of the transactions between Julian Bivins and his father unfairly 

prejudiced the Estate based upon the factors set forth in Aetna Cas. & Sur. Co. v. Gosdin, 803 

F.2d 1153, 1160 (11th Cir. 1986).  It is clear from defense counsels’ opening statement that 

Defendants clearly intended to present improper character evidence to the jury.  In fact, there 

were at least four references to Mr. Bivins being “greedy” in the opening statements and several 

references to the fact the transfers were “improper.”  Although the Court ruled that Defendants 

required the Court’s permission before Defendants could argue or present in front of the jury any 

bad character-type evidence regarding Julian Bivins, defense counsel elicited such evidence in 

the presence of the jury without any instructions from the Court to ignore the prejudicial 

evidence.  As such, the Estate’s substantial rights were affected and the judgment in favor of 

Stein could have been easily been swayed by the impermissible evidence. 

V. Estate Entitled to Communications with Stein. 

A. Communications with Stein Prior to October 2012. 

Stein testified that he was not involved in the guardianship case until October, 2012.  [DE 

386 at 79:25-80:2].  Yet, Crispin provided conflicting testimony that her firm had 

communications with him earlier than that time.  [DE 388 at 178:2-8].  Indeed, based upon 
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Ciklin Lubitz’s billing statements (Exs. 58 and 186 at 11, 13, and 101), Mr. Stein was actually 

communicating with Mr. O’Connell and Ms. Crispin as early as July 16, July 26, July 30 and 

July 31, 2012. Id. Ms. Crispin confirmed that the billing statements accurately reflected 

communications she had with Stein on July 16, July 26, July 30, and July 31, 2012.  [DE 389 at 

111-113].  When Ms. Crispin was asked as to the substance of those communications, counsel 

objected on the basis of attorney/client privilege. Id. at 114:25-115:4. The Court erred in 

sustaining the objection and not requiring Ms. Crispin to testify as to the purpose of these 

communications.  If Mr. Stein had not yet been retained by Rogers and/or Ciklin Lubitz until 

October, 2012 as testified, then those communications would not be the subject of any privilege.  

It is also clear from the testimony of Ms. Crispin that she or her firm had the following 

communications with Mr. Stein prior to October, 2012:  (1) communication on July 31, 2012 to 

which was attached an engagement letter from Mr. Stein in connection with the Bivins matter 

(Id. at 128:23-129:7); (2) communications on July 30, 2012 from Mr. Stein regarding fee 

language (Id. at 129:18-24); (3) exchange of information with Mr. Stein on July 26, 2012 

regarding the New York buildings (Id. at 130:15-24); (4) e-mails on July 30, 2012 with Mr. Stein 

regarding the Bivins guardianship (Id. at 131:10-20); (5) several e-mails with Mr. Stein on 

August 30, 2012, regarding the Bivins matter (Id. at 131:21-132:4); (6) exchanges with Mr. Stein 

on August 24, 2012 (Id. at 132:5-7); (7) communications with Mr. Stein on September 18, 2012 

(Id. at 132:22-25); (8) six separate communications with Mr. Stein on August 7, 2012 (Id. at 

134:18-23); (9) six e-mails from Mr. Stein on July 17, 2012 (Id. at 135:6-10); (10) four separate 

phone communications with Mr. Stein on August 15, 2012 regarding Bivins (Id. at 135:15-18); 

(11) copied on e-mails from Mr. Stein on July 16, 2012 and July 19, 2012 (Id. at 136:11-21); and 

(12) e-mails with Mr. Stein on July 19, 2012 (Id. at 137:2-5).  All of the foregoing 

communications referenced above were included on a privilege log that Ciklin Lubitz produced 

to the Estate in response to the Estate’s request to produce and the communications identified 

therein were not produced to the Estate on the basis of privilege.  [DE 389 at 126].   

The Court should have required Crispin to testify as to the substance of these 

communication based upon Stein’s position at trial that he was not counsel for Ciklin Lubitz or 

the guardian prior to October, 2012. As such, the Estate is entitled to a new trial because it was 

denied the ability to introduce evidence concerning those communications which would have 
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implicated negligence and breaches of fiduciary duty on the part of Stein in the default of the 808 

Lexington Mortgage and other possible issues during that timeframe. 

B. Denial of Discovery Motions Seeking Communications and Documents for Which 
Defendants Claimed Attorney-Client Privilege. 

Additionally, the Estate is entitled to a new trial on the basis that it was denied the ability 

to obtain communications between the guardians and counsel retained by the guardians for the 

benefit of the Ward.  The Estate filed multiple motions to compel seeking the foregoing 

communications.  See [DE 112, 113, 116, 117, and 118].5  Magistrate Judge William 

Matthewman entered Omnibus Orders on Discovery Motions on September 9, 2016, and 

September 16, 2016 denying the Estate’s motions.  See [DE 132 and 137].  This Court affirmed 

Judge Matthewman’s September 9, 2016, and September 16, 2016, Orders as to the attorney-

client privilege issue.  See [DE 167]. 

The Estate also filed multiple motions to compel deposition responses [DE 205, 209, 

210] and a motion to reopen discovery and renew motions to compel [DE 201].  On April 27, 

2017, Magistrate Judge Matthewman entered an “Omnibus Order on Discovery Motions,” which 

denied all of the Motions to Compel. See [DE 280]. The Magistrate Judge, without reviewing the 

purported work product, ruled that with respect to information sought which constitutes fact 

work-product, the Estate did not establish a substantial need for the information or establish that 

the Estate cannot, without undue hardship, obtain the substantial equivalent of the information by 

other means.  See April 27, 2017 Omnibus Order [DE 280] at pg. 9.  This Court affirmed 

Magistrate Judge Matthewman’s April 27, 2017 Order.  See [DE 319]. 

It is important to note that Fla. Stat. § 90.50216 only applies to the attorney-client 

privilege and not to work product privilege.  As such, the line of cases following Tripp v. 

Salkovitz, 919 So.2d 716, 718-719 (Fla. 2d DCA 2006) are controlling and provide that the 

“privilege belongs to the Estate as the Ward’s successor in interest.” In In re Fundamental Long 

Term Care, Inc., 489 B.R. 451 (M.D. Fla. 2013), the former counsel to a subsidiary in 

                                                 
5 The Estate maintains and re-asserts the issues it raised in its motions concerning attorney-client 
and work product privileges. 
6 The Estate maintains and re-asserts its United States and Florida constitutional challenge to Fla. 
Stat. 90.5021 on due process grounds on the basis that the statute unfairly deprives a class 
(incapacitated wards) equal access to courts.  The Estate also maintains and re-asserts that Fla. 
Stat.§ 90.5021 does not apply in federal diversity cases because it is procedural as opposed to 
substantive. 
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bankruptcy could not use the work product doctrine to deny the bankruptcy trustee, who was 

now the successor to the bankrupt subsidiary, access to litigation files.  Florida law does not 

permit an attorney to refuse to turn over files to a client willing to pay for them.  Id. at 473-474. 

As discussed in In re Fundamental Long Term Care, Inc., although some courts have held that 

the work product privilege is held by both the client and the attorney, and either can assert the 

privilege, none of those decisions involve an attorney invoking the work product doctrine to 

refuse turning over his or her files to a client, the Ward (and the Estate standing in the shoes of 

the deceased Ward).  Id. at 474.  An attorney cannot withhold documents against their former 

client based upon the work product privilege.  Id.  

 Moreover, the work product doctrine seeks to protect against work product generated in 

the pending litigation and not disclosure of work product generated in a previous case.  In re 

Fundamental Long Term Care, Inc., 489 B.R. at 475-476.  The Estate was not seeking work 

product generated in this litigation, but rather, it sought the Defendant attorneys’ files arising out 

of the guardianship proceedings. See Id.   

 At a minimum, the Court should have conducted an in camera review.  See generally 

Bridgewater v. Carnival Corp., 286 F.R.D. 636 (S.D. Fla. 2011)(citations omitted) (which 

indicates that affidavits as to underlying basis for the asserted privilege and in camera document 

review are typically necessary to determine the actual application of any claimed work product 

privilege).  Thus, the Court should have, first and foremost, determined whether the withheld 

information was, in fact, privileged work product made in anticipation of litigation. See generally 

Maplewood Partners, L.P. v. Indian Harbor Ins. Co., 295 F.R.D. 550 (S.D. Fla. 2013).  Without 

the Court’s examination of such alleged work product for a determination of its character, the 

Estate was practically foreclosed from meaningfully challenging Defendants’ work product 

claims, in particular, claims that the communications between Stein and Ciklin Lubitz prior to 

October 2012 somehow constituted work product.   

WHEREFORE based upon the above, JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of 

the ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, respectfully requests this Court grant Plaintiff’s 

motion for new trial and such other relief as this Court deems just and proper.   
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RULE 7.1 CERTIFICATION 

Pursuant to Local Rule 7.1, undersigned counsel attempted to confer in good faith with 

counsel for Stein Defendants; however, the undersigned was informed the Stein Defendants’ 

office was closed due to Hurricane Irma.  The undersigned then advised, via email, counsel for 

Stein Defendants of the intent to file this motion given the closure of their office.    

 

Dated: September 8, 2017  
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ J. Ronald Denman                                   . 
THE BLEAKLEY BAVOL LAW FIRM 
J. Ronald Denman, Esquire 
Florida Bar No.  863475 
15170 North Florida Avenue 
Tampa, FL  33613 
Telephone: (813) 221-3759 
Facsimile: (813) 221-3198 
E-mail: rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 
Counsel for the Plaintiff 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was filed with the Clerk of 
Court using the CM/ECF system on September 8, 2017, and the foregoing document is being 
served this day on all counsel or parties of record, as noted below, either via transmission of 
Notices of Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner for those 
counsel or parties who are not authorized to receive Notices of Electronic Filing: 

 

/s/ J. Ronald Denman                                .                          
Attorney 

 

Rachel Studley, Esq. &  
Brandon J. Hechtman, Esq. 
Wicker Smith O’Hara McCoy & Ford, P.A. 
Northbridge Centre 
515 N. Flagler Drive 
West Palm Beach, FL 33486 
RStudley@wickersmith.com 
BHechtman@wickersmith.com 

Jeffrey A. Blaker, Esq. 
Alexandra J. Schultz, Esq. 
Conroy, Simberg & Ganon 
1801 Centrepark Drive East, Suite 200 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
eservicewbp@conroysimberg.com 
jblaker@conroysimberg.com 
kmelby@conroysimberg.com 
aschultz@conroysimberg.com 
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lmrachek@mrachek-law.com 
arose@mrachek-law.com 
mchandler@mrachek-law.com 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 419   Entered on FLSD Docket 09/08/2017   Page 23 of 23



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION 

CASE NO. 9:15-cv-81298-KAM 

JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of the 
ancillary Estate of OLIVER WILSON BIVINS, 

   Plaintiff, 

v. 

CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR., as former 
guardian; STEPHEN M. KELLY, as successor 
guardian; BRIAN M. O'CONNELL; ASHLEY N. 
CRISPIN; CIKLIN LUBITZ & O'CONNELL; KEITH 
B. STEIN; BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & 
BERLAND, LLP f/k/a BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA 
& BERLAND, LLP; and LAW OFFICES OF KEITH 
B. STEIN, PLLC n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC, 

   Defendants. 
/ 

STEIN DEFENDANTS’ MEMORANDUM OF LAW 
IN OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL 

Defendants, KEITH B. STEIN, BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP f/k/a 

BEYS STEIN MOBARGHA & BERLAND, LLP and LAW OFFICE OF KEITH B. STEIN, 

PLLC n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC (hereinafter referred to collectively as “the STEIN 
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DEFENDANTS”), pursuant to the provisions of Local Rule 7.1(c), file the following 

Memorandum of Law in Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for New Trial (D.E. 419) pursuant to 

the provisions of Rule 59 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  As the following arguments 

and citations of authority demonstrate, Plaintiff’s Motion for New Trial must be denied.  

Plaintiff’s arguments are:  (1) unsupported by the record and trial transcript; (2) based on a 

failure to address and apply the appropriate standards under Daubert1 and Federal Rule of 

Evidence 103(a); and (3) ignore that the issues relating to attorney-client and work-product 

privileges were substantially briefed, argued numerous times, and ruled upon by the trial court.  

Furthermore, even if the Plaintiff’s expert were permitted to testify to all matters contained in the 

Rule 26 disclosure, there would have been insufficient evidence to support a verdict, such that 

the STEIN DEFENDANTS were entitled to judgment as a matter of law. 

INTRODUCTION 

I. General Background2

As this Court is aware from the pretrial proceedings and trial testimony, this case 

involves claims of legal malpractice and breach of fiduciary duty against several attorneys and 

guardians whose actions were approved and/or mandated by orders from a state guardianship 

court.  Defendant, KEITH STEIN, is an attorney who has been practicing real estate law in New 

York since 1987.  Mr. Stein was retained to represent Curtis Rogers and Stephen Kelly, 

Guardians of the Ward, now-deceased, Oliver Bivins, Sr. (the “Ward”), in a limited capacity to 

protect the Ward’s interest in real estate located at 808 Lexington Avenue in New York City.  

1 Daubert v. Merrill Dow Pharmaceuticals, 509 U.S. 579 (1993). 

2 These undisputed facts are based on the STEIN DEFENDANTS’ Statement of Material 
Facts Not in Dispute filed in support of their Motion for Summary Judgment (D.E. 226) and/or 
were established by the evidence at trial. 
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The retainer agreements introduced at trial detailing the limited engagement were not 

contradicted by any trial testimony. 

Plaintiff, JULIAN BIVINS (“JULIAN”), is the Ward’s son and the Personal 

Representative of the Ward’s Estate.  JULIAN has been involved in litigation against his father’s 

former and current guardians, Curtis Rogers and Stephen Kelly, respectively, dating back to 

January 2011, when the Ward’s caregiver, Sonja Kobrin, filed a Petition to Determine Incapacity 

and Petition for the Appointment of an Emergency Temporary Guardian in the Circuit Court of 

the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida. 

The instant suit involved the disposition of four real estate properties located in New 

York (“808 Lexington” and “67th Street”), Palm Beach (“330 Ocean”), and London (“Portland 

Place”).  Disputes had arisen between JULIAN and Oliver Bivins, Jr. (“Oliver Jr.”), the Ward’s 

youngest son, regarding these properties.  Mr. Stein, a New York attorney, was retained by 

Rogers, the permanent guardian, in connection with the partition, sale, and delinquent mortgage 

debt on 808 Lexington.  Upon the succession of Kelly to the guardianship, Mr. Stein was 

retained to defend the foreclosure action instituted against 808 Lexington and to effect the sale of 

the property. 

Over the course of his representation of the Guardians, Mr. Stein filed a Petition to 

partition 808 Lexington, successfully prevented the foreclosure on the property, and assisted in 

the negotiation of two settlement agreements, resulting in the Estate of Lorna Bivins 

relinquishing her half interest in 808 Lexington and 330 Ocean and the ultimate sale of 808 

Lexington for $5,000,000.00. 
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II. The Amended Complaint And Trial 

Plaintiff filed suit in this matter on September 17, 2015, and on January 8, 2016, filed an 

Amended Complaint.  The Amended Complaint, the pleading on which the case was tried, 

alleged that Mr. Stein:  (1) failed to diligently assess the discrepancy in values of 808 Lexington 

and 67th Street, and, therefore, did not adequately advise the permanent guardian on the fairness 

of the New York Settlement; (2) failed to advise the permanent guardian to collect rent from the 

808 Lexington tenants in order to pay down the mortgage on the property, and relatedly failed to 

collect taxes and rental income from Lorna’s estate; (3) failed to arrange for commercially 

reasonable substitute financing for the mortgage; (4) failed to have the mortgage deemed 

satisfied or released; (5) failed to have the mortgage interest declared usurious; (6) charged the 

guardianship excessive fees and took “large sums of money under the guise of retainers without 

accounting or documentation;” and (7) failed to “account to the Court or to JULIAN regarding 

the failure to comply with the terms of the Global Settlement Agreement as the closing agent.” 

Following a two-week trial, the jury rendered its verdict and found the CIKLIN LUBITZ 

Co-Defendants3 liable for breach of fiduciary duty and professional malpractice and awarded 

$16.4 million in damages.  The same jury that heard that same evidence found in favor of the 

STEIN DEFENDANTS on the identical breach of fiduciary duty and professional malpractice 

claims. 

III. The Motion For New Trial 

Despite the jury verdict, Plaintiff JULIAN BIVINS asserts the verdict in favor of the 

STEIN DEFENDANTS was against the clear weight of the evidence and that evidentiary rulings 

substantially prejudiced the Plaintiff.  As demonstrated herein, however, Plaintiff’s arguments 

3 Throughout the case and trial the Defendants were referred to generally as the “CIKLIN 
LUBITZ” Defendants, and the “STEIN DEFENDANTS”. 
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are meritless in that they ignore the record, disregard the standard to be applied under Rule 

103(a) of the Federal Rules of Evidence, and fail to recognize or appreciate the import of the 

verdict Plaintiff obtained against the CIKLIN LUBITZ Co-Defendants in the amount of $16.4 

million. 

First, with regard to the argument that the Court abused its discretion in striking Irwin 

Gilbert as an expert, the Plaintiff’s position ignores the wide latitude granted to the Court, 

ignores substantial testimony regarding the complete lack of qualifications of Irwin Gilbert to 

opine on STEIN’s adherence or lack of adherence to acceptable standards of care, and evades the 

fact that even if Irwin Gilbert’s Rule 26 Disclosure was permitted to be introduced into evidence, 

there would still have been insufficient evidence to establish a claim against the STEIN 

DEFENDANTS. 

Second, with regard to the Court’s exclusion of the excessively late disclosure of a title 

history on 67th Street, no substantial rights were affected.  The Plaintiff JULIAN BIVINS 

himself testified that his father, Oliver Bivins, Sr., owned the property prior to his marriage to 

Lorna Bivins.  Furthermore, the testimony was uncontradicted it had been transferred to his wife, 

Lorna Bivins, decades ago.  Again, as with the Daubert issue, there was no testimony disclosed 

in any Rule 26 report or otherwise that would have even established any equitable interest in 

67th Street available to Oliver Bivins, Sr. 

Third, regarding the “improper acts of JULIAN BIVINS,” no substantial rights of the 

Plaintiff were affected.  All testimony regarding deeds, transfer, and the like was necessary 

background information for the initiation of the guardianship and all that transpired thereafter.  

Furthermore, Plaintiff and his counsel completely ignore the $16.4 million verdict obtained 
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against the CIKLIN LUBITZ Co-Defendants which actually refutes Plaintiff’s position.  

Moreover, the STEIN DEFENDANTS’ counsel argued appropriately. 

Finally, with regard to the attorney-client privilege and work-product communications 

between STEIN and his client, the Guardians, this issue was extensively briefed, both before the 

United States Magistrate and this Court, (D.E. 83, 85, 89, 112, 113) and multiple orders entered 

upholding objections.  (D.E. 132, 137)  Yet again, Plaintiff ignores the substantial verdict 

obtained against the CIKLIN LUBITZ Co-Defendants which vitiates his arguments. 

ARGUMENT 

As a threshold matter, Plaintiff in reciting the standard this Court must utilize in 

addressing the Motion for New Trial ignores the great deference afforded to the right to trial by 

jury and the jury verdict.  Hewitt v. B. F. Goodrich Co., 732 F.2d 1554, 1556 (11th Cir. 1984).  

“The right to trial by jury is also protected by our requirement that ‘new trials should not be 

granted on evidentiary grounds unless, at a minimum, the verdict is against the great – not 

merely the greater – weight of the evidence.’”  R. V. Fondren v. Allstate Insurance Co., 790 F.2d 

1533, 1534 (11th Cir. 1986), citing Conway v. Chemical Leaman Tank Lines, 610 F.2d 360, 363 

(5th Cir. 1980). 

Furthermore, the evidentiary rulings on which Plaintiff substantially predicates his 

Motion for New Trial did not, as demonstrated herein, affect Plaintiff’s “substantial rights.”  Fed. 

R. Evid. 103(c).  The Court should uphold the sanctity of the jury’s verdict, and reaffirm its prior 

rulings, all of which were eminently correct under the applicable legal standards. 

I. This Court Appropriately Exercised Its Discretion In 
Striking Irwin Gilbert Under Daubert 

Plaintiff’s argument that a new trial is warranted based upon the Court’s striking Irwin 

Gilbert as an expert (D.E. 374) ignores well-established law under Daubert.  The record 
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conclusively establishes that Mr. Gilbert’s qualifications as a New York transactional real estate 

lawyer are non-existent, thereby supporting this Court’s order. 

A. Daubert Requirements 

Because the task of evaluating the reliability of expert testimony is uniquely entrusted to 

the district Court under Daubert, see McCorvey v. Baxter Healthcare Corp., 298 F.3d 1253, 1256 

(11th Cir. 2002), this court is given “considerable leeway” in the execution of its duty.  Kumho 

Tire Co. Ltd. v. Carmichael, 526 U.S. at 137, 152 (1998).  This Court appropriately exercised its 

discretion and properly struck Mr. Gilbert as an expert.  This was proper for the CIKLIN 

LUBITZ Co-Defendants and even more importantly for the STEIN DEFENDANTS.  By his own 

admission, Mr. Gilbert never practiced real estate transactional law in New York, the exact 

services STEIN was retained to perform on behalf of the guardians in New York. 

Pursuant to Daubert, in addressing the contours of the trial court’s discretion, the 

admission of expert evidence is governed by Federal Rule of Evidence 702.  Under Rule 702 and 

Daubert, district courts must act as “gatekeepers” which admit expert testimony only if it is both 

reliable and relevant.  See Daubert, 509 U.S. at 589.  District courts are charged with this 

gatekeeping function “to ensure that speculative, unreliable expert testimony does not reach the 

jury” under the mantle of reliability that accompanies the appellation “expert testimony.”  

McCorvey, 298 F.3d at 1256. 

To fulfill their obligation under Daubert, district courts must engage in a rigorous inquiry 

to determine whether:  “(1) the expert is qualified to testify competently regarding the matters he 

intends to address;” (2) the methodology by which the expert reaches his conclusions is 

sufficiently reliable as determined by the sort of inquiry mandated in Daubert; and (3) the 

testimony assists the trier-of-fact, through the application of scientific, technical, or specialized 
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expertise, to understand the evidence or to determine a fact of issue.”  City of Tuscaloosa v. 

Harcros Chems., Inc., 158 F.3d 548, 562 (11th Cir. 1998) (footnote omitted).  Because the 

Daubert prongs are conjunctive, the failure to satisfy any of them is fatal.  See Id.  The party 

offering the expert has the burden of satisfying each of these three elements by a preponderance 

of the evidence.  See Allison v. McGhan Med. Corp., 184 F.3d 1300, 1306 (11th Cir. 1999). 

B. The Court Correctly Held Gilbert Was Not Qualified 

Here, the decision to strike Mr. Gilbert was proper based on the first prong of Daubert.  

At the Daubert hearing Mr. Gilbert, despite his reluctance, admitted he had never practiced 

transaction law; he was a litigator: 

Q. Okay.  Mr. Stein’s a New York real estate lawyer, right? 

A. Yes, he is. 

Q. And you are not a specialist in New York real estate 
transactions, are you? 

A. I have litigated countless lawsuits involving New York real 
estate transactions, the title to property, the partition of 
property, and, in fact, have litigated whether or not a 
divisible marital interest remained in New York property. 

* * * 
Q. In the last five years, you’ve not actually handled a New 

York real estate transaction for commercial property; is that 
right? 

A. Not for the purchase or sale, but I’ve litigated lease 
disputes. 

Q. So, no? 

A. I’m not sure.  I think lease disputes would mean yes. 

(D.E. 390, p.301-3) 

Mr. Gilbert and Plaintiff erroneously assumed that if a lawyer represented a professional, 

that alone qualified him to testify as to appropriate standards of care.  Such a position does not 
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come even close to even creating an issue that this Court’s discretion was abused.  The lack of 

Mr. Gilbert’s qualifications are best summarized in the cross-examination at the Daubert hearing 

when it was pointed out that representation of an orthopedist by an attorney does not render the 

attorney qualified to perform orthopedic surgery: 

Q. Have you ever litigated a medical malpractice case? 

A. I’ve defended a medical malpractice case. 

Q. Okay.  But you’re not a doctor.  You don’t practice as a 
doctor, right? 

A. I would take it a step further.  I would never call myself a 
medical malpractice lawyer. 

Q. Okay. 

A. The doctor didn’t have insurance and had no means of 
defense, and so I agreed to defend the doctor. 

Q. Okay.  But my point being, sir, is that you litigate all 
different kinds of cases, but it doesn’t mean you practice 
what you’re litigating about. 

For instance, that medical malpractice case - - and I 
understand that the doctor, from your testimony, didn’t 
have insurance, okay, and so you stepped in and you 
defended the doctor.  And you defended the doctor, I 
assume, and you discuss the standard of care, et cetera, 
correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay.  But you, yourself, did not practice as a doctor, but 
you were defending what the doctor did.  You see my 
point? 

A. Not really. 

Q. Okay. 

A. But it is correct, I’m not a doctor. 

(D.E. 390, p.305-6) 
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The inquiry conducted of Gilbert by counsel before this Court established this Court’s 

discretion was appropriately exercised.  The evidence established: (1) Mr. Gilbert never provided 

legal representation to a professional guardian, nor ever administered a guardianship, both of 

which were at the crux of Plaintiff’s case against the STEIN DEFENDANTS; (2) Mr. Gilbert 

never handled the administration of a guardianship due to incapacitation or degenerative age 

conditions of a ward which the STEIN DEFENDANTS in this case were appointed to do; (3) 

Mr. Gilbert never was an emergency temporary guardian; (4) Mr. Gilbert never assisted a 

guardian in preparing a final accounting; and (5) Mr. Gilbert does not practice real estate law, 

cannot testify as a real estate expert, and has never conducted real estate transactional 

representation in New York as Mr. Stein was retained to do.  (D.E. 390, p.305)  Indeed, Mr. 

Gilbert never has been qualified to testify as an expert on New York real estate transactional 

legal services. 

C. Even If Gilbert Had Been Permitted To Testify, His Rule 26 
Report Did Not Establish The Required “But For” Causation 

While the foregoing conclusively demonstrates Gilbert was properly stricken based on 

Daubert, even if Mr. Gilbert was permitted to testify on every issue in his Rule 26 Pre-Trial 

Disclosure, (D.E. 288-4) Plaintiff’s substantial rights could not have been affected because there 

still would have been insufficient testimony to support a finding in favor of the Plaintiff.  See, 

LeBlanc v. Chevron USA, Inc., 2009 WL 3837397 (E.D. La. Nov. 13, 2009) (holding that even 

if Daubert motion not granted such testimony would be insufficient to allow a reasonable juror to 

conclude causation exists and judgment for Defendant proper).4  Plaintiff still would have to 

4 Because a verdict was rendered in favor of the STEIN DEFENDANTS and judgment 
thereafter entered, the STEIN DEFENDANTS did not need to renew their Motions for Directed 
Verdict timely made at the conclusion of Plaintiff’s case and at the close of evidence.  This 
portion of the argument, however, establishes that even if Gilbert was permitted to testify 
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establish causation. Such causation would require proof there would have been some outcome 

more favorable to the Ward than provided by the New York Settlement.  There simply existed no 

such evidence. 

In Keramati v. Schackow, 553 So.2d 741, 742 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989), a former client of a 

law firm alleged she entered into a settlement in an amount substantially less than her claims 

were worth, because the attorneys forced her to take the settlement or would "no longer represent 

her, and it would be too expensive to continue the litigation."  Id. at 743.  That court discussed 

that in such a case the former client may sue, but must prove at trial both (i) breach of duty and 

(ii) had the suit been properly handled, the client could have recovered "substantially greater 

damages than the settlement amount."  Id. at 746. 

There is no evidence that the guardian whom STEIN represented in New York with 

regard to the 808 Lexington Avenue property would have recovered substantially more than the 

New York Settlement achieved.  No one testified, nor did Gilbert’s Rule 26 report opine, a more 

favorable settlement could have been made. 

Specifically, Plaintiff must have presented evidence which would have afforded a 

reasonable basis for the conclusion that it is more likely than not that the conduct of the STEIN 

DEFENDANTS was a substantial factor in bringing about the result.  Gooding v. Univ. Hosp. 

Bldg., Inc., 445 So.2d 1015, 1018 (Fla. 1984).  "A mere possibility of such causation is not 

enough; and when the matter remains one of pure speculation or conjecture, or the probabilities 

are at best evenly balanced, it becomes the duty of the court to direct a verdict for the defendant."  

Id.  Expert opinions based on sheer speculation and facts or inference not supported by the 

regarding his Rule 26 report, insufficient evidence existed that would have supported a verdict in 
Plaintiff’s favor.  This is an additional ground to deny a new trial. 
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evidence should be rejected by the trial court in considering a motion for directed verdict.  Proto 

v. Graham, 788 So.2d 393, 395 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001). 

The plaintiff must "demonstrate[ ] that there is an amount of damages which [he] would 

have recovered but for the attorney's negligence."  Olmsted v. Emmanuel, 783 So.2d 1122, 1125 

(Fla. 1st DCA 2001) (citing Sure Snap Corp. v. Baena, 705 So.2d 46, 49 (Fla. 3d DCA 1997)).  

Thus, in a case such as this, the plaintiff had to prove that he "would have prevailed on the 

underlying action but for the attorney's negligence."  Id.  "Under the 'trial within a trial' standard 

of proving proximate cause, the jury necessarily has to determine whether the client would have 

prevailed in the underlying action, [...], before determining whether the client would prevail in 

the malpractice action."  Tarleton v. Arnstein & Lehr, 719 So.2d 325, 330 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998). 

"In Florida, unless the fact-finder is presented with evidence which will enable it to 

determine damages for lost profits with a reasonable degree of certainty, rather than by means of 

speculation and conjecture, the claimant may not recover such damages."  Resolution Trust 

Corp. v. Stroock & Stroock & Lavan, 853 F.Supp. 1422, 1426 (S.D. Fla. 1994) (citing Himes v. 

Brown & Co. Sec. Corp., 518 So.2d 937, 938 (Fla. 3d DCA 1987)).  Plaintiff's burden to prove 

the case within the case is clearly provided for in the law. 

Plaintiff introduced no evidence, nor did Gilbert’s Rule 26 report opine in any fashion, 

what the more favorable result would have or could have been.  In order to prevail on his theory 

that the Guardian should not have foregone the Ward's claims to Lorna's 67th Street property 

Plaintiff was required to prove that the actions of any of the Defendants foreclosed or precluded 

a better result for the Ward.  No substantial or competent evidence was presented on this point. 

The only testimony on this issue was that the guardianship court considered all 

potentialities in approving the New York Settlement and finding it in the Ward's best interest.  
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Plainly, the jury had no evidence to base a finding that the Ward would have obtained a greater 

amount or what that amount would have been, again, even if Gilbert testified. 

Plaintiff’s counsel acknowledged the claim was not easy to win, and never presented 

evidence of the likelihood of success on the merits. In closing, he stated:  "And they told you this 

wasn't the easiest claim.  But what did they do?  Well, let's think about it.  Do I fight this?  Do I 

give my client the justice he deserves and fight this and get the true value, or do I just sell him 

out and I take the quick settlement?  Because, you know what, I'll get some money to him, and 

then I'll get attorney's fees."  (9:28) 

Even if the Ward's interests were “sold out” in the New York Settlement, which is 

completely untrue, Plaintiff still had to prove what the Ward would have received in all litigation 

resolved in that settlement if it had proceeded to final judgment (i.e., the result but-for the 

settlement).  There is a complete absence of any relevant evidence on this point. Indeed, what 

evidence there is in the record is directly to the contrary.5  There is no evidentiary basis upon 

which a reasonable jury could conclude the Guardian, on behalf of the Ward, would have 

prevailed on the merits of any of the thirteen pieces of litigation. 

Plaintiff failed to prove causation.  Even assuming Plaintiff had submitted evidence a 

duty of care was violated by the STEIN DEFENDANTS, Plaintiff failed to demonstrate 

causation from any such failure.  Additionally, unless there is competent substantial evidence in 

the record that an appraisal obtained in May 2013, the date of the New York Settlement, would 

5 Skatoff, the CIKLIN LUBITZ Co-Defendants’ expert, testified Defendants' conduct 
neither fell below the standard of care for guardianship attorney in the community nor 
constituted a breach of fiduciary duty.  (T8:104-07)  Skatoff concluded Defendants were faced 
with "actions coming at the guardianship from every direction, from Lorna's estate, from 
JULIAN" and asserted a "very difficult position" with the petition to determine beneficiaries to 
set aside the divorce, filed on behalf of the guardians.  (T8:105-06) 
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show the value of 67th Street at $22.5 million, there is no showing the settlement caused 

damage. 

For example, if an appraisal in May 2013 had shown an estimated fair market value of $7 

to $9 million, the same as the broker's opinion,6 the failure to obtain that appraisal caused no 

damage.  For Plaintiff to succeed on any claim based on Defendants not having an appraisal at 

the time of the settlement, Plaintiff was required to introduce into evidence an MAI appraisal 

dated as of May 2013 or, at a minimum, testimony from a qualified expert witness that an 

appraisal would have shown the $22.5 million "valuation" Plaintiff argued to the jury. 

The issue is not what the 67th Street property sold for eighteen months after the 

settlement conference; the issue is what a May 2013 appraisal would actually have shown.  In the 

ultimate of ironies, given Plaintiff's vociferous arguments for such an appraisal, no appraisal was 

presented by JULIAN BIVINS when the guardianship court approved the New York Settlement 

and no such appraisal was presented by Plaintiff at trial. Absent that critical evidence, the STEIN 

DEFENDANTS were entitled to judgment in their favor as a matter of law. 

II. The 67th Street Title History Was Not Properly 
Disclosed And No Prejudice Resulted From Its 
Exclusion. 

The exclusion of a title report and deeds on the 67th Street Property based upon the 

Plaintiff’s failure to disclose this information until immediately before trial was correct, 

completely within the Court’s discretion, and in no way warrants a new trial.  “A district court 

6 Defendants note that there was an appraisal on the Lexington property as of the 
settlement approval hearing in September 2013.  That appraisal, obtained by JULIAN BIVINS 
and his then-personal counsel, Mr. Denman, valued Lexington at $4.4 million.  (T7:90)  That 
value is consistent with, and actually slightly below, the low-end of the broker’s opinion range of 
$4.5 to $6.5 million. 
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has broad discretion to determine the admissibility of evidence … .”  U.S. v. McLean, 138 F.3d 

1398, 1403 (11th Cir. 1998). 

A. Standard On Admissibility Of Evidence 

The law is well-established that if a party fails to provide information or identify a 

witness as required by Federal Rule 26(a) or (e), the party is not allowed to use that information 

at trial unless the failure was substantially justified or is harmless.  Fed.R.Civ.P. 37(c)(1).  

Barring substantial justification, therefore, a plaintiff should not be able to present documents not 

disclosed during fact discovery. 

Second, even if the ruling was somehow infirm, pursuant to Federal Rules of Evidence 

103(a), a court may not overturn a jury’s verdict based on alleged errors in evidentiary rulings 

unless a party’s substantial rights have been affected by the rulings.  See Haygood v. Auto-

Owners Ins. Co., 995 F.2d 1512, 1515 (11th Cir. 1993) (“Evidentiary rulings are reviewed under 

an abuse of discretion standard [and] [e]rror in the admission or exclusion of evidence is 

harmless if it does not affect the substantial rights of the parties.”). 

B. The Exclusion Of The Evidence Was Proper And In No Way 
Affected Plaintiff’s Substantial Rights 

The exclusion of this evidence was completely appropriate.  Second, even if the 

exclusion of the evidence was improper, it certainly did not affect Plaintiff’s “substantial rights” 

as:  (1) Plaintiff JULIAN BIVINS himself testified regarding the ownership history of 67th 

Street; (2) there was no testimony disclosed in any Rule 26 Report or offered through any 

witness regarding any equitable interest in 67th Street; and (3) there was no evidence adduced, 

nor disclosed pre-trial regarding what any MAI appraisal on 67th Street would have revealed. 

It is uncontroverted and indeed admitted by Plaintiff that the 67th Street decades-old 

deeds were not properly disclosed.  There was extensive argument and discussion between the 
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Court and Plaintiff that Plaintiff failed to disclose this information timely regarding the 67th 

Street title history, did not seek any continuance, and had the opportunity to obtain this 

information even prior to suit being filed.  In fact, Plaintiff’s counsel conceded he did not even 

order the title report until May 16, 2017 and supplied it May 31, 2017.  This disclosure occurred 

after all witnesses had been deposed, all experts deposed, and all Rule 26 Reports submitted.  

The refusal to allow Plaintiff to utilize this title history was completely appropriate. 

Based upon all of the evidence adduced at trial, it is disingenuous at best to suggest that 

the exclusion of the 67th Street deed history affected Plaintiff’s “substantial rights.”  Plaintiff 

himself testified that his father owned 67th Street prior to his marriage.  This testimony was 

never refuted and the one thing the jury heard other than Lorna Bivins owned it alone at the time 

of her death. 

The testimony on direct of Plaintiff by his counsel absolutely forecloses any suggestion 

that Plaintiff was not able to adduce evidence regarding the ownership history: 

Q. And what was your mother’s name? 

A. Dorothy Clarendon, when she passed away a few years 
ago. 

Q. Okay.  And you mentioned that when your parents split, 
that you moved up to New York.  Given or take, when are 
we talking? 

A. I was six years old.  That would have been 1951.  And we 
moved - - my sister and I and mother moved to Manhattan. 

Q. And where was your father when you moved? 

A. He was in Amarillo, Texas.  And then shortly after we 
moved, he moved up to New York, or bought a - - the 
Scribner mansion in New York to stay when he was there. 

Q. Okay.  Did you ever go to the Scribner mansion when you 
were a kid? 
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A. Yes, I did.  I can remember playing in the basement there. 

Q. Okay.  And was your father married to Lorna at the time 
that you recall playing in the basement of the Scribner 
mansion? 

A. No, he wasn’t married.  I think there was a time when he 
and Elaine, his second wife, liver there. 

Q. And at some point in time he met Lorna? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And that was - - do you recall about when that was? 

A. Late ‘50s, I think. 

(D.E. 3690, p.121-2) 

The jury heard all it needed to hear regarding ownership.  Oliver Bivins, Sr. owned it in 

1951; he continued to own it when he got married the second time; he owned it when he married 

Lorna Bivins in 1959; and Lorna owned it alone when they were divorced in 2010.  The deeds in 

any event would have been cumulative.  Furthermore, as has been established beyond and to the 

exclusion of any possible doubt, there was never any testimony adduced or even proffered 

establishing any equitable interest of Oliver Bivins, Sr. in the 67th Street property after the 

divorce, the apparent basis for Plaintiff’s claim to 67th Street. 

The singular case relied upon by Plaintiff, S.E.C. v. Samuel H. Sloan & Co., 369 F.Supp. 

994 (S.D.N.Y. 1973), is completely inapplicable.  The document in that case was a public record 

equally accessible to all parties: a transcript of a hearing conducted before the S.E.C. in the case.  

The appellant there simply did not obtain the hearing transcript because he did not pay for the 

transcript.  The court, therefore, found no error. 

In the instant case, however, while the 67th Street title history was available in the public 

records, these were deeds going back over 50 years and were not part of the District Court 
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docket.  No new trial is warranted for the exclusion of the 67th Street deed history.  The assertion 

in Plaintiff’s Motion for New Trial that the exclusion of the deeds created a “false impression 

regarding the ownership of the 67th Street property in the minds of the jury” completely ignores 

the verdict in favor of Plaintiff and against the CIKLIN LUBITZ Co-Defendants, ignores the 

trial testimony, and ignores the import of Rule 103(a) of the Federal Rules of Evidence.   

C. No Improper “Character Evidence” Of Julian Bivins Was 
Elicited. 

Plaintiff next argues that somehow a prejudicial character assassination occurred when 

the CIKLIN LUBITZ Co-Defendants argued about the “greed” of JULIAN BIVINS.  The 

Motion for New Trial contains four references to greed and that pre-guardianship transfers were 

“improper.”  Plaintiff, of course, ignores that the STEIN DEFENDANTS never said or adopted 

those comments.  Likewise, the transfers to JULIAN BIVINS prior to the guardianship were 

mere background information.  U.S. v. Butch, 256 F.3d 171, 175-76 (3d Cir. 2001) (evidence is 

admissible if it is necessary background information rather than an attempt to impugn character). 

Counsel for the STEIN DEFENDANTS, on the contrary, argued a “Cain & Abel” theme 

that JULIAN BIVINS wanted 67th Street which was his brother’s.   This was absolute fair 

comment on the evidence by the STEIN DEFENDANTS and, furthermore, no “bad character” 

evidence was elicited.  The history of the Texas mineral, oil and gas deeds and other activity 

immediately prior to the appointment of an emergency temporary guardian was necessary 

background information.  See Butch, supra.  What the STEIN DEFENDANTS’ counsel argued, 

completely properly, was that JULIAN BIVINS wanted that which belonged to his brother - the 

67th Street property.  This was the crux of the case and the only basis for the award against the 

Co-Defendants -  that JULIAN and his father were entitled to 67th Street. 
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Of even greater significance is Plaintiff’s refusal to acknowledge the $16.4 million 

verdict against the CIKLIN LUBITZ Co-Defendants.  That substantial verdict vitiates Plaintiff’s 

arguments regarding any possible prejudice under Rule 103(a). 

Plaintiff’s reliance on Aetna Casualty & Surety Co. v. Gosdin, 803 F.2d 1153 (11th Cir. 

1986) is, furthermore, misplaced.  Gosdin involved voluminous documents admitted, improperly, 

in summary form that contained gross hearsay, and conclusory accusations.  The Eleventh 

Circuit cited its own precedent for the proposition that reversal on evidentiary error is not proper 

unless the verdict was the product of such one-sided evidence.  This is simply not the situation 

presented here. 

Moreover, Plaintiff’s reliance on Peat, Inc. v. Vanguard Research, Inc., 378 F.3d 1154 

(11th Cir. 2004) conclusively establishes the Plaintiff’s substantial rights were not affected by 

any evidence regarding transfers to JULIAN BIVINS from his father that occurred prior to the 

establishment of the guardianship in the Texas lawsuit.  Courts look at how much of an affect the 

improperly admitted or excluded evidence has on the verdict.  Again, it simply defies logic to 

argue that substantial prejudice occurred when the Plaintiff obtained an award in the amount of 

$16.4 million against the CIKLIN LUBITZ Co-Defendants, the same Co-Defendants who 

characterized the Plaintiff as “greedy.” 

D. The Attorney/Client Privilege Was Properly Upheld. 

Plaintiff spent a substantial amount of time at trial addressing bills from the Co-

Defendant CIKLIN LUBITZ firm that included communications with KEITH STEIN prior to 

STEIN’s retention in October 2012.  Plaintiff takes the position that the Court should have 

required Defendant ASHLEY CRISPIN to testify as to the substance of these communications.  

The argument, however, that Plaintiff is entitled to a new trial because it was denied the ability to 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 421   Entered on FLSD Docket 09/22/2017   Page 19 of 21



CASE NO. 9:15-CV-81298-KAM 

20 

introduce evidence concerning these communications: (1) ignores well-settled law; (2) ignores 

the fact that these issues were substantially briefed, both before the United States Magistrate and 

this district Court and at every turn the privilege was upheld; and (3) ignores the fact that it is 

undisputed STEIN provided no legal services prior to October or November 2012, well after the 

Beachton mortgage was in default and accelerated. 

As Plaintiff himself concedes, Magistrate Matthewman entered two separate orders 

refuting identical arguments raised in the Motion for New Trial.  (D.E. 132 and 137).  This Court 

then affirmed these orders (D.E. 167).  Unsatisfied with the extensive briefing and multiple 

rulings refuting Plaintiff’s arguments, further Motions to Compel, Motions to Re-Open 

Discovery, and Renewed Motions to Compel were filed.  (D.E. 205, 209, 210, 201).  Again, an 

omnibus order was entered by Magistrate Matthewman denying all of these Motions.  This Court 

then affirmed the ruling, (D.E. 319).  And again, for the seventh time Plaintiff’s contentions 

should be rejected. 

In any event, it was absolutely undisputed there was no representation of the guardian by 

STEIN prior to October 2012, and it certainly cannot be said that any communications affected 

substantial rights of the Plaintiff in presenting his case as to the STEIN DEFENDANTS.  The 

suggestion that communications emanating from CIKLIN LUBITZ prior to STEIN’s 

representation could somehow impose liability on STEIN for the Beachton mortgage default is 

absurd. 

CONCLUSION 

This case was fairly tried over a two-week period.  Plaintiff obtained a verdict of $16.4 

million against the STEIN DEFENDANTS’ Co-Defendants.  Plaintiff’s dissatisfaction that the 

jury returned a verdict in favor the STEIN DEFENDANTS does not warrant a new trial.  The 
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arguments advanced in the Motion for New Trial are unsupported by the record, unsupported by 

law, and must be denied. 

DATED this 22nd day of September, 2017. 

CONROY SIMBERG 
Attorney for Stein Defendants 
1801 Centrepark Drive East, Suite 200 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 697-8088/(561) 697-8664/Fax 
eservicewpb@conroysimberg.com
jblaker@conroysimberg.com
kmelby@conroysimberg.com

By: /s/ Jeffrey A. Blaker
Jeffrey A. Blaker, Esquire 
Florida Bar No. 443913 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on September 22, 2017, I electronically filed the foregoing 
document with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF.  I also certify that the foregoing document 
is being served this day on all counsel of record identified on the attached Service List via 
transmission of Notices of Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF. 

/s/ Jeffrey A. Blaker
Jeffrey A. Blaker, Esquire 
Florida Bar No.: 443913 

SERVICE LIST 

J. Ronald Denman, Esq. 
Charles D. Bavol, Esq. 
Counsel for Plaintiff 
The Bleakley Bavol Law Firm 
15170 North Florida Avenue 
Tampa, FL 33613 
(813) 221-3759/(813) 221-3198/Fax 
rdenman@bleakleybavol.com
cbavol@bleakleybavol.com

Rachel Studley, Esq. 
Brandon J. Hechtman, Esq. 
Counsel for Brian M. O’Connell, Ashley 
Crispin & Ciklin Lubitz O’Connell Firm 
Wicker Smith O’Hara McCoy & Ford, P.A. 
515 N. Flagler Drive, #1600 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
(561) 689-3800/(561) 689- 9206/Fax 
RStudley@wickersmith.com
BHechtman@wickersmith.com
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No. 9:15-cv-81298-KAM/Matthewman

JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal
Representative of the ancillary Estate
of Oliver Wilson Bivins,

Plaintiff,

v.

BRIAN M. O'CONNELL, ASHLEY
N. CRISPIN, CIKLIN LUBITZ &
O'CONNELL, KEITH B. STEIN,
BEYS LISTON MOBARGHA &
BERLAND, LLP and LAW
OFFICES OF KEITH B. STEIN,
PLLC, n/k/a STEIN LAW, PLLC,

Defendants.
__________________________________________/

NOTICE OF APPEARANCE

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that L. Louis Mrachek, Esquire and Alan B. Rose, Esquire of the

firm Mrachek, Fitzgerald, Rose, Konopka, Thomas & Weiss, P.A., enter their appearance as counsel

of record for Defendant, Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell, in the above-styled cause and request that all

notices, pleadings and other papers filed in this matter be served on the undersigned counsel at the

address below.

Additionally, pursuant to Florida Rule of Judicial Administration 2.516, the undersigned

designates the following email addresses for the purpose of receiving pleadings, orders, and other

papers filed or served in this matter:

L. Louis Mrachek, Esquire
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Alan B. Rose, Esquire
MRACHEK, FITZGERALD, ROSE, 
KONOPKA, THOMAS & WEISS, P.A.
505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
Phone: (561) 655-2250/Fax: (561) 655-5537
Email: lmrachek@mrachek-law.com

mchandler@mrachek-law.com
Email: arose@mrachek-law.com 

mchandler@mrachek-law.com

Dated: August 24, 2017 Respectfully submitted,

s/ Alan B. Rose                                         
L. Louis Mrachek (Florida Bar No. 182880)
Alan B. Rose (Florida Bar No. 961825)
email:  lmrachek@mrachek-law.com
email:  mchandler@mrachek-law.com
email: arose@mrachek-law.com
email:  mchandler@mrachek-law.com
Mrachek, Fitzgerald, Rose,
Konopka, Thomas & Weiss, P.A.
505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
Telephone: (561) 355-6990 | Fax: (561) 655-5537
Attorneys for Ciklin Lubitz & O'Connell

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on August 24, 2017, I electronically filed the foregoing document with
the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF.  I also certify that the foregoing document is being served
this day on all counsel of record or pro se parties identified on the attached Service List via
transmission of Notices of Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF.

s/ Alan B. Rose                                         
Alan B. Rose (Florida Bar No. 961825)
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SERVICE LIST
Case No.  9:15-cv-81298-KAM/Matthewman

United States District Court, Southern District of Florida 

J. Ronald Denman, Esquire
Email: rdenman@bleakleybavol.com
The Bleakley Bavol Law Firm
15170 North Florida Avenue
Tampa, FL 33613
(813) 221-3759 - Telephone
(813) 221-3198 - Facsimile

Rachel Studley, Esquire
Email:  rstudley@wickersmith.com
Brandon J. Hechtman, Esquire
Email:  bhechtman@wickersmith.com
Wicker Smith O'Hara McCoy &
Ford, P.A.
2800 Ponce de Leon Blvd., Suite 800
Coral Gables, FL 33135
(305) 448-3939 - Telephone
(305) 441-1745 - Facsimile

Jeffrey A. Blaker, Esquire
Email:  jblaker@conroysimberg.com 
aschultz@conroysimberg.com;
earanda@conroysimberg.com
Conroy, Simberg, Ganon, Krevans, Abel,
Lurvey, Morrow & Schefer, P.A.
1801 Centrepark Drive East, #200
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
(561) 697-8088 - Telephone
(561) 697-8664 - Facsimile

Wendy J. Stein, Esquire
Email: wstein@bonnerkiernan.com
Bonner Kiernan Trebach & Crociata, LLP
1233 20th Street NW, 8th Floor
Washington, DC 20036
(202) 712-7000 - Telephone
(202) 712-7100 - Facsimile
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA  

WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION 
 

CASE NO. 9:15-cv-81298-KAM 
 
JULIAN BIVINS, as Personal Representative of 
the ancillary Estate of Oliver Wilson Bivins, 
 
                 Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
CURTIS CAHALLONER ROGERS, JR., as 
former guardian, et al, 
 
                 Defendants. 
___________________________________/ 

 
PLAINTIFF’S NOTICE OF SETTLEMENT 

 
Plaintiff, Julian Bivins, as Personal Representative of the ancillary Estate of Oliver 

Wilson Bivins (“Plaintiff”), hereby notifies this Court that Plaintiff and Defendants Brian M. 

O’Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Ciklin Lubitz & O’Connell, and Stephen M. Kelly, only, have 

settled this matter. A Joint Stipulation for Dismissal with Prejudice as to only the Defendants 

Brian M. O’Connell, Ashley N. Crispin, Ciklin Lubitz & O’Connell, and Stephen M. Kelly will 

be forthcoming.  
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Dated: September 8, 2017    Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
/s/ J. Ronald Denman                                   . 
THE BLEAKLEY BAVOL LAW FIRM 
J. Ronald Denman, Esquire 
Florida Bar No.  863475 
15170 North Florida Avenue 
Tampa, FL  33613 
Telephone: (813) 221-3759 
Facsimile: (813) 221-3198 
E-mail: rdenman@bleakleybavol.com 
(Counsel for the Plaintiff) 

 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

  I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was filed with the 
Clerk of Court using the CM/ECF system on September 8, 2017, and the foregoing document is 
being served this day on all counsel or parties of record, as noted below, either via transmission 
of Notices of Electronic Filing generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner for 
those counsel or parties who are not authorized to receive Notices of Electronic Filing: 

 

/s/ J. Ronald Denman                                .                          
Attorney 

 

Rachel Studley, Esq. and  
Brandon J. Hechtman, Esq. 
Wicker Smith O’Hara McCoy & Ford, P.A. 
515 N. Flagler Drive 
West Palm Beach, FL 33486 
RStudley@wickersmith.com 
BHechtman@wickersmith.com 

Jeffrey A. Blaker, Esquire 
Conroy, Simberg 
1801 Centrepark Drive East, Suite 200 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
eservicewbp@conroysimberg.com 
jblaker@conroysimberg.com 
kmelby@conroysimberg.com 

 

L. Louis Mrachek, Esquire 
Alan B. Rose, Esquire 
Mracheck, Fitzgerald, Rose,  
Konopka, Thomas & Weiss, P.A. 
505 South Flagler Drive, Suite 600 
West Palm Beach, FL 33401 
lmrachek@mrachek-law.com 
arose@mrachek-law.com 
mchandler@mrachek-law.com 
 

Case 9:15-cv-81298-KAM   Document 418   Entered on FLSD Docket 09/08/2017   Page 2 of 2


	Oliver Bivins Docket
	Case Summary
	Bivens-Complaint-002
	1-1 - Guardianship, Colin Approved  Settlement
	1-2
	1-main
	18-1
	18-main
	20-1
	20-2
	20-main
	DEFENDANTS, KELLY’S, O’CONNELL’S, CRISPIN’S,
	STEIN’S, THE CLO LAW FIRM’S, AND THE STEIN LAW FIRM’S,
	MOTION TO DISMISS OR STAY, WITH INTEGRATED MEMORANDUM OF LAW 

	29 - Motion to Dismiss
	30-1
	30-2
	30-3
	30-main
	32-1
	32-2
	57-notice of appearance
	205-Crispin Deposition
	209-Brian O'Connell Deposition
	220-Order Requesting Identity of  Guardian
	316-1 Brian O'Connell  Transcript
	339-proposed
	415-1
	415-main
	416-1
	416-2
	416-3
	416-4
	416-main
	419 Motion for New Trial
	419
	421 - Memorandum of Law
	Alan Rose Notice of Appearance
	Notice of Appearance Attorney for  O'Connell and Crispin
	Sept 8th 2017 Settlement -Entry  418



